
 

Page 1 of 4 

 

AGENDA 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
MONDAY, MAY 02, 2022 

7:00 PM AT COMMUNITY CENTER, 528 MAIN STREET 

 

 
 
Call to Order by the Mayor 

Roll Call 

Approval of Minutes 

1. Regular Meeting of April 18, 2022. 

Agenda Revisions 

Special Presentations 

2. Proclamation recognizing May 1-7, 2022 as National Travel and Tourism Week. 

3. Proclamation recognizing May 1-7, 2022 as Professional Municipal Clerks Week. 

4. Proclamation recognizing May 5, 2022 as National Astronaut Day. 

5. Proclamation recognizing May 14, 2022 as World Migratory Bird Day. 

6. Proclamation recognizing May 15-21, 2022 as National Police Week and May 15, 2022 as Peace 
Officers Memorial Day. 

7. Proclamation recognizing May 2022 as Neurofibromatosis Awareness Month and May 17, 2022 as 
World Neurofibromatosis Awareness Day. 

8. Proclamation recognizing May 2022 as National Bike Month, May 16-22, 2022 as Bike to Work 
Week, and May 18, 2022 as Ride of Silence Day in Cedar Falls. 

9. Proclamation recognizing May 2022 as Historic Preservation Month. 

Public Forum. (Speakers will have one opportunity to speak for up to 5 minutes on topics germane to City 

business.) 

Special Order of Business 

10. Public hearing on a proposed Public Record Requests Policy. 
 
a) Receive and file proof of publication of notice of hearing. (Notice published April 22, 2022) 
 
b) Written communications filed with the City Clerk. 
 
c) Staff comments. 
 
d) Public comments. 
 
e) Resolution approving and adopting Administrative Policy No. 5 relative to the City's Public Record 
Requests Policy. 

1



 

Page 2 of 4 

11. Public hearing on proposed amendments to the City's FY2022 Budget. 
 
a) Receive and file proof of publication of notice of hearing. (Notice published April 20, 2022) 
 
b) Written communications filed with the City Clerk. 
 
c) Staff comments. 
 
d) Public comments. 
 
e) Resolution approving and adopting amendments to the City's FY2022 Budget. 

12. Public hearing on the proposed plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate of cost for the 2022 
Alley Reconstruction Project. 
 
a) Receive and file proof of publication of notice of hearing. (Notice published April 22, 2022) 
 
b) Written communications filed with the City Clerk. 
 
c) Staff comments. 
 
d) Public comments. 
 
e) Resolution approving and adopting the plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate of cost 
for the 2022 Alley Reconstruction Project. 

13. Public hearing on a proposal to undertake a public improvement project for the North Cedar Heights 
Area Reconstruction Project - Phase I, and to authorize acquisition of private property for said 
project.  
 
a) Receive and file proof of publication of notice of hearing. (Notice published April 22, 2022) 
 
b) Written communications filed with the City Clerk. 
 
c) Staff comments. 
 
d) Public comments. 
 
e) Resolution approving a public improvement project for the North Cedar Heights Area 
Reconstruction Project - Phase I, and authorizing acquisition of private property for said project. 

Old Business 

14. Pass Ordinance #3010, amending Chapter 23, Traffic and Motor Vehicles, of the Code of 
Ordinances relative to prohibiting parking for the College Hill Farmers Market, upon its third & final 
consideration. 

Consent Calendar: (The following items will be acted upon by voice vote on a single motion without separate 

discussion, unless someone from the Council or public requests that a specific item be considered separately.) 

15. Receive and file the City Council Committee of the Whole minutes of April 18, 2022 relative to the 
following items: 
a) Human Rights Commission Annual Report. 
b) Bicycle Plan Update. 
c) Public Safety Model Study – Funding Sources. 

16. Receive and file communications from the Civil Service Commission relative to the following certified 
lists: 
a) Engineering Technician II. 
b) Land Surveyor. 

2



 

Page 3 of 4 

17. Receive and file Departmental Monthly Reports of March 2022. 

18. Receive and file the Bi-Annual Report of College Hill Partnership relative to FY22 Self-Supported 
Municipal Improvement District (SSMID) funds and an FY22 Economic Development Grant. 

19. Receive and file the Bi-Annual Report of Community Main Street relative to FY22 Self-Supported 
Municipal Improvement District (SSMID) funds and an FY22 Economic Development Grant. 

20. Approve the following applications for cigarette/tobacco/nicotine/vapor permits:  
a) Casey's, 2425 Center Street. 
b) Casey's, 5226 University Avenue. 
c) Casey's, 5908 Nordic Drive. 
d) Casey's, 601 Main Street. 
e) Casey's, 1225 Fountains Way. 
f) Five Corner Liquor & Wine, 809 E 18th Street. 
g) Hill Street News & Tobacco, 2217 College Street. 
h) Prime Mart 4, 2323 Main Street. 
i) The Landmark, 107 Main Street. 
j) Thunder Ridge Ampride, 2425 Whitetail Drive. 
k) Up In Smoke, 2218 College Street. 

21. Approve the following applications for beer permits and liquor licenses: 
a) Holiday Inn Express & Suites, 1614 Technology Parkway, Class C beer - renewal. 
b) Double Tap, 312 Main Street, Class C liquor - renewal. 
c) Voodoo Lounge, 401 Main Street, Class C liquor - renewal. 
d) Casey's General Store, 2425 Center Street, Class E liquor - renewal. 
e) Walgreens, 2509 Whitetail Drive, Class E liquor - renewal. 
f) Casey's General Store, 2425 Center Street, Class E liquor – change in ownership. 
g) Live to 9, 200 Block of State Street and 100 Block of East 2nd Street including adjacent sidewalks, 
Class B beer & outdoor service – seven  5 day permits (May 31-June 4, June 7-11, June 14-18, July 
5-9, July 12-16, July 19-23, and July 26-30). 
h) Dior’s Slushee & Bar LLC, 2211 College Street, Class C liquor – new. 

Resolution Calendar: (The following items will be acted upon by roll call vote on a single motion without 
separate discussion, unless someone from the Council or public requests that a specific item be considered 
separately.) 

22. Resolution approving and adopting amendments to Administrative Policy No. 7 relative to standing 
committees. 

23. Resolution approving and authorizing Amendment to Loan and Disbursement Agreement by and 
between the City of Cedar Falls and the Iowa Finance Authority, and authorizing and providing for 
the reissuance of the $4,720,000 Sewer Revenue Capital Loan Note, Series 2022 (2011 - Rate 
Reset). 

24. Resolution approving and accepting the permanent transfer of $2,700,000.00 from the Municipal 
Electric Utility to the General Fund of the City of Cedar Falls, and $30,000.00 from the Municipal 
Communications Utility to the Economic Development Fund of the City of Cedar Falls. 

25. Resolution levying a final assessment for costs incurred by the City to remove snow and ice from the 
sidewalks abutting the property located at 1404 Clay Street. 

26. Resolution levying a final assessment for costs incurred by the City to remove snow and ice from the 
sidewalks abutting the property located at 603 Fireside Drive. 

27. Resolution levying a final assessment for costs incurred by the City to cleanup/remove debris from 
the property located at 2012 State Street. 

28. Resolution levying a final assessment for costs incurred by the City to remove snow and ice from the 
sidewalks abutting the property located at 1022 West 22nd Street. 

3



 

Page 4 of 4 

29. Resolution levying a final assessment for costs incurred by the City to remove snow and ice from the 
sidewalks abutting the property located at 1612 West 1st Street. 

30. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Lease relative to properties vacated by flood 
buyout programs. 

31. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an amended Service/Product Agreement with the 
Iowa Northland Regional Council of Governments (INRCOG) for project delivery relative to 
Community Development Block Grant (CDBG-CV2) funding from the CARES Act. 

32. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Amendment and Restated Developmental 
Procedures Agreement with Craig Industries, Inc., relative to property located in the vicinity of 
Independence Street and Lincoln Street. 

33. Resolution approving and authorizing the expenditure of funds for the purchase of playground 
equipment for Bess Streeter Aldrich Park. 

34. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a contract with Quality Striping, Inc. relative to 
2022 pavement marking services. 

35. Resolution receiving and filing the bids, and approving and accepting the low bid of Peterson 
Contractors, Inc., in the amount of $7,584,450.61, for the West 27th Street Reconstruction Project.  

36. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of one Owner Purchase Agreement, and approving 
and accepting one Public Utility Easement, in conjunction with the 2022 Alley Reconstruction Project. 

37. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Surface Transportation Block Grant (STBG) 
Programming Agreement with the Black Hawk County Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) 
relative to the Union Road Reconstruction Project. 

38. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement for Traffic Safety Improvement 
Program (TSIP) Funding with the Iowa Department of Transportation (IDOT) relative to the Main 
Street Reconstruction Project. 

Ordinances 

39. Pass an ordinance amending Chapter 16, Offenses and Miscellaneous Provisions, of the Code of 
Ordinances relative to the use and explosion of consumer fireworks within the city limits, upon its first 
consideration. 

Allow Bills and Claims 

40. Allow Bills and Claims for May 2, 2022. 

City Council Referrals 

City Council Updates 

Staff Updates 

Adjournment 

4



CITY HALL 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, APRIL 18, 2022 
REGULAR MEETING, CITY COUNCIL 

MAYOR ROBERT M. GREEN PRESIDING 
  

The City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, met in Regular Session, 
pursuant to law, the rules of said Council and prior notice given each member 
thereof, at 7:05 P.M. on the above date. Members present: Schultz, deBuhr, 
Kruse, Harding, Ganfield, Sires, Dunn. Absent: None.  
 

53764 - It was moved by Harding and seconded by Kruse that the minutes of the Regular 
Meeting of April 4, 2022 be approved as presented and ordered of record. Motion 
carried unanimously.  

 
53765 -   The Mayor then asked if there were any agenda revisions. City Clerk Danielsen 

noted that item #30 on the Resolution Calendar was being removed from the 
agenda.  

 
53766 - Mayor Green read the following proclamations: 
 

Proclamation recognizing April 27, 2022 as Administrative Professionals Day. 

  Proclamation recognizing April 29, 2022 as Arbor Day 150th Anniversary. 
 
53767 -     Roger White, 2303 Greenwood Avenue, commented on Earth Day and 

announced the annual Cedar Valley Trails Partnership Trail Clean-Up on 
Saturday, April 23, 2022.  

53768 - Mayor Green announced that this was the time and place for a hearing on a 
proposed resolution adopting and levying the final schedule of assessments for 
the 2021 Sidewalk Assessment Project, Zone 4.  City Engineer Wicke provided a 
brief summary of the sidewalk assessment process.  

 
53769 -    It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Ganfield that Resolution #22,732, 

adopting and levying the final schedule of assessments for the 2021 Sidewalk 
Assessment Project, Zone 4, be adopted. Following due consideration by the 
Council, the Mayor put the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the 
following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Sires, Dunn, Schultz, deBuhr, 
Kruse, Harding, Ganfield. Nay: None. Motion carried. The Mayor then declared 
Resolution #22,732 duly passed and adopted. 

 
53770 - Mayor Green announced that in accordance with the public notice of April 8, 

2022, this was the time and place for a public hearing on the proposed plans, 
specifications, form of contract & estimate of cost for the West 27th Street 
Reconstruction Project. It was then moved by Kruse and seconded by Harding 
that the proof of publication of notice of hearing be received and placed on file. 
Motion carried unanimously. 

 
53771 - The Mayor then asked if there were any written communications filed to the 

5

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 2 - 

 

proposed project. Upon being advised that there were no written communications 
on file, the Mayor then called for oral comments. City Engineer Wicke provided a 
brief summary of the proposed project. There being no one else present wishing 
to speak about the proposed project, the Mayor declared the hearing closed and 
passed to the next order of business. 

 
53772 - It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Harding that Resolution #22,733, 

approving and adopting the plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate of 
cost for the West 27th Street Reconstruction Project, be adopted. Following 
questions and comments by Councilmembers Sires, deBuhr and Kruse, and 
responses by Public Works Director Schrage, the Mayor put the question on the 
motion and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. 
Aye: Dunn, Schultz, Kruse, Harding, Ganfield. Nay: Sires, deBuhr. Motion 
Carried. The Mayor then declared Resolution #22,733 duly passed and adopted. 

 
53773 - Mayor Green announced that in accordance with the public notice of April 8, 

2022, this was the time and place for a public hearing on the proposed 
conveyance of interest in certain real estate to the Cedar Falls Community 
School District.  It was then moved by Kruse and seconded by Dunn that the 
proof of publication of notice of hearing be received and placed on file. Motion 
carried unanimously. 

 
53774 - The Mayor then asked if there were any written communications filed to the 

proposed conveyance. Upon being advised that there were no written 
communications on file, the Mayor then called for oral comments. City Attorney 
Rogers provided a brief summary of the proposed conveyance. There being no 
one else present wishing to speak about the proposed conveyance, the Mayor 
declared the hearing closed and passed to the next order of business. 

 
53775 - It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Harding that Resolution #22,734, 

approving the conveyance of interest in certain real estate, and approving and 
authorizing execution of a Quit Claim Deed conveying title to the Cedar Falls 
Community School District, be adopted. Following a question by Councilmember 
deBuhr and response by City Attorney Rogers, the Mayor put the question on the 
motion and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. 
Aye: Sires, Dunn, Schultz, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Ganfield. Nay: None. Motion 
Carried. The Mayor then declared Resolution #22,734 duly passed and adopted. 

 
53776 - It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Ganfield that Resolution #22,735, 

approving and accepting a Quit Claim Deed, Permanent Drainage Easement and 
Stormwater Maintenance and Repair Agreement from the Cedar Falls 
Community School District, in conjunction with the McMahill First Addition, be 
adopted. City Attorney Rogers provided an explanation. Following a question by 
Councilmember Kruse, and responses by Rogers and Public Works Director 
Schrage, the Mayor put the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the 
following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Sires, Dunn, Schultz, deBuhr, 
Kruse, Harding, Ganfield. Nay: None. Motion Carried. The Mayor then declared 
Resolution #22,735 duly passed and adopted. 

 

6

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 3 - 

 

53777 -  It was moved by Harding and seconded by Ganfield that Ordinance #3007, 
amending Chapter 7, Building and Building Regulations, of the Code of 
Ordinances relative to discharge of stormwater or groundwater into the city 
sanitary sewer system, be passed upon its third and final consideration. 
Following questions and comments by Councilmembers Sires, Kruse, Dunn, 
deBuhr and Ganfield, and Mayor Green, and responses by Public Works Director 
Schrage, the Mayor put the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the 
following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Dunn, Schultz, deBuhr, Kruse, 
Harding, Ganfield. Nay: Sires. Motion carried. The Mayor then declared 
Ordinance #3007 duly passed and adopted. 

 
53778 - It was moved by Kruse and seconded by deBuhr that Resolution #22,736, 

Resolution approving and adopting a Sanitary Sewer Cross Connection Policy 
relative to discharge of stormwater or groundwater into the city sanitary sewer 
system, be adopted. Following questions and comments by Councilmembers 
Sires, Harding, Schultz, Kruse and Dunn, and responses by Public Works 
Director Schrage and Finance & Business Operations Director Rodenbeck, the 
Mayor put the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following 
named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Dunn, Schultz, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, 
Ganfield. Nay: Sires. Motion Carried. The Mayor then declared Resolution 
#22,736 duly passed and adopted. 

 
53779 -    It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Ganfield that the rules requiring 

Ordinance #3008 be considered at three separate meetings, be suspended. 
Following a question by Councilmember deBuhr and response by Community 
Development Director Sheetz, the Mayor put the question on the motion and 
upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Sires, 
Dunn, Schultz, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Ganfield. Nay: None. Motion carried. 

 
      It was then moved by deBuhr and seconded by Ganfield that Ordinance #3008, 

amending Chapter 26, Zoning, of the Code of Ordinances relative to allowing 
daycares as principal permitted uses in the M-1 Light Industrial District, be 
passed upon its third & final consideration. Following due consideration by the 
Council, the Mayor put the question on the motion and upon call of the roll the 
following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Sires, Dunn, Schultz, deBuhr, 
Kruse, Harding, Ganfield. Nay: None. The Mayor then declared Ordinance #3008 
duly passed and adopted. 

 
53780 -    Following comments by Mayor Green, it was moved by Kruse and seconded by 

Harding that the rules requiring Ordinance #3009 be considered at three 
separate meetings, be suspended. Following a question by Councilmember 
deBuhr and response by Mayor Green, the Mayor put the question on the motion 
and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Sires, 
Dunn, Schultz, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Ganfield. Nay: None. Motion carried. 

 
      It was then moved by Kruse and seconded by Ganfield that Ordinance #3009, 

amending Chapter 11, Housing, of the Code of Ordinances relative to the 
Housing Commission, be passed upon its third & final consideration. Following 
due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the question on the motion and 

7

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 4 - 

 

upon call of the roll the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Sires, 
Dunn, Schultz, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Ganfield. Nay: None. The Mayor then 
declared Ordinance #3009 duly passed and adopted. 

 
 
53781 - It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Harding that Ordinance #3010, 

amending Chapter 23, Traffic and Motor Vehicles, of the Code of Ordinances 
relative to prohibiting parking for the College Hill Farmers Market, be passed 
upon its second consideration. Following due consideration by the Council, the 
Mayor put the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following 
named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Ganfield, Sires, Dunn, Schultz, deBuhr, 
Kruse, Harding. Nay: None. Motion carried. 

    
53782 - It was moved by Schultz and seconded by Kruse that the following items on the 

Consent Calendar be received, filed and approved: 
 

Receive and file the report of the Mayor relative to the appointment of the Mayor 
Pro Tem as the Chair of the Committee of the Whole. 

Receive and file the City Council Work Session minutes of April 4, 2022 relative 
to the following items: 
a) Standing Committee Structure. 

Receive and file a communication from the Civil Service Commission relative to a 
certified list for the position of Equipment Mechanic. 

Receive and file the FY2021 Annual Report of the Cedar Falls Human Rights 
Commission. 

Approve an Order Accepting Acknowledgment/Settlement Agreement with Up in 
Smoke, 2218 College Street, for a first tobacco violation 

Approve the following applications for beer permits and liquor licenses: 
a) Hatchlings & Hens, 109 Main Street, Class B Native wine permit – new. 
b) Jorgensen Plaza (Table 1912, Diamond Event Center and Gilmore’s Pub), 
5307 Caraway Lane, Class C liquor & outdoor service – renewal. 
c) Suds, 2223 ½ College Street, Class C liquor & outdoor service – renewal. 
d) The Horny Toad American Bar & Grille, 204 Main Street, Class C liquor – 
renewal. 
e) ZSAVOOZ, 206 Brandilynn Boulevard, Class C liquor & outdoor service – 
renewal. 
f) Hy-Vee Clubroom, 6301 University Avenue, Special Class C liquor – renewal. 
g) CVS/Pharmacy, 2302 West 1st Street, Class E liquor – renewal. 
h) Whiskey Road Tavern & Grill, 402 Main Street, Class C liquor & outdoor 
service – expansion of sidewalk café. 

Motion carried unanimously. 

53783 - It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Harding that the following resolutions 
be introduced and adopted: 

8

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 5 - 

 

 
 Resolution #22,737, approving and authorizing execution of a Rental Agreement 

with Upper Iowa University relative to meeting space for a joint meeting with 
Waterloo elected officials. 

 

 Resolution #22,738, approving and authorizing Amendment #2 to the Entitlement 
Community Development Block Grant COVID-19 Program Contract with the Iowa 
Economic Development Authority relative to Community Development Block 
Grant (CDBG-CV2) funding relative to the CARES Act. 

 Resolution #22,739, approving and authorizing execution of a Collaborative 
Program Agreement with the Cedar Falls Tiger Rugby Club relative to providing 
Youth Non-Contact Rugby, in conjunction with the summer recreational 
programs. 

 Resolution #22,740, approving and authorizing execution of Supplemental 
Agreement No. 4 to the Professional Service Agreement with Riverwise 
Engineering, LLC relative to design services for the Cedar River Recreational 
Improvement Project. 

 Resolution #22,741, approving and authorizing the expenditure of funds for the 
purchase of an automated spray patch unit for the Public Works Department. 

 Resolution #22,742, approving and authorizing execution of Supplemental 
Agreement No. 2 to the Professional Service Agreement with AECOM Technical 
Services, Inc. relative to 2022-2023 Survey Services. 

 Resolution #22,743, receiving and filing, and approving and accepting the bid of 
Aspro, Inc., in the amount of $155,435.46, for the College Hill Parking Lot 
Improvements Project. 

 Resolution #22,744, receiving and filing, and rejecting the only bid received for 
the Oak Park Sanitary Sewer Repair Project 

 Resolution #22,745, receiving and filing, and setting May 2, 2022 as the date of 
public hearing on the proposed plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate 
of cost for the 2022 Alley Reconstruction Project.  

 Resolution #22,746, setting May 2, 2022 as the date of public hearing on a 
proposal to undertake a public improvement project for the North Cedar Heights 
Area Reconstruction Project - Phase I, and to authorize acquisition of private 
property for said project. 

 Resolution #22,747, setting May 2, 2022 as the date of public hearing to consider 
adoption of a Public Record Request Policy. 

 Resolution #22,748, setting May 2, 2022 as the date of public hearing on 
proposed amendments to the City’s FY2022 Budget.  

Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the question on the 

9

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 6 - 

 

motion and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. 
Aye: Ganfield, Sires, Dunn, Schultz, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding. Nay: None. Motion 
carried. The Mayor then declared Resolutions #22,737 through #22,748 duly 
passed and adopted.  

53784 -    Following comments by Mayor Green, it was moved by Kruse and seconded by 
Harding to postpone consideration of a resolution approving and adopting 
amendments to Administrative Policy No. 7 relative to Standing Committees until 
the May 2, 2022 City Council Meeting. Motion carried unanimously. 

 
53785 - It was moved by Ganfield and seconded by Harding that Resolution #22,749, 

approving and authorizing the suspension of enforcement of Section 17-
246(a)(2), grass and weeds exceeding eight inches in height, of the Code of 
Ordinances during the month of May, 2022, in observance of No Mow May, a 
conservation initiative to support bee pollination, be adopted. UNI Tallgrass 
Prairie Center Plant Materials Program Manager Laura Walter provided a brief 
description of the initiative. Following questions and comments by 
Councilmembers Schultz, deBuhr and Harding, and responses by Walter and 
Mayor Green, the Mayor put the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, 
the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Sires, Dunn, Schultz, Kruse, 
Harding, Ganfield. Nay: deBuhr. Motion Carried. The Mayor then declared 
Resolution #22,749 duly passed and adopted. 

 
53786 - It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Ganfield that Resolution #22,750, 

approving and authorizing execution of a Collaborative Program Agreement with 
the Black Hawk Tennis Club relative to providing Youth Tennis Lessons, in 
conjunction with the summer recreational programs be adopted. Following a 
question by Councilmember Ganfield, and responses by Community 
Development Director Sheetz and City Attorney Rogers, the Mayor put the 
question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following named 
Councilmembers voted. Aye: Sires, Dunn, Schultz, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, 
Ganfield. Nay: None. Motion Carried. The Mayor then declared Resolution 
#22,750 duly passed and adopted. 

  
53787 -  It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Ganfield that the bills and claims of 

April 18, 2022 be allowed as presented, and that the Controller/City Treasurer be 
authorized to issue City checks in the proper amounts and on the proper funds in 
payment of the same. Upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers 
voted. Aye: Sires, Dunn, Schultz, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Ganfield. Nay: None. 
Motion carried. 

 
53788 - It was moved by Harding and seconded by Dunn to refer to the Committee of the 

Whole a discussion on the Administrative Policy No. 7 details relative to Standing 
Committees. Following comments by Councilmembers Harding and Ganfield, the 
motion carried 6-1, with Ganfield voting Nay. 

 
53789 - Councilmember Sires and Mayor Green expressed appreciation to Northern Iowa 

Student Government Liaison Zachary Zippe. Zippe spoke on his experience 
attending meetings and his work to make the position a priority for future student 

10

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 7 - 

 

government representatives. 
  
  Councilmember Harding noted he will be absent from the May 2, 2022 

Committee of the Whole and City Council meetings. 
  
  Public Works Director Schrage responded to a comment by Councilmember 

Dunn regarding the City Wide cleanup event. 
 
  Attorney Rogers commented on the Mayor acting as Chair of the Committee of 

the Whole Meeting on May 2, 2022 in Councilmember Harding’s absence. 
 
  Mayor Green commented on No Mow May and the remainder of April leading up 

to May. 
 
53790 - It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Harding that the meeting be adjourned 

at 8:34 P.M.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
    ________________________________ 
  Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 
  

11

Item 1.



 

   MAYOR ROBERT M. GREEN 

 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

220 CLAY STREET 

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 

319-273-8600 

 

 

 

 
 

NATIONAL TRAVEL & TOURISM WEEK 
MAY 1 – 7, 2022 

 
WHEREAS, tourism will remain a consistent driver of Cedar Falls’ economy and workforce; and 

WHEREAS, a robust travel industry provides significant economic benefits for the nation, 
generating more than $2.6 trillion in economic output prior to the pandemic, with $1.2 trillion 
spent directly by travelers in the United States; and 

WHEREAS, travel has been the foundation of a healthy workforce, serving as one of the largest 
private-sector employers in the U.S., supporting 17 million jobs in prior to the pandemic; and 

WHEREAS, spending by travelers has aided state and local governments alike, generating $90 
billion in state and local tax revenue prior to the pandemic to support essential services; and 

WHEREAS, promoting America as a premier destination for global travelers is more important 
than ever as we recover from steep losses; and 

WHEREAS, the future of travel is connecting the U.S. with the global community and safely and 
securely welcoming back international travelers to every U.S. community, including ours; and 

WHEREAS, the rebound of travel will drive the rebuilding of the U.S. economy since, prior to the 
pandemic, 60% of leisure and hospitality employment was small business; and 

WHEREAS, the future of travel will prioritize diversity, equity and inclusion initiatives, 
powering a future that values all cultures, embraces new perspectives and reflects the faces and 
ideas of the full American society; and 

WHEREAS, visitors coming from at least 50 miles away made over 850,000 trips to Cedar Falls 
in 2021, as reported by the Cedar Falls Visitors and Tourism Bureau;  

NOW, THEREFORE, I, Robert M. Green, Mayor of the City of Cedar Falls, do hereby proclaim May 
1-7, 2022 as National Travel and Tourism Week in Cedar Falls, and I urge all citizens to 
recognize the critical role that travel and tourism plays in Cedar Falls and the Cedar Valley. 

 Signed this 25th day of April, 2022. 

 

______________________________________                                          
Mayor Robert M. Green 

 12

Item 2.



 

   MAYOR ROBERT M. GREEN 

 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

220 CLAY STREET 

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 

319-273-8600 

 

 

 

 
 

PROFESSIONAL MUNICIPAL CLERKS WEEK 
MAY 1 – MAY 7, 2022 

 
WHEREAS, the Office of the Professional Municipal Clerk, a time-honored and vital 

part of local government, exists throughout the world; and 

WHEREAS, the Professional Municipal Clerk is the oldest among public servants; and 

WHEREAS, the City Clerk provides the professional link between the citizens, the 

local governing bodies and agencies of government at other levels; and 

WHEREAS, Professional Municipal Clerks have pledged to be ever mindful of their 

neutrality and impartiality, rendering equal service to all; and 

WHEREAS, the Professional Municipal Clerk serves as the information center on 

functions of local government and community; and 

WHEREAS, Professional Municipal Clerks continually strive to improve the 

administration of the Clerk’s Office through participation in education programs, 

seminars, workshops and the annual meetings of their state, provincial, county and 

international professional organizations; and 

WHEREAS, the Clerk of the City of Cedar Falls, Ms. Jacque Danielsen, is highly 

knowledgable, all-around awesome, and worthy of celebration; 

NOW THEREFORE, I, Robert M. Green, Mayor of the City of Cedar Falls, do hereby 

recognize the week of May 1 through May 7, 2022, as Professional Municipal 

Clerks Week, and further extend the people’s appreciation to our City Clerk and to 

all Professional Municipal Clerks for the vital services they perform and for their 

exemplary dedication to the communities they represent.  

 Signed this 25th day of April, 2022. 

 

______________________________________                                          

Mayor Robert M. Green 

 

13

Item 3.



 

   MAYOR ROBERT M. GREEN 

 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

220 CLAY STREET 

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 

319-273-8600 

 

 

 

 
 

NATIONAL ASTRONAUT DAY 
MAY 5, 2022 

 
WHEREAS, sixty-one years ago, on May 5, 1961, Alan Shepard became the first 

American in space aboard NASA’s Freedom 7 Mercury spacecraft, ushering the 

United States into the era of American manned spaceflight; and 

WHEREAS, our city joined the ranks of astronaut hometowns in 2020 with the 

graduation of Cedar Falls native Raja Chari to NASA’s Astronaut Corps, and has 

proudly cheered on Raja and his family during his six-month mission to the 

International Space Station as the SpaceX Crew-3 commander and as flight 

engineer for Expedition 66/67; and 

WHEREAS, America’s commitment to, and investment in, manned spaceflight 

will lead to many opportunities for innovative engineers, scientists, technicians 

and other professionals and workers in the decades ahead; and 

WHEREAS, astronauts embody the highest ideals of leadership, teamwork, 

integrity, discipline, problem-solving, and excellence under pressure, and these 

traits are worthy of emulation by Cedar Falls citizens young and old alike;  

NOW, THEREFORE, I, Robert M. Green, Mayor of the City of Cedar Falls, do 

hereby proclaim May 5, 2022 as National Astronaut Day throughout the city, 

and I encourage citizens to use learn about and appreciate the legacy and future 

of manned spaceflight, and to celebrate and emulate the astronauts who have 

worked tirelessly to put humanity into Earth orbit, and to the Moon, and to Mars 

and beyond. 

 Signed this 25th day of April, 2022. 

 

______________________________________                                          

Mayor Robert M. Green 

 14

Item 4.



 

   MAYOR ROBERT M. GREEN 

 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

220 CLAY STREET 

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 

319-273-8600 

  

 

 

 
 

WORLD MIGRATORY BIRD DAY 
SATURDAY, MAY 14, 2022 

 
WHEREAS, nature lovers across the globe are celebrating World Migratory Bird 
Day on May 14, 2022 to affirm humanity’s shared moral responsibility to 
protect, preserve, and nurture birdlife around the world; and 
 
WHEREAS, Cedar Falls was officially designated in 2020 as Iowa’s seventh 
Bird-Friendly City by the Bird Friendly Iowa organization, and is working with 
Waterloo and other Iowa cities to improve the environmental conditions 
necessary for the health and welfare of nesting and migratory birds; and 

 
WHEREAS, Cedar Falls is taking measures to educate and engage people in 
birding and wildlife conservation, particularly through the North Cedar Natural 
Resource Area and the strong advocacy of North Cedar conservationists; and 
 
WHEREAS, more than three hundred migratory and resident bird species use 
the various habitats in the Cedar Valley for feeding and nesting; and 
 
WHEREAS, promoting abundant, sustainable bird populations and healthy 
habitats benefits our world’s biodiversity, economy, and human society;  

NOW, THEREFORE, I, Robert M. Green, Mayor of the City of Cedar Falls, do 
hereby proclaim May 14, 2022 as World Migratory Bird Day throughout the 
city, and I urge all citizens to celebrate this observance and to support efforts to 
protect and conserve birds and their habitats in our community and the world 
at large throughout the year.  

 Signed this 25th day of April, 2022. 

 

______________________________________                                          

Mayor Robert M. Green 

 

15

Item 5.



 

   MAYOR ROBERT M. GREEN 

 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

220 CLAY STREET 

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 

319-273-8600 

 

 

 

 
 

NATIONAL POLICE WEEK AND 
PEACE OFFICERS MEMORIAL DAY 

MAY 15-21, 2022 / SUNDAY, MAY 15, 2022 
 

WHEREAS, More than 800,000 law enforcement officers serve in communities across 
the United States, including 72 sworn law enforcement officers and 12 Reserve 
Officers in the City of Cedar Falls, alongside dozens more in the Waterloo Police 
Department, UNI Department of Public Safety, and Black Hawk County Sheriff’s Office; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, our community is constantly grateful to these officers, as well as those in 
surrounding cities who provide support through mutual aid agreements and other 
informal channels; and 

 
WHEREAS, since the first recorded death in 1792, nearly 18,000 law enforcement 
officers in the United States have made the ultimate sacrifice in the line of duty; and 
 
WHEREAS, the names of these public servants and community protectors are 
engraved on the walls of the National Law Enforcement Officers Memorial, which was 
dedicated in 1991 in Washington, DC; and 
 
WHEREAS, in 1962, President John F. Kennedy designated May 15 as Peace Officers 
Memorial Day, directing that all flags in the nation be flown at half-staff on that date in 
honor of fallen law enforcement officers and the families they leave behind; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, I, Robert M. Green, Mayor of the City of Cedar Falls, do hereby 
proclaim May 15-21, 2022, as Police Week and May 15 as Peace Officers Memorial 
Day throughout the city, and I call on all citizens to express their appreciation to the 
law enforcement officers in our community who secure the safety of the public under 
challenging conditions each and every day. 

   
 Signed this 25th day of April, 2022. 

 

______________________________________                                          

Mayor Robert M. Green 

 

16

Item 6.



   MAYOR ROBERT M. GREEN 

 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

220 CLAY STREET 

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 

319-273-8600 

 

 

  

 
NEUROFIBROMATOSIS AWARENESS MONTH and 
WORLD NEUROFIBROMATOSIS AWARENESS DAY 

MAY 2022 / MAY 17, 2022 
 

WHEREAS, the Children’s Tumor Foundation is committed to educating the public about 

this genetic disorder which afflicts two million people globally, including one in every 

3,000 births, yet is still relatively unknown by the public; and 

WHEREAS, NF affects all populations regardless of race, ethnicity or gender; and 

WHEREAS, NF causes tumors to grow on nerves throughout the body and also can affect 

the development of the brain, cardiovascular system, bones and skin and can lead to 

blindness, deafness, bone abnormalities, disfigurement, learning disabilities, disabling 

pain, and cancer; and 

WHEREAS, the Children’s Tumor Foundation leads efforts to promote and financially 

sponsor world-class medical research aimed at finding effective treatments and, ultimately, 

a cure for NF and is actively fostering collaborative partnerships in both science and 

industry to speed the drug research and development process through a number of 

consortia called Synodos; and 

WHEREAS, the Children’s Tumor Foundation improves access to quality patient health 

care and support through its national NF Clinic Network, its information resources, youth 

programs, and local chapter activities; and 

WHEREAS, much work remains to be done in raising public awareness of NF to help 

promote early diagnosis, proper management and treatment, prevention of complications, 

and support for research; 

NOW, THEREFORE, I, Robert M. Green, Mayor of the City of Cedar Falls, do hereby 

proclaim May 2022 as Neurofibromatosis Awareness Month and May 17, 2022 as World 

Neurofibromatosis Awareness Day in Cedar Falls. 

 Signed this 25th day of April, 2022. 

 

______________________________________                                          

Mayor Robert M. Green 
17

Item 7.



   MAYOR ROBERT M. GREEN 

 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
319-273-8600 

FAX 319-268-5126 

 

 

 

 
 

BIKE MONTH, BIKE TO WORK WEEK,  
AND RIDE OF SILENCE DAY 

MAY 2022 / MAY 16-22, 2022 / MAY 18, 2022 
 

WHEREAS, Cedar Falls has been declared a Bicycle-Friendly Community at the 

Bronze Level by the League of American Bicyclists; and  

WHEREAS, Cedar Falls is implementing a Complete Streets philosophy for safely 

accommodating bicycles and pedestrians along the city’s roadways; and 

WHEREAS, Cedar Falls adopted the Cedar Falls Bicycle Plan in 2009 and is in the 

process of approving a new Bike Plan to reduce bicycle/motorist collisions, 

educate the public, and promote bicycling for recreation and commuting; and 

WHEREAS, bikeability has been shown to increase home values nationwide, and 

contributes to the local economy through services and tourism; and 

WHEREAS, the annual Ride of Silence is an international bicycle ride to remember 

cyclists killed and support those injured while riding on public roads, and this 

event seeks to raise awareness among motorists, the public and decision-makers of 

the dangers  faced by cyclists on our roadways, especially from other traffic; 

NOW, THEREFORE, I, Robert M. Green, Mayor of the City of Cedar Falls, do 

hereby proclaim May 2022 as National Bike Month, May 16-22, 2022 as Bike to 

Work Week, and May 18, 2022 as Ride of Silence Day in Cedar Falls, and I 

encourage citizens to recognize the importance of bicycle safety, and to 

participate in bicycle activities and organizations for recreation, transportation, 

and health during the month of May as well as throughout the year. 

 Signed this 27th day of April, 2022. 

 

______________________________________                                          

Mayor Robert M. Green 

 

18

Item 8.



 

   MAYOR ROBERT M. GREEN 

 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

220 CLAY STREET 

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 

319-273-8600 

 

 
 

 

 

 

HISTORIC PRESERVATION MONTH 
MAY 2022 

 
WHEREAS, Historic Preservation Month was first established by President Richard 
Nixon in 1973 and later expanded in 2005 to celebrate our nation’s heritage through 
historic places; and 
 
WHEREAS, First Lady Patricia Nixon noted, “As the pace of change accelerates in the 
world around us, Americans more than ever need a lively awareness of our roots and 
origins in the past on which to base our sense of identity in the present and our 
directions for the future”; and 
 
WHEREAS, historic preservation in our City is carried out with passion by the Cedar 
Falls Historical Society, Historic Preservation Commission, Community Main Street, 
and Central Business District planning; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City of Cedar Falls is currently overhauling the Zoning Code for the 
first time in fifty years, and will continue to preserve historic character while 
encouraging greater flexibility in the use of land and buildings in our city; and 
 
WHEREAS, it is worthy and fitting for residents to celebrate the role of historical 
places in our lives and reflect upon the shared heritage which shapes and unites us;  
 
NOW THEREFORE, I, Robert M. Green, Mayor of the City of Cedar Falls, do hereby 
proclaim May 2022 as Historic Preservation Month in the city and encourage all 
citizens to appreciate the architectural treasures in our neighborhoods, and to 
recognize the strong sense of place and quality of life they provide to residents and 
visitors alike. 

 
 Signed this 25th day of April, 2022. 

 

______________________________________                                          

Mayor Robert M. Green 

 
19

Item 9.



   FINANCE & BUSINESS OPERATIONS 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
319-273-8600 
FAX 319-268-5126 

 M E M O R A N D U M 
Public Records Division 

 

 TO: Honorable Mayor Green and City Council 

 FROM: Jacque Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

 DATE: April 22, 2022 

 SUBJECT: Public Record Request Policy 

 
Accompanying this memorandum is a proposed Public Record Requests policy. This is 
a new policy that outlines current practices already in place for responding to public 
record requests, and which complies with Iowa Open Records laws. 
 
Pursuant to Iowa Code, policies regarding examination of public records must be 
adopted by the governing body and must allow full opportunity for the public to comment 
before adopting. 
  
If you have any questions regarding this policy, please feel free to contact me. 
Thank you. 
  
     

20

Item 10.



Administrative Policy No. 05  

 

Subject:  Public Record Requests 

 

Adopted:   
Amended:  
 

 
Introduction: 
 

Every person shall have the right to examine and copy a public record and to publish or 
otherwise disseminate a public record or the information contained in a public record. 
Unless otherwise provided for by law, the right to examine a public record shall include 
the right to examine a public record without charge while the public record is in the 
physical possession of the custodian of the public record. The right to copy a public 
record shall include the right to receive photographic copies while the public record is in 
the possession of the custodian of the public record. 
 

Purpose: 
 

This policy is intended to describe the steps necessary to comply with Iowa Open 
Records laws. For the purpose of this policy, the City Clerk or authorized designee shall 
be designated as custodian of the official records for the City of Cedar Falls.  For 
purposes of this policy a “public record” is as defined by state law.  
 

Procedure: 
 

1. It shall be the policy of the City of Cedar Falls that all requests for records be 
directed to the custodian of records, with the exception of police and fire records, 
in which case the police chief or fire chief shall be the custodian of those records. 
The custodian of records shall determine which city staff will be involved in the 
retrieval of records based on the scope of the request. 
 

2. All requests for records shall be submitted in writing or confirmed by the 
custodian of records in writing. The requests shall be specific to ensure that the 
requester is provided with the records being sought. The custodian of records 
may respond to the requester in order to seek clarification if the custodian of 
records believes the request is vague and/or appears to encompass a large 
amount of records. 
 

3. It shall be the policy of the City to respond to most requests for records within 10 
business days. However, responses to such requests may be delayed as 
reasonably necessary depending on the scope of request and/or determination of 
confidential records. A reasonable delay for this purpose shall not exceed 20 

 

21

Item 10.



calendar days. 
 

4. Confidential records, as defined in Iowa Code Chapter 22, shall not be released 
and shall be kept confidential unless ordered by a court or by another person 
duly authorized to release such information. The custodian of records shall 
consult the city attorney concerning requests for records that may be considered 
confidential records. The custodian of records or the city attorney shall inform the 
requesting party in writing of any denial of records due to confidentiality. 
 

5. The City is not required to create records or reports that do not exist prior to the 
request. 
 

6. In-person examination and/or copying of public records shall be done under the 
supervision of the custodian of records or the custodian’s authorized designee 
during regular office hours, 8:00 a.m.  to 5 p.m., Monday thru Friday. 
 

7. Fulfillment of a request for public records may be contingent upon receipt, in 
advance, of payment for expenses estimated to be incurred in fulfilling the 
request. Such estimated expenses shall be communicated to the requester as 
soon as practicable, but no later than 10 business days following receipt of the 
request. Upon fulfillment of the request, the City shall refund any excess fees 
collected, or charge the requester for the difference between the estimate and 
actual cost of fulfillment, whichever applies. 
 

8. The fee for providing records shall not exceed the actual costs of providing the 
service. Actual costs may include the cost of materials as outlined in the City’s 
current fee schedule established by the city council, and current wages of staff 
for time spent directly supervising examination of, or staff time spent searching, 
retrieving, determining confidential status, producing and/or providing copies of 
public records. 

 

Exception: 
 
The foregoing policies and procedures shall not be applicable to public records requests 
by officers, employees or agents of the City, or of any other governmental entity, or 
records requested by subpoena or records required by law to be kept confidential. 
 
 

22

Item 10.



   DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE & BUSINESS OPERATIONS 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
319-273-8600 
FAX 319-268-5126 

     I N T E R O F F I C E   M E M O R A N D U M 
Financial Services Division 

 TO: Mayor Green and City Council Members  

 FROM: Lisa Roeding, Controller/City Treasurer 

 DATE: April 25, 2022 

 SUBJECT: FY2022 Budget Amendment 

 
Attached please find the certification resolution for the FY2022 budget amendment.  
This is necessary due to timing of various projects and participation of grant programs.  
As the notice shows additional revenues for other city taxes, intergovernmental, charges 
for services, miscellaneous, other financing sources and cash reserves will primarily 
offset these expenditures. 
 
Also included in the amendment are the proposed line item amendments by the various 
departments.  Those departmental amendments are also attached to this memo. The 
line items for Zoning Ordinances ($90,000) and Single Family Conversion ($70,000) 
have not been used to cover overspent line items per Council decision during the 
FY2023 budget process.   
  
CC: Jennifer Rodenbeck, Director of Finance & Business Operations 
       Ron Gaines, City Administrator 
 
 
 
  
  

23

Item 11.



REVENUES & OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Total Budget
as Certified

or Last Amended

Current
Amendment

Total Budget After
Current Amendment

Taxes Levied on Property 1 22,430,012 0 22,430,012

Less: Uncollected Delinquent Taxes - Levy Year 2 0 0 0

Net Current Property Tax 3 22,430,012 0 22,430,012

Delinquent Property Tax Revenue 4 0 0 0

TIF Revenues 5 6,646,260 0 6,646,260

Other City Taxes 6 5,709,508 721,250 6,430,758

Licenses & Permits 7 1,036,000 0 1,036,000

Use of Money & Property 8 1,442,800 0 1,442,800

Intergovernmental 9 14,460,070 951,690 15,411,760

Charges for Service 10 14,166,550 240,850 14,407,400

Special Assessments 11 0 0 0

Miscellaneous 12 767,540 851,710 1,619,250

Other Financing Sources 13 2,133,000 600,000 2,733,000

Transfers In 14 13,336,350 0 13,336,350

Total Revenues & Other Sources 15 82,128,090 3,365,500 85,493,590

EXPENDITURES & OTHER FINANCING USES

Public Safety 16 13,199,520 35,000 13,234,520

Public Works 17 21,398,500 1,072,500 22,471,000

Health and Social Services 18 45,000 0 45,000

Culture and Recreation 19 7,985,710 273,130 8,258,840

Community and Economic Development 20 3,127,200 785,140 3,912,340

General Government 21 5,469,310 46,630 5,515,940

Debt Service 22 1,062,100 0 1,062,100

Capital Projects 23 24,751,410 3,461,000 28,212,410

Total Government Activities Expenditures 24 77,038,750 5,673,400 82,712,150

Business Type/Enterprise 25 11,377,760 340,430 11,718,190

Total Gov Activities & Business Expenditures 26 88,416,510 6,013,830 94,430,340

Tranfers Out 27 13,336,350 0 13,336,350

Total Expenditures/Transfers Out 28 101,752,860 6,013,830 107,766,690

Excess Revenues & Other Sources Over
(Under) Expenditures/Transfers Out 29 -19,624,770 -2,648,330 -22,273,100

Beginning Fund Balance July 1, 2021 30 87,695,662 0 87,695,662

Ending Fund Balance June 30, 2022 31 68,070,892 -2,648,330 65,422,562

Explanation of Changes: These over expenditures are primarily due to timing of capital projects and participation in various grant programs.  Some of the
expenditures are covered by additional revenues; other city taxes, intergovernmental, charges for services, miscellaneous, and other financing sources, as
well as cash reserves.

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING - AMENDMENT OF CURRENT BUDGET
City of CEDAR FALLS

Fiscal Year July 1, 2021 - June 30, 2022

The City of CEDAR FALLS will conduct a public hearing for the purpose of amending the current budget for fiscal year ending June 30, 2022

Meeting Date/Time: 5/2/2022 07:00 PM Contact: Jennifer Rodenbeck Phone: (319) 273-8600

Meeting Location: Community Center, 528 Main Street, Cedar Falls, IA

There will be no increase in taxes. Any residents or taxpayers will be heard for or against the proposed amendment at the time and place specified above. A
detailed statement of: additional receipts, cash balances on hand at the close of the preceding fiscal year, and proposed disbursements, both past and
anticipated, will be available at the hearing.

04/07/2022 04:13 PM Page 1 of 1
24

Item 11.



budam22.xls

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS
BUDGET ADJUSTMENTS

FY2022 BUDGET
FINANCE & BUSINESS OPERATIONS

BUDGET ADJUSTMENT - INTO GENERAL
DEPARTMENTS PROJECTED ACCT. BAL. FUND 

           ACCOUNT ACCOUNT FY2022 FY2022 BEFORE ACCOUNT ACCOUNT ADJUSTMENT CASH REASON FOR ADJUSTMENT
NUMBER NAME BUDGET EXPENDITURES ADJUSTMENT NUMBER NAME AMOUNT USED

Public Records 101-1008-441.6403 Life Insurance $610.00 $660.00 ($50.00) 101-1008-441.9301 Equipment $150.00 Over expended line item offset by underspent line item.
101-1008-441.8304 Dues & Memberships $500.00 $600.00 ($100.00)

($150.00) $150.00

FBO Administration 101-1026-441.6403 Life Insurance $510.00 $560.00 ($50.00) 101-1026-441.6601 IPERS $50.00 Over expended line item offset by underspent line item.
101-1026-441.6501 FICA $13,520.00 $14,820.00 ($1,300.00) 101-1026-441.7299 Postage $100.00
101-1026-441.7101 Office Supplies $300.00 $1,200.00 ($900.00) 101-1026-441.8305 Travel $1,500.00

101-1026-441.8601 Repairs & Maint. $100.00
101-1026-441.9301 Equipment $500.00

($2,250.00) $2,250.00

Financial Services 101-1028-441.6402 Health Ins. Reimb. $720.00 $1,120.00 ($400.00) 101-1028-441.6501 FICA $500.00 Over expended line item offset by underspent line item.
101-1028-441.6403 Life Insurance $780.00 $880.00 ($100.00)

($500.00) $500.00

Human Resources 101-1038-441.6103 Overtime $0.00 $1,000.00 ($1,000.00) 101-1038-441.6101 Full-time $25,300.00 Over expended line item offset by underspent line item.
101-1038-441.6403 Life Insurance $790.00 $820.00 ($30.00) 101-1038-441.8155 Employee Assistance Program $2,400.00
101-1038-441.7101 Office Supplies $1,000.00 $1,800.00 ($800.00) 101-1038-441.8156 Employee Wellness Program $7,950.00
101-1038-441.7201 Operating Supplies $0.00 $120.00 ($120.00) 101-1199-441.8913 Contingency $11,000.00
101-1038-441.8149 Background Check $0.00 $1,600.00 ($1,600.00)
101-1038-441.8150 Pre-employmemnt physicals $45,000.00 $52,000.00 ($7,000.00)
101-1038-441.8151 Post-employment physicals $50,000.00 $58,000.00 ($8,000.00)
101-1038-441.8153 Job Notices $37,450.00 $63,650.00 ($26,200.00)
101-1038-441.8199 Civil Service Commission $2,500.00 $3,675.00 ($1,175.00)
101-1038-441.8305 Travel $500.00 $900.00 ($400.00)
101-1038-441.8306 Education $700.00 $1,025.00 ($325.00)

($46,650.00) $46,650.00

Legal 101-1048-441.6101 Full-time Wages $162,970.00 $165,100.00 ($2,130.00) 101-1048-441.6103 Overtime $500.00 Over expended line item offset by underspent line item.

101-1048-441.6403 Life Ins. $510.00 $560.00 ($50.00) 101-1199-441-8913 Contingency $3,680.00

101-1048-441.6501 FICA $10,060.00 $11,860.00 ($1,800.00)

101-1048-441.6601 IPERS $15,430.00 $15,630.00 ($200.00)

($4,180.00) $4,180.00

Library 101-1060-423.6101 Salaries - Full-Time $525,510.00 $529,860.00 ($4,350.00) 101-1060-423.6102 Part-time Wages $13,550.00 Over expended line items offset by underspent line.

101-1060-423.6401 Health Insurance Premiums $97,270.00 $101,520.00 ($4,250.00) 101-1060-423.7101 Office Supplies $650.00

101-1060-423.6403 Life Insurance $1,620.00 $1,920.00 ($300.00) 101-1060-423.7299 Postage $4,900.00

101-1060-423.6404 LTD Insurance $1,650.00 $1,750.00 ($100.00) 101-1060-423.8101 Professional Services $4,000.00

101-1060-423.7275 Display $2,000.00 $2,650.00 ($650.00) 101-1060-423.8201 Telephone $1,000.00

101-1060-423.8191 Licenses & Service Contracts $17,300.00 $31,550.00 ($14,250.00)

101-1060-423.8501 Utilities $72,000.00 $94,100.00 ($22,100.00) 101-1060-423.8601 Repair & Maintenance $22,100.00 CFU projected utility increase for fiscal year, offset by underspent line items

101-1060-423.9301 Equipment $0.00 $200.00 ($200.00) Over expended line items offset by underspent line.

101-1060-423.8920 Adult Books $0.00 $1,400.00 ($1,400.00) 101-1060-356.7800 Library Gifts & Memorials - Revenue $1,600.00 Over expended line items offse by additional revenues.

101-1060-423.8922 Youth Books $0.00 $100.00 ($100.00)

101-1060-423.8923 Large Print Books $0.00 $100.00 ($100.00)

101-1060-423.8934 Endowment Supported Program $60,000.00 $190,050.00 ($130,050.00) 101-1060-356.7901 Library Endowments - Revenue $130,050.00 Projects exceeded budgets, offset by additional endowment revenues.

($177,850.00) $177,850.00

Library Levy 101-1061-423.61-02 Salaries - Part-Time $9,590.00 $19,390.00 ($9,800.00) 101-0000-104.0000 General Fund - Cash $55,700.00 $55,700.00 Over expended line item offset by underspent line items and Levy cash reserves.

101-1061-423.64-01 Health Insurance Premiums $12,460.00 $16,710.00 ($4,250.00) 101-1061-423.6101 Full-time Wages $14,550.00

101-1061-423.64-02 Health Insurance Reimbursements $480.00 $980.00 ($500.00) 101-1061-423.8925 Adult Video $7,000.00

101-1061-423.81-91 Licenses & Service Contrt. $49,000.00 $59,700.00 ($10,700.00)

101-1061-423.89-20 Adult Books $45,000.00 $55,000.00 ($10,000.00)

101-1061-423.89-26 Non-Print Resources $19,000.00 $29,000.00 ($10,000.00)

101-1061-423.89-29 Newspapers $1,650.00 $2,250.00 ($600.00)

101-1061-423.89-38 Young Adult Video $1,000.00 $2,000.00 ($1,000.00)

101-1061-423.89-42 Adult E-Materials $18,000.00 $40,000.00 ($22,000.00)

101-1061-423.89-44 Young Adult E-Materials $1,000.00 $5,000.00 ($4,000.00)

101-1061-423.89-46 Youth E-Materials $5,500.00 $9,900.00 ($4,400.00)

($77,250.00) $77,250.00

Library Grant 101-1199-421.3121 Library Grant $0.00 $9,300.00 ($9,300.00) 101-1199-343.0200 Library Grant Revenue $9,300.00 Over expenditure for STEM Kit project and Book Bike project expenditures paid with future grant funding.

($9,300.00) $9,300.00

BUDGET ADJUST. - FROM

25

Item 11.



City Administrator 101-1118-441.6102 Part-time Wages $0.00 $5,000.00 ($5,000.00) 101-1118-441.7211 Dues, Books Magazines $100.00 Over expended line items offset by underspent line items.

101-1118-441.6403 Life Insurance $1,110.00 $1,230.00 ($120.00) 101-1118-441.7219 Printing $100.00

101-1118-441.6501 FICA $22,590.00 $24,550.00 ($1,960.00) 101-1118-441.8198 Economic Development $26,980.00

101-1118-441.7101 Office Supplies $200.00 $300.00 ($100.00) 101-1118-441.9301 Equipment $600.00

101-1118-441.7299 Postage $0.00 $100.00 ($100.00)

101-1118-441.8131 Business Retent.&Consulting $1,500.00 $22,000.00 ($20,500.00)

($27,780.00) $27,780.00

Mayor 101-1158-441.6101 Full-time Wages $102,860.00 $103,360.00 ($500.00) 101-1158-441.6601 IPERS $50.00 Over expended line item covered underspent line items.

101-1158-441.6403 Life Insurance $320.00 $350.00 ($30.00) 101-1158-441.7201 Operating Supplies $880.00

101-1158-441.8304 Dues & Memberships $400.00 $800.00 ($400.00)

($930.00) $930.00

Council 101-1168-441.6601 IPERS $3,100.00 $3,700.00 ($600.00) 101-1168-441.6501 FICA $600.00 Over expended line item covered underspent line items.

($600.00) $600.00

Admin./Legal Misc. 101-1199-441.8111 Election $40,000.00 $43,000.00 ($3,000.00) 101-1199-441.8913 Contingency $3,000.00 Over ependiture for run-off election held 11/30/21; offset by underspent line item

($3,000.00) $3,000.00

Data Processing 606-1078-441.6403 Life Insurance $1,160.00 $1,280.00 ($120.00) 606-1078-441.6102 Part-time Wages $120.00 Over expended line item offset by underspent line item.

606-1078-441.8170 Contract Services $35,000.00 $37,000.00 ($2,000.00) 606-0000-104.0000 Data Processing - Cash Reserves $22,100.00 Civic Rec will renew at the end of June  offset by underspent line item and cash reserves.
606-1078-441.8610 Software Support Agree. $200,000.00 $221,100.00 ($21,100.00) 606-1078-441.8101 Professional Services $1,000.00 Additional costs for CIMS migration and LAMA migration offset by cash reserves.

($23,220.00) $23,220.00

Cable TV 254-1088-431.6402 Health Ins. Reimb. $570.00 $770.00 ($200.00) 254-1088-431.6102 Part-time Wages $380.00 Over expended line items offset by underspent line items.

254-1088-431.6403 Life Ins. $540.00 $720.00 ($180.00) 254-1088-431.8137 Legal Services $5,000.00

254-1088-431.7211 Dues, Books & Maga. $3,000.00 $5,000.00 ($2,000.00) 254-1088-431.8306 Education $500.00

254-1088-431.7301 Repair Supplies $3,000.00 $3,500.00 ($500.00)

254-1088-431.8601 Repair & Maintenance $5,000.00 $6,000.00 ($1,000.00)

254-1088-431.8918 Community Program $35,500.00 $37,500.00 ($2,000.00)

($5,880.00) $5,880.00

Community Center 262-1092-423.8501 Utilities $15,000.00 $19,300.00 ($4,300.00) 262-1092-423.7201 Operating Supplies $1,000.00 CFU projected utility increase for fiscal year, offset by underspent line items

262-1092-423.8201 Telephone $500.00

262-1092-423.8601 Repair & Maintenance $2,200.00

262-1092-423.8701 Rentals $600.00

($4,300.00) $4,300.00

Parking 258-5531-435.6103 Overtime $0.00 $100.00 ($100.00) 258-5531-435.8122 Parking Study $3,120.00 Refunded parking permits, new credit card fees offset by underspent line item
258-5531-435.6403 Life Ins. $250.00 $270.00 ($20.00) Cellular service of new parking citation handhelds off set by underspent line item
258-5531-435.7201 Operating Supplies $3,000.00 $6,000.00 ($3,000.00)

($3,120.00) $3,120.00

Hospital 215-1230-421.8945 Farm Taxes $12,000.00 $12,800.00 ($800.00) 215-1230-421.9201 Structure Improvements & Bldgs. $800.00 Over expended line items offset by underspent line items.

($800.00) $800.00

Street Repair 242-1240-431.9225 Cedar Heights Area Reconstr. $0.00 $50,000.00 ($50,000.00) 242-0000-324.0000 Local Option Sales Tax - Revenue $400,000.00 Over expenditures due to timing of capital projects and timing of reimbursements from other
242-1240-431.9251 Seal Coat Program $100,000.00 $300,000.00 ($200,000.00) 242-0000-371-0100 Street Repair - Misc. Revenue $400,000.00   funding sources.
242-1240-431.9291 12th St. Reconstruction $0.00 $50,000.00 ($50,000.00)

242-1240-431.9516 University Avenue $0.00 $50,000.00 ($50,000.00)

242-1240-431.9845 Main Street Reconstr. $0.00 $450,000.00 ($450,000.00)

($800,000.00) $800,000.00

Emergency Reserve Fund 404-1220-431.8980 COVID Emergency $0.00 $5,000.00 ($5,000.00) 404-0000-341.0400 Federal/State Grant - Revenues $5,000.00 Over expenditure due to expenditures related to COVID-19 Response and eligible
for reimbursement.

404-1220-431.9237 Buyout Demo $0.00 $200,000.00 ($200,000.00) 404-0000-341.0400 Federal/State Grant - Revenues $170,000.00 Over expenditure for FEMA Flood buyouts offset with federal (75%) and state (10%) grant reimbursments 

404-0000-104.0000 Emergency Reserve - Cash $30,000.00 and cash reserves (15%)

($205,000.00) $205,000.00

Flood Reserve Fund 404-1220-1431.9843 Cedar River Rec. Improvements $0.00 $25,000.00 ($25,000.00) 405-0000-104.0000 Flood Reserve - Cash $25,000.00 Over expenditure for project expenditures paid with future grant funding.

($25,000.00) $25,000.00

TIF Bond Fund 430-1220-431.9847 Cyber Lane $100,000.00 $200,000.00 ($100,000.00) 430-0000-104.0000 TIP Bond - Cash $100,000.00 Project is cashflowed until TIF certification for project has occurred.

($100,000.00) $100,000.00

26

Item 11.



Bond Funds 436-1220-431.9483 West 1st Street $0.00 $1,000.00 ($1,000.00) 436-0000-341.0500 Federal/State Grant - Revenues $1,000.00 Over expenditure will be offset by grant proceeds.

436-1220-431.9826 Downtown Levee Improv. $0.00 $20,000.00 ($20,000.00) 436-0000-104.0000 Bond Fund - Cash $20,000.00 Over expenditure will be offset by bond proceeds already sold.

436-1220-431.9860 Dam Safety Improvements $0.00 $15,000.00 ($15,000.00) 436-0000-104.0000 Bond Fund - Cash $15,000.00 Over expenditure will be offset by bond proceeds already sold.

436-1220-431.9862 Clay St. Drainage $0.00 $300,000.00 ($300,000.00) 436-0000-104.0000 Bond Fund - Cash $300,000.00 Over expenditure will be offset by bond proceeds already sold.

438-1220-431.9527 Union Road Trail $0.00 $500,000.00 ($500,000.00) 438-0000-104.0000 Bond Fund - Cash $500,000.00 Over expenditure will be offset by bond proceeds already sold.

438-1220-431.9573 Sidewalk Reconstruction $75,000.00 $105,000.00 ($30,000.00) 438-0000-104.0000 Bond Fund - Cash $30,000.00 Over expenditure will be offset by bond proceeds already sold.

438-1220-431.9883 Cedar Heights Drive Reconstruction $1,445,000.00 $3,000,000.00 ($1,555,000.00) 438-0000-104.0000 Bond Fund - Cash $1,341,000.00 Over expenditure will be offset by reimbursements received and bond proceeds already sold.
438-0000-371.0100 2020 Bond - Misc. Revenue $214,000.00

($2,421,000.00) $2,421,000.00

Special Assessments 473-1220-431.9899 Sidewalk Project $0.00 $60,000.00 ($60,000.00) 473-0000-371.0702 Sidewalk Assessment - Revenue $20,000.00 Sidewalk project expenditures will be offset by payments already received by home 

473-0000-104.0000 Special  Assessment Fund -  Cash $40,000.00    owners and future special assessment property tax collections.

($60,000.00) $60,000.00

TOTAL ADJUSTMENTS $3,998,760.00

GEN FUND CASH USED BY F.B.O. $55,700.00

27

Item 11.



budam22.xls

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS
BUDGET ADJUSTMENTS

FY2022 BUDGET
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

BUDGET ADJUSTMENT - INTO BUDGET ADJUST. - FROM GENERAL
DEPARTMENTS PROJECTED ACCT. BAL. FUND 

  DIVISIONS ACCOUNT ACCOUNT FY2022 FY2022 BEFORE ACCOUNT ACCOUNT ADJUSTMENT CASH REASON FOR ADJUSTMENT
NUMBER NAME BUDGET EXPENDITURES ADJUSTMENT NUMBER NAME AMOUNT USED

Community Dev. - Admin. 101-2205-432.6403 Life Insurance $440.00 $480.00 ($40.00) 101-2205-432.7225 Mileage $340.00 Over expended line item offset by underspent line item.

101-2205-432.6501 FICA $9,560.00 $10,660.00 ($1,100.00) 101-2205-432.7301 Repair & Maint. Supplies $800.00

101-2205-432.8816 Visitor & Tourism $218,750.00 $540,000.00 ($321,250.00) 101-2205-323.0900 Tourism Admin. Revenue $321,250.00 Higher than expected hotel/motel tax revenues received in FY2022.

($322,390.00) $322,390.00

Inspection Services 101-2235-412.6403 Life Ins. $1,700.00 $1,800.00 ($100.00) 101-2235-412.6103 Overtime $4,100.00 Over expended line items offset by underspent line items.

101-2235-412.7101 Office Supplies $1,500.00 $1,750.00 ($250.00) 101-2235-412.8201 Telephone $900.00

101-2235-412.8101 Professional Services $1,000.00 $5,000.00 ($4,000.00) 101-2235-412.8305 Travel $250.00

101-2235-412.8601 Repair & Maint. $0.00 $900.00 ($900.00)

($5,250.00) $5,250.00

Planning & Community Services 101-2245-442.6103 Overtime $2,000.00 $2,500.00 ($500.00) 101-2245-442.6101 Full-time Wages $600.00 Over expended line item offset by underspent line item.

101-2245-442.6403 Life Ins. $1,300.00 $1,400.00 ($100.00)

($600.00) $600.00

Sec. 8 Housing 217-2214-432.8101 Professional Services $17,500.00 $18,400.00 ($900.00) 217-0000-341-0300 Sec 8 Housing  Federal Grant - Revenue $15,400.00 Over expended line items offset by additional HAP revenues and underspent line items.

217-2214-432.8201 Telephone $700.00 $1,100.00 ($400.00) 217-2214-432.6101 Full-time Wages $23,500.00

217-2214-432.8961 Housing Assistance Payments $1,173,000.00 $1,243,000.00 ($70,000.00) 217-2214-432.6102 Part-time Wages $23,500.00

217-2214-432.8305 Travel $450.00

217-2214-432.8306 Education $450.00

217-2214-432.8963 Housing Asst- Damages $8,000.00

($71,300.00) $71,300.00

Block Grant 223-2224-432.6101 Full-time Wages $3,950.00 $9,150.00 ($5,200.00) 223-0000-341.0100 CDBG Grant Revenues $1,630.00 Awarded CARES Grant; used to cover additional expenditures due to meetings, plan updates and monitoring 

223-2224-432.6401 Health Ins. Prem $620.00 $920.00 ($300.00) 223-2234-432.6101 Full-time Wages $1,240.00 new projects.

223-2224-432.6403 Life Ins. $20.00 $40.00 ($20.00) 223-2234-432.6401 Health Ins. Prem $120.00

223-2224-432.6404 Ltd Ins. $10.00 $40.00 ($30.00) 223-2234-432.6403 Life Ins. $10.00

223-2224-432.6405 Workers Comp Ins. $10.00 $30.00 ($20.00) 223-2234-432.6404 Ltd Ins. $10.00

223-2224-432.6501 FICA $510.00 $740.00 ($230.00) 223-2234-432.6501 FICA $80.00

223-2224-432.6601 IPERS $630.00 $910.00 ($280.00) 223-2234-432.6601 IPERS $100.00

223-2224-432.7219 Printing $200.00 $450.00 ($250.00) 223-2224-432.7211 Dues, Books, Mags. $100.00 Over expended line item offset by underspent line item.

223-2224-432.8305 Travel $750.00

223-2224-432.8306 Education $750.00

223-2224-432.8601 Repair & Maint. $160.00

223-2224-432.8814 Family Mgmt Financial $0.00 $2,620.00 ($2,620.00) 223-2234-432.8930 Service Agencies $42,000.00 Agencies were not individually budgeted for FY2022, updated annual plan to award; offset underspent line items

223-2224-432.8815 Salvation Army $0.00 $9,500.00 ($9,500.00)

223-2224-432.8857 Exceptional Persons $0.00 $9,500.00 ($9,500.00)

223-2224-432.8807 Pathways Behaviorial Serv. $0.00 $9,500.00 ($9,500.00)

223-2224-432.8833 NE Iowa Food Bank $0.00 $9,500.00 ($9,500.00)

223-2224-432.8858 Operation Threshold $0.00 $86,860.00 ($86,860.00) 223-0000-341.0100 CDBG CARES Grant Rev. $86,860.00 Awarded CARES Grant; used to cover agency awarded funds.

223-2224-432.8957 Nghbhd. Accessibility Improv FY2020 $0.00 $210,000.00 ($210,000.00) 223-2234-432.8950 Rehab Housing $210,000.00 Over expended due to timing of project; offset by underspent line item and additional revenues

223-2224-432.8959 Nghbhd. Infrastructure Improv $0.00 $250,000.00 ($250,000.00) 223-0000-341.0100 CDBG Grant Revenues $200,000.00

223-2234-432.9866 Sidewalk Infill $50,000.00

223-2224-432.8966 State CARES - CV2 $0.00 $100,000.00 ($100,000.00) 223-0000-341.0100 CDBG State CARES Grant Revenues $100,000.00 Awarded State CARES Grant; used to cover additional program costs; Schools and City equipment

223-2234-432.6102 Part-time Wages $0.00 $1,500.00 ($1,500.00) 223-2234-432.6101 Full-time Wages $1,500.00 Over expended line item offset by underspent line item.

223-2244-432.8984 HOME Program $0.00 $60,000.00 ($60,000.00) 223-0000-341.0102 HOME Grant Revenues $60,000.00 Over expended line item offset by HOME grant reimbursements. 

($755,310.00) $755,310.00

Economic Development 483-2245-432.8903 TIF Payments $0.00 $600,000.00 ($600,000.00) 483-0000-382.0103 Transfer In $600,000.00 TIF payments made out of Economic Development fund will be reimbursed by TIF collection revenue

484-2245-432.9110 Land Acquisition $0.00 $50,000.00 ($50,000.00) 484-0000-371.0600 Misc. Receipts - Revenue $50,000.00 Over expenditure will be offset by lease and farm rent payments received on the properties.

($650,000.00) $650,000.00

28

Item 11.



Recreation 101-2253-423.6109 Fitness Coor. Wages $43,610.00 $45,110.00 ($1,500.00) 101-2253-423.6101 Full-time Wages $11,100.00 Over expended line items due to increased new hire starting wages, offset by underspent line items. 

101-2253-423.6111 Youth SB/BB Wages $0.00 $5,000.00 ($5,000.00) 101-2253-423.6126 Trips & Special Events Wages $1,000.00

101-2253-423.6114 Front Desk Staff Wages $105,000.00 $109,000.00 ($4,000.00) 101-2253-423.6131 Indoor Lifeguard $2,200.00

101-2253-423.6127 Child Care Wages $12,000.00 $14,200.00 ($2,200.00) 101-2253-423.6401 Health Ins. Prem. $12,000.00

101-2253-423.6130 Indoor Headguard $23,500.00 $29,500.00 ($6,000.00) 101-2253-423.6601 IPERS $3,000.00

101-2253-423.6137 Falls Lifeguard $140,000.00 $147,000.00 ($7,000.00) 101-2253-423.7101 Office Supplies $6,000.00

101-2253-423.6139 Falls Cashier $14,000.00 $16,000.00 ($2,000.00) 101-2253-423.7219 Printing $1,400.00

101-2253-423.6140 Falls Concessions $34,000.00 $36,400.00 ($2,400.00) 101-2253-423.7230 Rec Cent Equip Supplies $2,000.00

101-2253-423.7355 Media $2,500.00 $3,600.00 ($1,100.00) 101-2253-423.7236 Birthday Party Supplies $100.00 Over expended items offset by underspent line item.

101-2253-423.8505 The Falls Pool Utilities $86,000.00 $95,000.00 ($9,000.00) 101-2253-423.8201 Telephone $500.00 CFU projected utility increase for fiscal year, offset by underspent line items

101-2253-423-8501 Utilities $72,000.00 $78,100.00 ($6,100.00) 101-2253-423.7242 Swim Lesson Supplie $1,000.00 CFU projected utility increase for fiscal year, offset by underspent line items

101-2253-423-8906 Indoor Pool Operations $52,000.00 $85,000.00 ($33,000.00) 101-2253-423.8101 Professional Service $2,000.00 Additional expenditures for City share of Holmes & Peet Pool projects, offset by underspent line items.

101-2253-423.8630 Maintenance & Upkeep $12,000.00

101-2253-423.8904 Sales Tax $23,000.00

101-2253-423.8915 Credit Card Fees $2,000.00

($79,300.00) $79,300.00

Recreation Capital 297-2253-423.9201 Structure Improve. & Bldgs. $19,000.00 $22,300.00 ($3,300.00) 297-0000-355.3000 Rec. Center Capital Revenues $3,300.00 Over expended from higher pricing on heat pumps offset with additional revenues
Over expended for payment of discount park tickets offset with additional revenues

($3,300.00) $3,300.00

Cultural   101-2280-423.6403 Life Ins $210.00 $230.00 ($20.00) 101-2280-423.6150 Assistants Wages $3,600.00 Over expended line items offset by underspent line items.

101-2280-423.7211 Dues Books Magazines $500.00 $650.00 ($150.00) 101-2280-423.6501 FICA $20.00

101-2280-423.7225 Mileage $100.00 $220.00 ($120.00) 101-2280-423.7273 Grounds Supplies $1,020.00

101-2280-423.7270 Classroom Supplies $7,500.00 $9,150.00 ($1,650.00) 101-2280-423.7274 Vol Service & Supplies $500.00

101-2280-423.7271 Gallery Supplies $3,000.00 $3,600.00 ($600.00) 101-2280-423.7301 Repair Maint Supplies $900.00

101-2280-423.7272 Products for Resale $2,000.00 $2,600.00 ($600.00) 101-2280-423.8101 Professional Services $1,000.00

101-2280-423.7299 Postage $2,000.00 $3,000.00 ($1,000.00) 101-2280-423.8201 Telephone $700.00

101-2280-423.8106 Printing and Publication $6,000.00 $8,600.00 ($2,600.00) 101-2280-423.8601 Repair and Maintenance $1,000.00

101-2280-423.8914 Refunds $600.00 $2,600.00 ($2,000.00)

($8,740.00) $8,740.00

Cultural Grants 101-1199-421.3110 Grants-Cultural Services $30,000.00 $40,000.00 ($10,000.00) 101-1199-343.0100 Grants Rev.-Cultural $10,000.00 Received State CARES funding used to offset Cultural Services wages and program expenditures

($10,000.00) $10,000.00

Cultural Capital 298-2280-423.8821 Public Art Committee $0.00 $35,000.00 ($35,000.00) 298-0000-104.0000 Cultural Capital Fund - Cash $35,000.00 Over expended for River Place Art piece covered by Public Art cash reserves.
298-2280-423.8939 Donated Items $0.00 $200.00 ($200.00) 298-0000-104.0000 Cultural Capital Fund - Cash $200.00 Over expended covered by cash donations from previous years.

($35,200.00) $35,200.00

Tourism & Visitors 261-2291-423.6101 Full-time Wages $162,540.00 $168,240.00 ($5,700.00) 261-0000-104.0000 Tourism & Visitor - Cash Reserves $15,800.00 Over expended due to overlap of new manager hired prior to retirement, offset by underspent line items.

261-2291-423.6103 Overtime $0.00 $100.00 ($100.00) 261-0000-371.1002 Media Income $10,000.00 Over expended line items are offset by underspent line items and additional revenues

261-2291-423.6401 Health Ins. Prem. $27,330.00 $28,480.00 ($1,150.00) 261-0000-371.1003 Brochures & Publications Income $12,710.00

261-2291-423.6403 Life Ins. $500.00 $560.00 ($60.00) 261-2291-423.6102 Part-time Wages $15,000.00

261-2291-423.7352 Brochures & Publications $10,000.00 $20,000.00 ($10,000.00) 261-2291-423.6601 IPERS $1,000.00

261-2291-423.7355 Media $55,880.00 $65,880.00 ($10,000.00) 261-2291-423.7357 Gift Shop $100.00

261-2291-423.8101 Professional Services $0.00 $3,000.00 ($3,000.00) 261-2291-423.8550 Community Awareness $3,000.00

261-2291-423.8304 Dues & Memberships $3,000.00 $3,050.00 ($50.00) 261-2291-423.8551 Events/Bids/Spons $1,000.00

261-2291-423.8501 Utilities $12,000.00 $15,500.00 ($3,500.00) 261-2291-423.8847 Economic Dev. Grants $600.00 CFU projected utility increase for fiscal year, offset by underspent line items

261-2291-423.8521 Copier Lease $500.00 $650.00 ($150.00) Over expended line items offset by underspent line items.

261-2291-423.8552 Marketing Grants $41,810.00 $58,610.00 ($16,800.00) Carryover of FY21 marketing grants offset by cash reserves

261-2291-423.8843 Community Bttmt Grants $15,080.00 $20,770.00 ($5,690.00)

261-2291-423.8904 Sales Tax $0.00 $100.00 ($100.00)

261-2291-423.8994 Special Projects $0.00 $2,910.00 ($2,910.00)

($59,210.00) $59,210.00

TOTAL ADJUSTMENTS $2,000,600.00

GEN FUND CASH USED BY C.D. $0.00

29

Item 11.



budam22.xls

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS
BUDGET ADJUSTMENTS

FY2022 BUDGET
PUBLIC SAFETY SERVICES

BUDGET ADJUSTMENT - INTO BUDGET ADJUST. - FROM GENERAL
DEPARTMENTS PROJECTED ACCT. BAL. FUND 

  DIVISIONS ACCOUNT ACCOUNT FY2022 FY2022 BEFORE ACCOUNT ACCOUNT ADJUSTMENT CASH REASON FOR ADJUSTMENT
NUMBER NAME BUDGET EXPENDITURES ADJUSTMENT NUMBER NAME AMOUNT USED

Fire  101-4511-414.6103 Overtime $30,000.00 $98,000.00 ($68,000.00) 101-4411-358.1200 Commercial Fire Inspection Rev. $10,000.00 Over expended line items offset by underspent line items and additional revenue.

101-4511-414.6403 Life Ins $4,780.00 $4,980.00 ($200.00) 101-4511-414.6401 Health Ins. Prem. $9,000.00

101-4511-414.7202 Laundry $500.00 $600.00 ($100.00) 101-4511-414.6501 FICA $29,000.00

101-4511-414.7209 Equipment Repair $7,500.00 $10,500.00 ($3,000.00) 101-4511-414.7207 EMS/Rescue Supplies $1,000.00

101-4511-414.8101 Professional Services $0.00 $2,500.00 ($2,500.00) 101-4511-414.7220 Officer Equipment $9,500.00

101-4511-414.8146 Emergency Mgmt $53,420.00 $53,425.00 ($5.00) 101-4511-414.7302 Dormitory Furnishings $1,105.00

101-4511-414.8501 Utilities $70,000.00 $80,000.00 ($10,000.00) 101-4511-414.7306 Building Repair $1,000.00 CFU projected utility increase for fiscal year, offset by underspent line items

101-4511-414.8601 Repair & Maint $7,000.00 $8,000.00 ($1,000.00) 101-4511-414.8171 Consolidated Dispatch $26,700.00 Over expended line items offset by underspent line items.

101-4511-414.8914 Refunds $0.00 $1,500.00 ($1,500.00) 101-4511-414.8305 Travel $10,000.00

101-4511-414.9301 Equipment  $0.00 $20,000.00 ($20,000.00) 101-4511-414.8650 Service Contracts $4,000.00 Purchase of rescue equipment for 501, 502 and 540 and rope replacement offset by underspend line items

101-4511-414.8940 Uniforms $5,000.00

($106,305.00) $106,305.00

Police 101-5521-415.6103 Overtime $56,000.00 $84,000.00 ($28,000.00) 101-5521-415.6102 Part-time Wages $15,000.00 Over expended line items offset by underspent line items.

101-5521-415.6175 Overtime - Grants $0.00 $14,000.00 ($14,000.00) 101-5521-415.6105 Community Service Officer $15,000.00

101-5521-415.6403 Life Insurance $3,240.00 $6,540.00 ($3,300.00) 101-5521-415.6170 Overtime Holiday $14,000.00

101-5521-415.7229 Mirt Equipment $3,500.00 $5,500.00 ($2,000.00) 101-5521-415.6401 Health Ins Prem. $15,000.00

101-5521-415.7306 Building Repair $0.00 $3,000.00 ($3,000.00) 101-5521-415.7107 Code Enforcement Supplies $2,300.00

101-5521-415.8101 Professional Services $8,000.00 $9,000.00 ($1,000.00) 101-5521-415.7223 Radio & MDC Fees $10,000.00

101-5521-415.8170 Contract Services $4,000.00 $6,000.00 ($2,000.00) 101-5521-415.8171 Consolidated Dispatch $45,000.00

101-5521-415.8304 Dues and Memberships $3,500.00 $4,500.00 ($1,000.00)

101-5521-415.8306 Education $20,000.00 $35,000.00 ($15,000.00)

101-5521-415.8308 Academy $27,000.00 $59,000.00 ($32,000.00)

101-5521-415.8501 Utilities $48,000.00 $62,000.00 ($14,000.00) CFU projected utility increase for fiscal year, offset by underspent line items

101-5521-415.8601 Repair & Maint. $0.00 $1,000.00 ($1,000.00) Over expended line items offset by underspent line items.

101-5521-425-8120 Human Society $123,000.00 $125,000.00 ($2,000.00) 101-5521-425-8121 Animal Control $2,000.00 Over expended line items offset by underspent line items.

($118,300.00) $118,300.00

Fire Grants 101-1199-411.3262 Fire Equipment Grant $3,000.00 $8,000.00 ($5,000.00) 101-1199-343.0700 Public Safety Grant  - Revenue $5,000.00 Grant expenses offset by additional grant revenues

($5,000.00) $5,000.00

Police Grants 101-1199-411.3270 Grants - Police Operations $35,000.00 $50,000.00 ($15,000.00) 101-1199-343.0700 Public Safety Grant  - Revenue $15,000.00 Grant expenses offset by additional grant revenues

($15,000.00) $15,000.00

Police Forfeiture 291-5521-415.8941 Police Forfeiture $0.00 $5,000.00 ($5,000.00) 291-0000-104.0000 Police Forfeiture - Cash $5,000.00 Purchase of ballistic vests.  Expenditure offset by forfeiture cash reserves.

($5,000.00) $5,000.00

TOTAL ADJUSTMENTS $249,605.00

GEN FUND CASH USED BY P.S.S. $0.00

30

Item 11.



budam22.xls

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS
BUDGET ADJUSTMENTS

FY2022 BUDGET
PUBLIC WORKS

BUDGET ADJUSTMENT - INTO BUDGET ADJUST. - FROM GENERAL
DEPARTMENTS PROJECTED ACCT. BAL. FUND 

  DIVISIONS ACCOUNT ACCOUNT FY2022 FY2022 BEFORE ACCOUNT ACCOUNT ADJUSTMENT CASH REASON FOR ADJUSTMENT
NUMBER NAME BUDGET EXPENDITURES ADJUSTMENT NUMBER NAME AMOUNT USED

Cemetery 101-6613-433.6102 Part-time Wages $52,180.00 $67,000.00 ($14,820.00) 101-6613.433.6101 Full-time Wages $5,000.00 Over expended line item covered by underspent line item

101-6613-433.6403 Life Ins. $560.00 $620.00 ($60.00) 101-6613-433.6103 Overtime $1,000.00

101-6613-433.8103 Recording Fees $0.00 $350.00 ($350.00) 101-6613-433.6601 IPERS $3,000.00

101-6613-433.8305 Travel $0.00 $400.00 ($400.00) 101-6613-433.7201 Oper/Supplies $400.00

101-6613-433.8501 Utilities $8,000.00 $11,500.00 ($3,500.00) 101-6613-433.8705 Repair & Maint. $380.00 CFU projected utility increase for fiscal year, offset by underspent line items

101-6613-433.9201 Struct. Improv. & Bldgs. $350.00

101-6633-423.7201 Parks - Operating Supplies $9,000.00

($19,130.00) $19,130.00

Public Buildings 101-6616-446.6102 Part-time Wages $0.00 $14,000.00 ($14,000.00) 101-6616-446.6401 Health Ins. Prem. $1,000.00 Over expended due to no budget for seasonal laborer offset by underspent line items.

101-6616-446.6403 Life Ins. $300.00 $330.00 ($30.00) 101-6616-446.7201 Operating Supplies $3,000.00 Over expended line item covered by underspent line item

101-6616-446.6501 FICA $18,250.00 $19,250.00 ($1,000.00) 101-6616-446.7217 Uniforms $1,000.00

101-6616-446.8101 Pest Control $2,130.00 $4,130.00 ($2,000.00) 101-6616-446.7254 Building Supplies $3,000.00

101-6616-446.8501 Utilities $12,700.00 $17,700.00 ($5,000.00) 101-6616-446.7305 Operating Equipment $2,000.00 CFU projected utility increase for fiscal year, offset by underspent line items

101-6616-446.8602 Buildings & Grounds $308,020.00 $353,020.00 ($45,000.00) 101-6616-446.7306 Building Repair $10,000.00

101-6616-446.8614 Mech. Equip. Servicing $15,000.00 $17,000.00 ($2,000.00) 101-6616-446.8201 Telephone $400.00

101-6616-446.8630 Maint & Upkeep $2,000.00

101-6633-436.7201 Parks - Operating Supplies $35,630.00

101-6633-436.8101 Parks - Professional Services $11,000.00

101-6616-446.9432 Sustainability $0.00 $50,000.00 ($50,000.00) 101-6616-446-7301 Equipment $50,000.00 Budgeted amount allocated to incorrect line.

($119,030.00) $119,030.00

Golf 101-6623-423.85-01 Utilities $10,000.00 $22,000.00 ($12,000.00) 101-6623-423.8201 Telephone $1,750.00 CFU projected utility increase for fiscal year, offset by underspent line items

101-6633-423.7201 Parks: Operating Supplies $10,250.00

($12,000.00) $12,000.00

Golf Capital 296-6623-423.9201 Structures Improvements &  Bldgs. $170,000.00 $206,100.00 ($36,100.00) 296-0000-104.0000 Golf Capital Cash Reserves $36,100.00 Cart Path project costs higher than expected, offset by cash reserves.

($36,100.00) $36,100.00

Engineering 101-6625-432.7101 Office Supplies $2,000.00 $3,700.00 ($1,700.00) 101-6625-432.7218 Surveying $1,500.00 Over expended/unbudgeted line item, offset by underspent line item

101-6625-432.8101 Professional Services $0.00 $3,000.00 ($3,000.00) 101-6625-432.73-05 Operating Equipment $1,500.00

101-6625-432.83-05 Travel $1,000.00

101-6625-432.8306 Education $700.00

101-6625-432.8625 Engineering & Architecture $50,000.00 $126,000.00 ($76,000.00) 101-6625-432.6101 Full-time Wages $76,000.00 Outside surveying firm used for Land Surveyor activies offset by underspent line items.

($80,700.00) $80,700.00

Storm Water 555-6630-432.6101 Full-time Wages $204,370.00 $207,370.00 ($3,000.00) 555-6630-432.6601 IPERS $500.00 Over expended line item offset by underspent line item.

555-6630-432.6401 Health Ins. Premiums $25,650.00 $34,650.00 ($9,000.00) 555-6630-432.8620 Storm Sewers $20,580.00

555-6630-432.6403 Life Ins. $630.00 $710.00 ($80.00)

555-6630-432.7334 Storm Sewers $22,000.00 $27,000.00 ($5,000.00)

555-6630-432.8501 Utilities $0.00 $1,000.00 ($1,000.00) CFU projected utility increase for fiscal year, offset by underspent line items

555-6630-432.8634 Billing & Collections $70,330.00 $73,330.00 ($3,000.00) CFU billing costs not accounted for offset by underspent line items

($21,080.00) $21,080.00

Parks 101-6633-423.6102 Part-time Wages $360,480.00 $382,480.00 ($22,000.00) 101-6633-423.6401 Health Ins. Prem. $5,000.00 Over expended due to increased Seasonal employment - in off season, offset by underspent line items

101-6633-423.6401 Life Ins. $950.00 $1,050.00 ($100.00) 101-6633-423.6601 IPERS $20,100.00 Over expended line item covered by underspent line item

101-6633-423.6501 FICA $46,390.00 $49,390.00 ($3,000.00) 101-6633-423.7201 Operating Supplies $3,240.00 Over expended due to increased Seasonal employment - in off season, offset by underspent line items

101-6633-423.8304 Dues & Memberships $450.00 $1,050.00 ($600.00) Over expended due to additional Arborist memberships to APWA and ISA, offset by underspent line items

101-6633-423.8305 Travel $720.00 $1,000.00 ($280.00) Over expended due to additional CIMS training, offset by underspent line items

101-6633-423.8306 Education $2,540.00 $3,200.00 ($660.00) Over expended line item covered by underspent line item

101-6633-423.8848 Big Woods CampGr H/M $0.00 $1,700.00 ($1,700.00) Over expended line item covered by underspent line item

($28,340.00) $28,340.00

31

Item 11.



Street Construction - O&M 206-6637-436.6102 Part-time Wages $57,860.00 $64,860.00 ($7,000.00) 206-6637-436.6101 Full-time Wages $25,000.00 Over expended line items offset by underspent line items and additional revenues.

206-6637-436.6403 Life Ins. $2,930.00 $3,130.00 ($200.00) 206-6637-436.6401 Health Ins. Prem. $1,500.00

206-6637-436.6501 FICA $77,330.00 $78,330.00 ($1,000.00) 206-6637-436.6601 IPERS $6,000.00

206-6637-436.7299 Postage $0.00 $200.00 ($200.00) 206-6637-436.7305 Operating Equip $9,250.00

206-6637-436.7332 Streets $107,850.00 $117,850.00 ($10,000.00) 206-6637-436.7306 Building Repair $4,000.00

206-6637-436.8118 INRCOG $6,800.00 $6,805.00 ($5.00) 206-6637-436.7330 Bridges $2,750.00

206-6637-436.8304 Dues & Memberships $530.00 $540.00 ($10.00) 206-6637-436.8107 Contract Services $6,000.00

206-6637-436.8501 Utilities $42,000.00 $65,000.00 ($23,000.00) 206-6637-436.8151 Post-employment Physicals $3,000.00 CFU projected utility increase for fiscal year, offset by underspent line items and additional RUT revenues

206-6637-436.8152 Drug Tests $3,000.00

206-6637-436.8170 Contract Services $7,000.00

206-6637-436.8601 Repair & Maint $315.00

206-6637-436.8701 Equip. Rental $3,000.00

206-6637-436.8981 Café Plan $4,000.00

206-6637-436.9201 Equipment $440,000.00 $632,900.00 ($192,900.00) 206-0000-342.0400 Road Use Tax Revenue $272,500.00 Prices higher than expected for loader and snowblower component offset by additional RUT revenues.

Moved up purchased on street sweeper from FY2023 offset pruchase with additional RUT revenues.

206-6637-436.9251 Seal Coat $0.00 $185,000.00 ($185,000.00) 206-6637-436.9201 Structure Improve. & Bldgs. $50,000.00 Timing of 2020 and 2021 Seal Coat projects, offset by underspent line items, additional RUT and

206-6637-436.7337 Crack Sealing $22,000.00 miscellaneous revenues.

206-6637-436.9281 Permeable Alley $0.00 $225,000.00 ($225,000.00) 206-6637-436.9201 Structure Improve. & Bldgs. $225,000.00 Permeable Alley budgeted amount included in Structure Improvement line item.

206-6637-436.9293 W 27th Street Improvements $0.00 $687,000.00 ($687,000.00) 206-6637-436.9201 Structure Improve. & Bldgs. $687,000.00 W 27th St Improv. budgeted amount included in Structure Improvement line item.

($1,331,315.00) $1,331,315.00

Street Construction - Traffic 206-6647-436.6403 Life Ins. $460.00 $500.00 ($40.00) 206-6647-436.6102 Part-time Wages $40.00 Over expended line offset by underspent line items.

206-6647-436.8501 Utilities $0.00 $43,000.00 ($43,000.00) 206-6647-436.92-01 Structure Improv. & Bldgs. $43,000.00

($43,040.00) $43,040.00

Public Works Admin 551-6675-436.6101 Full-time Wages $275,740.00 $277,140.00 ($1,400.00) 551-6675-436.7201 Operating Supplies $300.00 Over expended line offset by underspent line items.

551-6675-436.6102 Part-time Wages $25,690.00 $26,890.00 ($1,200.00) 551-6675-436.7211 Dues, books, mags. $500.00

551-6675-436.6403 Life Ins. $840.00 $940.00 ($100.00) 551-6675-436.7219 Printing $100.00

551-6675-436.6501 FICA $22,020.00 $22,820.00 ($800.00) 551-6675-436.7260 Safety Supplies $100.00

551-6675-436.6601 IPERS $28,460.00 $28,960.00 ($500.00) 551-6675-436.7299 Postage $500.00

551-6675-436.8305 Travel $250.00 $950.00 ($700.00) 551-6675-436.8201 Telephone $1,300.00

551-6675-436.8305 Dues & Memberships $200.00

551-6675-436.8601 Repair & Maint. $500.00

551-6675-436.8607 Office Mach. Maint. $500.00

551-6685-436.8305 Refuse Operations-Travel $700.00

($4,700.00) $4,700.00

Refuse 551-6685-436.6103 Overtime $11,330.00 $12,330.00 ($1,000.00) 551-0000-104.0000 Refuse - Cash Reserves $69,530.00 Over spent line items offset by cash reserves, additional revenues and underspent line items.

551-6685-436.6403 Life Insurance $1,230.00 $1,310.00 ($80.00) 551-0000-351.0201 Ewaste Revenue $14,000.00

551-6685-436.7101 Office Supplies $1,190.00 $2,390.00 ($1,200.00) 551-0000-351.0202 Appliances Revenue $27,000.00

551-6685-436.7201 Operating Supplies $6,500.00 $9,500.00 ($3,000.00) 551-0000-371.2200 Recycling Center Rev. $85,000.00

551-6685-436.7216 Tools $570.00 $3,070.00 ($2,500.00) 551-0000-371.2400 Scrap Metal Recycl. Rev. $60,000.00

551-6685-436.8304 Dues & Memberships $400.00 $410.00 ($10.00) 551-6685-436.6101 Full-time Wages $10,000.00

551-6685-436.8501 Utilities $48,000.00 $70,500.00 ($22,500.00) 551-6685-436.6601 IPERS $1,810.00 CFU projected utility increase for fiscal year, offset by additional revenues and underspent line items

551-6685-436.8609 Office Machine Maint $300.00 $800.00 ($500.00) 551-6685-436.72-54 Build. Supplies $6,000.00 Over spent line items offset by cash reserves, additional revenues and underspent line items.

551-6685-436.8634 Billing & Collecting $70,330.00 $73,330.00 ($3,000.00) 551-6685-436.7256 Flood Control $1,500.00

551-6685-436.9301 Equipment $200,000.00 $465,950.00 ($265,950.00) 551-6685-436.8151 Post-Empl. Physicals $600.00 Purchase of truck chassis from FY2021 received August 2021 also purchase of routeware earlier that expected

551-6685-436.8152 Drug Test $2,000.00 offset by additional revenues, cash reserves and underspent line items.

551-6685-436.8201 Telephone $600.00

551-6685-436.8605 Travel $700.00

551-6685-436.8636 Transfer Station Maint. $5,000.00

551-6685-436.8703 Equipment Rental $1,000.00

551-6685-436.8904 Sales Tax $1,000.00

551-6685-436.8981 Café plan $4,000.00

551-6685-436.9201 Structure Improv. & Bldgs $10,000.00

($299,740.00) $299,740.00

32

Item 11.



Sewer Rental - Sewer 552-6655-436.6403 Life Ins. $670.00 $740.00 ($70.00) 552-6655-436.6102 Part-time Wages $70.00 Over expended line offset by underspent line items.

552-6655-436.7253 TV Equipment $14,000.00 $17,000.00 ($3,000.00) 552-6655-436.7201 Operating Supplies $3,000.00

552-6655-436.7306 Building Repair $6,000.00 $7,000.00 ($1,000.00) 552-6655-436.7254 Building Supplies $1,000.00

552-6655-436.7327 Iowa One Call $4,000.00 $5,100.00 ($1,100.00) 552-6655-436.7256 Flood Control $1,100.00

552-6655-436.8501 Utilities $185,000.00 $234,000.00 ($49,000.00) 552-6655-436.8201 Telephone $2,000.00 CFU projected utility increase for fiscal year, offset by additional revenues and underspent line items

552-6655436.8613 Sanitary Sewer Repair $10,000.00

552-6655-436-8703 Equipment Rental $1,000.00

552-0000.352.0100 Sewer Rental Comm. Revenue $36,000.00

552-6655-436.9218 I/I Reduction Project $0.00 $25,000.00 ($25,000.00) 552-6655-436-9201 Structure Improv. & Bldgs. $25,000.00 Budgeted amount allocated to incorrect line.

552-6655-436.9682 Oak Park Sewer Replace $0.00 $30,000.00 ($30,000.00) 552-0000-104.0000 Sewer Rental Cash Reserves $30,000.00 Over expended due to timing of project offset with cash reserves.

($109,170.00) $109,170.00

Water Reclamation 552-6665-436.6402 Health Ins. Reimb $2,090.00 $2,700.00 ($610.00) 552-6665-436.6102 Part-time Wages $790.00 Over expended line items offset by underspent line items

552-6665-436.6403 Life Ins. $2,120.00 $2,300.00 ($180.00)

552-6665-436.7217 Uniforms $1,500.00 $1,900.00 ($400.00) 552-0000.352.0100 Sewer Rental Comm. Revenue $18,900.00 Over expended line items offset by underspent line items and additional revenues.

552-6665-436.7306 Building Repairs $8,000.00 $10,000.00 ($2,000.00) 552-6665-436.8151 Post-Emply. Physicals $1,100.00

552-6665-436.7336 Lift Stations $30,000.00 $40,000.00 ($10,000.00) 552-6665-436.8152 Drug Testing $1,000.00

552-6665-436.8501 Utilities $200,000.00 $210,000.00 ($10,000.00) 552-6665-436.8981 Café Plan $4,000.00 CFU projected utility increase for fiscal year, offset by additional revenues and underspent line items

552-6665-436.8601 Repair and Maintenance $50,000.00 $55,000.00 ($5,000.00) 552-6665-436-72.11 Dues, Books $400.00 Over expended line items offset by underspent line items and additional revenues.

552-6665-436.8629 Lab Testing $15,000.00 $20,000.00 ($5,000.00) 552-6665-436-72.67 Odor Control $5,000.00

552-6665-436.8634 Billing & Collecting $70,300.00 $73,300.00 ($3,000.00) 552-6665-436-81.59 Regionalization Study $5,000.00

552-6665-436.8904 Sales Tax $95,000.00 $100,000.00 ($5,000.00) 552-6665-436-86.33 Sludge Removal $5,000.00

($41,190.00) $41,190.00

Vehicle Maintenance 685-6698-446.6403 Life Ins. $1,130.00 $1,240.00 ($110.00) 685-6698-446.6102 Part-time Wages $110.00 Over expended line items offset by underspent line items

685-6698-446.8604 Radio Communications $15,000.00 $19,000.00 ($4,000.00) 685-6698-446.8201 Telephone $500.00

685-6698-446.8612 Towels $1,600.00 $3,000.00 ($1,400.00) 685-6698-446.8305 Travel $500.00

685-6698-446.8306 Education $500.00

685-6698-446.8601 Repair & Maint $500.00

685-6698-446.8611 Vehicle Maint Software $1,000.00

685-6698-446.8615 Tire Repair $900.00

685-6698-446.8707 Shop Equipment $1,500.00

($5,510.00) $5,510.00

TOTAL ADJUSTMENTS $2,151,045.00

GEN FUND CASH USED BY P.W. $0.00

33

Item 11.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 

 
 
  
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert Green and City Council 
 
 FROM: Brett Armstrong, Civil Engineer I 
 
 DATE: April 25th, 2022 
 
 SUBJECT: 2022 Alley Reconstruciton Project 
  City Project Number: RC-000-3268 
  Public Hearing 
 
Submitted within for City Council approval are the Plans, Specifications, and Estimate of Costs 
and Quantities for the 2022 Alley Reconstruction Project.  
 
This project involves the reconstruction of six alleys, three of which are concrete and three of 
which are permeable alleys. Work shall include a combination of excavation and backfill of the 
alley areas; removal and replacement of driveway and sidewalk and of PCC curb & gutter; 
subdrain installation; placement of storage and filter aggregate; permeable interlocking clay 
brick paver installation, and seeding.  
 
The alleys are prioritized based on a number of factors including Operation and Maintenance 
priority, age, trash pickup, active public concern, slope, drainage area and proximity to existing 
storm sewer infrastructure. 
 
The total estimated cost for the construction of this project is $500,008.00. The project will be 
funded by Street Construction Fund (SCF) and Storm Water Bond (STB) funding sources.  
 
The Engineering Division of the Public Works Department recommends approving the Plans, 
Specifications, and Estimate of Costs and Quantities for the 2022 Alley Reconstruction Project.  
 
xc: Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 David Wicke, City Engineer  

  

34

Item 12.



ITEM 

NO.

ITEM DESCRIPTION UNITS 1ST-2ND & 

ELLEN TO 

FRANCIS

9TH - 10TH & 

MAIN -OLIVE

11TH - 12TH & 

STATE -BLUFF

13TH - 14TH & 

TREMONT -

FRANKLIN

SEERLEY - 22ND 

& FRANKLIN -

CLAY

SEERLEY - 26TH & 

WALNUT -IOWA

TOTAL 

ESTIMATE D

QUANTITY

UNIT PRICE EXTENDED PRICE

1 CLEARING AND GRUBBING LS 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.0 0.0 0.0 1.0 $2500.00 $2500.00

2 TOPSOIL, FURNISH & SPREAD CY 0.0 21.0 19.0 26.0 38.0 92.0 196.0 $50.00 $9800.00

3 EXCAVATION, CLASS 10, ROADWAY WASTE CY 158.0 120.0 190.0 118.0 314.0 339.0 1239.0 $15.00 $18585.00

4 MODIFIED SUBBASE 6" SY 475.0 359.0 122.0 353.0 515.0 217.0 2041.0 $18.00 $36738.00

5 SUBDRAIN CLEANOUT, TYPE A-1, 6" EACH 0.0 0.0 2.0 0.0 2.0 2.0 6.0 $500.00 $3000.00

6 VALVE EXTENSION EACH 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.0 1.0 $175.00 $175.00

7 7" CURB & GUTTER, P.C.C., 2.5' WIDE LF 82.0 67.0 26.0 53.0 65.0 75.0 368.0 $50.00 $18400.00

8 REMOVAL OF DRIVEWAY SY 90.0 59.0 31.0 49.0 46.0 115.0 390.0 $10.00 $3900.00

9 REMOVAL OF SIDEWALK SY 31.0 31.0 22.0 12.0 25.0 58.0 179.0 $10.00 $1790.00

10 SIDEWALK, 6" P.C.C. SY 31.0 31.0 22.0 12.0 25.0 58.0 179.0 $90.00 $16110.00

11 DRIVEWAY, 6" P.C.C. SY 106.0 59.0 68.0 58.0 150.0 310.0 751.0 $80.00 $60080.00

12 DRIVEWAY, GRANULAR, 1" ROADSTONE SY 0.0 35.0 21.0 4.7 30.0 26.0 116.7 $10.00 $1167.00

13 REMOVAL OF CURB &GUTTER LF 82.0 67.0 26.0 53.0 65.0 75.0 368.0 $10.00 $3680.00

14 ENGINEERING FABRIC SY 0.0 0.0 400.0 0.0 362.0 689.0 1451.0 $5.00 $7255.00

15 SUBDRAIN, 6" PLASTIC PERFORATED L.F. 0.0 0.0 296.0 0.0 231.0 406.0 933.0 $13.00 $12129.00

16 SUBDRAIN, 8" PLASTIC PERFORATED LF 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 441.0 441.0 $15.00 $6615.00

17 STORAGE AGGREGATE, 8" SY 0.0 0.0 300.0 0.0 280.0 534.0 1114.0 $15.00 $16710.00

18 FILTER AGGREGATE, 4" SY 0.0 0.0 300.0 0.0 280.0 534.0 1114.0 $10.00 $11140.00

19 PERMEABLE INTERLOCKING PAVERS, CLAY BRICK SF 0.0 0.0 880.0 0.0 838.0 1600.0 3318.0 $12.00 $39816.00

20 6" P.C.C. PAVEMENT SY 475.0 359.0 322.0 353.0 705.0 575.0 2789.0 $60.00 $167340.00

21 TRAFFIC CONTROL LS 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.0 1.0 $5,000.00 $5000.00

22 HYDRAULIC SEEDING SF 0.0 1154.0 1030.0 1368.0 2025.0 4962.0 10539.0 $2.00 $21078.00

23 WATTLE, STRAW, 9" LF 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 100.0 100.0 $6.00 $600.00

24 INLET PROTECTION DEVICE EACH 0.0 0.0 1.0 0.0 0.0 1.0 2.0 $350.00 $700.00

25 INLET PROTECTION DEVICE, MAINTENANCE EACH 0.0 0.0 1.0 0.0 0.0 1.0 2.0 $100.00 $200.00

26 MOBILIZATION LS 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.0 1.0 $15,000.00 $15000.00

27 PATCH, HMA (ST) SURFACE, 1/2", PG58-28S TONS 20.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 20.0 $200.00 $4000.00

28 INTAKE, SINGLE FLAT EACH 0.0 0.0 1.0 0.0 0.0 1.0 2.0 $5,500.00 $11000.00

29 INTAKE, SW-512 (CASE 1) WITH SW-604 TYPE 4A CASTING EACH 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.0 1.0 $5,500.00 $5500.00

$500,008.00

2022 PERMEABLE ALLEY PROJECT CITY PROJECT NO. RC-000-3268

PAVERS / P.C.C. PAVING / STORM SEWER

Estimate of Probable Cost

TOTAL COST

35

Item 12.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 
 TO:   Honorable Mayor Robert M Green and City Council 
 
 FROM:  Ben Claypool, Civil Engineer II, PhD, EI 
 
 DATE:  April 25, 2022 
 
 SUBJECT: North Cedar Heights Area Reconstruction Phase I 
    City Project No. RC-092-3271 
    Public Hearing for Starting the ROW Acquisition Process 
 
 
The City of Cedar Falls is planning to reconstruct the North Cedar Heights Area, 
beginning with portions of West Ridgewood Drive and Timber Drive. The project will 
require some right-of-way acquisition, permanent easements, and temporary 
easements to complete the street connection. The project will include installation of 
storm sewer, water main, sanitary sewer, and full depth reconstruction of the pavement 
with curb and gutter.  
 
Plans for the project shows the need for fee title and/or easement acquisitions from 
twenty-two (22) properties. The included exhibit shows the anticipated easements and 
fee title at the current phase of design. 
 
Iowa law requires that the City Council holds a public hearing to authorize proceeding 
with the project, including the purchase of right-of-way. The public hearing offers an 
opportunity for the public, especially those from whom the fee title and easement 
acquisition will be purchased, to comment on the project. 
 
 
xc: Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 David Wicke, PE, City Engineer 

36

Item 13.



DATE

DR
N

DE
S

CH
K

AP
P

N
O

RE
VI

SI
O

N
S

DR
N

CH
K

DA
TE

PROJECT NO.

SHEET NO.

DRAWING NO.

MILESTONE

37

Item 13.

AutoCAD SHX Text
JEFFREY J BYRD 2204 GREENWOOD AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATTHEW L VASQUEZ 2211 GREENWOOD AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MARY K HOWE 2125 GREENWOOD AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
W RIDGEWOOD DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
GREENWOOD AVE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
CEDAR HEIGHTS DIVISION H

AutoCAD SHX Text
CEDAR HEIGHTS DIVISION H

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
JEFFREY J BYRD 2204 GREENWOOD AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PETER D YEZEK 1612 W RIDGEWOOD DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROBIN D GUY 1606 W RIDGEWOOD DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
MARY N SHEPHERD 1522 W RIDGEWOOD DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
DARYL E ANDERSEN 1514 W RIDGEWOOD DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
W RIDGEWOOD DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
W RIDGEWOOD DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
c

AutoCAD SHX Text
Copyright

AutoCAD SHX Text
0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
AECOM  All Rights Reserved

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'

AutoCAD SHX Text
20'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L:\DCS\Projects\TRN\60672593_Cedar_Heights_St_Recon\900_CAD_GIS\02-SHEETS\H01_60672593.dwg

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/14/22

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRINTED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Gamerdinger, Tyler

AutoCAD SHX Text
11/30/18

AutoCAD SHX Text
of

AutoCAD SHX Text
----

AutoCAD SHX Text
Cedar Heights Area Road Reconstruction

AutoCAD SHX Text
Greenwood/Ridgewood ROW

AutoCAD SHX Text
H.01

AutoCAD SHX Text
FINAL PLANS

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/XX/2021

AutoCAD SHX Text
60672593

AutoCAD SHX Text
XX

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROW  ACQUISITION

AutoCAD SHX Text
TEMPORARY EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PERMANENT EASEMENT



DATE

DR
N

DE
S

CH
K

AP
P

N
O

RE
VI

SI
O

N
S

DR
N

CH
K

DA
TE

PROJECT NO.

SHEET NO.

DRAWING NO.

MILESTONE

38

Item 13.

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
DARYL E ANDERSEN 1514 W RIDGEWOOD DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
ANDREW M ANDERSON 1506 W RIDGEWOOD DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHARLES W HALL 1424 W RIDGEWOOD DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
KIM P MOORE 1421 W RIDGEWOOD DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
AARON BECK BRUNK 1500 W RIDGEWOOD DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
W RIDGEWOOD DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
W RIDGEWOOD DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
E RIDGEWOOD DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHARLES W HALL 1424 W RIDGEWOOD DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
VICTOR E SCHRAGE 1513 CHERRY LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MICHAEL O CONNELL 1514 CHERRY LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text
KIM P MOORE 1421 W RIDGEWOOD DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
W RIDGEWOOD DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
E RIDGEWOOD DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
Copyright

AutoCAD SHX Text
AECOM  All Rights Reserved

AutoCAD SHX Text
L:\DCS\Projects\TRN\60672593_Cedar_Heights_St_Recon\900_CAD_GIS\02-SHEETS\H01_60672593.dwg

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/14/22

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRINTED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Gamerdinger, Tyler

AutoCAD SHX Text
11/30/18

AutoCAD SHX Text
of

AutoCAD SHX Text
c

AutoCAD SHX Text
----

AutoCAD SHX Text
Cedar Heights Area Road Reconstruction

AutoCAD SHX Text
Ridgewood ROW

AutoCAD SHX Text
H.02

AutoCAD SHX Text
FINAL PLANS

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/XX/2021

AutoCAD SHX Text
60672593

AutoCAD SHX Text
XX

AutoCAD SHX Text
0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'

AutoCAD SHX Text
20'

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROW  ACQUISITION

AutoCAD SHX Text
TEMPORARY EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PERMANENT EASEMENT



DATE

DR
N

DE
S

CH
K

AP
P

N
O

RE
VI

SI
O

N
S

DR
N

CH
K

DA
TE

PROJECT NO.

SHEET NO.

DRAWING NO.

MILESTONE

39

Item 13.

AutoCAD SHX Text
WILLIAM G NAAKTGEBOREN 2518 TIMBER DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
F K SANDERS 2524 TIMBER DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
GERALDINE P HALL 2022 TIMBER DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
WILLIAM G NIBBELINK 2021 TIMBER DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATTHEW T SKEENS 2105 TIMBER DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
RONALD L SAUL 2106 TIMBER DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
KENNETH M CUTTS 2116 TIMBER DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
REED J HUNEMULLER 2115 TIMBER DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
JAY T LEES 2015 TIMBER DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAND BLVD.

AutoCAD SHX Text
TIMBER DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
ERIC N DOWELL 2435 GREENWOOD AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
REGINALD J GREEN 1911 TIMBER DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAULA M GOETZ 2506 TIMBER DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
ANTHONY R PATTERSON 1915 TIMBER DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOHN OGDEN 2505 TIMBER DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
DONALD T KELLY 2512 TIMBER DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
WILLIAM G NIBBELINK 2021 TIMBER DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
JAY T LEES 2015 TIMBER DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
TIMBER DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
Copyright

AutoCAD SHX Text
AECOM  All Rights Reserved

AutoCAD SHX Text
L:\DCS\Projects\TRN\60672593_Cedar_Heights_St_Recon\900_CAD_GIS\02-SHEETS\H01_60672593.dwg

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/14/22

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRINTED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Gamerdinger, Tyler

AutoCAD SHX Text
11/30/18

AutoCAD SHX Text
of

AutoCAD SHX Text
c

AutoCAD SHX Text
----

AutoCAD SHX Text
Cedar Heights Area Road Reconstruction

AutoCAD SHX Text
Timber ROW

AutoCAD SHX Text
H.03

AutoCAD SHX Text
FINAL PLANS

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/XX/2021

AutoCAD SHX Text
60672593

AutoCAD SHX Text
XX

AutoCAD SHX Text
0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'

AutoCAD SHX Text
20'

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROW  ACQUISITION

AutoCAD SHX Text
TEMPORARY EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PERMANENT EASEMENT



DATE

DR
N

DE
S

CH
K

AP
P

N
O

RE
VI

SI
O

N
S

DR
N

CH
K

DA
TE

PROJECT NO.

SHEET NO.

DRAWING NO.

MILESTONE

40

Item 13.

AutoCAD SHX Text
KARLA N SOLHEIM 2436 GREENWOOD AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ERIC N DOWELL 2435 GREENWOOD AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAULA M GOETZ 2506 TIMBER DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
GREENWOOD AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TIMBER DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
Copyright

AutoCAD SHX Text
AECOM  All Rights Reserved

AutoCAD SHX Text
L:\DCS\Projects\TRN\60672593_Cedar_Heights_St_Recon\900_CAD_GIS\02-SHEETS\H01_60672593.dwg

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/14/22

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRINTED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Gamerdinger, Tyler

AutoCAD SHX Text
11/30/18

AutoCAD SHX Text
of

AutoCAD SHX Text
c

AutoCAD SHX Text
----

AutoCAD SHX Text
Cedar Heights Area Road Reconstruction

AutoCAD SHX Text
Timber ROW

AutoCAD SHX Text
H.04

AutoCAD SHX Text
FINAL PLANS

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/XX/2021

AutoCAD SHX Text
60672593

AutoCAD SHX Text
XX

AutoCAD SHX Text
0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'

AutoCAD SHX Text
20'

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROW  ACQUISITION

AutoCAD SHX Text
TEMPORARY EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PERMANENT EASEMENT



   FINANCE & BUSINESS OPERATIONS 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
319-273-8600 
FAX 319-268-5126 

 M E M O R A N D U M 
Public Records Division 

 

 TO: Honorable Mayor Green and City Council 

 FROM: Jacque Danielsen, City Clerk 

 DATE: April 22, 2022 

 SUBJECT: Proposed amendment to change the dates when parking is prohibited for 
the College Hill Farmers Market 

 
Please find enclosed a proposed ordinance to change the prohibited parking in the 22nd 
Street East-North municipal parking lot and on West 22nd Street between Olive Street 
and College Street (highlighted on the map) from Thursdays to Wednesdays during the 
months of June thru October each year for the College Hill Farmers Market. The date 
change was requested by the College Hill Farmers Market and College Hill Partnership 
(attached). 
 

 
 
The College Hill Farmers Market has been operating since 2013 and similar to the 
Downtown Farmers Market, parking is prohibited in this area only during the hours of 
the market, with extra time allowed for set-up and take-down. 
 
If you have any questions regarding this amendment, please feel free to contact me. 
Thank you. 
  
     

41

Item 14.



42

Item 14.



 
 
 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 3010 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 23-423, PARKING PROHIBITED IN 
CERTAIN PARKING SPACES DURING CERTAIN HOURS, OF DIVISION 2, 
PARKING ENFORCEMENT DISTRICTS, EQUIPMENT, OPERATIONS AND 
FACILITIES, OF ARTICLE IV-STOPPING, STANDING AND PARKING, OF 
CHAPTER 23, TRAFFIC AND MOTOR VEHICLES, OF THE CODE OF 
ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, BY CHANGING THE 
DAY FROM THURSDAY TO WEDNESDAY. 

 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 
 
 Section 23-423, Parking prohibited in certain parking spaces during certain hours, of 
Division 2, Parking Enforcement Districts, Equipment, Operations and Facilities, of Article IV, 
Stopping, Standing and Parking, of Chapter 23, Traffic and Motor Vehicles, of the Code of 
Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, is hereby repealed in its entirety and a new Section 
23-423, Parking prohibited in certain parking spaces during certain hours is enacted in lieu 
thereof, as follows: 
 
Sec. 23-423.  Parking prohibited in certain parking spaces during certain hours.   

 

When signs are erected giving notice thereof, parking or standing a vehicle shall be 
prohibited on Wednesday afternoons only commencing with the first Wednesday of June of 
each year and continuing through the last Wednesday of October of each year during the hours 
of 2:00 p.m. to 7:00 p.m. on the following portions of streets and municipal parking lots:  

(1) Anywhere within the 22nd Street East-North municipal parking lot.  

(2) West 22nd Street from Olive Street to College Street.  

 
 

INTRODUCED:     April 4, 2022    

PASSED 1ST CONSIDERATION:   April 4, 2022    

PASSED 2ND CONSIDERATION:   April 18, 2022    

PASSED 3RD CONSIDERATION:       

ADOPTED:          

 
 
 
      __________________________________ 

ATTEST:           Robert M. Green, Mayor 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk  

43

Item 14.



COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE 
City Hall – Council Chambers  

April 18, 2022 

 
The Committee of the Whole met at the Community Center at 5:10 p.m. on April 18, 2022, with 
the following Committee persons in attendance:  Mayor Robert Green and Councilmembers 
Susan deBuhr, Kelly Dunn, Dustin Ganfield, Simon Harding, Daryl Kruse, Gil Schultz and Dave 
Sires.  Staff members from all City Departments and members of the community attended in 
person.   

Mayor Green called the meeting to order and introduced the first item on the agenda, Human 
Rights Commission Annual Report, and introduced Eashann Vajpeyi, Human Rights 
Commission Chair. 

Mr. Vajpeyi stated changes that occurred this past year will include serving our community, 
position the commission with better visibility and a better reputation in the community.  The HRC 
(Human Rights Commission) has moved away from handling, processing, investigating and 
adjudicating claims of discrimination in the community.  Mr. Vajpeyi outlined the new committee 
structure that included: Commission Professional Development & Education, Outreach & 
Communication, Advocacy, and Policy/Executive.  The HRC is putting structure and processes 
in place for incoming members to have a good transition into their role with the HRC to make an 
impact sooner.  Councilmember Dunn asked if there are any requests from the HRC for 
Councilmembers; Mr. Vajpeyi stated additional staffing resources that were provided were 
helpful.  Mayor Green asked about the ICRC agreement; Mr. Vajpeyi stated this agreement 
should be kept in place.    

Mayor Green moved to the second item on the agenda, Bicycle Plan Update and introduced 
Chris Sevy, Planner I, Matt Tolan, Civil Engineer II, and Andrew Schroll, Bicycle and Pedestrian 
Advisory Committee Chair.  Mr. Schroll gave an introduction to the bike update plan that 
included the collaboration with City staff, Bicycle and Pedestrian committee, bike community 
and public input.  This included the bike community’s mission to improve the quality of life 
through safe biking and walking; the more connected biking and walking are, the more 
connected we are as a community.  The plan includes an emphasis on increasing the utility of 
network along with our recreational trail system.  Mr. Sevy explained this update is needed for 
infrastructure planning, pride in our bike network, keep the plan relevant, pros/cons and 
requested by Councilmembers in 2019.  Mr. Tolan gave a brief history of previous bike maps, 
plans and updates.  Mr. Sevy discussed the parameters of the project which included:  daily 
commuting utility; no widening of streets or rights-of-way; design options; bike lanes instead of 
existing on-street parking; sidewalks not considered bike infrastructure; multi-use trails placed 
along street frontages with limited driveways/cross-streets; and on-street facilities can be safer.  
Mr. Tolan gave an overview of design considerations and concerns.  Mr. Sevy gave an overview 
of the process that has taken place to date, including developed/refined plan map, 
questionnaires distributed, public outreach at the farmers market and Cedar Falls Public Library 
and proposal to Planning & Zoning Commission on February 1, 2022, which was voted on 
unanimously to proceed to City Councilmembers for consideration and adoption.  Mr. Tolan 
stated the bicycle plan is looked at for its planning ability for placing infrastructure on particular 
roadways; defined in the capital improvement programs, and construction timelines.  Mr. Tolan 
gave an overview on each areas of public interest and the future plans that includes future bike 
lanes, shared lanes, paved shoulders and future uphill lanes.  Mr. Schroll gave closing remarks 
and asked for questions.  Mayor Green asked about the grid street connectivity network in the 
downtown area; Mr. Sevy stated that area is considered a bicycle friendly zone and tends to be 
low traffic.  Councilmember Kruse is concerned with adding shared lanes on 12th/18th Street; Mr. 
Schroll explained a study was completed on the density of traffic.  Councilmember Kruse gave 
suggestions on 12th/19th Streets and asked about dangerous gutter grading; Mr. Tolan explained 
the design changes are bike friendly.  Councilmember Schultz expressed the importance of 
bicycle knowledge and consideration of Longview and Center Street additions/extensions.  

44

Item 15.



Councilmember Kruse asked about removal of snow or leaving snow for specific winter 
activities; Mr. Schroll stated this is in the review process, Big Woods, Riverside trails, Prairie 
Lakes and George Wyth will be left for cross country skiing, snowshoeing, etc.  Iowa Northland 
Regional Council of Governments will be releasing an interactive map.    

Mayor Green moved to the third item on the agenda, Public Safety Model Study – Funding 
Sources and introduced Jennifer Rodenbeck, Director of Finance and Business.  Ms. 
Rodenbeck stated that on 3/21/22, the following referral was made:  It was then moved by 
Ganfield and seconded by Harding to refer to the Committee of the Whole a presentation of 
possible funding sources up to $125,000 and at least three consulting firms, including 
Community Security Solutions, LLC, for the Public Safety review.  Ms. Rodenbeck proposed 
Council members start with discussing the first part of the motion in regards to funding sources.  
She noted that possible budget funding sources could be; Emergency reserves ($125,000), 
Reduction of a Public Safety Officer ($100,000), Contingency ($60,000) and other CIP items or 
items discussed through the budget process.  Ms. Rodenbeck stated challenges of moving 
forward with the study at this time include that the City is in the process of hiring a Public Safety 
Director and the FY2023 budget was just passed.  Ms. Rodenbeck proposed better timing may 
be having Councilmembers review the above referral at Goal Setting in November 2022.  
Councilmembers discussed the scope of work, cost of this study, pros and cons of which fund to 
use, waiting to discuss until Goal Setting after Public Safety Director is hired, discuss after 
employee survey, EMS data is needed, and concerns with having multiple police/fire incidents 
at the same time; Ms. Rodenbeck stated the scope of work will drive the cost, the employee 
survey is slated to start in FY2022, $10,000 budgeted for FY2022 and $10,000 budgeted for 
FY2023.  Councilmember Schultz asked about EMS response calls in 2021 and the number of 
complaints in 2021; Acting Public Safety Director Berte estimated 1,800-2,000 and includes 
calls in the City and calls Fire assists with, and Attorney Rogers stated no complaints.  Whitney 
Smith, 2207 Hawthorne Drive, spoke in favor of third party consultant for an unbiased opinion, 
data and transparency.  Councilmember Harding asked about timeline of employee survey; Ms. 
Rodenbeck stated in Goal Setting it was decided to move forward in FY2023 (July 1st).  
Councilmembers discussed setting the cost of the consulting firm and the detail of scope of 
work, review of RFP’s, CPAT vs. Cooper testing, promotions, which funds to use and employee 
survey; Attorney Rogers stated the importance of Council direction for staff.  There was a 
question in regards to how the contingency line item has been used in the past and Ms. 
Rodenbeck explained the contingency funds are normally used up each year for unusual legal 
fees that come up, run off elections, and other items that come up unexpectantly.      

Councilmember Dunn motioned to move conversation until we can have a discussion at Goal 
Setting as to where budget funds come from; Councilmember Schultz seconded. 
Councilmember Dunn withdrew previous motion.  Councilmember Dunn motioned to postpone 

discussion until Goal Setting, November 2022. Councilmember Schultz seconded.  
Motion passed.  

Meeting adjourned at 6:59 p.m. 

Minutes by Kim Kerr, Administrative Supervisor 

45

Item 15.



46

Item 16.



47

Item 16.



48

Item 17.



49

Item 17.



50

Item 17.



51

Item 17.



52

Item 17.



53

Item 17.



54

Item 17.



55

Item 17.



56

Item 17.



57

Item 17.



58

Item 17.



59

Item 17.



60

Item 17.



61

Item 17.



62

Item 17.



63

Item 17.



64

Item 17.



65

Item 17.



66

Item 17.



67

Item 17.



68

Item 17.



69

Item 17.



70

Item 17.



71

Item 17.



72

Item 17.



73

Item 17.



74

Item 17.



75

Item 17.



76

Item 17.



77

Item 17.



78

Item 17.



     ADMINISTRATION 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 

  

   

 

 

 
 

 

 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 

 FROM: Shane Graham, Economic Development Coordinator 

 DATE: April 22, 2022 

SUBJECT:      FY22 Report by College Hill Partnership 
    
 
As you may recall, starting in FY09 we signed formal agreements with those outside 
agencies that receive funding from the City of Cedar Falls. As part of those agreements, 
these agencies were required to submit reports and documentation on how those funds 
were used. 
 
Attached is the bi-annual report for FY22 filed by College Hill Partnership. The second 
½ payment for their SSMID funding and the second ½ payment for their economic 
development grant are therefore listed on the council bills to be processed. 
 
If you have any questions, please feel free to let me know. 
 
xc: Jennifer Rodenbeck, Director of Finance and Business Operations 
 Pat Freese, Finance Clerk 
      

79

Item 18.



 

 
 
College Hill Partnership 
2304 College Street 
Po Box 974 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
 
Phone: 319-273-6228 
collegehillpartnership@gmail.com 
www.collegehillpartnership.org 
 
 

2021-2022 
Board of Directors 
Ryan Kriener, President 
Hannah Peterson, Vice President 
Becky Hawbaker, Secretary 
Angela Johnson, Treasurer 
Andrea Geary 
Barb Schilf 
Bettina Fabos 
Brent Dahlstrom 
Frank Darrah 
Kyle Dehmlow 
Samantha Bennett 
 

 

 

15 April 2022 

Mayor Green & Members of Cedar Falls City Council 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, IA 50613 

 
RE: SSMID, Economic Development, Façade Grant, Community 
Betterment Grant 
 
Attached please find the Biannual Report form College Hill Partnership 
detailing our organization’s current status and progress in promoting 
and revitalizing the College Hill.   
 
In this report you will find the following information: 

- Accomplishments of the last 6 Months 
- List of Current Board of Directors  
- Financial Statements 
- 2021-2022 Budget (included on Financial Statement) 
- Volunteer Hours 

 
We are thankful for the support and collaboration that the City of Cedar 
Falls has given our organization. 
 
With the submission of this report, we respectfully ask for the 
disbursement of the SSMID Funds, and Economic Development Funds, 
Funds to the College Hill Partnership.  Please notify us if there is any 
additional information as needed as we would be happy to provide it.   
 
Sincerely,  
 
 

Kathryn Sogard, Executive Director 
On behalf of the College                            
Hill Partnership Board Of 
Directors 

 

80

Item 18.



April 15, 2021 UPDATE 

  
  
  

Economic Development Fund, SSMID & 
Community Development Fund 

EVALUATION FY22 
  
  
  
  

Project Completion and Evaluation Form 
                          
 

To assist the Economic Development Review Board in evaluating the impact your organization/project 
had on contributing to or promoting economic development and the creation of quality employment 
opportunities in Cedar Falls; please complete the following (use additional paper if necessary): 

 
  
Project Completion and Evaluation Form 
  
Name of Organization:   College Hill Partnership 
Project Description: 

SSMID 
-         The College Hill Partnership received approval for our business district as a Self-
Supported Municipal Improvement District. 
-         The objective of the College Hill Partnership SSMID is to help further our organization by 
representing and advocating for the interests of College Hill.  We have worked to do this through 
economic development, tourism, and quality of life in the College Hill area. We have also 
worked to improve the administration's performance, redevelopment, and revitalization of the 

81

Item 18.



April 15, 2021 UPDATE 

district. These funds specifically aid us in our mission of revival and promotion of the College 
Hill area.  

Economic Development 
-  The College Hill Partnership received approval for an Economic Development Grant.  
The Economic Development grant's objective is to further our mission to remain a leader in the 
revitalization and promotion of the College Hill Overlay District. Funds for the specific 
assistance were to supply monies to support efforts of aesthetic caretaking, including cleaning 
and caring for the Hill.  

Façade Improvement Grant 
-          The College Hill Partnership received approval for the Facade Improvement Grant.  
-          The objective of the Façade Improvement grant is to further our mission to remain a 
leader in the revitalization and promotion of the College Hill Overlay District. Funds are used to 
supply the CHP and the College Hill Businesses to improve the facades of their buildings.    

Community Betterment Grant 
- The College Hill Partnership received approval for the Community Betterment Grant 
The Community Betterment Grant's objective is to further our mission to remain a leader in the 
revitalization of the Hill.  Funds are used in conjunction with our College Hill Farmers Market 
partners to purchase street banners to facilitate placemaking and public events and encourage 
customers and visitors to come to the area.   
  
What is the mission of your organization?: 
-          College Hill Partnership (CHP) is a non-profit organization that serves as the leader in the 
revitalization and promotion of the College Hill area, an urban neighborhood community.  The 
scope of its mission includes promoting healthy neighborhood businesses and housing 
enhancement, strengthening collaboration and pride, developing public/private partnerships, and 
serving as an advocate for addressing area concerns. 
 
Grant Amount: SSMID $32,970+ (Approximation)   
Economic Development Grant $2250.00   
Façade Improvement Grant $6,000 
Community Betterment Grant $600 
 

 

Address of Organization or person completing this application: 
Street: P.O. Box 974 
City: Cedar Falls                                State: Iowa         Zip: 50613 
Phone: 319-273-6228      Email: collegehillpartnership@gmail.com 
  
  
  
1. Do you consider your organization/projects a success from October 2021 through March 
2022? Why? 
 
• Our organization has made advancements over the last six months. The CHP focused on 
creating programming that supports our economic development mission in the previous six 

82

Item 18.



April 15, 2021 UPDATE 

months. In addition, the College Hill Partnership has helped facilitate several digital 
opportunities for stakeholders. These surveys and online groups have allowed voice our 
constituents' concerns on upcoming changes to the overlay district, local events, and parking 
changes impacting College Hill.  
• Our Executive Director has worked hard to be a voice for College Hill. Without SSMID 
funding, the CHP would run solely on volunteer hours. 
• We have continued to fund clean-up efforts in the area. In addition, we have worked with 
several other organizations, including UNI, GreenAmericorps, and ThreeHouse, to facilitate 
volunteer clean-ups of the College Hill Business District and College Hill Neighborhood.  
• We are encouraged one new business has been located on the Hill and opened its doors 
over the last year. We are looking forward to seeing new entrepreneurs head to the Hill to open a 
business.   
• We have also been a part of several collaborative projects with other local organizations. 
Such as: 
o College Hill Street Farmers Markets 
o UNI Homecoming Window Decorating 
o College Hill Clean-Ups 
o UNI Welcome Week Event 
 
2. Does the outcome of this grant funding to your operation/project align with the 
Economic Development Fund/SSMID/Façade/Community Betterment goals of 
complementing Cedar Falls economic development efforts?  Explain. 
  
The College Hill Partnership use of SSMID funding aligns with the efforts of the City in several 
ways: 
• Within the last year, we have seen one new business open on College Hill. Tales Untold 
Tattoos 
• The College Hill Partnership is unique with its connection to the business district and the 
University (through a Staff Liaison and Student Board member). By funding the CHP, a 
multifaceted organization with a diverse demographic, the City of Cedar Falls ensures that 
customers connect to businesses and vice-versa. Through this connection, College Hill 
companies can supply offerings in demand. For example, several years ago, a study supported by 
the CHP helped neighbors voice their support for a coffee shop on the Hill. Because of this 
study, the College Hill Business District was able to gain Sidecar Coffee, now a staple of the 
Hill.  
• In the last few years, we have made additional efforts to study the desires of the patrons 
of College Hill and the nearby residents. We have partnered with a group of university students 
to promote a survey determining the Partnership's desired offerings on College Hill. This group 
of students uses some base information the partnership has used before. They have created and 
revised a survey to include students at UNI. This partnership ensures a large sample is collected 
from a broad spectrum of users. We continue to work to collect data in the ever-changing 
economic environment. In the last six months, we have started a partnership with the Cedar Falls 
High School CAPS program, and we look forward to data they are working to collect that we can 
add to our current data set about the public desires for College Hill. We hope to use the data 
collected to create a more comprehensive study of community members and visitors to Cedar 

83

Item 18.



April 15, 2021 UPDATE 

Falls. Like our study that helped bring Sidecar Coffee to the Hill, we hope publicly promoting 
our findings will allow us to attract various businesses to College Hill.  
• During the pandemic, we had the opportunity to strengthen our partnership with the 
University of Northern Iowa. We used our partnership to spread a cohesive message about the 
importance of safety measures. From the beginning of the pandemic, our board understood that 
we needed to work together to keep the community healthy keep the economy going. Our 
organization worked with the College Hill Businesses, University, and the City to promote 
healthy practices by: 
o Installing space markers on the ground outside of Hill Businesses  
o Provided window cling signage for businesses to promote healthy habits 
o Had a company implement digital signage to encourage mask-wearing 
o Created a continually updating spreadsheet of practices, services, and times of operation 
to help the public know what each of the Hill Businesses was doing to continue to serve the 
public  
o Partnered with the University and City to promote mask-wearing in the PSA campaign 
• Our board understood keeping the community healthy would keep students on campus; 
by keeping students on campus, they would continue to support the businesses. We know it was 
not always easy to step into a leadership role. Still, the CHP Board felt it was their duty to 
support our community by doing everything we could to promote the best habits to keep our 
community members safe and healthy. Because of the efforts of all, we are happy to report that 
College Hill had no vacant storefronts during the pandemic.    
• Currently, there are over five vacant storefronts. Even though the State of Iowa has 
returned to a new normal, College Hill still faces challenges caused by changing purchasing and 
dining habits.  The evolution of patterns impacted traffic on the Hill and lower enrollment at the 
University of Northern Iowa (caused by faster graduation rates), a challenging economic 
environment with increased inflation, and other changes. The challenges the Hill faces tell us that 
the CHP's mission to promote and encourage revitalization is still vital to the health and vitality 
of the Hill. 
 
3. Did receipt of an Economic Development Fund, Community Betterment grant, and 
SSMID enable your organization/project to provide a new service to promote economic 
development or the creation of quality employment opportunities in Cedar Falls? How? 
  
• The nature of College Hill is ever-changing. It is a developing area that requires that our 
organization continually focus on renewal and community engagement. The SSMID, Economic 
Development, Façade Funds, and Community Betterment funding help the College Hill 
Partnership provide numerous services promoting economic development and improving 
employment opportunities. This past year the College Hill Partnership has maintained a part-time 
Executive Director through such funding programs. SSMID Economic Development, Façade 
Funds, and Community Betterment monies helped further our mission of promoting and 
revitalizing College Hill. It helped us create consistency on our board. It has also allowed our 
board some continuity when working with other organizations on collaborative projects. Our 
services fall into several key areas: 
• Encouraging cooperative business strategies 
• Developing awareness of the neighborhood and business district through digital media  

84

Item 18.



April 15, 2021 UPDATE 

• Including several collaborative opportunities for marketing through events and 
partnerships 
• Improving the physical appearance of the College Hill 
• Promoting the District 
• Sponsoring and Fostering Cultural Events 
• Promoting healthy activities around Cedar Falls 
• See specific examples in the following answer  
 
4. Please provide a summary of activities complete from April 2021 through October 2021 
by your organization/project. 
 

The College Hill Partnership has many services aimed at promoting economic development. 
Through the receipt of funds, we were able to undertake many new projects during the year. 
Summarizations of our organization's activities are as follows: 

  

Encouraging cooperative business strategies. The College Hill Partnership understands the 
challenges the College Hill area faces. We work together with merchants, residents, landlords, 
the University of Northern Iowa, and Cedar Falls to make physical improvements and promote 
the entire overlay district. We have also been at the forefront in facilitating growth through better 
communication and connecting relevant parties. We have helped business growth by establishing 
a College Hill TIF District, a College Hill Urban Revitalization Program (CHURP), and 
participation in the Façade Grant Program.   

In collaboration with the Cedar Falls High School CAPS Program, the CHP Executive 
Committee has started to work on surveying upper-level high school students on their opinions 
about College Hill. We are hoping this survey will determine what is missing in the business 
district and help the CHP facilitate a more extensive study of the public. The last economic 
development survey the CHP worked on helped bring Sidecar Coffee and the College Hill 
Farmers Market and identified other opportunities for the CHP and the College Hill area.   

In addition to this survey, we have been working on compiling information about residents 
within our district. Knowing each segment of our organization will help ensure we provide the 
necessary services to the community that we serve. This sort of data helps inform our business 
decisions and support the local business environment. With more storefronts open on College 
Hill than there have been at one single time in the last five years, the CHP is working to be 
proactive in attracting businesses that our neighborhood and community can sustain. Consistent 
efforts and meetings with the local shops and an active Executive Director have helped us 
improve our communication with the overall business district. We have been able to work with 
city staff to get the community involved in several public input opportunities, from the Pettersen 
Plaza Expansion to Imagine College Hill Visioning. We use our communication channels to 
promote events and projects the City works on, such as the Bike to the Future. Many community 
members have helped us voice specific challenges that College Hill faces, including; safety, 
connectivity, accessibility, and aesthetic care. 

85

Item 18.



April 15, 2021 UPDATE 

Improving the physical appearance of College Hill. One of CHP's charges is to create an 
inviting environment where people want to live, work, and visit. The College Hill district is a 
significant gateway to Cedar Falls through UNI. It is one of the first districts to create an 
impression; the local area shows visitors, future students, and parents. The CHP has overseen the 
maintenance of flower beds in Pettersen Plaza and College and 23rd Streets, and the parking lots 
on the Hill. The flower beds on the Hill were highlighted on several Master Gardner websites 
highlighting public garden spaces and maintaining them successfully. Continually, the College 
Hill Partnership has worked with the Black Hawk County Master Gardeners to aid our 
organization in the area's beautification. Their volunteers have continued to donate countless 
hours to help put the plant beds to bed for the winter season.  

A collaboration between the College Hill Partnership, BHCo Master Gardeners, and Friends of 
Pettersen Plaza has spent countless hours providing an aesthetically pleasing, event-friendly 
space at the bottom of the Hill that reflects the Namesake of the Plaza, Hugh Pettersen. To date, 
we have raised over $17,000 in private donations to go towards the improvements of Pettersen 
Plaza. This effort has resulted in a beautiful, aesthetically pleasing area drawing the local 
community's attention; this has included tables and new plantings, all made possible through 
private donations and funding from the Community Betterment Grant through the City of Cedar 
Falls. In addition, we continue to care for the plantings and trees in the plaza and have used our 
gum buster to clean up some of the stuck-on messes left behind by users of the Hill.  

Many board members and CHP volunteers spend free time picking up trash and debris left 
behind in highly used areas like the College Hill neighborhood. Another proud partnership we 
have is with Green Iowa Americorps and TreeHouse Collaborative Campus Ministries. We have 
facilitated a clean-up service day through this partnership and have been planning another one 
for Earth Day this spring. These days featured an opportunity for UNI Students to help us clean 
up the Hill. Over a dozen people were on the Hill for just two hours, picking up trash and 
recyclables for the Halloween clean-up.  

The College Hill Partnership wants to also thank the City of Cedar Falls for the lengthy 
discussions about trash collection in the College Hill Business District and for working to solve 
the never-ending trash challenges of a diverse district like ours. Staff helped us reach out to 
businesses regarding the trash bins behind companies on the corner of W23rd and College Street. 
This communication leads to the collaboration between business owners to monitor the refuse 
collection area to ensure items are properly discarded. We appreciate that the City wants to care 
for our community and understand funding for that care can be costly. Our organization wants to 
thank City Staff and City Council Members for realizing that additional expenses required for 
caretaking would be an additional burden. This burden would mean our focus would shift away 
from other economic development activities. It takes a lot of financial support and human 
resources to care for trash on the Hill.  

We have also been fortunate to partner with SAE on the Northern Iowa Campus to watch for one 
of the more extensive beds along 23rd Street. This partnership has allowed us to build a new 
relationship with young community members and strengthen our partnership with the University 
of Northern Iowa. With our unique position close to campus, we believe our job is to help 
encourage university students and community members to come together to make our 

86

Item 18.



April 15, 2021 UPDATE 

community a better place to live, work, and play. By bringing these two groups together, we 
hope we can work towards common goals to improve our community. 

Usage of Economic Development Fund Monies. The College Hill Partnership was awarded 
$2,250 through the Economic Development Fund. All funds have been allocated to aesthetic 
caretaking. These funds have allowed us to fill a position to help care for the College Hill 
Business District. This caretaker is an excellent addition to our staff and has kept the Hill clean 
and safer between planned volunteer clean-ups. They have also helped us keep the beds watered 
due to decreased volunteer availability due to the pandemic with the high traffic volume on 
College Hill, a consistent effort required to keep it clean. 
 
1. Aesthetic Caretaking Project: 
This past year, we have employed an aesthetic caretaking professional to help us care for the 
Hill. In addition to this employee, we have been able to supply this person with much-needed 
cleaning equipment to keep the Hill cared for and clean. In addition to their services, we have 
continued to care for College Hill's aesthetic quality. We were able to do this by supporting 
beautification efforts, supplying plantings, such as flowers, trees, and the overall care for beds 
along College Street and West 23rd Street. 
 
In-kind donations (Hours):   94 x $28.54 = $1,455,54 estimated (Since May 2021) 
Salary:     $1605.00 (Last 6 Months) 
Beautification:    $313.14 (Since July 2021)  
    Total Project Cost: $3,373.68 
  
“The Current Estimated National Value of Each Volunteer Hour is $28.54 Updated April 2021 
Volunteers in the United States hold up the foundation of civil society. They help their 
neighbors, serve their communities, and provide their expertise. No matter what kind of 
volunteer work they do, they are contributing in invaluable ways.” Information obtained from 
https://independentsector.org/. 
 
 
Estimate of Facade Fund Monies. The CHP was awarded monies through the Facade Fund. 
Monies are utilized to make improvements in our district. By allocating funds to businesses 
investing in improving their facades, the overall appearance of the Hill is greatly enhanced. We 
appreciate that the City is willing to let this funding flow over into the next fiscal year, 
understanding that due to the pandemic, businesses have not always put façade improvements as 
a top priority.  We have yet to receive any funds this fiscal year as we have not received and 
awarded any projects in our district. We are hopeful the funds will be used before the deadline of 
June 30, 2022.  
 
 
Grant Awards Include: 
 N/A As of 7-1-2021 
 
Usage of Community Betterment Grant Monies.  The College Hill Partnership has been 
working closely with the  College Hill Farmers Market and serves the local community by 

87

Item 18.



April 15, 2021 UPDATE 

bringing local vendors to the urban area of College Hill. This organization has been working 
hard over the last six months to promote the farmers' market and businesses and events on the 
Hill. The College Hill Farmers Market relocated to W 22nd Street this year, and now the change 
of day. To ease some confusion about the differences, the CHP worked with the market to 
purchase additional street banners. The banners have been ordered, but we are waiting to be 
billed and hung on light poles. Our intention with this project is to foster a sense of place and 
encourage the community to come to the Hill and shop for local farm-fresh goods and hopefully 
venture into College Hill Businesses to support local businesses.   
  

Promoting College Hill. The College Hill Partnership is promoting the Hill through regular 
face-to-face meetings, frequent email communication, a booth at the annual College Hill Arts 
Festival, our website (www.collegehillpartnership.org) and blog, 

• Facebook Page (1872, a 1.4% decrease over the previous six months),  

• Twitter account (2459, a .8% decrease over the previous six months),  

• Instagram account (1888, a 1.2% increase in the last six months),  

• and newly added Linkedin account (476, a 4.1% increase in the last six months), 

• & Snapchat, YouTube, and Pinterest pages,  

All help keep our members and interested groups connected and up-to-date with what's 
happening on College Hill and how we can collaborate on its improvement. For example, one of 
the most popular posts on our Social Media channels was collaborating with UNI and Fortepan 
Iowa. As a result, we worked to capture the process of installing five wheat pasting murals on 
College Hill. The social reach was massive for us and a great highlight for College Hill and 
Cedar Falls. This social media exposure even reached the country of Fortepan's origin, Hungary.  

We have also connected with members via email, Facebook private groups, and google groups to 
ensure we communicate the CHP's activities. We have used our blog on our website to feature 
upcoming events, important College Hill news, and updates from the City. In addition to all of 
our social media work, we have featured several guest bloggers from our community writing 
about all things College Hill. One of our most viewed blogs is an article about the history of the 
trees along Seerley Blvd. Because of the vast nature of the College Hill Partnership, there are 
many exciting dimensions we can highlight. We also have the opportunity to tell stakeholders' 
stories. The Partnership felt a great way to showcase our diverse community was to increase our 
social reach through an online publication. This blog allows us the opportunity to showcase 
issues relevant to our community.  

Created after the start of the pandemic, our private Facebook business group has helped to 
facilitate conversations between all businesses on the Hill. As one can imagine, there were many 
things to communicate about during these abnormal 24 months. It is important to help businesses 
come together to talk about: 

88

Item 18.



April 15, 2021 UPDATE 

• Updates from State & City 

• Pandemic Services (Grant/Loan Opportunities) 

• Closures & ever-changing regulations/restrictions 

• Best practices during a pandemic 

The value of this space has been very beneficial for us. It has allowed us to get out information to 
the College Hill Businesses and has also been an area where they can communicate with other 
business owners and managers. We have also used this group to collect feedback about some 
public parking changes. In the next six months, we plan to use this group to encourage College 
Hill business owners to be active in the upcoming change to the city code for the College Hill 
area. We hope to help College Hill Businesses to stay updated with changes in the district, 
including parking lot resurfacing, and stay up to date with current College Hill Events. 

We look forward to continuing this digital space to foster growth and communication within our 
community.  
 
Sponsoring and Fostering Cultural Events. Since 2008, the CHP has sponsored many events 
that have become traditions. The CHP Annual Meeting (April) and the annual neighborhood 
picnic (August). The CHP also helped establish the College Hill Farmers Market, 22nd and 
College, co-sponsored with UNI's CEEE (weekly, Thursdays, June- Oct). This year we have 
supported hosting the farmers market on W 22nd Street to encourage more vendors and 
customers to participate. 
 
We look forward to the change of day to Wednesday this summer as the market management and 
vendors believe this will spread the time between Cedar Falls markets and draw more market-
goers to the Hill.   
 
Many of our own College Hill events have inspired local businesses and other groups to run their 
own College Hill events. Events include Pear Fair – Mohair Pear (October, which began in 
2011), the College Hill Music Festival (May; formed in 2013), and the College Hill Criterium 
Bicycle Race (April, started in 2013). We have hosted an annual Oktoberfest event, which 
helped support and increase business activity and showcases what the College Hill area has to 
offer. We have also been honored to work with the University of Northern Iowa and Community 
Main Street to create an excellent Fall Kickoff for New UNI students. This event helps to 
introduce students to both districts and help them become more familiar with Cedar Falls. The 
College Hill Partnership has noted that our most successful events partner with other community 
organizations. By having more organizations involved, we can cross-promote the event, develop 
stronger community bonds, and spread out the burden of the cost events can create.  
 
Activities on the Hill such as these are an important way to appeal to a substantial, diverse 
demographic our neighborhood serves. Public events and activities bring significant revenue to 
College Hill and the City of Cedar Falls. All activities mentioned above increase the vitality of 

89

Item 18.



April 15, 2021 UPDATE 

College Hill, drive interest in spending time on the Hill, and aid economic development within 
our local district and the City of Cedar Falls.  
 
Due to the ongoing pandemic, many of our typical events had to be redeveloped, delayed, or 
altogether canceled. Many of the above events did not happen in the past two years. Still, we 
have been able to host several virtual events and forums and bring back a couple of in-person 
events to celebrate the UNI community and promote College Hill Businesses. We have been 
working on some upcoming events to promote the Hill, which includes:  
• College Hill Garage Sales 
• Neighborhood Coffee Dates 
• College Hill Clean-Ups 
  
Fostering Partnership with City of Cedar Falls: The College Hill Partnership values the 
working relationship with the City of Cedar Falls. This includes but is not limited to: 
• Regularly communicating with city staff through: 
o Hosting city staff liaison to CHP board meetings 
o Monthly meetings with Mayor Green 
o Hosting city council members to CHP board meetings 
o Serving staff to serve on Parking Tech Committee 
o Other communication about issues important to College Hill 
• Working to help promote activities and important issues the City is working on 
o Parking 
o Resilience Planning 
o College Hill Visioning 
o Annual Earth Day Clean Up 
o Other issues 
• Attending Council Meetings 
• Participate in joint media communications, including: 
o Interviews on TV and for radio 
o Social Media live streams 
This partnership is essential to our organization and the people we represent. A specific project 
of utmost importance is the Imagine College Hill Visioning. Our organization spent countless 
hours participating in public meetings, promoting city events, and encouraging everyone to 
participate in this project because of its potential to create lasting change in our district. Our staff 
helped promote the Imagine College Hill public events through: 
• two radio interviews 
• 2-3 TV appearances 
• Over 40 Facebook posts (on our public page and in private Facebook groups we 
facilitate) 
• 50+ Tweets 
• 5+ LinkedIn posts 
• 20+ Instagram posts 
• Sent emails to our emailing lists 
• Created blog posts 
• Delivered printed material to College Hill Businesses to hand out to their customers 
• Hung posters in public kiosks on Hill 

90

Item 18.



April 15, 2021 UPDATE 

• Created a YouTube playlist of all the public recorded meetings for those who could not 
attend meetings in person. 
• Advocated to have the vision come to reality soon, urging the council to listen to the 
public and fund line items in the budget to move zoning code changes forward. 
We look forward to continuing this work as the vision created through the Imagine College Hill 
Visioning Process helps influence future zoning code changes for our district.   
 
5. Do you have suggestions for improvement of this grant process? 
  
We do not have any suggestions at this time.  

 

6. The Economic Development Fund Evaluation Reports (Bi-Annual) for the Fiscal Year 
2022 must be submitted by October 15 15, 2020, and April 15, 2021, to: 
  

 Cedar Falls Economic Development Review Board 
c/o Director of Community Development 

220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, IA 50613 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

91

Item 18.



April 15, 2021 UPDATE 

 
Supporting Documents 

  
College Hill Partnership 

2021-2022 
Board of Directors 

  
 

Resident: Angela Johnson (2021-2023) – pplcenter@yahoo.com 
Resident: Becky Hawbaker (2020-2022) - becky.hawbaker@uni.edu 
Landlord: Bettina Fabos (2020-2022) –Bettina.fabos@gmail.com 
Landlord: Ryan Kreiner (2019-2021) - rkriener@msn.com 
Business: Andrea Geary (2021-2023 – milkboxbakery@gmail.com 
Business: Barb Schilf (2020-2022) - barb.mohairpear@gmail.com 
At Large: Kyle Dehmlow (2019-2022) - kyledehmlow1@gmail.com 
At Large: Hannah Peterson (2021-2023) – hannahdotpeterson@gmail.com 
At Large: Brent Dahlstrom (2019-2022)  - brentdahlstrom@gmail.com 
At Large: Frank Darrah (2021-2023) – wfd@cfu.net 
At Large (Student): Samantha Bennett (2021-2023) - nisg-president@uni.edu 
 

Non-Voting Board Members 
Past President: Chris Martin – chris.martin@cfu.net 
UNI Liaison: N/A 
City of Cedar Falls Liaison: Karen Howard – Karen.howard@cedarfalls.com 
City Council Representative: Simon Harding- simonharding.cf4@gmail.com 
Master Gardner:  Vaughn Griffith – vjgriff@forbin.net 
College Hill Arts Festival Liaison: Doug Johnson – doug.johnson@uni.edu 
Grow Cedar Valley Liaison:  Cary Darrah - carydarrah@cfu.net 
Community Main Street Liaison: Kim Bear - director@communitymainstreet.org  
                   Crystal Ford - crystal.ford@bergankdv.com 
Executive Director: Kathryn Sogard - collegehillpartnership@gmail.com 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

92

Item 18.



April 15, 2021 UPDATE 

 
 

Supporting Documents: 
Financial Statement & Budget 

See Attached Document 
 

Total Volunteer Hours 
See Attached Document 

93

Item 18.



College Hill Partnership 2021-2022 Budget Financial Statement

4/5/2022

Income  Budget  July August September October November December January  February  March  April   Remaining Budget  Total 
Memberships/Donations ($ 1,500.00)      ($ -  )               ($ 23.97)           ($ -  )               ($ 35.00)           ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ 216.35)         ($ 382.07)                  ($ 192.84)                  ($ -  )                        ($ 1,224.68)               ($ 850.23)         
SSMID ($ 26,000.00)    ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ 3,510.00)      ($ 9,159.41)      ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )                        ($ -  )                        ($ -  )                        ($ 16,840.59)             ($ 12,669.41)    
Economic Development Grant: City of Cedar Falls ($ 2,250.00)      ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ 1,125.00)      ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )                        ($ -  )                        ($ -  )                        ($ 1,125.00)               ($ 1,125.00)      
Interest ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )                        ($ -  )                        ($ -  )                        ($ -  )                        ($ -  )               
Tree Fund ($ 1,625.90)      ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )                        ($ -  )                        ($ -  )                        ($ 1,625.90)               ($ -  )               
Facade Fund ($ 6,000.00)      ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )                        ($ -  )                        ($ -  )                        ($ 6,000.00)               ($ -  )               
Other ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )                        ($ -  )                        ($ -  )                        ($ -  )                        ($ -  )               
Community Betterment Grant Funds ($ 600.00)         ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )                        ($ -  )                        ($ -  )                        ($ 600.00)                  ($ -  )               
Pettersen Plaza Fund ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )                        ($ -  )                        ($ -  )                        ($ -  )                        ($ -  )               
PPP Loan ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )                        ($ -  )                        ($ -  )                        ($ -  )                        ($ -  )               
Total Income ($ 37,975.90)    ($ -  )               ($ 23.97)           ($ -  )               ($ 3,545.00)      ($ 10,284.41)    ($ -  )               ($ 216.35)         ($ 382.07)                  ($ 192.84)                  ($ -  )                        ($ 23,906.17)             ($ 14,644.64)    

Expenses
Advertising/Donations ($ 1,500.00)      ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ 120.00)         ($ -  )               ($ 34.09)           ($ -  )               ($ -  )                        ($ -  )                        ($ -  )                        ($ 1,380.00)               ($ 154.09)         
Insurance ($ 1,500.00)      ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )                        ($ 462.00)                  ($ -  )                        ($ 1,500.00)               ($ 462.00)         
General Office Expenses ($ 2,400.00)      ($ 94.20)           ($ 332.27)         ($ 94.20)           ($ 94.20)           ($ 94.20)           ($ 944.20)         ($ 94.20)           ($ 152.20)                  ($ 254.59)                  ($ -  )                        ($ 1,668.13)               ($ 2,154.26)      
Salaries (ED) ($ 18,750.00)    ($ 1,936.30)      ($ 817.79)         ($ 1,342.47)      ($ 1,376.11)      ($ 1,236.58)      ($ 2,012.00)      ($ 716.70)         ($ 1,416.99)               ($ 1,215.28)               ($ 527.11)                  ($ 9,312.05)               ($ 12,597.33)    
Taxes ($ 2,000.00)      ($ 421.80)         ($ -  )               ($ 581.19)         ($ 479.70)         ($ 314.65)         ($ 283.39)         ($ 584.49)         ($ 132.23)                  ($ 309.55)                  ($ -  )                        ($ (67.18)                   ($ 3,107.00)      
Hill Cleaning Service ($ 2,000.00)      ($ 197.40)         ($ 221.64)         ($ 367.09)         ($ 360.16)         ($ 339.39)         ($ 180.09)         ($ -  )               ($ 304.75)                  ($ 297.83)                  ($ -  )                        ($ 334.23)                  ($ 2,268.35)      
Hill Cleaning Equipment ($ 250.00)         ($ -  )               ($ 95.75)           ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )                        ($ -  )                        ($ -  )                        ($ 154.25)                  ($ 95.75)           ($ 2,364.10)      

Business Improvement Committee ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )                        ($ -  )                        ($ -  )                        ($ -  )                        ($ -  )               
Organization Development Committee ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )                        ($ -  )                        ($ -  )                        ($ -  )                        ($ -  )               
Neighborhood Services Committee ($ 1,000.00)      ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )                        ($ -  )                        ($ -  )                        ($ 1,000.00)               ($ -  )               
Beautification Committee ($ 1,000.00)      ($ -  )               ($ 217.39)         ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )                        ($ -  )                        ($ -  )                        ($ 782.61)                  ($ 217.39)         
Light Up College Hill Committee ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )                        ($ -  )                        ($ -  )                        ($ -  )                        ($ -  )               
Communication Committee ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )                        ($ -  )                        ($ -  )                        ($ -  )                        ($ -  )               
Seerley Park Committee ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )                        ($ -  )                        ($ -  )                        ($ -  )                        ($ -  )               
Marketing/Promotions (Events) Committee ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ 302.79)         ($ 124.73)         ($ 281.90)         ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )                        ($ 25.00)                    ($ -  )                        ($ (709.42)                 ($ 734.42)         
Farmers Market ($ 700.00)         ($ 144.00)         ($ 236.81)         ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )                        ($ -  )                        ($ -  )                        ($ 319.19)                  ($ 380.81)         
Tree Fund ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )                        ($ -  )                        ($ -  )                        ($ -  )                        ($ -  )               
Pettersen Plaza ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )                        ($ -  )                        ($ -  )                        ($ -  )                        ($ -  )               
Banners ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ 107.00)         ($ -  )               ($ -  )               ($ -  )                        ($ -  )                        ($ -  )                        ($ (107.00)                 ($ 107.00)         
Total Expenses ($ 30,400.00)    ($ 2,793.70)      ($ 2,224.44)      ($ 2,509.68)      ($ 2,712.07)      ($ 2,091.82)      ($ 3,453.77)      ($ 1,395.39)      ($ 2,006.17)               ($ 2,564.25)               ($ 527.11)                  ($ 8,648.71)               ($ 22,278.40)    

Balance (Income vs. Expenses) ($ (2,793.70)     ($ (2,200.47)     ($ (2,509.68)     ($ 832.93)         ($ 8,192.59)      ($ (3,453.77)     ($ (1,179.04)     ($ (1,624.10)              ($ (2,371.41)              ($ (527.11)                 ($ (7,633.76)     

Check Accounts  Ending Balance ($ 45,831.85)    $42,280.22 $40,141.65 $41,541.21 ($ 48,602.52)    $46,919.00 $44,949.80 ($ 43,130.95)             ($ 41,287.57)             
           Pettersen Plaza Fund balance
           Facade Fund Balance ($ 2,250.00)      ($ 2,250.00)      ($ 2,250.00)      ($ 2,250.00)      ($ 2,250.00)      $2,250.00 $2,250.00 ($ 2,250.00)               ($ 2,250.00)               

Date of Balance 8/9/2021 9/13/2021 10/8/2021 11/8/2021 12/9/2021 1/10/2021 2/10/2022 3/13/2022 4/4/2022

94

Item 18.



Volunteer Hours Starting May 2021

Date Number of People Total Hours Beautification Total
Beautifcation Team (Master Gardeners) May-October 3 15 15
Beautifcation Team (Non-Master Gardeners) May-October 2 4 4
Beautifcation Team (Master Gardeners) March-April
Beautifcation Team (Non-Master Gardeners) March-April
Light Up College Hill Committee May
Executive Committee May 3rd 4 4
Board Meeting May 10th 16 16
Executive Committee June 7th 4 4
Board Meeting June 14th 10 10
Beautification Committee June 15th 1 1 1
Communication Committee June 22nd 3 4.5
Seerley Park Committee June 17th 4 4
Pettersen Plaza Tables June 18th 3 4.5 4.5
Creek Clean Up (Student Clean Up) June 23rd 17 34 34
Board Meeting July 12th 9 11.25
Seerley Park Committee July 15th 4 4
Communication Committee Coffee July 17th 3 1
Communication Committee July 20th 3 3
Board Meeting Aug 9th 11 14.3
Seerley Park Committee Aug 13th 3 3
UNI NOW Welcome Week College Hill Clean-Up Aug 19th 9 10.5 10.5
Communication Committee Aug 24th 3 3
CHFM & UNI NOW - Welcome Week Event Aug 16th 4 7
Pettersen Plaza Tables Sept 10th 1 1 1
Board Meeting Sept 13th 13 16.5
Seerley Park Committee Sept 13th 6 6
Communication Committee - Coffee Sept 18th 2 2
Seerley Park Committee Sept 24th 2 2
Executive Committee Oct 7th 4 4
Board Meeting Oct 11th 10 13.3
Seerley Park Committee Oct 14th 8 12
Spooktacular Trash Clean Up Oct 28th 12 24 24 approx
Seerley Park Committee Nov 2nd 6 6
Seerley Park Committee Nov 8th 6 6
Board Meeting Nov 10th 14 17.5
Executive Committee Nov 19th 4 4
Meeting ED & Hannah Crisman Dec 1st 1 1.5
Board Meeting Dec 13th 10 13
Meeting ED BHCGA & Ryan Kriener Jan 4th 1 1
Board Meeting Jan 10th 13 16.9
Executive Committee Jan 12th 4 4
Board Meeting Feb 14th 17 21.25
Seerley Park Committee Feb 16th 7 8.75
Executive Committee Feb 18th 4 6
Executive Committee & CAPS Feb 21st 3 1.5
Event Committee (Socail House) Feb 25th 2 1
Executive Commitee & Caps Feb 28th 1 0.5
Garage Sale Committee Mar 4th 1 2
Executive Discussion March 8th 2 3
Executive Meeting March 11th 4 4
Financial Committee Meeting March 15th 2 2
Board Meeting Mar 14th 13 19.5
Strategic Partners Committee Meeting Mar 17th 2 3
Executive Committee & CAPS Mar 22nd 1 1
CHAF Mar 22nd 1 1
Board Conversation Mar 28th 11 13.75
CHFM & UNI NOW - Welcome Week Event Mar 29th 1 1

492 94

95

Item 18.



     ADMINISTRATION 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 

  

   

 

 

 
 

 

 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 

 FROM: Shane Graham, Economic Development Coordinator 

 DATE: April 20, 2022 

SUBJECT:      FY22 Report by Community Main Street 
    
 
As you may recall, starting in FY09 we signed formal agreements with those outside 
agencies that receive funding from the City of Cedar Falls. As part of those agreements, 
these agencies were required to submit reports and documentation on how those funds 
were used. 
 
Attached is the bi-annual report for FY22 filed by Community Main Street. The second 
½ payment for their SSMID funding and the second ½ payment for their economic 
development grant are therefore listed on the council bills to be processed. 
 
If you have any questions, please feel free to let me know. 
 
xc: Jennifer Rodenbeck, Director of Finance and Business Operations 
 Pat Freese, Finance Clerk 
      

96

Item 19.



310 East 4th Street
Cedar Falls, IA 50613

Phone: 319-277-0213
www.communitymainstreet.org

2021-2022
Board of Directors:

Lexie Heath - President
Darin Beck
Natalie Brown
Ann Eastman
Cyrstal Ford
Wynette Froehner
Audrey Kittrell
Jenny Leeper
Helen Pearce
Clark Rickard
Stephanie Sheetz
Mark Showalter
Brad Strouse

Thursday, April 15, 2022

Mayor Green and Council Members
City of Cedar Falls, IA
Cedar Falls City Hall
220 Clay Street
Cedar Falls, IA 50613

RE: SSMID and Economic Betterment Funding

Attached please find the Bi-annual Report from Community Main Street delineating the 
current status and recent progress of the organization’s pursuit of “economic vitality in the 
context of historic preservation.”

In this report you will find a summary of the activities outlined in the grant contract(s).
These activities are in the areas of:
• Design and historic preservation
• Business development and retention
• Promotion and marketing
• Member development, training and communication
• Summary of investments
• FY2022 program of work

The following required attachments are also included:
• Board Roster
• Financial Statements
• Support documents

We are grateful for the support that the City of Cedar Falls has provided over the years and 
the collaborative effort by many groups and individuals in creating a downtown district 
with appreciated real estate values, a reputation as a great destination and as a source of 
community pride. We will continue to do our part to help move the Cedar Falls Downtown 
District forward in a positive light post pandemic.

With submission of this report, we respectfully request the disbursement of funds to
Community Main Street of collected SSMID monies and of the previously awarded
Economic Betterment Grant for the continuation of this pivotal community program. 

We would be pleased to provide any additional information that you may require to 
process the release of funds. 

Kind regards, 
 
 
Kim Bear
Executive Director
Community Main Street 

97

Item 19.



Contents 
 

1. Month by Month, turned Quarterly Reporting (October 2021-January 2022) 
• Reports to Main Street Iowa, monthly with a switch to quarterly 
• Board Meeting Minutes 
• Staff Reports 
• One Sheets 

 
2. Board Roster 

 
3. Summary of New Investment and Job Creation/Retention.  

• These numbers can also be found in each report to Main Street Iowa  
 

4. Documentation Regarding Account of Expenditure of City Funds 
• Monthly financials for October 2021-March 2022 

 
5. Project Results 

• Design and historic preservation: Summary can be found in each monthly/quarterly 
report – commentary section as well as staff reports 
 

• Business development and retention: information can be found in each Monthly 
Report – Economic Vitality Section  
 

• Promotion and marketing: Summaries can be found in each Monthly Report in 
Promotion – Events section, commentary section and staff reports 

 
• Economic development projects taking place: Information ccan be found in 

Economic Development column in OneSheets as well as MSI reports 
 

6. Main Street Iowa letter of accreditation  
 

98

Item 19.



Status Report

 1987-MS-001-Cedar Falls
 
 Downtown Resource Center

 

Award Year: 1987

Contract Number: 1987-MS-001

Status Report
Number: 95

Submitted By: Kim Bear

Submitted Date: 11/20/2021

Status Report
Type: Monthly

Title October 2021 

Report Period 10/01/2021 10/31/2021 
From Date To Date 

Status: Approved

 

 Primary Contact and Organization
 

 

Primary Contact

AnA User Id CAROL.LILLY@IOWAID 

First Name* Community Main Street Inc 
First Name Middle Name Last Name 

Title: Executive Director 

Email:* director@communitymainstreet.org 

Address:* 310 E 4th St 

   

   

City* Cedar Falls Iowa 50613 
City State/Province Postal Code/Zip 

Phone:* 319-429-0468  
Phone Ext. 

Program
Area of
Interest* 

Downtown Resource Center

Fax:  

Organization Information

Organization
Name:* Community Main Street, Inc. 

Organization
Type:* Non-Profit Organization 

DUNS:  

Unique
Entity
Identifier
(UEI) 

 

Organization
Website: communitymainstreet.org 

Address: Community Main Street 

  310 E 4th St 

   

 Cedar Falls Iowa 50613 
City State/Province Postal Code/Zip 

Phone: 319-277-0213  
 Ext. 

Fax:  

 
 

Investments in the Main Street District
 
 Investments in the Main Street District 1

Project Type* Rehab Existing Building 
Building/Business Name Blue Room Lounge 99

Item 19.

mailto:director@communitymainstreet.org


Address 201 Main Street 
Private Amount Invested $400,000.00 
Source of Funds Private  
Public Amount Invested $0.00 
Public Investment Source  
Grant Amount Invested $0.00 
Source of Grant Funds
Invested  

Total Amount Invested $400,000.00 
Comments Exterior facade, reopening windows & interior 

 

Investments in the Main Street District 2
Project Type* Rehab Existing Building 
Building/Business Name David's Taphouse & Dumplings 
Address 200 W. 1st St. Ste. 101 
Private Amount Invested $110,000.00 
Source of Funds Private  
Public Amount Invested $0.00 
Public Investment Source  
Grant Amount Invested $0.00 
Source of Grant Funds
Invested  

Total Amount Invested $110,000.00 
Comments Replace & expand 2 level deck 

 

Investments in the Main Street District 3
Project Type* Rehab Existing Building 
Building/Business Name The Skin Spa 
Address 200 W. 1st St. Ste. 103 
Private Amount Invested $50,000.00 
Source of Funds Private  
Public Amount Invested $0.00 
Public Investment Source  
Grant Amount Invested $0.00 
Source of Grant Funds
Invested  

Total Amount Invested $50,000.00 
Comments Build out in existing building 

 

Investments in the Main Street District 4
Project Type* Rehab Existing Building 
Building/Business Name  
Address 205 Main St. Apt. 201 
Private Amount Invested $430,780.00 
Source of Funds Private  
Public Amount Invested $0.00 
Public Investment Source  
Grant Amount Invested $0.00 
Source of Grant Funds
Invested  

Total Amount Invested $430,780.00 
Comments 2nd floor remodel for 2 apartments 

 Investments in the Main Street District 5
Project Type* Rehab Existing Building 
Building/Business Name  
Address 205 Main St. Apt. 202 
Private Amount Invested $450,600.00 
Source of Funds Private  
Public Amount Invested $0.00 100

Item 19.



Public Investment Source  
Grant Amount Invested $0.00 
Source of Grant Funds
Invested  

Total Amount Invested $450,600.00 
Comments 2nd floor remodel for 2 apartments 

 

Investments in the Main Street District 6
Project Type* Rehab Existing Building 
Building/Business Name George's Local 
Address 108 E. 4th St. 
Private Amount Invested $655,887.00 
Source of Funds Private  
Public Amount Invested $0.00 
Public Investment Source  
Grant Amount Invested $0.00 
Source of Grant Funds
Invested  

Total Amount Invested $655,887.00 
Comments Exterior patio, interior kitchen, roof repair 

 

Investments in the Main Street District 7
Project Type* Rehab Existing Building 
Building/Business Name  
Address 219 Main Street 
Private Amount Invested $7,000.00 
Source of Funds Private  
Public Amount Invested $0.00 
Public Investment Source  
Grant Amount Invested $0.00 
Source of Grant Funds
Invested  

Total Amount Invested $7,000.00 
Comments Cap windows with aluminum 

 

Investments in the Main Street District 8
Project Type* Rehab Existing Building 
Building/Business Name Natural Healing Center 
Address 415 Main Street 
Private Amount Invested $150,000.00 
Source of Funds Private  
Public Amount Invested $0.00 
Public Investment Source  
Grant Amount Invested $0.00 
Source of Grant Funds
Invested  

Total Amount Invested $150,000.00 
Comments Installation of new walls for chiro office 

 Investments in the Main Street District 9
Project Type* Rehab Existing Building 
Building/Business Name First Bank 
Address 602 Main St. 
Private Amount Invested $781,624.00 
Source of Funds  
Public Amount Invested $0.00 
Public Investment Source  
Grant Amount Invested $0.00 
Source of Grant Funds
Invested  

Total Amount Invested $781,624.00 101

Item 19.



Comments Demo, framing, and drywall for remodel 

 
 

Buildings Sold in the Main Street District
 

 Building/Business Name Address Current Use Future Use Amount of Sale

 
 

Business Changes in the Main Street District
 

 Business Name Address Business Status Business Type # of FT Jobs # of PT Jobs

 
 

New/Improved Housing in the Main Street District
 

 Address Housing Type # of Units Monthly Rent or Purchase Price Purchase/Rent?

 
 

Main Street Events & Activities
 

 

Main Street Events & Activities 1
Event/Activity Name* First Ever Beer & Bacon Event 
Description Retailers and restaurants participating in this event showcased their own take on beer 

and/or bacon. While restaurants had specials on specific dishes or drinks, retailers sold 
beer/bacon themed items, partnered with brewery to sample beer, or gave bacon 
samples.  

Date 10/16 
Event/Activity Type Special Event 
Achievement 

 
 

Volunteer Hours Invested in Main Street
 

 
Volunteer Hours Total Volunteer Hours
Yes 208.5 

 
 

Commentary
 
 Design

Commentary/Updates 
Design Agenda 
Friday, October 15, 2021 
Zoom Meeting @ Noon

1. Deck the Falls 11/16 & 11/17  

2. Facade Grant Reviews 

3. NRG Pilates Signage 

Economic
Vitality/Business
Improvement
Commentary/Updates 

The Economic Development committee did not meet this month. However, they worked 
on their individual tasks to complete by next month's meeting. 

Promotion Community Main Street 102

Item 19.



Commentary/Updates RETAIL PROMOTIONS MEETING AGENDA 
October 12, 2021
CMS Office 

1. Recap Surprise! Night Out 
2. Recap Beer & Bacon 
3. UNI Homecoming Parade Feedback  
4. Trick or Treat Downtown 
5. Holiday Shop Hop- Downtown Ingredients 
6. Small Business Saturday 
7. Window Wonderland 

Organization
Commentary/Updates 

Community Main Street 
ORG & DEVELOPMENT MEETING AGENDA 
October 11, 2021 
Zoom Meeting @ Noon

1. Partner Thank You 

Program
Commentary/Updates 

Suggestions for state
staff: 

List suggestions & questions on services, training topics, (for MSI communities and/or local needs)
 new resources, speakers you would recommend, etc.

 

103

Item 19.



 

 

Minutes, Community Main Street, Inc. 
Board of Directors Meeting 

Tuesday, October 12th, 2021 @ 12:00 p.m. 
CMS Office/ Zoom Meeting 

 
In Attendance: Lexie Heath- President; Jenny Leeper- President Elect; Mark Showalter- Secretary; Brent Johnson-
Treasurer; Crystal Ford- Past President; Ann Eastman; Audrey Kittrell; Helen Pearce; Liaisons: Craig Berte; Carrie 
Eilderts; Jane Messingham; Kelly Stern; Kathryn Sogard Staff: Kim Bear, Maribel Barry 

 
 
1. Welcome 

 
2. Approval of Minutes – Leeper moved for approval, Johnson seconded, all approved 
 
3. Financial Report – Event income and correlating expenses. Pearce moved for approval, 

Leeper seconded, all approved.  
 

4. City Updates – Construction on 4th Street will complete soon and the sidewalks will be done 
by 11/15.  The second reading of the Zoning Code will be on October 18th.  There will be a 
separate public parking meeting held at a different time.  

 
5. President’s Report – Heath  

a. SSMID – Thank you to those who helped with getting signatures for SSMID.  We 
have submitted the petitions to the city and it will go through City Council & P&Z, etc. 
Maribel will send out an e-mail with a signup sheet for board presence at each of the 
meetings.  

b. CIP – We are looking for input for our recommendations.  CMS usually sends out a 
survey for topics and is voted on. 

i. Ideas: Resumption of Economic Development and Façade funding, a parking 
ramp (This is our opportunity to bring it to the forefront and see if it is 
feasible.  This will also help clarify our role.), try to foster relationships with 
brokers & sites for economic development.   

 
6. Staff Report – Our Form 990 is available in the office for review.  We will be having Partner 

Thank You next month but instead of baked goods, we will be purchasing prepackaged items 
due to COVID.  Next year is CMS’ 35th anniversary and we would like to celebrate around 
June.  We welcome any ideas on how we can celebrate!  

 
7. Liaison Reports  

 
CF Public Safety – The UNI Homecoming Parade was successful, but their expectation was 
that the parade would continuously keep moving especially if the street was closed.  There 
were times when there would be 2 block gaps in between floats.  There is also another event 
wanting to close State St. and surrounding streets but will give them alternatives.  
 
College Hill Partnership – Nothing to report.  
 
CF Public Library – Storytime was held at the Plaza in September. They will be having 
author events at the Community center.  The library has a program partner with NASA and is 
holding a zoom on 10/20 with a solar system ambassador.  
 
Main Street Waterloo – Their 25th anniversary is postponed to next year in March.  They 
have partnered with the mayor for a healthy walk.  MSW’s economic development committee 
is doing downtown waterloo tours for vacant spaces.  The Food truck Fest was a success in 
September, and they got a huge crowd! Halloween will be held 11/30 at the farmer’s market.  
 

104

Item 19.



 

 

CF Historical Society – This is the last weekend that the schoolhouse will be open.  Next 
year will be the Icehouse’s 100 year birthday!  
 

8. Good of the order was given 
 

9. Adjourn – Leeper moved for approval, Johnson seconded, all approved.  

 
Cedar Falls Community Main Street, Inc. is a volunteer-driven, non-profit organization established to foster economic 

vitality, and to preserve and promote the historic image and character of the downtown, while improving the quality of 

life in Cedar Falls.  

105

Item 19.



Community Main Street 
Director’s Staff Report for September 2021: 
Committees:  

• Promotion/Retail/Nightlife ARTapalooza, Downtown Show & Shine, Surprise! Night Out, Beer & Bacon 
• Design – Did not meet in September  
• Economic Development – SSMID and business survey 
• Organization & Development – Partner Thank You 
• Board – Parking & SSMID & Downtown Vision Plan  
 

Staff Activities: 
• Event planning, facilitation, support and oversight of the following events 

o Holiday Hoopla (Kickoff, Santa’s workshop, Breakfast at the North Pole, Baby It’s Cold Outside, Movie 
Magic) 

o Trick or Treat 
o Beer & Bacon 

• Submitted SSMID packet to city staff 
• Met with Stephanie Sheetz  
• Met with Ron Gaines 
• Several conversations about the Downtown Vision Code 
• Holiday Hoopla committee meeting, Kick-off meeting, décor meeting, sponsorship meeting, Breakfast at the North 

Pole Meeting 
• Pink Ribbon Run packet pick-up was coordinated through our office as well as the race 
• Submitted Main Street Iowa monthly report 
• Parking Meeting with City/CHP 
• CAPS Hoopla crew (x2) 
• Met with Haven the new salon downtown 
• Participated in the CVLI panel for the new class 
• Main Street Iowa Director call 
• Main Street Iowa Wednesday at 1:00 about 4th Quarter 
• Main Street Iowa Workshop in Fort Dodge  
• Met with Mark Simpson for radio options for Hoopla 
• Monthly meeting with the Mayor and Kathryn from CHP 
• CFCF promotion committee meeting 
• Record attendance for Trick or Treat Downtown  
• Light coordination meeting with Wapsie Pines for lights on Main Street 
• Santa’s house was finished by the Waterloo Career Center 
• Santa’s house was transported to the office and painted by volunteers 
• Planning meeting with downtown businesses for a Beer and Bacon event 
• Attended weekly streetscape updates for phase 2 of the Streetscape project 
• Friends Campaign Thank you’s written as they are received  
• Planned and facilitated all committee meetings and sub-committee meetings 
• Sent out the monthly newsletter 

 
Kim’s hours worked: 139.25 
Kim used vacation: 40 hours 
Maribel’s hours worked: 130 
Volunteer hours: TBD 
 
Community Event Representation: Cedar Falls Community Foundation Public Relations meeting; attended City Council 
meetings and Committee of the Whole 
  
Staff Priorities for the next month: Program Agreement, SSMID Mailing, all things Hoopla 

106

Item 19.



CEDAR FALLS COMMUNITY MAIN STREET 
“ONE-SHEET” 
 July 31, 2021 

2017/2018 Fiscal Year 

BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS 

ECONOMIC 
DEVELOPMENT 

COMMITTEE 

DESIGN COMMITTEE ORGANIZATION & 
DEVELOPMENT 

COMMITTEE 

PROMOTIONS 
COMMITTEE 

RETAIL/NIGHTLIFE 
PROMOTIONS 

Focus: 
• MSI annual checklist 
• April bi-annual report 
• City funding request 
• Staff review 
• Attend city council 

meetings 
• Deliberate business 

visitation program 
 
Done:  
• Budget 
• October bi-annual 

report 
 

 
 

Focus: 
• MSI annual checklist 
• New business visits 

(10x) 
• Celebrate 

anniversaries (5, 10, 
15) 

• Challenge Grant 
FY22  

• Open 4 Business 
2022 

• Promotional 
materials in vacant 
spaces 

• Schedule bi-annual 
landlord/property 
owner meetings 

• Public restroom 
• Continue 

conversations 
between 
stakeholders and the 
board regarding 
parking 

 
Done:  
 
 

Focus: 
• MSI annual checklist 
• Façade grant 

reviews 
• Clean up (Fall & 

Spring) 
• Holiday decorating 
• Seasonal 

beautification 
(flowers, fall, holiday) 

• Host an education 
event with historic 
preservation tied into 
the new zoning 
ordinance 

• Challenge Grant 
FY22 

• Wayfinding within 
District 

• Parking lot 
cleanliness & 
maintenance 
program 

 
Done: 
 

Focus: 
• MSI annual checklist 
• Annual fundraiser 
• Partner thank you 
• Main Street Iowa 

award nominations 
• Friends campaign 

(100% board participation) 
• Annual meeting 
• Flower fundraiser 
• Volunteer 

recognition party 
• Volunteer 

recruitment piece 
• Program awareness 

through community 
outreach 

 
Done:  

Focus: 
• MSI annual checklist 
• Newsletter (x10) 
• Calendar of Event 

mailing (x2) 
• Holiday Hoopla 

o Kick off    
o Small Bus. Sat. 
o Jingle & Mingle 
o Breakfast with Santa 
o Hoopla Cheer 
o Baby It’s Cold Outside 
o Movie Magic 
o Coloring Contest 
o Window Contest 
o Trolley Rides 
o Letters to Santa  
o Sturgis Falls Parade 

• Show & Shine (May) 
• Hops 
• New brochure 
• Visitor 

Guide/Tourism coop 
ads 

• Kiosk maps/fliers 
• Social Media 

engagement 
 
Done: 
• Movies Under the Moon 

(x4) 2 were cancelled 
• ARTapalooza 
• Show & Shine (Sept) 
• Newsletter (x2) 
• Trick or Treat 

 
 

Focus: 
• Light the Town Pink 
• Downtown 

Ingredients 
• Small Business 

Saturday 
• Blowout Sales 
• Downtown Delights 
• Get Lucky on Main 
• Spring Shop Hop 
• Spring Girls’ Night 

Out 
• Sidewalk Sales 

(Sturgis) 
 
Done:  
• Sidewalk Sale 
• Downtown Panther Prowl 
• Fall Girls’ Night Out 
• Beer & Bacon 
 
 

 

107

Item 19.



Status Report

 1987-MS-001-Cedar Falls
 
 Downtown Resource Center

 

Award Year: 1987

Contract Number: 1987-MS-001

Status Report
Number: 96

Submitted By: Kim Bear

Submitted Date: 12/18/2021

Status Report
Type: Monthly

Title November 2021 

Report Period 11/01/2021 11/30/2021 
From Date To Date 

Status: Approved

 

 Primary Contact and Organization
 

 

Primary Contact

AnA User Id CAROL.LILLY@IOWAID 

First Name* Community Main Street Inc 
First Name Middle Name Last Name 

Title: Executive Director 

Email:* director@communitymainstreet.org 

Address:* 310 E 4th St 

   

   

City* Cedar Falls Iowa 50613 
City State/Province Postal Code/Zip 

Phone:* 319-429-0468  
Phone Ext. 

Program
Area of
Interest* 

Downtown Resource Center

Fax:  

Organization Information

Organization
Name:* Community Main Street, Inc. 

Organization
Type:* Non-Profit Organization 

DUNS:  

Unique
Entity
Identifier
(UEI) 

 

Organization
Website: communitymainstreet.org 

Address: Community Main Street 

  310 E 4th St 

   

 Cedar Falls Iowa 50613 
City State/Province Postal Code/Zip 

Phone: 319-277-0213  
 Ext. 

Fax:  

 
 

Investments in the Main Street District
 
 Investments in the Main Street District 1

Project Type* Rehab Existing Building 
Building/Business Name Blue Room Lounge 108

Item 19.

mailto:director@communitymainstreet.org


Address 201 Main Street 
Private Amount Invested $400,000.00 
Source of Funds Private  
Public Amount Invested $0.00 
Public Investment Source  
Grant Amount Invested $0.00 
Source of Grant Funds
Invested  

Total Amount Invested $400,000.00 
Comments Exterior facade, reopening windows & interior 

 

Investments in the Main Street District 2
Project Type* Rehab Existing Building 
Building/Business Name David's Taphouse & Dumplings 
Address 200 W. 1st St. Ste. 101 
Private Amount Invested $110,000.00 
Source of Funds Private  
Public Amount Invested $0.00 
Public Investment Source  
Grant Amount Invested $0.00 
Source of Grant Funds
Invested  

Total Amount Invested $110,000.00 
Comments Replace & expand 2 level deck 

 

Investments in the Main Street District 3
Project Type* Rehab Existing Building 
Building/Business Name The Skin Spa 
Address 200 W. 1st St. Ste. 103 
Private Amount Invested $50,000.00 
Source of Funds Private  
Public Amount Invested $0.00 
Public Investment Source  
Grant Amount Invested $0.00 
Source of Grant Funds
Invested  

Total Amount Invested $50,000.00 
Comments Build out in existing building 

 

Investments in the Main Street District 4
Project Type* Rehab Existing Building 
Building/Business Name  
Address 219 Main Street 
Private Amount Invested $7,000.00 
Source of Funds Private  
Public Amount Invested $0.00 
Public Investment Source  
Grant Amount Invested $0.00 
Source of Grant Funds
Invested  

Total Amount Invested $7,000.00 
Comments Cap windows with aluminum 

 Investments in the Main Street District 5
Project Type* Rehab Existing Building 
Building/Business Name Natural Healing Center 
Address 415 Main Street 
Private Amount Invested $150,000.00 
Source of Funds Private  
Public Amount Invested $0.00 109

Item 19.



Public Investment Source  
Grant Amount Invested $0.00 
Source of Grant Funds
Invested  

Total Amount Invested $150,000.00 
Comments Installation of new walls for chiro office 

 

Investments in the Main Street District 6
Project Type* Rehab Existing Building 
Building/Business Name First Bank 
Address 602 Main St. 
Private Amount Invested $781,624.00 
Source of Funds  
Public Amount Invested $0.00 
Public Investment Source  
Grant Amount Invested $0.00 
Source of Grant Funds
Invested  

Total Amount Invested $781,624.00 
Comments Demo, framing, and drywall for remodel 

 
 

Buildings Sold in the Main Street District
 

 Building/Business Name Address Current Use Future Use Amount of Sale

 
 

Business Changes in the Main Street District
 

 

Business Name Address Business
Status

Business Type # of FT
Jobs

# of PT
Jobs

George's Local 108 E. 4th St. New Food
Establishment 15 15 

David's Taphouse &
Dumplings  

200 W. First St.
#107 New Food

Establishment 5 20 

 
 

New/Improved Housing in the Main Street District
 

 Address Housing Type # of Units Monthly Rent or Purchase Price Purchase/Rent?

 
 

Main Street Events & Activities
 

 

Main Street Events & Activities 1
Event/Activity Name* Holiday Hoopla Kick-Off 
Description Each year, the Community Main Street Hoo Herd throws the biggest event of the season- 

Holiday Hoopla Kick-Off.  The event brings thousands of visitors to our downtown district. 
This year's event was at a new location- the River Place Plaza where there was a stage 
show with live music, dancers, singers, live characters, and most importantly Santa's BIG 
arrival. 

Date 11/26 
Event/Activity Type Special Event 
Achievement 

 110

Item 19.



 

Volunteer Hours Invested in Main Street
 

 
Volunteer Hours Total Volunteer Hours
Yes 1105.0 

 
 

Commentary
 

 

Design
Commentary/Updates 

Community Main Street  
Design Agenda 
November 16 & 17 (Deck the Falls) 

Deck the Falls  
-Help decorate downtown for the holidays!  

Economic
Vitality/Business
Improvement
Commentary/Updates 

Community Main Street 
Economic Development Meeting Agenda 
November 3, 2021 
Zoom 

1. Survey Update (Danny) 
2. New Businesses and visits  
3. Deck the Falls and Holiday Hoopla  

Promotion
Commentary/Updates 

Community Main Street 
RETAIL PROMOTIONS MEETING AGENDA 
November 9, 2021 
CMS Office 

1. Beer & Bacon 
2. Downtown Ingredients  
3. Holiday Hoopla posters & mini fliers 
4. Jingle & Mingle / Baby It's Cold Outside  
5. Small Business Saturday Ideas 

Organization
Commentary/Updates 

Community Main Street 
ORG & DEVELOPMENT MEETING AGENDA 
November 23, 2021 
CMS Office  

1. Meet at CMS and deliver trays for Partner Thank You 

Program
Commentary/Updates 

Suggestions for state
staff: 

List suggestions & questions on services, training topics, (for MSI communities and/or local needs)
 new resources, speakers you would recommend, etc.

 

111

Item 19.



 

 

Minutes, Community Main Street, Inc. 
Board of Directors Meeting 

Tuesday, November 9, 2021 @ 12:00 p.m. 
CMS Office/ Zoom Meeting 

 
In Attendance: Lexie Heath- President; Jenny Leeper- President Elect; Brent Johnson-Treasurer; Natalie Brown; Ann 
Eastman; Wynette Froehner; Audrey Kittrell; Stephanie Sheetz Liaisons: Craig Berte; Carrie Eilderts; Jennifer Pickar; 
Jane Messingham; Kelly Stern; Kathryn Sogard Staff: Kim Bear, Maribel Barry Guest: Chase Schrage 

 
 
1. Welcome, Call to Order – Heath 

 
2. Approval of Minutes – Showalter 

a. Leeper moved for approval, Eastman seconded, all approved 
 
3. Financial Report – Johnson 

a. Income from Holiday Hoopla sponsorships and SSMID – Leeper moved for approval, 
Eastman seconded, all approved 

 
4. City Updates – Sheetz & Schrage 

a. Schrage made a presentation about a possible compact, single lane, roundabout 
located at 6th and Main St. The cost of a new traffic signal would be $362,000 and a 
compact roundabout would cost $409,000.  Part of the cost of the roundabout 
includes loss of parking spots from the library, which would be around 10-13 stalls.  
The roundabout would allow for continuous traffic flow.  Annual user cost savings for 
those who use that intersection would be $146,375. Although it will be smaller 
compared to the roundabouts on University Ave., the center of it will still have a 
raised aspect to it and there will be signage before the roundabout to indicate it is 
there.  The speed limit for the three lanes going south bound on Main is TBD.  
Construction would be expected to take place winter next year to Spring 2023 
(estimated 3-year construction) 

b. Sheetz gave a Streetscape update indicating that majority of the work is now 
complete, and 4th Street is open on the East and West side.  Next year’s work will 
start on E. 3rd St. from Main to State St and following that will be W. 5th St. near 
Brass Tap.  They are expected to finish by the summer.  
 

5. President’s Report – Heath  
a. Accreditation checklist- Staff will work on the checklist and will send it out to all in 

time for our December meeting. Bring any questions you may have! Once we get 
approval, they will submit the checklist to Main Street Iowa.  

b. The CMS Program Agreement with the City of Cedar Falls will be on the city council 
agenda.  This is a standard template for the state, and we need this to get accredited 
as a Main Street community.  
 

6. Staff Report – Bear  
a. SSMID will be on the City Council agenda on 11/15 and will go through three 

readings.  As we have discussed in prior meetings, we are asking for board presence 
at these meetings to represent CMS.   

 
7. Committee Reports 

a. Org & Development – Partner Thank You will take place on 11/23. We are delivering 
prepackaged treats like last year.  

b. Economic Development – The committee is coming up with a “check-in” survey for 
the businesses to get a gauge on how they are doing. Will likely send this out after 
the holidays when things slow down for them.  

c. Design – Deck the Falls 
d. Promo – Sending out our winter post card  

112

Item 19.



Community Main Street 
Director’s Staff Report for November 2021: 

Committees:  

• Promotion/Retail/Nightlife Holiday Hoopla, Small Business Saturday, Downtown Ingredients, Deck the Falls 

• Design – Did not meet in November, helped Deck the Falls  

• Economic Development – SSMID and business survey 

• Organization & Development – Partner Thank You 

• Board – Parking, SSMID and program agreement 
 

Staff Activities: 

• Event planning, facilitation, support and oversight of the following events 
o Holiday Hoopla (Kickoff, Santa’s workshop, Breakfast at the North Pole, Baby It’s Cold Outside, Movie 

Magic) 
o Small Business Saturday 
o Partner Thank You 

 Distributed 25 baskets to Partners throughout the community who help us throughout the year  
o Downtown Ingredients 
o Deck the Falls 

 Coordinated all the volunteers, purchase of garland, coordinated lights and set up of the plaza 

• Met with Stephanie Sheetz  

• Met with Ron Gaines 

• Met with the Mayor and Kathryn from CHP 

• Holiday Hoopla committee meeting, Kick-off meeting, décor meeting, sponsorship meeting, Breakfast at the North 
Pole Meeting 

• Submitted Main Street Iowa monthly report 

• Certified mailing for SSMID notice of public meeting  

• Worked with Polk’s Key service to replace some locks on the kiosk that were damaged 

• Parking Meeting with City/CHP 

• Submitted CIP list submitted to City and Council  

• CAPS Hoopla crew (x2) 

• Main Street Iowa Director call 

• Coordinated the bi-annual postcard and it was mailed out to 15,000 residents of Cedar Falls, Waverly, Dike  

• Main Street Iowa Wednesday at 1:00 

• Attended CAPS demo day 

• Scheduled all social media and PR for Hoopla Kickoff 

• Worked with businesses to obtain small business Saturday videos for a social media campaign  

• KWWL News at Noon Hoopla Interview with committee chair  

• CFCF promotion committee meeting 

• Participated in a Rooted Carrot Co-op Market brainstorming session for donors 

• Santa’s house was moved to the River Place Plaza by volunteers 

• Met with Jennifer Pickar from Tourism to discuss hiring a photographer for updated photos  

• The Falls were Decked by many volunteers as well as the CAPS program  

• Attended the last streetscape meeting for phase 2 of the Streetscape project  

• Friends Campaign Thank you’s written as they are received  

• Planned and facilitated all committee meetings and sub-committee meetings 

• Sent out the monthly newsletter 
 
Kim’s hours worked: 233 hours 
Maribel’s hours worked: 140 
Volunteer hours: TBD 
 
Community Event Representation: Cedar Falls Community Foundation Public Relations meeting; attended City Council 
meetings and Committee of the Whole 
  
Staff Priorities for the next month: Accreditation, all things Hoopla 

113

Item 19.



CEDAR FALLS COMMUNITY MAIN STREET 
“ONE-SHEET” 
 July 31, 2021 

2017/2018 Fiscal Year 

BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS 

ECONOMIC 
DEVELOPMENT 

COMMITTEE 

DESIGN COMMITTEE ORGANIZATION & 
DEVELOPMENT 

COMMITTEE 

PROMOTIONS 
COMMITTEE 

RETAIL/NIGHTLIFE 
PROMOTIONS 

Focus: 
• MSI annual checklist 
• April bi-annual report 
• City funding request 
• Staff review 
• Attend city council 

meetings 
• Deliberate business 

visitation program 
 
Done:  
• Budget 
• October bi-annual 

report 
 

 
 

Focus: 
• MSI annual checklist 
• New business visits 

(10x) 
• Celebrate 

anniversaries (5, 10, 
15) 

• Challenge Grant 
FY22  

• Open 4 Business 
2022 

• Promotional 
materials in vacant 
spaces 

• Schedule bi-annual 
landlord/property 
owner meetings 

• Public restroom 
• Continue 

conversations 
between 
stakeholders and the 
board regarding 
parking 

 
Done:  
 
 

Focus: 
• MSI annual checklist 
• Façade grant 

reviews 
• Clean up (Fall & 

Spring) 
• Seasonal 

beautification 
(flowers, fall, holiday) 

• Host an education 
event with historic 
preservation tied into 
the new zoning 
ordinance 

• Challenge Grant 
FY22 

• Wayfinding within 
District 

• Parking lot 
cleanliness & 
maintenance 
program 

 
Done: 
• Holiday decorating 
 

Focus: 
• MSI annual checklist 
• Annual fundraiser 
• Main Street Iowa 

award nominations 
• Friends campaign 

(100% board participation) 
• Annual meeting 
• Flower fundraiser 
• Volunteer 

recognition party 
• Volunteer 

recruitment piece 
• Program awareness 

through community 
outreach 

 
Done:  
• Partner thank you 
 

Focus: 
• MSI annual checklist 
• Newsletter (x9) 
• Calendar of Event 

mailing (x1) 
• Holiday Hoopla 

o Jingle & Mingle 
o Breakfast with Santa 
o Hoopla Cheer 
o Baby It’s Cold Outside 
o Movie Magic 
o Coloring Contest 
o Window Contest 
o Trolley Rides 
o Letters to Santa  
o Sturgis Falls Parade 

• Show & Shine (May) 
• Hops 
• New brochure 
• Visitor 

Guide/Tourism coop 
ads 

• Kiosk maps/fliers 
• Social Media 

engagement 
 
Done: 
• Movies Under the Moon 

(x4) 2 were cancelled 
• ARTapalooza 
• Show & Shine (Sept) 
• Newsletter (x3) 
• Trick or Treat 
• Calendar of Event 

mailing (x1) 
• Holiday Hoopla 

o Kick off    
o Small Business 

Saturday  
 

Focus: 
• Light the Town Pink 
• Saturday Blowout 

Sales 
• Downtown Delights 
• Get Lucky on Main 
• Spring Shop Hop 
• Spring Girls’ Night 

Out 
• Sidewalk Sales 

(Sturgis) 
 
Done:  
• Sidewalk Sale 
• Downtown Panther Prowl 
• Fall Girls’ Night Out 
• Beer & Bacon 
• Downtown Ingredients  
 
 

 

114

Item 19.



Status Report

 1987-MS-001-Cedar Falls
 
 Downtown Resource Center

 

Award Year: 1987

Contract Number: 1987-MS-001

Status Report
Number: 101

Submitted By: Kim Bear

Submitted Date: 01/20/2022

Status Report
Type: Monthly

Title December 2021 

Report Period 12/01/2021 12/31/2021 
From Date To Date 

Status: Approved

 

 Primary Contact and Organization
 

 

Primary Contact

AnA User Id CAROL.LILLY@IOWAID 

First Name* Community Main Street Inc 
First Name Middle Name Last Name 

Title: Executive Director 

Email:* director@communitymainstreet.org 

Address:* 310 E 4th St 

   

   

City* Cedar Falls Iowa 50613 
City State/Province Postal Code/Zip 

Phone:* 319-429-0468  
Phone Ext. 

Program
Area of
Interest* 

Downtown Resource Center

Fax:  

Organization Information

Organization
Name:* Community Main Street, Inc. 

Organization
Type:* Non-Profit Organization 

DUNS:  

Unique
Entity
Identifier
(UEI) 

 

Organization
Website: communitymainstreet.org 

Address: Community Main Street 

  310 E 4th St 

   

 Cedar Falls Iowa 50613 
City State/Province Postal Code/Zip 

Phone: 319-277-0213  
 Ext. 

Fax:  

 
 

Investments in the Main Street District
 
 Investments in the Main Street District 1

Project Type* Rehab Existing Building 
Building/Business Name David's Taphouse & Dumplings 115

Item 19.

mailto:director@communitymainstreet.org


Address 200 W. 1st St. Ste. 101 
Private Amount Invested $110,000.00 
Source of Funds Private  
Public Amount Invested $0.00 
Public Investment Source  
Grant Amount Invested $0.00 
Source of Grant Funds
Invested  

Total Amount Invested $110,000.00 
Comments Replace & expand 2 level deck 

 

Investments in the Main Street District 2
Project Type* Rehab Existing Building 
Building/Business Name  
Address 219 Main Street 
Private Amount Invested $7,000.00 
Source of Funds Private  
Public Amount Invested $0.00 
Public Investment Source  
Grant Amount Invested $0.00 
Source of Grant Funds
Invested  

Total Amount Invested $7,000.00 
Comments Cap windows with aluminum 

 
 

Buildings Sold in the Main Street District
 

 

Building/Business Name Address Current Use Future Use Amount of Sale
 302 Main St. Service Service $5,199,797.00 
Spinutech 212 W. 2nd St. Service Service $1,200,000.00 
 221 & 223 Main St. Service Service $1,500,000.00 

 
 

Business Changes in the Main Street District
 

 
Business Name Address Business Status Business Type # of FT Jobs # of PT Jobs
Andy's Bike Shop 100 E. 2nd Street Suite 105 Closed Retail 1  

 
 

New/Improved Housing in the Main Street District
 

 Address Housing Type # of Units Monthly Rent or Purchase Price Purchase/Rent?

 
 

Main Street Events & Activities
 
 Main Street Events & Activities 1

Event/Activity Name* Holiday Hoopla ongoing events throughout December 
Description Ongoing events included: 

People's Choice window contest voting 
Santa's workshop/Visit Santa 
Holly Trolley rides 
Coloring contest 
Santa 50613 (volunteers respond to letters dropped in Santa's mailbox with a 116

Item 19.



handwritten, personal reply) 
Nightly light show at Santa's workshop 
Caroler and costume character appearances

Date 12/1/21-12/22/21 
Event/Activity Type Special Event 
Achievement 

 

Main Street Events & Activities 2
Event/Activity Name* Jingle & Mingle 
Description Jingle & Mingle provides our downtown merchants the ability to showcase their stores for 

the holiday season.  There are also other activities that take place such as visiting Santa 
at his workshop, pictures with different characters, and trolley rides. 

Date 12/2/21 
Event/Activity Type Retail 
Achievement 

 

Main Street Events & Activities 3
Event/Activity Name* Movie Magic  
Description A free family movie, The Grinch (2018), was shown at the Oster Regent Theatre. The 

winners of the coloring contest were announced at this event as well.
Date 12/18/21 
Event/Activity Type Special Event 
Achievement 

 

Main Street Events & Activities 4
Event/Activity Name* Baby, It's Cold Outside  
Description Ice sculptors create delicate works of art with their chainsaws. This is an amazing sight to 

see as large chunks of ice become recognizable right before your eyes. In addition to the 
ice sculptors, the public was invited to enjoy free s'mores for the whole family.

Date 12/16/21 
Event/Activity Type Special Event 
Achievement 

 

Main Street Events & Activities 5
Event/Activity Name* Hoopla Cheer  
Description The bars and restaurants created specialty holiday beverages. Guests voted for their 

favorite! 
Date 12/9/21 
Event/Activity Type Special Event 
Achievement 

 

Main Street Events & Activities 6
Event/Activity Name* Ugly Sweater Contest  
Description The public was invited to show off their ugliest holiday attire and visit the Cedar Falls 

Downtown District.  This event took place at a bar downtown, Berk's. 
Date 12/9/21 
Event/Activity Type Special Event 
Achievement 

 

Main Street Events & Activities 7
Event/Activity Name* Breakfast at the North pole  
Description The public was invited to attend a pancake breakfast at the Cedar Falls Community 

Center. Santa and many costumed characters were there to interact with the children. 
Date 12/4/21 
Event/Activity Type Special Event 
Achievement 

 
 

Volunteer Hours Invested in Main Street
 

 
Volunteer Hours Total Volunteer Hours
Yes 610.5 117

Item 19.



 
 

Commentary
 

 

Design
Commentary/Updates Design did not meet this month 

Economic
Vitality/Business
Improvement
Commentary/Updates 

New business visits 

Promotion
Commentary/Updates Holiday Hoopla activities throughout the month and promotion of shopping small 

Organization
Commentary/Updates Organization & Development did not meet this month. 

Program
Commentary/Updates 

Suggestions for state
staff: 

List suggestions & questions on services, training topics, (for MSI communities and/or local needs)
 new resources, speakers you would recommend, etc.

 

118

Item 19.



 

 Organization Information

Organization Name:  Community Main Street, Inc. 

Organization Type:  Non-Profit Organization 

DUNS:   

Unique Entity Identifier (UEI)   

Organization Website:  communitymainstreet.org 

Address:  Community Main Street 

   310 E 4th St 

    

 
Cedar Falls  Iowa  50613 

City  State/Province  Postal Code/Zip 

Phone:
319-277-0213   

  Ext. 

Fax:   

 

 Investments in the Main Street District

Investments in the Main Street District 1

Project Type  Rehab Existing Building 

Building/Business Name  Structure Real Estate 

Address  201 Washington Street Cedar Falls, IA 50613 

Private Amount Invested  $4,700.00 

Source of Funds  Private  

Include city, county, local utility, etc.

Public Amount Invested  $0.00 

Public Investment Source   

Include state, federal, and other grant funds invested.

Grant Amount Invested  $0.00 

Source of Grant Funds Invested   

Total Amount Invested  $4,700.00 

Comments  demo interior walls & install 3 new, finish floors 

Investments in the Main Street District 2

Project Type  Rehab Existing Building 

Building/Business Name  Omega Red Tattoo 

119

Item 19.



Address  110 Main Street Cedar Falls, IA 50613 

Private Amount Invested  $3,000.00 

Source of Funds  Private  

Include city, county, local utility, etc.

Public Amount Invested  $0.00 

Public Investment Source   

Include state, federal, and other grant funds invested.

Grant Amount Invested  $0.00 

Source of Grant Funds Invested   

Total Amount Invested  $3,000.00 

Comments  back stair railing repair  

Investments in the Main Street District 3

Project Type  Rehab Existing Building 

Building/Business Name  RayGun 

Address  205 Main Street Cedar Falls, IA 50613 

Private Amount Invested  $36,979.00 

Source of Funds  Private  

Include city, county, local utility, etc.

Public Amount Invested  $0.00 

Public Investment Source   

Include state, federal, and other grant funds invested.

Grant Amount Invested  $0.00 

Source of Grant Funds Invested   

Total Amount Invested  $36,979.00 

Comments  new walls, lighting, shared bathroom 

Investments in the Main Street District 4

Project Type  Rehab Existing Building 

Building/Business Name  Horny Toad 

Address  204 Main Street Cedar Falls, IA 50613 

Private Amount Invested  $3,500.00 

Source of Funds  Private  

Include city, county, local utility, etc.

Public Amount Invested  $0.00 

Public Investment Source   

Include state, federal, and other grant funds invested.

120

Item 19.



Grant Amount Invested  $0.00 

Source of Grant Funds Invested   

Total Amount Invested  $3,500.00 

Comments  replace existing alley stairs 

Investments in the Main Street District 5

Project Type  Rehab Existing Building 

Building/Business Name  Stroh's Holdings 

Address  401 Main Street Ste 218 Cedar Falls, IA 50613 

Private Amount Invested  $22,000.00 

Source of Funds  Private  

Include city, county, local utility, etc.

Public Amount Invested  $0.00 

Public Investment Source   

Include state, federal, and other grant funds invested.

Grant Amount Invested  $0.00 

Source of Grant Funds Invested   

Total Amount Invested  $22,000.00 

Comments  office remodels, new bathroom, & mechanical room  

 

 Buildings Sold in the Main Street District

Building/Business

Name 
Address  Current Use  Future Use  Amount of Sale 

Strickler Properties

LC 

209 Main Street

Cedar Falls Iowa

50613 

Service 
Food

Establishment 
$660,000.00 

305 Main Street

LLC 

305 Main Street

Cedar Falls, Iowa

50613 

Service  Service  $609,000.00 

         

 

 Business Changes in the Main Street District

Business

Name 
Address 

Business

Status 
Business Type  # of FT Jobs  # of PT Jobs 

Carter House

Market & Cafe 

119 Main Street

Cedar Falls IA

50613 

New 
Food

Establishment 
1  2 

121

Item 19.



Parkade Printer 

124 W Fourth St

Unit E Cedar

Falls IA 50613 

Closed  Service  2   

Vinyl Cup

Records 

205 Main Street

Cedar Falls,

Iowa 50613 

New  Retail  1  1 

RAYGUN 

205 Main Street

Cedar Falls,

Iowa 50613 

New  Retail  1  4 

Sky Bar/

Moonshine

Cowgirls 

419 Main Street

Cedar Falls Iowa

50613 

Closed 
Food

Establishment 
0  3 

Mob Bar   419 Main Street  Closed 
Food

Establishment 
1  2 

Pretty Good Co 

226 Main Street

Cedar Falls IA

50613 

New  Retail  2  0 

Golf Lab  

201 Washington

Street Ste B

Cedar Falls Iowa

50613 

New  Service  1  2 

Kitchen

Essentials 

212 Main Street

Cedar Falls Iowa

50613 

Closed  Retail  1  1 

           

 

 New/Improved Housing in the Main Street District

Address  Housing Type  # of Units 
Monthly Rent or

Purchase Price 
Purchase/Rent? 

         

 

 Main Street Events & Activities

Main Street Events & Activities 1

Event/Activity Name  Love Local  

122

Item 19.



Description 

This event invited the public to find love in all the

local places during "Love Local" held on Saturday,

February 12th. During regular business hours, the

public was invited to the district to show their

favorite downtown business some love, giving them

a chance to win a basket full of merchandise that

was sure to make them swoon.

Each participating business location gave away a

gift basket, which included a bottle of wine, and

local love & favorite finds from shops across the

district. Each shop's basket was a little different, so

we invited/encouraged them to visit each location.

Each person who walked through the door was

asked to write a "love letter" (their name & phone

number on a heart) to enter the giveaway, and

experience the love your local district offers. No

purchase necessary to participate, however the

more purchases made, the more entries (love

letters) they could write.

The event offered customers up to 33 chances to

win, with names drawn so baskets could be picked

up on Valentine's Day.

Date  2/12/2022 

Event/Activity Type  Retail 

Achievement 

Each business shared/promoted the event. During

the event, customer filled out hearts with their

names and phone numbers. The businesses drew

the names of the winner, and the customer could

pick up the gift basket by Valentine's Day. Each

basket had a variety from other businesses & a tag

saying "this basket contains love from these local

places" listing the business names. A sign was

placed in their window showing they were a stop

saying "stop here to love on a local place".

Main Street Events & Activities 2

Event/Activity Name  St Paddy's Day Stroll 

123

Item 19.



Description 

St Paddy's Day Stroll took place on Thursday,

March 17th from 5-8PM. There were multiple

chances to get lucky during the St. Paddy's Day

Stroll prior, during & after the event.

The event kicked off with a chance for one winner

to receive (2) tickets to the Screaming Orphans

concert including a gift certificate for dinner in the

district prior to the concert. In order to be included

the person had particular things they needed to do,

or could do to increase their chance to win(Such as

click on the event in Facebook, indicate if they were

going/interested, share it on their facebook

newsfeed, comment, share the post, tag someone).

The concert was hosted by the Cedar Falls

Community Theatre held at the Oster Regent

Theatre at 7 pm on 3/17.

During The St Paddy's Day Stroll was each

participating location got 100 scratch off tickets to

give to any customer that walked thru the door for a

chance to be a winner. The scratch-off tickets were

for a chance to get $1, $2, or $5 to be used at any

participating location. All tickets also had a spot for

customers to fill in their name & phone number to

go into a drawing for a Pot-O-Gold gift basket which

was drawn on March 25th.

Date  03/17/2022 

Event/Activity Type  Retail 

Achievement 

There were 21 participating locations each having

their own fun happening during the stroll. Such as

refreshments, discounts, speciality & festive items.

Each location promoted the event throughout the

weeks prior, & on their social media. Some

participating businesses donated for items to be

added to the Pot-O-Gold Gift Basket. The

businesses were reimbursed for the scratch off

tickets redeemed at their locations, just as if we

would gift certificates.

124

Item 19.



Main Street Events & Activities 3

Event/Activity Name  Volunteers on Tap 

Description 

Volunteers on Tap is a volunteer recruitment tool

that we use in the Cedar Valley to get as many

people to one place and have them find their home

in the world of volunteering.

Over one dozen community events and non-profit

organizations were in attendance, seeking

volunteers to serve on their boards and event-

planning committees. The intention of this event is

to connect volunteers to long-term relationships

with organizations to help plan events. It?s a great

way to meet new people, to refine their skills, and

even pick up some new ones.

The event is a collaboration of the Volunteer Center

of Cedar Valley, the Cedar Falls Tourism and

Visitors Bureau, Experience Waterloo, Community

Main Street, Main Street Waterloo and Grow Cedar

Valley. It has a proven track record of connecting

dozens of young professionals to assist in

leadership positions with Cedar Valley non-profits

that plan events and/or serve the hospitality

community.

Date  3/9/2022 

Event/Activity Type  Voluneer Development 

Achievement 

We were able to make connections with over 24

new volunteers who are interested in becoming

more involved in Community Main Street.

Main Street Events & Activities 4

Event/Activity Name  Parking Ramp Input Discussion Meeting 

Description 

The board of directors invited the Downtown

Stakeholders to have a productive, constructive

conversation with the hopes that we could provide

direction for the planning of the next phase of

Downtown.

Date  3/31/2022 

125

Item 19.



Event/Activity Type  Educational 

Achievement 

We were able to have a productive conversation

with over 30 stakeholders with the hopes of having

more productive conversations in the near future as

the City hopes to have the same conversations with

City Council.

 

 Volunteer Hours Invested in Main Street

Volunteer Hours  Total Volunteer Hours 

Yes  543.0 

   

 

 Commentary

Design Commentary/Updates 

Design committee helped in the removal of Holiday

Decorations throughout the District. Design also

had lengthy discussions in regard to the new

downtown zoning code and specifically how it

affects new sign permits downtown. The Design

committee has also been helping to plan a Spring

Clean-up on Earth Day with the Promotions

Committee. Flower baskets were delivered to

Nashua , Iowa to be planted and ready to be

installed in May. Design has helped with planning

for the Historic Tax Credit Fundamentals

meeting/training that has been on our program of

work for a couple of years and we are finally doing

it in person.

Economic Vitality/Business Improvement Commentary/Updates 

Economic Vitality has worked on a business survey

which will transition into working on the Market

Strategies and Study Group. As we begin to see

many new businesses open we are able to

reinstate our business visits. Economic

Development has also continued conversation with

stakeholders in regard to a parking ramp in the

District.

126

Item 19.



Promotion Commentary/Updates 

Retail committee worked on Love Local and the

first St. Paddy's Day Stroll.

Promotions committee has worked on figuring out

how to promote the District post COVID including

ways to engage the local traveler. Also, exploring

ways to use both of our logos and include the

Downtown District on our website so that our

messaging is consistent throughout.

Organization Commentary/Updates 

Organization has been planning the Volunteer

Appreciation Party, helped with our yearly Friends

campaign, planning Annual Meeting and helping to

work on the Main Street Iowa award nominations.

As well as exploring new options for sponsorship

opportunities through a sponsorship menu instead

of asking for each individual event. In the end it will

make life easier for all. Organization has also

begun plans for the 35th Anniversary party to

happen in September.

Program Commentary/Updates 

Suggestions for state staff: 

List suggestions & questions on services, training topics, (for MSI communities and/or local needs)

new resources, speakers you would recommend, etc.

127

Item 19.



 

 

Minutes, Community Main Street, Inc. 
Board of Directors Meeting 

Tuesday, December 14, 2021 @ 12:00 p.m. 
CMS Office/ Zoom Meeting 

 
In Attendance: Jenny Leeper- President Elect; Mark Showalter- Secretary; Brent Johnson-Treasurer; Darin Beck; 
Audrey Kittrell; Helen Pearce; Stephanie Sheetz Liaisons: Cary Darrah; Carrie Eilderts; Kelly Stern; Kathryn Sogard 
Staff: Kim Bear, Maribel Barry 

 
 
1. Welcome, Call to Order – Leeper 

 
2. Approval of Minutes – Johnson approved, Pearce seconded, all approved  
 
3. Financial Report – Johnson 

a. Income consisted of sponsorship money for Hoopla and some SSMID dollars. 
Expenses were event related from ARTapalooza, Girls Night Out, Downtown 
Ingredients, and Holiday Hoopla.  Johnson approved, Pearce seconded, all 
approved. 

 
4. City Updates – Sheetz 

a. Next phase of roadwork will be on E. 3rd Street and will be closed between Main and 
State Street.  W. 5th Street will be worked on after and will be closed between Main 
and Washington.  There will not be a lot of work on W. 5th since the street is still in 
good condition. The city will hold a public hearing regarding Main & 6th Street plans 
mid-late January. The Riverplace stage area will be on the P&Z agenda since it is to 
be a permanent structure.  
 

5. President’s Report – Leeper  
a. Accreditation checklist – Staff is mostly done with the report and will submit with our 

consent. Pearce moved for approval, Johnson seconded, all approved.   
b. Board Transparency  

i. We would like to create more opportunity for the public to be aware of what 
our organization is doing.  There shouldn’t be any questions of who we are 
and what we are doing.  We can post our board meeting dates, minutes, and 
recordings on our website for visibility.  We will also inform all the property 
owners at the meeting in January of these updates.  

ii. What happens when board members do not agree on a topic? We need to 
come up with a framework of how we make decisions. Historically, we have 
had instances where the board did not agree, but members still felt 
comfortable moving forward with the outcome.  There was a suggestion for 
getting together to get to know each other (board members) and/or with 
stakeholders.  

 
6. Staff Report – Bear  

a. SSMID Update – January 3rd will be the final reading for SSMID.  We encourage 
members of the board to come to the council meeting to show support.  Please let 
Kim know if you are available to go to the meeting.  

b. We are surviving Holiday Hoopla and will be working through all the remaining 
events in the month of December. We will be focusing on hiring a new office 
coordinator. There will be a thank you reception at City Hall for Mark Miller and Frank 
Darrah!  

 
7. Committee Reports 

a. Please see Staff Report for committee updates 
 
 

128

Item 19.



 

 

 
8. Liaison Reports 

 
Cedar Falls Library: December is a bit slow, but staff is collecting winter hats, gloves, and 
scarves to donate to Waterloo.   
 
Grow Cedar Valley: We will holding a legislative session at The Isle Casino to network. We 
will be working on strategic planning with IDM. We are looking at bylaws to get us “there” and 
Danny is back and is the Director of Talent!  
 
Historical Society: February will mark the 100th birthday of the icehouse. The Ice Harvest 
Festival will also take place in February!  
 
College Hill Partnership: We are looking at how our board functions as well. 
Renovations/upgrades are being made in Seerley Park.  
 

9. Other 
a. We should explore how quorums work virtually versus in-person.  

 
10. Good of the Order was given 

 
11. Adjourn – Johnson moved for approval, Pearce seconded, all approved.  

 
Cedar Falls Community Main Street, Inc. is a volunteer-driven, non-profit organization established to foster economic 

vitality, and to preserve and promote the historic image and character of the downtown, while improving the quality of 

life in Cedar Falls.  

129

Item 19.



Community Main Street 
Director’s Staff Report for December 2021: 

Committees:  

• Promotion/Retail/Nightlife Holiday Hoopla 

• Design – Did not meet in December  

• Economic Development – SSMID and business survey 

• Organization & Development – Did not meet in December  

• Board – Parking, SSMID and program agreement 
 

Staff Activities: 

• Event planning, facilitation, support and oversight of the following events 
o Holiday Hoopla (Santa’s workshop, Trolley rides, Breakfast at the North Pole, Baby It’s Cold Outside, 

Movie Magic, Hoopla Cheer, Ugly Sweater Contest) 

• Met with Ron Gaines 

• Met with the Mayor and Kathryn from CHP 

• Submitted Main Street Iowa monthly report 

• Submitted the quarterly Currents article 

• CAPS Hoopla crew recap 

• Main Street Iowa Director call 

• Main Street Iowa Webinar on the new Main Street Iowa awards 

• Met with Patrick Smith to help coordinate a leadership group that will be coming to Cedar Falls in February 

• Mentoring with Hawkeye students on event planning 

• Interviews Office Coordinator candidates 

• Coordinated judging of the coloring contest 

• Planning for Volunteers on Tap with other community partners 

• Scheduled all social media and PR for Hoopla 

• Coordinated Santa 50613 letters with the Western Home as well as Cedar Falls High School 

• CFCF promotion committee meeting 

• Friends Campaign Thank you’s written as they are received  

• Sent out the monthly newsletter 

• Attended council meetings for the 2 readings for SSMID renewal 
 
Kim’s hours worked: 169 
Maribel’s hours worked: 105.5  
Volunteer hours: TBD 
 
Community Event Representation: Cedar Falls Community Foundation Public Relations meeting; attended City Council 
meetings and Committee of the Whole 
  
Staff Priorities for the next month: Hoopla thank you’s, Property Owner Meeting, training new office coordinator 

130

Item 19.



CEDAR FALLS COMMUNITY MAIN STREET 
“ONE-SHEET” 
 July 31, 2021 

2017/2018 Fiscal Year 

BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS 

ECONOMIC 
DEVELOPMENT 

COMMITTEE 

DESIGN COMMITTEE ORGANIZATION & 
DEVELOPMENT 

COMMITTEE 

PROMOTIONS 
COMMITTEE 

RETAIL/NIGHTLIFE 
PROMOTIONS 

Focus: 
• April bi-annual report 
• City funding request 
• Staff review 
• Attend city council 

meetings 
• Deliberate business 

visitation program 
• Main Street America 

Accreditation  
 
Done:  
• Budget 
• October bi-annual 

report 
• MSI annual checklist 
• SSMID renewal 
 

 
 

 
 

Focus: 
• New business visits 

(10x) 
• Celebrate 

anniversaries (5, 10, 
15) 

• Challenge Grant 
FY22  

• Open 4 Business 
2022 

• Promotional 
materials in vacant 
spaces 

• Schedule bi-annual 
landlord/property 
owner meetings 

• Public restroom 
• Continue 

conversations 
between 
stakeholders and the 
board regarding 
parking 

 
Done:  
 
• MSI annual checklist 
• SSMID renewal 
 

Focus: 
• Façade grant 

reviews 
• Clean up (Fall & 

Spring) 
• Seasonal 

beautification 
(flowers, fall, holiday) 

• Host an education 
event with historic 
preservation tied into 
the new zoning 
ordinance 

• Challenge Grant 
FY22 

• Wayfinding within 
District 

• Parking lot 
cleanliness & 
maintenance 
program 

 
Done: 
• Holiday decorating 
• MSI annual checklist 

 
 

Focus: 
• Annual fundraiser 
• Main Street Iowa 

award nominations 
• Friends campaign 

(100% board participation) 
• Annual meeting 
• Flower fundraiser 
• Volunteer 

recognition party 
• Volunteer 

recruitment piece 
• Program awareness 

through community 
outreach 

 
Done:  
• Partner thank you 
• MSI annual checklist 

 
 

Focus: 
• Newsletter (x9) 
• Calendar of Event 

mailing (x1) 
• Show & Shine (May) 
• Hops 
• New brochure 
• Visitor 

Guide/Tourism coop 
ads 

• Kiosk maps/fliers 
• Social Media 

engagement 
 
Done: 
• MSI annual checklist 
• Movies Under the Moon 

(x4) 2 were cancelled 
• ARTapalooza 
• Show & Shine (Sept) 
• Newsletter (x3) 
• Trick or Treat 
• Calendar of Event 

mailing (x1) 
• Holiday Hoopla 

o Jingle & Mingle 
o Breakfast with Santa 
o Hoopla Cheer 
o Baby It’s Cold Outside 
o Movie Magic 
o Coloring Contest 
o Window Contest 
o Trolley Rides 
o Letters to Santa  
o Sturgis Falls Parade 

 
 

Focus: 
• Light the Town Pink 
• Downtown Delights 
• Get Lucky on Main 
• Spring Shop Hop 
• Spring Girls’ Night 

Out 
• Sidewalk Sales 

(Sturgis) 
 
Done:  
• Sidewalk Sale 
• Downtown Panther Prowl 
• Fall Girls’ Night Out 
• Beer & Bacon 
• Downtown Ingredients  
 
 

 

131

Item 19.



Minutes, Community Main Street, Inc. 

Board of Directors Meeting 
Tuesday, January 11, 2022 @ 12:00 p.m. 

CMS Office/ Zoom Meeting 

In Attendance: Lexie Heath- President; Jenny Leeper – President Elect; Mark Showalter- Secretary; Brent Johnson- 
Treasurer; Crystal Ford – Past President; Darin Beck; Natalie Brown; Ann Eastman; Wynette Froehner; Audrey 
Kittrell; Helen Pearce; Clark Rickard; Stephanie Sheetz; Liaisons: Craig Berte; Cary Darrah; Carrie Eilderts; Kathryn 
Sogard; Staff: Kim Bear; Maribel Barry; Joanna Meyeraan Guests: City Council - Gil Schultz & Daryl Kruse 

 

 

 
1. Welcome, Call to Order – Heath 

 

2. Approval of Minutes – Pearce approved, Leeper seconded, all approved 
 

3. Financial Report – Johnson 

a. Event Expenses for Holiday Hoopla. We are still in line for the annual budget. 
Leeper approved, Pearce seconded, all approved. 

 

4. City Updates – Sheetz 

a. The City is submitting a grant for the Cedar River Project, with hopes to 
submit by early next week. They are asking CMS for a letter of support of 
the project to include in their submission. They will hear back in 1 ½ to 2 
months. If approved Bids for the project would start late 2022. 

b.  Updates on Streetscape Project: next phase will be on E. 3rd Street between 

Main and State Street.  Restoration of W. 5
th Street between Main and 

Washington. There will not be a lot of work on W. 5th 
Street since the street 

is still in good condition. It was suggested by Jenny to power wash windows 
as a thank you to business & property owners for their patience throughout 
the project. Kim informed the group that there will be a ribbon cutting 
ceremony at the project completion. 

 
5. President’s Report – Heath 

a. Accreditation Report was submitted 

b. City Council Update – a referral for a moratorium on building permits in 
Cedar Falls until May 1st was made. It will be on the agenda at the next 
City Council Meeting held on Tuesday. The Board decided that CMS will 
formally respond by writing a letter to share our mission statement, 
concerns of a moratorium, and the impact to our economic vitality. Kim 
will draft a letter today and send out for review. Beck motioned for 
approval, Leeper seconded, all approved. 

1. City Councilman Daryl Kruse read the email sent to address & clarify his 
referral for the moratorium (email attached). He stated that the term building 
permit moratorium is too broad and will need to revisit. The intent was not 
meant to impede on economic development. He believes that there needs to 
be more discussion on what/how the code could be changed (repealed, 
hybrid, parking ramp, style of zoning). 

2. Eagle View – Kittrell voiced her concern regarding the impact on them and 
their tenants.  A moratorium will be difficult for them to get new tenants. 
Their current project at 123 E. 3rd Street is being designed for 20 + residential 
units with 1 parking spot per bedroom. Which would be more than what the 
code requires. Developers are building to what the market demands. 

132

Item 19.



6. Staff Report – Bear 

a. SSMID Renewal – at the January 3rd City Council Meeting SSMID was 
renewed for another 5 years.  Thank you to all who took part in the process. 
b. Staff Updates - We have hired a new office coordinator, Joanna Meyeraan 
who started Monday January 10th. Maribel will continue to be here to train her, 
and we are thankful for her time with us and will be missed. 

 

7. Committee Reports  
a. Please see Staff Report 

 
8. Liaison Reports – Tabled due to time constraints 

 

9. Good of the Order 
 

10. Adjourn – Leeper moved for approval, Pearce seconded, all approved. 

 
Cedar Falls Community Main Street, Inc. is a volunteer-driven, non-profit organization established to foster economic 
vitality, and to preserve and promote the historic image and character of the downtown, while improving the quality of 
life in Cedar Falls. 

133

Item 19.



Community Main Street 
Director’s Staff Report for January 2022: 

Committees:  

• Promotion/Retail/Nightlife Love Local, Holiday Hoopla, Movies Under the Moon, ARTapalooza, Downtown 
Show and Shine, New itineraries campaign  

• Design – Discussed New Downtown Character District Code 

• Economic Development – business survey 

• Organization & Development – Did not meet in January 

• Board – Downtown Character District code 
 

Staff Activities: 

• Event planning, facilitation, support and oversight of the following events: Love Local, Movies Under the Moon, 
ARTapalooza 

• Holiday Hoopla recap meeting for the 2021 season with the HooHerd 

• Holiday Hoopla recap meeting with Dee from the Plaza 

• Met with councilmen Dustin Ganfield and Gil Schultz to discuss CMS and the code 

• Exec met with Ron Gaines 

• Met with the Mayor and Kathryn from CHP 

• Submitted Main Street Iowa monthly report 

• Main Street Iowa Director call 

• Main Street Iowa Webinar  

• Offered the Office Coordinator position and she started January 6 

• Planning for Volunteers on Tap with other community partners 

• CFCF promotion committee meeting 

• Met with promotions committee members to talk about a new social media campaign 

• Met with event chairs for the next retail event Love Local 

• Met with Nicole from Leader Valley to talk about opportunities for Leadership trainings with small businesses 

• Coordination meeting with Lee’s Summit and Main Street Iowa to discuss an exchange between our two 
programs 

• Parking meeting with the City of Cedar Falls, CHP and UNI 

• Participated in a webinar with Travel Iowa and CED to discuss the benefits  

• Met with Mr. Droe from the Spectrum Project about an event being held downtown 

• Coordination meeting with Adam Bolander to discuss applying for the 2023 Downtown Conference with IEDA 

• Cedar Falls Community Foundation meeting to discuss board role 

• New Volunteer meeting 

• Waterloo Bucks promotional opportunities 

• Friends Campaign Thank you’s written as they are received  

• Thank you’s for Holiday Hoopla sponsorships and volunteers 

• Submitted Tourism reimbursement form for the grant for ARTapalooza/Downtown Show and Shine 

• Submitted an article to the Waterloo/Cedar Falls Courier for their progress edition  

• Worked on the 2022 friends mailing with Amy Mohr and Melissa Barber 

• Maribel has been spending a lot of time training Joanna on all of the duties of the Office Coordinator Position and 
preparing the office for handoff.  

 
Kim’s hours worked: 188 
Maribel’s hours worked: 89.75 
Joanna’s hours worked: 79  
December Volunteer hours: 601 
 
Community Event Representation: Cedar Falls Community Foundation Public Relations meeting; attended City Council 
meetings, Work Session and Committee of the Whole meetings, attended Planning and Zoning 
  
Staff Priorities for the next month: Property Owner Meeting, training new office coordinator, event planning, Main 
Street Iowa awards 

134

Item 19.



CEDAR FALLS COMMUNITY MAIN STREET 
“ONE-SHEET” 

 January 31, 2022 

2021/2022 Fiscal Year 

BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS 

ECONOMIC 
DEVELOPMENT 

COMMITTEE 

DESIGN COMMITTEE ORGANIZATION & 
DEVELOPMENT 

COMMITTEE 

PROMOTIONS 
COMMITTEE 

RETAIL/NIGHTLIFE 
PROMOTIONS 

Focus: 
• April bi-annual report 
• City funding request 
• Staff review 
• Attend city council 

meetings 
• Deliberate business 

visitation program 
 
Done:  
• Budget 
• October bi-annual 

report 
• MSI annual checklist 
• SSMID renewal 
• Main Street America 

Accreditation  
 

 
 

 
 

 

Focus: 
• New business visits 

(10x) 
• Celebrate 

anniversaries (5, 10, 
15) 

• Challenge Grant 
FY22  

• Open 4 Business 
2022 

• Promotional 
materials in vacant 
spaces 

• Schedule bi-annual 
landlord/property 
owner meetings 

• Public restroom 
• Continue 

conversations 
between 
stakeholders and the 
board regarding 
parking 

 
Done:  
 
• MSI annual checklist 
• SSMID renewal 
 

Focus: 
• Façade grant 

reviews 
• Clean up (Fall & 

Spring) 
• Seasonal 

beautification 
(flowers, fall, holiday) 

• Host an education 
event with historic 
preservation tied into 
the new zoning 
ordinance 

• Challenge Grant 
FY22 

• Wayfinding within 
District 

• Parking lot 
cleanliness & 
maintenance 
program 

 
Done: 
• Holiday decorating 
• MSI annual checklist 

 
 

Focus: 
• Annual fundraiser 
• Main Street Iowa 

award nominations 
• Friends campaign 

(100% board participation) 
• Annual meeting 
• Flower fundraiser 
• Volunteer 

recognition party 
• Volunteer 

recruitment piece 
• Program awareness 

through community 
outreach 

 
Done:  
• Partner thank you 
• MSI annual checklist 

 
 

Focus: 
• Newsletter (x8) 
• Calendar of Event 

mailing (x1) 
• Show & Shine (May) 
• Hops?? 
• New brochure 
• Visitor 

Guide/Tourism coop 
ads 

• Kiosk maps/fliers 
• Social Media 

engagement 
 
Done: 
• MSI annual checklist 
• Movies Under the Moon 

(x4) 2 were cancelled 
• ARTapalooza 
• Show & Shine (Sept) 
• Newsletter (x3) 
• Trick or Treat 
• Calendar of Event 

mailing (x1) 
• Holiday Hoopla 

o Jingle & Mingle 
o Breakfast with Santa 
o Hoopla Cheer 
o Baby It’s Cold Outside 
o Movie Magic 
o Coloring Contest 
o Window Contest 
o Trolley Rides 
o Letters to Santa  
o Sturgis Falls Parade 

 
 

Focus: 
• Light the Town Pink 
• Love Local 
• Get Lucky on Main 
• Spring Shop Hop 
• Spring Girls’ Night 

Out 
• Sidewalk Sales 

(Sturgis) 
 
Done:  
• Sidewalk Sale 
• Downtown Panther Prowl 
• Fall Girls’ Night Out 
• Beer & Bacon 
• Downtown Ingredients  
 
 

 

135

Item 19.



Minutes, Community Main Street, Inc. 
Board of Directors Meeting  

Tuesday, February 8, 2022 @ 12:00 p.m.  
CMS Office/ Zoom Meeting  

  
In Attendance: Jenny Leeper - President Elect; Brent Johnson-Treasurer; Crystal Ford- Past President; Darin Beck; 
Ann Eastman; Wynette Froehner; Audrey Kittrell; Clark Rickard; Stephanie Sheetz; Liaisons: Craig Berte; Carrie 
Eilderts; Jessica Rucker; Kelly Stern; Kathryn Sogard; City Council: Gil Schultz; Staff: Kim Bear, Joanna Meyeraan  

  

  
1. Welcome, Call to Order – Leeper – Acting President  

*Filling in for Heath due to absence 
  

2. Approval of Minutes – motion to approve by Johnson, seconded by Clark, all approved. 
   

3. Financial Report – Johnson  
a. Income –  

Holiday Hoopla ended up being profitable for the 2021Year with some  
unexpected donations 
Friends Donations 

b. Expenses – Grant Given to Georges Local for Façade  
Motion to approve by Ford, seconded by Beck, all approved  

  
4. City Updates – Sheetz  

 
a. Updates on Streetscape Project: this project is nearing completion and should be 

finalized this year.  The Council did refer 2 items related to private parking, so there 
will be a public hearing at this next planning & zoning meeting. Recommendations 
regarding shared parking, and appropriate ratio residential involvement site review. 
 
Discussion:  
Parking Ramp: Parking would be Public vs. Private. Discussed concept of buy spots 
in public ramps, it could possibly be used as a tool, but not currently in ordinance & a 
lot of details would need worked out.  Requirements – tune into planning and zoning 
discussion.  

 
b. Discussion: 

Discussion and questions asked from Leeper regarding planning & zonings 
involvement in site plan review and items referred.  Gil Schultz spoke on vote to stop 
repeal, hopefully some resolution since the last meeting regarding form-based code.  
Expressed his thoughts and concerns regarding the topic, things needing to be 
addressed, amendments may need to be made to address zoning code, hoping to 
find some resolution vinyl siding, signs, parking.  

  
5. President’s Report – Leeper for Heath    

a. Bear - Accreditation Letter – see attached  
b. Market Study  
c. Historical Presentation – Historical 101 work session scheduled for end of 

April 
  

6. Staff Report – Bear    
 

7. Committee Reports  

136

Item 19.



a. Please see Staff Report for committee updates  
Promotions- is working on video & hashtag 
Economic Development- looking to do a Market Study and assemble a short-
term project committee  
Design – planning on doing a Spring Clean Up Day on Earth Day April 22nd, 
looking for CAPPS or any additional volunteers  
 

8. Liaison Reports  
a. Berte -Cedar Falls Police Department discussed the details of the most recent 

shootings that have taken place, addressed the concerns of the criminal 
activity.  Clarified that there are very good bar partnerships and very 
sophisticated technology that exists now that can be used and is helpful.  He 
went over some details regarding the recent hill shooting, another accidental 
shooting, and a drug deal w/ counterfeit money.  People have asked why 
Cedar Falls? The College, The Night Life, The Entertainment tends to draw 
crowd from other areas, so much of what has occurred has been people 
coming here from other areas, not Cedar Falls residents or addresses.  
Discussion regarding the musicians downtown, addressing is it disruptive vs is 
it considered art, are they actively soliciting, or blocking sidewalk.  They will 
investigate ongoing issues as the warmer weather will bring out more 
musicians.  He has agreed to bring do a Policing 101 and bring some 
clarifying statistics regarding the recent activity.    

b. Rucker- Main Street Waterloo– Veterans Way to link Veterans Park through 
the heart of the Downtown.  Goal to be completed by September.  This is a 
city project.   

c. Stern - Cedar Falls Public Library – discussed the Arbor Grant, the mobile 
Book Bike with a laptop hotspot scanner to check out books.  Dolly Parton 
Imagination Library is being launched in Black Hawk County, which would 
allow for registration for Black Hawk County Residents under the age of 5 to 
receive 1 book per month until the age of 5. Approximate Cost for Project is 
$308,000 and approximately. $50 – 60K raised already.  A Fund Link for 
Direct Donation has been added to the CF Community Foundation Webpage.  
$25 1 child/1 year or $125 for 1 child/5 years  

d.  Eilderts-The Historical Society – An Ice Festival took place at Big Woods 
Lake & over 700 people came out to help Celebrate the 100th.  Exhibit Feb 
17th from 4-6pm.   

e. Sogard - College Hill Partnership- The Year of the College Hill, spoke of the 
importance of the relationship between the Downtown & the Hill 
Leeper- spoke of the importance of building off each other’s strengths, that 
success of the Hill is key, and the importance of all groups working together  
Gil-mentioned enrollment is down at all Iowa Universities and difficulty of 
getting into hotel / restaurant  

 
9. Good of the Order  
 
  
10. Adjourn - Motion for approval by Johnson, Clark seconded, all approved. 

 
 
 
 

Cedar Falls Community Main Street, Inc. is a volunteer-driven, non-profit organization established to foster economic 
vitality, and to preserve and promote the historic image and character of the downtown, while improving the quality of 
life in Cedar Falls.    

137

Item 19.



Community Main Street 
Director’s Staff Report for February 2022: 

Committees:  

• Promotion/Retail/Nightlife Love Local, Holiday Hoopla, Movies Under the Moon, ARTapalooza, Downtown 
Show and Shine, New itineraries campaign, St. Patty’s Day Stroll 

• Design – Discussed New Downtown Character District Code 

• Economic Development – business survey, market study group 

• Organization & Development – Volunteer Appreciation Party, Annual Meeting 

• Board – Downtown Character District code 
Staff Activities: 

• Event planning, facilitation, support, and oversight of the following events: Love Local, Movies Under the Moon, 
ARTapalooza, Downtown Show & Shine, St. Patty’s Day Stroll 

• Exec met with Ron Gaines 

• Met with the Mayor and Kathryn from CHP 

• Main Street Iowa Director Call 

• Main Street Iowa Webinar  

• CFCF Promotion Committee Meeting 

• February Newsletter was sent out on February 1st  

• Attended in the Leadership Iowa Leadership Panel 

• CF/Waterloo Main Street Collaboration Meeting 

• Met with Movies Under the Moon partners 

• Met with ARTapalooza Committee 

• Met with the Downtown Show & Shine Committee 

• Attended the CFEDC Board Meeting to talk about Downtown 

• Joanna attended Main Street Iowa Virtual Training 

• Met with Dee Nelson from the River Place Plaza to work on the Main Street Iowa Award Nomination 

• Surprised our Volunteers of the Year during their family dinner ☺  

• Attended College Hill Partnership Board Meeting 

• Iowa Tourism – Development Working Group Meeting 

• 35th Anniversary Planning Party 

• Met with Holiday Hoopla chair to discuss 2022 

• Discussed the Walk to End Alzheimers being moved Downtown 

• Met with the Economic Development Chair 

• Black Hawk County CEDS Discussion Invite 

• Reached out to Brad Strouse 

• Had a sign made to encourage traffic to the Plaza Area during Retail Events 

• Met with Promotions Committee Members to talk about a new Social Media Campaign 

• Met with Event Chairs for the Spring Girls Night Out 

• Love Local baskets were assembled and delivered by the Committee 

• Participated in a Webinar with Travel Iowa and CED to discuss the benefits  

• Submitted our Sturgis Falls parade entry for Holiday Hoopla  

• Submitted the Movies Under the Moon event permit 

• Submitted the Downtown Show and Shine event permit 

• Secured location for Annual Meeting 

• Worked with a new business owner to connect them with MSI 

• Submitted Currents Article to the City 

• Worked on the 2022 Friends mailing with Amy Mohr and Melissa Barber 

• Annual Friends Campaign was mailed  

• Friends Donations Thank You cards are being written as they are received  

• Website Being Updated to show 2022 “Friends” Donors 

• ARTapalooza applications online, images, jury fees & booth fees being received  
Kim’s hours worked: 175 
Joanna’s hours worked: 100.50 
January Volunteer hours: 124 
 
Community Event Representation: Cedar Falls Tourism Board Meeting, Cedar Falls Community Foundation Public 
Relations meeting; attended City Council meetings, Work Session and Committee of the Whole meetings, attended 
Planning and Zoning 
Staff Priorities for the next month: Market Study application, event planning, Main Street Iowa awards 

138

Item 19.



CEDAR FALLS COMMUNITY MAIN STREET 
“ONE-SHEET” 

February 28, 2022 
BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS 

ECONOMIC 
DEVELOPMENT 

COMMITTEE 

DESIGN COMMITTEE ORGANIZATION & 
DEVELOPMENT 

COMMITTEE 

PROMOTIONS 
COMMITTEE 

RETAIL/NIGHTLIFE 
PROMOTIONS 

Focus: 

• April bi-annual report 

• City funding request 

• Staff review 

• Attend city council 
meetings 

• Deliberate business 
visitation program 

 

Done: 

• Budget 

• October bi-annual 
report 

• MSI annual checklist 

• SSMID renewal 

• Main Street America 
Accreditation 

Focus: 

• New business visits 
(10x) 

• Celebrate 
anniversaries (5, 10, 
15) 

• Challenge Grant 
FY22 

• Open 4 Business 
2022 

• Promotional 
materials in vacant 
spaces 

• Schedule bi-annual 
landlord/property 
owner meetings 

• Public restroom 

• Continue 
conversations 
between 
stakeholders and the 
board regarding 
parking 

 

Done: 

• MSI annual checklist 

• SSMID renewal 

Focus: 

• Façade grant 
reviews 

• Clean up (Fall & 
Spring) 

• Seasonal 
beautification 
(flowers, fall, holiday) 

• Host an education 

event with historic 
preservation tied into 
the new zoning 
ordinance 

• Challenge Grant 
FY22 

• Wayfinding within 
District 

• Parking lot 
cleanliness & 
maintenance 
program 

 
Done: 

• Holiday decorating 

• MSI annual checklist 

Focus: 

• 35th Anniversary 

• Annual fundraiser 

• Main Street Iowa 
award nominations 

• Annual meeting 

• Flower fundraiser 

• Volunteer 
recognition party 

• Volunteer 
recruitment piece 

• Program awareness 
through community 
outreach 

 

Done: 

• Partner thank you 

• MSI annual checklist 
• Friends campaign 

(100% board participation) 

Focus: 

• Newsletter (x7) 

• Calendar of Event 
mailing (x1) 

• Show & Shine (May) 

• Hops?? 

• New brochure 

• Visitor 
Guide/Tourism coop 
ads 

• Kiosk maps/fliers 

• Social Media 
engagement 

 

Done: 

• MSI annual checklist 
• Movies Under the Moon 

(x4) 2 were cancelled 

• ARTapalooza 
• Show & Shine (Sept) 

• Newsletter (x3) 

• Trick or Treat 

• Calendar of Event 
mailing (x1) 

• Holiday Hoopla 
o Jingle & Mingle 
o Breakfast with Santa 
o Hoopla Cheer 
o Baby It’s Cold Outside 
o Movie Magic 
o Coloring Contest 
o Window Contest 
o Trolley Rides 

o Letters to Santa 
o Sturgis Falls Parade 

Focus: 

• Light the Town Pink 

• Get Lucky on Main 

• Spring Shop Hop 

• Spring Girls’ Night 
Out 

• Sidewalk Sales 
(Sturgis) 

 

Done: 
• Sidewalk Sale 

• Downtown Panther Prowl 

• Fall Girls’ Night Out 

• Beer & Bacon 

• Downtown Ingredients 

• Love Local 

 
 
 
 

 
2021/2022 Fiscal Year 139

Item 19.



Minutes, Community Main Street, Inc.  
Board of Directors Meeting 

Tuesday, March 8, 2022 @ 12:00 p.m.   
CMS Office/ Zoom Meeting  
 

In Attendance: Lexie Heath- President; Jenny Leeper – President Elect; Brent Johnson- Treasurer; Crystal 
Ford – Past President; Darin Beck; Natalie Brown; Ann Eastman; Audrey Kittrell; Helen Pearce; Clark Rickard; 
Stephanie Sheetz; Brad Strouse; Liaisons: Craig Berte; Carrie Eilderts; Gil Shultz  
Staff: Kim Bear; Joanna Meyeraan 

 
  

1. Welcome, Call to Order – Heath  
  

2. Approval of Minutes – motion to approve by Leeper, seconded by Johnson,  
all approved 

  
3. Financial Report – Johnson – motion to approve by Leeper, Eastman seconded 

      a. Expenses are on budget 
 

  
4. City Updates – Sheetz  

a. 2 amendment considerations since the November 2021 adoption 
1. Request to review shared parking/eliminate shared or maintain 

shared. At the last council meeting Planning & Zoning voted against 
approving eliminating shared parking, shared parking remains in 
place 

2. Private Parking Minimums & Ratios  
Planning & Zoning was presented a petition to consider 1 space per 
bedroom, .25 space. An alternative proposal of .75 per bedroom 
passed, plus 0.25 remains in place, making it a 1 parking space 
minimum. 

b. Next City Council Meeting – March 21st  
  

5. President’s Report – Heath   
a. Board business cards – to use when you eat, drink, shop. Please write your 

name on them & leave at business to make our mark & presence known that 
we are supporting local 

b. Market Study Group – A project team has been put together for this.  
c. Celebrating Kim - Showing Gratitude, Appreciation, & Thanks to Executive 

Director Kim Bear for her time, dedication, and continued service with CMS  
d. Parking Ramp Input Discussion Meeting – Thursday March 31st at 8 am at the 

Cedar Falls Woman’s Club, moderated by Heath & Ford  
  

6. Staff Report – Bear   
a. Historic Tax Credit Fundamentals Presentation by Steve Wilke-Shapiro on 

April 22nd at 4PM at the Community Center 
 

7. Committee Reports  
*see attached 
  

8. Liaison Reports  
a. Berte – Discussed information regarding their role, their partnerships, what they are 

doing to keep Cedar Falls a safe community.  Discussion involved College Hill 

140

Item 19.



Partnership, Downtown Partnership, Waterloo Police Department Gang Meeting, 
Drug Task Force, Work Closely with Black Hawk County Attorney Office, Updated 
Technology in place, Noise Ordinance, Foot Patrols.  Stated most crime occurs 
between the hours of 10PM – 3PM  

b. Elders – Historical Society – Program Summer at the Schoolhouse registration 
March 21st, available to kids ending 6th grade 

 
   

9. Good of the Order –  
a. March 9: Volunteers on Tap 
b. March 18: Design Meeting 
c. April 4: Organization & Development Meeting 
d. April 5: Exec Meetings 
e. April 6: Economic Development Meeting 
f. April 7: Promotions Meeting 
g. April 22: Earth Day – Spring Clean Up 
h. April 26: Volunteer Appreciation – Mashed Potato Bar  
i. April 27: Historic Tax Credit Fundamentals – 4 pm at the Community Center 
j. May 1: Downtown Show & Shine 
k. May 10: Annual Meeting – George’s  

 
10.  Adjourn – Motion for approval by Leeper, seconded by Johnson, all approved  

  
Cedar Falls Community Main Street, Inc. is a volunteer-driven, non-profit organization established to foster economic 
vitality, and to preserve and promote the historic image and character of the downtown, while improving the quality of 
life in Cedar Falls.   

 

141

Item 19.



Community Main Street 
Director’s Staff Report for March 2022: 

Committees:  

• Promotion/Retail/Nightlife St. Paddy’s Day Stroll, Holiday Hoopla, Movies Under the Moon, ARTapalooza, 
Downtown Show and Shine, New itineraries campaign 

• Design – Did not meet 

• Economic Development – business survey, market study group,  

• Organization & Development – Volunteer Appreciation party, Annual Meeting 

• Board – Parking Ramp Input Discussion Meeting 
 
Staff Activities: 

• Event planning, facilitation, support, and oversight of the following events: Movies Under the Moon, ARTapalooza, 
Downtown Show & Shine, St. Paddy’s Day Stroll 

• Exec met with Ron Gaines 

• Main Street Iowa Director call 

• Main Street Iowa Webinar  

• CFCF promotion committee meeting 

• March newsletter was sent out on March 1st  

• Attended Grow Cedar Valley “New Normal” Retail Luncheon with other downtown merchants 

• Submitted Main Street Iowa awards for the following categories: Placemaking (small scale), 
Placemaking(comprehensive), Housing Project award(4 or fewer residential units) and Building Rehabilitation 
award in communities over 5,000 in population. 

• We also found out we were awarded two MSI awards  

• Met with Leader Valley to discuss collaborations for future trainings 

• Met with Linda Laylin and Jessica Rucker with Main Street Waterloo to discuss funding sources 

• Met with a photographer to get some updated photography for CMS and Tourism 

• Attended the CFEDC board meeting 

• Met with Lincoln Savings Bank to discuss sponsorship opportunities 

• Attended Director Olson’s retirement ceremony 

• Submitted Market Study and Strategies application to Main Street Iowa and was granted this opportunity 

• Announced Movies Under the Moon schedule and coordinated with the City for promotion 

• Attended Main Street Iowa training in Des Moines 

• Met with Mark Simpson from The Mix for radio marketing 

• Preconstruction meeting for the third phase of the streetscape 

• Met with Pretty Good Co. to share more about CMS 

• Loaned our Holiday Hoopla griddles to Cedar Falls High School  

• Parking Ramp meeting prep with facilitators  

• Met with the economic development chair 

• Met with event chairs for the Spring Girls Night Out 

• Secured location for Annual Meeting 

• Worked with a new business owner to connect them with MSI 

• Friends Thank you’s written as they are received  

• Coordinating our Shop/Dine Like a Local map updates 

• Mailed invites to Downtown Parking Ramp Input Discussion meeting, followed with emails 

• Continued training with Joanna in her office coordinator position 

• Hired Kassidy Tessendorf for a part-time events and promotions position 

• Joanna – quarterly 3 retail coop invoicing 

• Keeping MSI log up to date for new quarterly reporting 

• ARTapalooza artist applications  

• Flower baskets picked up, watering volunteer log & contact list updated  
 
Kim’s hours worked: 162.75, took 5 days’ vacation  
Joanna’s hours worked: 117  
Kassidy’s hours worked: 17  
March Volunteer hours: 132.5 
 

Community Event Representation: Cedar Falls Community Foundation Public Relations meeting; attended City Council 
meetings, Work Session and Committee of the Whole meetings Staff Priorities for the next month: Downtown clean up, 
Volunteer Appreciation Party, Girls Night Out, Spring Shop Hop, Downtown Show & Shine Registrations, Annual Meeting, 
Submit Quarterly MSI Report, Submit Bi-Annual Report to City, MUM Sponsorship Invoicing 

142

Item 19.



CEDAR FALLS COMMUNITY MAIN STREET 
“ONE-SHEET” 

 March 31, 2022 

2021/2022 Fiscal Year 

BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS 

ECONOMIC 
DEVELOPMENT 

COMMITTEE 

DESIGN COMMITTEE ORGANIZATION & 
DEVELOPMENT 

COMMITTEE 

PROMOTIONS 
COMMITTEE 

RETAIL/NIGHTLIFE 
PROMOTIONS 

Focus: 
• April bi-annual report 
• City funding request 
• Staff review 
• Attend city council 

meetings 
• Deliberate business 

visitation program 
 
Done:  
• Budget 
• October bi-annual 

report 
• MSI annual checklist 
• SSMID renewal 
• Main Street America 

Accreditation  
 

 
 

 
 

 

Focus: 
• New business visits 

(10x) 
• Celebrate 

anniversaries (5, 10, 
15) 

• Challenge Grant 
FY22  

• Open 4 Business 
2022 

• Promotional 
materials in vacant 
spaces 

• Schedule bi-annual 
landlord/property 
owner meetings 

• Public restroom 
• Continue 

conversations 
between 
stakeholders and the 
board regarding 
parking 

 
Done:  
 
• MSI annual checklist 
• SSMID renewal 
 

Focus: 
• Façade grant 

reviews 
• Clean up (Fall & 

Spring) 
• Seasonal 

beautification 
(flowers, fall, holiday) 

• Host an education 
event with historic 
preservation tied into 
the new zoning 
ordinance 

• Challenge Grant 
FY22 

• Wayfinding within 
District 

• Parking lot 
cleanliness & 
maintenance 
program 

 
Done: 
• Holiday decorating 
• MSI annual checklist 

 
 

Focus: 
• 35th Anniversary 
• Annual fundraiser 
• Main Street Iowa 

award nominations 
• Annual meeting 
• Flower fundraiser 
• Volunteer 

recognition party 
• Volunteer 

recruitment piece 
• Program awareness 

through community 
outreach 

 
Done:  
• Partner thank you 
• MSI annual checklist 
• Friends campaign 

(100% board participation) 
 

 
 

Focus: 
• Newsletter (x6) 
• Calendar of Event 

mailing (x1) 
• Show & Shine (May) 
• Hops 
• New brochure 
• Visitor 

Guide/Tourism coop 
ads 

• Kiosk maps/fliers 
• Social Media 

engagement 
 
Done: 
• MSI annual checklist 
• Movies Under the Moon 

(x4) 2 were cancelled 
• ARTapalooza 
• Show & Shine (Sept) 
• Newsletter (x4) 
• Trick or Treat 
• Calendar of Event 

mailing (x1) 
• Holiday Hoopla 

o Jingle & Mingle 
o Breakfast with Santa 
o Hoopla Cheer 
o Baby It’s Cold Outside 
o Movie Magic 
o Coloring Contest 
o Window Contest 
o Trolley Rides 
o Letters to Santa  
o Sturgis Falls Parade 

 
 

Focus: 
• Light the Town Pink 
• Spring Shop Hop 
• Spring Girls’ Night 

Out 
• Sidewalk Sales 

(Sturgis) 
 
Done:  
• Sidewalk Sale 
• Downtown Panther Prowl 
• Fall Girls’ Night Out 
• Beer & Bacon 
• Downtown Ingredients  
• Love Local 
• St. Paddy’s Day Stroll 

 
 
 

 

143

Item 19.



Community	Main	Street	Board	of	Directors	2021-2022	

	
	
Lexie	Heath,	President	
Farmers	State	Bank	
515	Main	Street	
Cedar	Falls,	IA	50613	
Phone:	319-874-4345	
Email:	lheath@fsb1879.com		
	
Jenny	Leeper,	Vice	President	
University	of	Northern	Iowa		
Admissions	Welcome	Center	210	
Cedar	Falls,	IA	50614	
Phone:	319-273-2281	
Email:	jenny.leeper@uni.edu	
	
Brent	Johnson,	Treasurer	
Bike	Tech	
217	Washington	Street		
Cedar	Falls,	IA	50613	
Phone:	319-266-5979	
Email:	DanL@firstiowa.bank		
	
Mark	Showalter,	Secretary	
The	Landmark	
107	Main	Street	
Cedar	Falls,	IA	50613	
Phone:	319-239-2216	
Email:	lndmrk118@yahoo.com		
	
Crystal	Ford,	Past	President	
Bergan	KDV	
100	E.	Park	Ave,	Suite	300	
Waterloo,	IA	50703	
Phone:	319-290-8197	
Email:	crystal.ford@bergankdv.com	
	
Darin	Beck	
Paramount	Barco	
6027	University	Ave.	#100	
Cedar	Falls,	IA	50613	
Phone:	319-239-9994	
Email:	dbeck@paramountbarco.com		
	
	
	

	
	
Natalie	Brown	
Scratch	Cupcakery	
5829	N.	Union	Road	
Cedar	Falls,	IA	50613	
Phone:	319-240-0232	
Email:	nab@cfu.net	
	
Audrey	Kittrell	
Eagle	View	Partners	
200	State	Street,	Suite	202-Z	
Cedar	Falls,	IA	50613	
Phone:	319-277-0007	
Email:	audrey.kittrell@eagleviewpartners.com	
	
Clark	Rickard	
415	State	Street	
Cedar	Falls,	IA	50613	
Phone:	319-268-0143	
Email:	c.rickard4655@gmail.com		
	
Brad	Strouse	
Redfern,	Mason,	Larsen	&	Moore	
415	Clay	Street	
Cedar	Falls,	IA	50613	
Phone:	319-277-6830	
Email:	strouse@cflaw.com	
	
Helen	Pearce	
Cedar	Falls	Community	Credit	Union	
123	W.	4th	Street	
Cedar	Falls,	IA	50613	
Phone:	319-266-7531	
Email:	helen@cfccu.org	
	
Ann	Eastman	
Miss	Wonderful	
216	Main	Street	
Cedar	Falls,	IA	50613	
Phone:	319-277-6830	
Email:	misswonderful216@gmail.com	
	
	
	
	

144

Item 19.



Community	Main	Street	Board	of	Directors	2021-2022	

Ex-officio	
Wynette	Froehner	
Cedar	Falls	Utilities	
1	Utility	Way	
Cedar	Falls,	IA	50613	
Phone:	319-404-7387	
Email:	wynette.froehner@cfun.net	
	
Stephanie	Sheetz	
City	of	Cedar	Falls	
220	Clay	Street	
Cedar	Falls,	IA	50613	
Phone:	319-268-5151	
Email:	stephanie.sheetz@cedarfalls.com	
	
LIAISONS	
	
Craig	Berte	
Cedar	Falls	Police	Department	
4600	South	Main	Street	
Cedar	Falls,	IA	50613	
Phone:	319-269-0945	
Email:	craig.berte@cedarfalls.com	
	
Cary	Darrah	
Grow	Cedar	Valley	
360	Westfield	Ave,	Suite	200	
Waterloo,	IA	50701	
Phone:	319-232-1156	
Email:	cary@growcedarvalley.com		
	
Carrie	Eilderts	
Cedar	Falls	Historical	Society	
308	W	3rd	Street	
Cedar	Falls,	IA	50613	
Phone:	319-266-5149	
Email:	cfhistory@cfu.net	
	
Linda	Laylin	
Black	Hawk	County	Supervisors	
316	East	5th	Street	
Waterloo,	IA	50703	
Phone:	319-239-9641	
Email:	llaylin@co.black-hawk.ia.us		
	
	

John	Luzaich	
Oster	Regent	Theatre	
103	Main	Street	
Cedar	Falls,	IA	50613	
Phone:	319-277-5283	
Email:	cfct@cfu.net		
	
Jennifer	Pickar	
Cedar	Falls	Tourism	&	Visitors	Bureau	
6510	Hudson	Road	
Cedar	Falls,	IA	50613	
Phone:	319-268-4266	
Email:	Jennifer.pickar@cedarfalls.com	
	
Jessica	Rucker/Jane		
Main	Street	Waterloo	
212	East	4th	Street	
Waterloo,	IA	50701	
Phone:	319-291-2038	
Email:	director@mainstreetwaterloo.org		
	
Kelly	Stern	
Cedar	Falls	Public	Library	
524	Main	Street	
Cedar	Falls,	IA	50613	
Phone:	31-268-5541	
Email:	director@cedarfallslibrary.org	
	
Kathryn	Sogard	
College	Hill	Partnership	
PO	Box	974	
Cedar	Falls,	IA	50613	
Phone:	319-273-6228	
Email:	collegehillpartnership@gmail.com		
	

145

Item 19.



A	summary	of	new	investment	and	job	creation/retention	figures	for	the	applicable	
reporting	period		
 
 

Business/Job	Changes		 
October	2021	through	March	2022	 

	 New	
Business	
Opening	 

	 
Net	Jobs	
Created	 

Businesses	
Closing	or	
Moving	
out	 

FTE	 
Jobs	
Lost	 

Businesses	
Relocating/Expanding	

Downtown	 

Net	FTE	Jobs	
Created	with	 

Expand/Relocate	 

October	
2021 2	 4 0	 0 2	 4	 

November	
2021	 2	 38 0	 0	 0	 0	 

December	
2021	 0	 0 1 1 0	 0	 

January-
March	
2022 

5	 15 		4 7	 0	 0	 

Totals	 9*	 57**	 0*	 0**	 7	 16 
*Business	opening	(9)	–	business	closing	(5)	=	net	(4)	 
	 
		
	
	
	
	 	

146

Item 19.



	
	
	 
	 

Rehabilitation,	Renovation	&	New	Construction		 
October	2021	through	March	2022 

	 Projects	 Investment	Value	 
October	2021 3 $1,537,267 
November	2021	 1 $110,000 
December	2021 1 $110,000 
January	2022-March	2022 	5 $70,179 
Total 10 $1,827,446 
	 
	 
	 

Buildings	Sold	 
October	2021	through	March	2022 

	 Quantity	 Investment	 
October	2021 0	 $0 
November	2021	 0	 $0 
December	2021 4 $7,899,797 
January	2022 2 $1,269,000 
February	2022 0	 $0 
March	2022 0	 $0 
Total		 0	 $9,168,797	 
	 
	 
	 

Volunteer	Hours		 
October	2021	through	March	2022 

October	2021 208	 
November	2021	 1105	 
December	2021 610	 
January	2022 207	 
February	2022 183	 
March	2022 153 
Total		 2,469 
  
  
  
 

147

Item 19.



COMMUNITY MAIN STREET
Income Statement

OCTOBER 2021

MONTH 
ACTUAL

MONTH 
BUDGET

ACTUAL TO 
BUDGET 

VARIANCE

% OF 
BUDGET

YEAR TO 
DATE 

ACTUAL

ANNUAL 
BUDGET

ACTUAL TO 
BUDGET 

VARIANCE

% OF 
ANNUAL 
BUDGET

YEAR TO 
DATE 

ACTUAL

ANNUAL 
BUDGET

ACTUAL TO 
BUDGET 

VARIANCE

% OF 
ANNUAL 
BUDGET

Revenue

   Board Income 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.00 1,560.00 -1,560.00 0.00% 0.00 1,560.00 -1,560.00 0.00%
   City Funding 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.00 12,000.00 -12,000.00 0.00%
   Event Income 250.00 10,000.00 -9,750.00 2.50% 17,469.91 17,500.00 -30.09 99.83% 17,469.91 60,280.00 -42,810.09 28.98%
   Friends/Streetscape 175.00 0.00 175.00 0.00% 2,722.12 0.00 2,722.12 0.00% 2,722.12 7,250.00 -4,527.88 37.55%
   Grant & other Income 28.41 0.00 28.41 0.00% 404.71 0.00 404.71 0.00% 404.71 0.00 404.71 0.00%
   SSMID 132,000.00 70,000.00 62,000.00 188.57% 132,000.00 70,000.00 62,000.00 188.57% 132,000.00 240,000.00 -108,000.00 55.00%
Total Revenue 132,453.41 $     80,000.00 $   52,453.41 $     165.57% 152,596.74 $   89,060.00 $     63,536.74 $       171.34% 152,596.74 $  321,090.00 $    168,493.26 -$   47.52%
Gross Profit 132,453.41 $     80,000.00 $   52,453.41 $     165.57% 152,596.74 $   89,060.00 $     63,536.74 $       171.34% 152,596.74 $  321,090.00 $    168,493.26 -$   47.52%
Expenditures

   Board Lunch Expense 0.00 130.00 -130.00 0.00% 0.00 520.00 -520.00 0.00% 0.00 1,560.00 -1,560.00 0.00%
   Committee Expense 1,292.00 400.00 892.00 323.00% 5,143.63 3,420.00 1,723.63 150.40% 5,143.63 18,420.00 -13,276.37 27.92%
   Depreciation Expense 0.00 1,130.00 -1,130.00 0.00% 0.00 4,520.00 -4,520.00 0.00% 0.00 13,560.00 -13,560.00 0.00%
   Dues and Subscriptions 432.34 600.00 -167.66 72.06% 2,106.39 3,050.00 -943.61 69.06% 2,106.39 7,850.00 -5,743.61 26.83%
   Event Expense 4,728.49 3,000.00 1,728.49 157.62% 12,534.36 17,500.00 -4,965.64 71.62% 12,534.36 59,750.00 -47,215.64 20.98%
   Grant Expense 750.00 0.00 750.00 0.00% 2,367.48 0.00 2,367.48 0.00% 2,367.48 5,000.00 -2,632.52 47.35%
   Insurance 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.00 5,500.00 -5,500.00 0.00%
   Miscellaneous 33.97 150.00 -116.03 22.65% 132.50 600.00 -467.50 22.08% 132.50 2,000.00 -1,867.50 6.63%
   Office Supplies 318.57 450.00 -131.43 70.79% 888.45 1,800.00 -911.55 49.36% 888.45 5,400.00 -4,511.55 16.45%
   Payroll Expenses 7,463.87 8,750.00 -1,286.13 85.30% 27,400.99 32,000.00 -4,599.01 85.63% 27,400.99 102,000.00 -74,599.01 26.86%
   Postage and Delivery 0.00 100.00 -100.00 0.00% 55.00 400.00 -345.00 13.75% 55.00 3,500.00 -3,445.00 1.57%
   Professional Fees 225.00 0.00 225.00 2,765.00 4,000.00 -1,235.00 69.13% 2,765.00 7,000.00 -4,235.00 39.50%
   Repairs 36.18 250.00 -213.82 14.47% 36.18 500.00 -463.82 7.24% 36.18 1,000.00 -963.82 3.62%
   Snow Removal & Lawn Care 150.58 100.00 50.58 150.58% 350.87 400.00 -49.13 87.72% 350.87 2,000.00 -1,649.13 17.54%
   Streetscape Expense 0.00 250.00 -250.00 0.00% 1,036.33 250.00 786.33 414.53% 1,036.33 500.00 536.33 207.27%
   Telephone 86.29 150.00 -63.71 57.53% 505.43 600.00 -94.57 84.24% 505.43 1,800.00 -1,294.57 28.08%
   Travel & Training 15.00 150.00 -135.00 10.00% 434.55 750.00 -315.45 57.94% 434.55 5,500.00 -5,065.45 7.90%
   Utilities 357.31 375.00 -17.69 95.28% 1,429.24 1,500.00 -70.76 95.28% 1,429.24 4,500.00 -3,070.76 31.76%
Total Expenditures 15,889.60 $       15,985.00 $   95.40 -$           99.40% 57,186.40 $     71,810.00 $     14,623.60 -$      79.64% 57,186.40 $    246,840.00 $    189,653.60 -$   23.17%
Net Operating Revenue 116,563.81 $     64,015.00 $   52,548.81 $     182.09% 95,410.34 $     17,250.00 $     78,160.34 $       553.10% 95,410.34 $    74,250.00 $      21,160.34 $       128.50%
Other Expenditures

   Restricted Funds 0.00 3,000.00 -3,000.00 0.00% 0.00 12,000.00 -12,000.00 0.00% 0.00 36,000.00 -36,000.00 0.00%
   Whitewater Contribution 0.00 416.67 -416.67 0.00% 0.00 1,666.68 -1,666.68 0.00% 0.00 5,000.00 -5,000.00 0.00%
Total Other Expenditures 0.00 $                3,416.67 $     3,416.67 -$      0.00% 0.00 $              13,666.68 $     13,666.68 -$      0.00% 0.00 $             41,000.00 $      41,000.00 -$     0.00%
Net Other Revenue 0.00 $                3,416.67 -$    3,416.67 $       0.00% 0.00 $              13,666.68 -$   13,666.68 $       0.00% 0.00 $             41,000.00 -$     41,000.00 $       0.00%
Net Revenue 116,563.81 $     60,598.33 $   55,965.48 $     192.35% 95,410.34 $     3,583.32 $       91,827.02 $       2662.62% 95,410.34 $    33,250.00 $      62,160.34 $       286.95%

MONTHLY BUDGET - OCTOBER MONTHLY BUDGET - JULY TO OCTOBER ANNUAL BUDGET

148

Item 19.



COMMUNITY MAIN STREET
Income Statement

NOVEMBER 2021

MONTH 
ACTUAL

MONTH 
BUDGET

ACTUAL TO 
BUDGET 

VARIANCE

% OF 
BUDGET

YEAR TO 
DATE 

ACTUAL

ANNUAL 
BUDGET

ACTUAL TO 
BUDGET 

VARIANCE

% OF 
ANNUAL 
BUDGET

YEAR TO 
DATE 

ACTUAL

ANNUAL 
BUDGET

ACTUAL TO 
BUDGET 

VARIANCE

% OF 
ANNUAL 
BUDGET

Revenue

   Board Income 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.00 1,560.00 -1,560.00 0.00% 0.00 1,560.00 -1,560.00 0.00%
   City Funding 6,000.00 6,000.00 0.00 100.00% 6,000.00 12,000.00 -6,000.00 50.00% 6,000.00 12,000.00 -6,000.00 50.00%
   Event Income 22,762.13 10,000.00 12,762.13 227.62% 40,982.04 60,280.00 -19,297.96 67.99% 40,982.04 60,280.00 -19,297.96 67.99%
   Friends/Streetscape 318.71 0.00 318.71 0.00% 3,040.83 7,250.00 -4,209.17 41.94% 3,040.83 7,250.00 -4,209.17 41.94%
   Grant & other Income 53.50 0.00 53.50 0.00% 458.21 0.00 458.21 0.00% 458.21 0.00 458.21 0.00%
   SSMID 21,993.69 50,000.00 -28,006.31 43.99% 153,993.69 240,000.00 -86,006.31 64.16% 153,993.69 240,000.00 -86,006.31 64.16%
Total Revenue 51,128.03 $       66,000.00 $   14,871.97 -$    77.47% 204,474.77 $   321,090.00 $   116,615.23 -$    63.68% 204,474.77 $  321,090.00 $    116,615.23 -$   63.68%
Gross Profit 51,128.03 $       66,000.00 $   14,871.97 -$    77.47% 204,474.77 $   321,090.00 $   116,615.23 -$    63.68% 204,474.77 $  321,090.00 $    116,615.23 -$   63.68%
Expenditures

   Bank Service Charge 60.70 0.00 60.70 0.00% 60.70 0.00 60.70 0.00% 60.70 0.00 60.70 0.00%
   Board Lunch Expense 0.00 130.00 -130.00 0.00% 0.00 1,560.00 -1,560.00 0.00% 0.00 1,560.00 -1,560.00 0.00%
   Committee Expense 3,915.23 5,000.00 -1,084.77 78.30% 9,058.86 18,420.00 -9,361.14 49.18% 9,058.86 18,420.00 -9,361.14 49.18%
   Depreciation Expense 0.00 1,130.00 -1,130.00 0.00% 0.00 13,560.00 -13,560.00 0.00% 0.00 13,560.00 -13,560.00 0.00%
   Dues and Subscriptions 226.02 600.00 -373.98 37.67% 2,332.41 7,850.00 -5,517.59 29.71% 2,332.41 7,850.00 -5,517.59 29.71%
   Event Expense 11,790.23 15,000.00 -3,209.77 78.60% 24,324.59 59,750.00 -35,425.41 40.71% 24,324.59 59,750.00 -35,425.41 40.71%
   Grant Expense 2,500.00 2,500.00 0.00 100.00% 4,867.48 5,000.00 -132.52 97.35% 4,867.48 5,000.00 -132.52 97.35%
   Insurance 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.00 5,500.00 -5,500.00 0.00% 0.00 5,500.00 -5,500.00 0.00%
   Miscellaneous 222.75 150.00 72.75 148.50% 355.25 2,000.00 -1,644.75 17.76% 355.25 2,000.00 -1,644.75 17.76%
   Office Supplies 569.91 450.00 119.91 126.65% 1,458.36 5,400.00 -3,941.64 27.01% 1,458.36 5,400.00 -3,941.64 27.01%
   Payroll Expenses 6,964.35 8,750.00 -1,785.65 79.59% 34,365.34 102,000.00 -67,634.66 33.69% 34,365.34 102,000.00 -67,634.66 33.69%
   Postage and Delivery 58.00 2,100.00 -2,042.00 2.76% 113.00 3,500.00 -3,387.00 3.23% 113.00 3,500.00 -3,387.00 3.23%
   Professional Fees 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00% 2,765.00 7,000.00 -4,235.00 39.50% 2,765.00 7,000.00 -4,235.00 39.50%
   Repairs 149.80 0.00 149.80 0.00% 185.98 1,000.00 -814.02 18.60% 185.98 1,000.00 -814.02 18.60%
   Snow Removal & Lawn Care 50.00 200.00 -150.00 25.00% 400.87 2,000.00 -1,599.13 20.04% 400.87 2,000.00 -1,599.13 20.04%
   Streetscape Expense 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00% 1,036.33 500.00 536.33 207.27% 1,036.33 500.00 536.33 207.27%
   Telephone 206.29 150.00 56.29 137.53% 711.72 1,800.00 -1,088.28 39.54% 711.72 1,800.00 -1,088.28 39.54%
   Travel & Training 272.93 50.00 222.93 545.86% 707.48 5,500.00 -4,792.52 12.86% 707.48 5,500.00 -4,792.52 12.86%
   Utilities 357.31 375.00 -17.69 95.28% 1,786.55 4,500.00 -2,713.45 39.70% 1,786.55 4,500.00 -2,713.45 39.70%
Total Expenditures 27,343.52 $       36,585.00 $   9,241.48 -$      74.74% 84,529.92 $     246,840.00 $   162,310.08 -$    34.24% 84,529.92 $    246,840.00 $    162,310.08 -$   34.24%
Net Operating Revenue 23,784.51 $       29,415.00 $   5,630.49 -$      80.86% 119,944.85 $   74,250.00 $     45,694.85 $       161.54% 119,944.85 $  74,250.00 $      45,694.85 $       161.54%
Other Expenditures

   Restricted Funds 0.00 3,000.00 -3,000.00 0.00% 0.00 36,000.00 -36,000.00 0.00% 0.00 36,000.00 -36,000.00 0.00%
   Whitewater Contribution 0.00 416.67 -416.67 0.00% 0.00 5,000.00 -5,000.00 0.00% 0.00 5,000.00 -5,000.00 0.00%
Total Other Expenditures 0.00 $                3,416.67 $     3,416.67 -$      0.00% 0.00 $              41,000.00 $     41,000.00 -$      0.00% 0.00 $             41,000.00 $      41,000.00 -$     0.00%
Net Other Revenue 0.00 $                3,416.67 -$    3,416.67 $       0.00% 0.00 $              41,000.00 -$   41,000.00 $       0.00% 0.00 $             41,000.00 -$     41,000.00 $       0.00%
Net Revenue 23,784.51 $       25,998.33 $   2,213.82 -$      91.48% 119,944.85 $   33,250.00 $     86,694.85 $       360.74% 119,944.85 $  33,250.00 $      86,694.85 $       360.74%

MONTHLY BUDGET - NOVEMBER MONTHLY BUDGET - JULY TO NOVEMBER ANNUAL BUDGET

149

Item 19.



COMMUNITY MAIN STREET
Income Statement

DECEMBER 2021

MONTH 
ACTUAL

MONTH 
BUDGET

ACTUAL TO 
BUDGET 

VARIANCE

% OF 
BUDGET

YEAR TO 
DATE 

ACTUAL

ANNUAL 
BUDGET

ACTUAL TO 
BUDGET 

VARIANCE

% OF 
ANNUAL 
BUDGET

YEAR TO 
DATE 

ACTUAL

ANNUAL 
BUDGET

ACTUAL TO 
BUDGET 

VARIANCE

% OF 
ANNUAL 
BUDGET

Revenue

   Board Income 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.00 1,560.00 -1,560.00 0.00% 0.00 1,560.00 -1,560.00 0.00%
   City Funding 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00% 6,000.00 6,000.00 0.00 100.00% 6,000.00 12,000.00 -6,000.00 50.00%
   Event Income 7,501.36 10,000.00 -2,498.64 75.01% 48,483.40 37,500.00 10,983.40 129.29% 48,483.40 60,280.00 -11,796.60 80.43%
   Friends/Streetscape 100.00 0.00 100.00 0.00% 3,140.83 0.00 3,140.83 0.00% 3,140.83 7,250.00 -4,109.17 43.32%
   Grant & other Income 41.43 0.00 41.43 0.00% 499.64 0.00 499.64 0.00% 499.64 0.00 499.64 
   SSMID 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00% 153,993.69 120,000.00 33,993.69 128.33% 153,993.69 240,000.00 -86,006.31 64.16%
Total Revenue 7,642.79 $         10,000.00 $   2,357.21 -$      76.43% 212,117.56 $   165,060.00 $   47,057.56 $       128.51% 212,117.56 $  321,090.00 $    108,972.44 -$   66.06%
Gross Profit 7,642.79 $         10,000.00 $   2,357.21 -$      76.43% 212,117.56 $   165,060.00 $   47,057.56 $       128.51% 212,117.56 $  321,090.00 $    108,972.44 -$   66.06%
Expenditures

   Bank Service Charge 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00% 60.70 0.00 60.70 0.00% 60.70 0.00 60.70 0.00%
   Board Lunch Expense 0.00 130.00 -130.00 0.00% 0.00 780.00 -780.00 0.00% 0.00 1,560.00 -1,560.00 0.00%
   Committee Expense 4,984.99 1,500.00 3,484.99 332.33% 14,043.85 9,920.00 4,123.85 141.57% 14,043.85 18,420.00 -4,376.15 76.24%
   Depreciation Expense 0.00 1,130.00 -1,130.00 0.00% 0.00 6,780.00 -6,780.00 0.00% 0.00 13,560.00 -13,560.00 0.00%
   Dues and Subscriptions 1,604.83 600.00 1,004.83 267.47% 3,937.24 4,250.00 -312.76 92.64% 3,937.24 7,850.00 -3,912.76 50.16%
   Event Expense 7,529.46 15,000.00 -7,470.54 50.20% 32,073.57 47,500.00 -15,426.43 67.52% 32,073.57 59,750.00 -27,676.43 53.68%
   Grant Expense 2,500.00 0.00 2,500.00 0.00% 7,367.48 2,500.00 4,867.48 294.70% 7,367.48 5,000.00 2,367.48 147.35%
   Insurance 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.00 5,500.00 -5,500.00 0.00%
   Miscellaneous 40.00 350.00 -310.00 11.43% 395.25 1,100.00 -704.75 35.93% 395.25 2,000.00 -1,604.75 19.76%
   Office Supplies 281.05 450.00 -168.95 62.46% 1,739.41 2,700.00 -960.59 64.42% 1,739.41 5,400.00 -3,660.59 32.21%
   Payroll Expenses 7,033.25 8,750.00 -1,716.75 80.38% 41,398.59 49,500.00 -8,101.41 83.63% 41,398.59 102,000.00 -60,601.41 40.59%
   Postage and Delivery 0.00 200.00 -200.00 0.00% 113.00 2,700.00 -2,587.00 4.19% 113.00 3,500.00 -3,387.00 3.23%
   Professional Fees 0.00 1,000.00 -1,000.00 0.00% 2,765.00 5,000.00 -2,235.00 55.30% 2,765.00 7,000.00 -4,235.00 39.50%
   Repairs 0.00 0.00 0.00 185.98 500.00 -314.02 37.20% 185.98 1,000.00 -814.02 18.60%
   Snow Removal & Lawn Care 0.00 250.00 -250.00 0.00% 400.87 850.00 -449.13 47.16% 400.87 2,000.00 -1,599.13 20.04%
   Streetscape Expense 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,036.33 250.00 786.33 414.53% 1,036.33 500.00 536.33 207.27%
   Telephone 86.29 150.00 -63.71 57.53% 798.01 900.00 -101.99 88.67% 798.01 1,800.00 -1,001.99 44.33%
   Travel & Training 0.00 1,500.00 -1,500.00 0.00% 707.48 2,300.00 -1,592.52 30.76% 707.48 5,500.00 -4,792.52 12.86%
   Utilities 357.31 375.00 -17.69 95.28% 2,143.86 2,250.00 -106.14 95.28% 2,143.86 4,500.00 -2,356.14 47.64%
Total Expenditures 24,417.18 $       31,385.00 $   6,967.82 -$      77.80% 109,166.62 $   139,780.00 $   30,613.38 -$      78.10% 109,166.62 $  246,840.00 $    137,673.38 -$   44.23%
Net Operating Revenue 16,774.39 -$     21,385.00 -$  4,610.61 $       78.44% 102,950.94 $   25,280.00 $     77,670.94 $       407.24% 102,950.94 $  74,250.00 $      28,700.94 $       138.65%
Other Expenditures

   Restricted Funds 0.00 3,000.00 -3,000.00 0.00% 0.00 18,000.00 -18,000.00 0.00% 0.00 36,000.00 -36,000.00 0.00%
   Whitewater Contribution 0.00 416.67 -416.67 0.00% 0.00 2,500.02 -2,500.02 0.00% 0.00 5,000.00 -5,000.00 0.00%
Total Other Expenditures 0.00 $                3,416.67 $     3,416.67 -$      0.00% 0.00 $              20,500.02 $     20,500.02 -$      0.00% 0.00 $             41,000.00 $      41,000.00 -$     0.00%
Net Other Revenue 0.00 $                3,416.67 -$    3,416.67 $       0.00% 0.00 $              20,500.02 -$   20,500.02 $       0.00% 0.00 $             41,000.00 -$     41,000.00 $       0.00%
Net Revenue 16,774.39 -$     24,801.67 -$  8,027.28 $       67.63% 102,950.94 $   4,779.98 $       98,170.96 $       2153.79% 102,950.94 $  33,250.00 $      69,700.94 $       309.63%

MONTHLY BUDGET - DECEMBER MONTHLY BUDGET - JULY TO DECEMBER ANNUAL BUDGET

150

Item 19.



COMMUNITY MAIN STREET
Income Statement

JANUARY 2022

MONTH 
ACTUAL

MONTH 
BUDGET

ACTUAL TO 
BUDGET 

VARIANCE

% OF 
BUDGET

YEAR TO 
DATE 

ACTUAL

ANNUAL 
BUDGET

ACTUAL TO 
BUDGET 

VARIANCE

% OF 
ANNUAL 
BUDGET

YEAR TO 
DATE 

ACTUAL

ANNUAL 
BUDGET

ACTUAL TO 
BUDGET 

VARIANCE

% OF 
ANNUAL 
BUDGET

Revenue

   Board Income 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.00 1,560.00 -1,560.00 0.00% 0.00 1,560.00 -1,560.00 0.00%
   City Funding 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00% 6,000.00 6,000.00 0.00 100.00% 6,000.00 12,000.00 -6,000.00 50.00%
   Event Income 7,501.36 10,000.00 -2,498.64 75.01% 50,538.40 38,000.00 12,538.40 133.00% 50,538.40 60,280.00 -9,741.60 83.84%
   Friends/Streetscape 100.00 0.00 100.00 0.00% 4,194.92 0.00 4,194.92 0.00% 4,194.92 7,250.00 -3,055.08 57.86%
   Grant & other Income 41.43 0.00 41.43 0.00% 763.08 0.00 763.08 0.00% 763.08 0.00 763.08 0.00%
   SSMID 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00% 153,993.69 120,000.00 33,993.69 128.33% 153,993.69 240,000.00 -86,006.31 64.16%
Total Revenue 7,642.79 $         10,000.00 $   2,357.21 -$      76.43% 215,490.09 $   165,560.00 $   49,930.09 $       130.16% 215,490.09 $  321,090.00 $    105,599.91 -$   67.11%
Gross Profit 7,642.79 $         10,000.00 $   2,357.21 -$      76.43% 215,490.09 $   165,560.00 $   49,930.09 $       130.16% 215,490.09 $  321,090.00 $    105,599.91 -$   67.11%
Expenditures

   Bank Service Charge 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00% 60.70 0.00 60.70 0.00% 60.70 0.00 60.70 0.00%
   Board Lunch Expense 0.00 130.00 -130.00 0.00% 0.00 910.00 -910.00 0.00% 0.00 1,560.00 -1,560.00 0.00%
   Committee Expense 515.00 1,500.00 -985.00 34.33% 14,558.85 11,420.00 3,138.85 127.49% 14,558.85 18,420.00 -3,861.15 79.04%
   Depreciation Expense 0.00 1,130.00 -1,130.00 0.00% 0.00 7,910.00 -7,910.00 0.00% 0.00 13,560.00 -13,560.00 0.00%
   Dues and Subscriptions 771.18 600.00 171.18 128.53% 4,708.42 4,850.00 -141.58 97.08% 4,708.42 7,850.00 -3,141.58 59.98%
   Event Expense 8,756.20 5,000.00 3,756.20 175.12% 40,829.77 52,500.00 -11,670.23 77.77% 40,829.77 59,750.00 -18,920.23 68.33%
   Grant Expense 2,500.00 0.00 2,500.00 0.00% 7,367.48 2,500.00 4,867.48 294.70% 7,367.48 5,000.00 2,367.48 147.35%
   Insurance 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.00 5,500.00 -5,500.00 0.00%
   Miscellaneous 32.10 150.00 -117.90 21.40% 427.35 1,250.00 -822.65 34.19% 427.35 2,000.00 -1,572.65 21.37%
   Office Supplies 115.39 450.00 -334.61 25.64% 1,854.80 3,150.00 -1,295.20 58.88% 1,854.80 5,400.00 -3,545.20 34.35%
   Payroll Expenses 6,773.82 8,750.00 -1,976.18 77.42% 48,172.41 58,250.00 -10,077.59 82.70% 48,172.41 102,000.00 -53,827.59 47.23%
   Postage and Delivery 0.00 200.00 -200.00 0.00% 113.00 2,900.00 -2,787.00 3.90% 113.00 3,500.00 -3,387.00 3.23%
   Professional Fees 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00% 2,765.00 5,000.00 -2,235.00 55.30% 2,765.00 7,000.00 -4,235.00 39.50%
   Repairs 0.00 250.00 -250.00 0.00% 185.98 750.00 -564.02 24.80% 185.98 1,000.00 -814.02 18.60%
   Snow Removal & Lawn Care 90.00 250.00 -160.00 36.00% 490.87 1,100.00 -609.13 44.62% 490.87 2,000.00 -1,509.13 24.54%
   Streetscape Expense 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00% 1,036.33 250.00 786.33 414.53% 1,036.33 500.00 536.33 207.27%
   Telephone 127.54 150.00 -22.46 85.03% 925.55 1,050.00 -124.45 88.15% 925.55 1,800.00 -874.45 51.42%
   Travel & Training 632.23 100.00 532.23 632.23% 1,339.71 2,400.00 -1,060.29 55.82% 1,339.71 5,500.00 -4,160.29 24.36%
   Utilities 357.31 375.00 -17.69 95.28% 2,501.17 2,625.00 -123.83 95.28% 2,501.17 4,500.00 -1,998.83 55.58%
Total Expenditures 20,670.77 $       19,035.00 $   1,635.77 $       108.59% 127,337.39 $   158,815.00 $   31,477.61 -$      80.18% 127,337.39 $  246,840.00 $    119,502.61 -$   51.59%
Net Operating Revenue 17,937.24 -$     18,535.00 -$  597.76 $          96.77% 88,152.70 $     6,745.00 $       81,407.70 $       1306.93% 88,152.70 $    74,250.00 $      13,902.70 $       118.72%
Other Expenditures

   Restricted Funds 0.00 3,000.00 -3,000.00 0.00% 0.00 21,000.00 -21,000.00 0.00% 0.00 36,000.00 -36,000.00 0.00%
   Whitewater Contribution 0.00 416.67 -416.67 0.00% 0.00 2,916.69 -2,916.69 0.00% 0.00 5,000.00 -5,000.00 0.00%
Total Other Expenditures 0.00 $                3,416.67 $     3,416.67 -$      0.00% 0.00 $              23,916.69 $     23,916.69 -$      0.00% 0.00 $             41,000.00 $      41,000.00 -$     0.00%
Net Other Revenue 0.00 $                3,416.67 -$    3,416.67 $       0.00% 0.00 $              23,916.69 -$   23,916.69 $       0.00% 0.00 $             41,000.00 -$     41,000.00 $       0.00%
Net Revenue 17,937.24 -$     21,951.67 -$  4,014.43 $       81.71% 88,152.70 $     17,171.69 -$   105,324.39 $     -513.36% 88,152.70 $    33,250.00 $      54,902.70 $       265.12%

MONTHLY BUDGET - JANUARY MONTHLY BUDGET - JULY TO JANUARY ANNUAL BUDGET

151

Item 19.



COMMUNITY MAIN STREET
Income Statement

FEBRUARY 2022

MONTH 
ACTUAL

MONTH 
BUDGET

ACTUAL TO 
BUDGET 

VARIANCE

% OF 
BUDGET

YEAR TO 
DATE 

ACTUAL

ANNUAL 
BUDGET

ACTUAL TO 
BUDGET 

VARIANCE

% OF 
ANNUAL 
BUDGET

YEAR TO 
DATE 

ACTUAL

ANNUAL 
BUDGET

ACTUAL TO 
BUDGET 

VARIANCE

% OF 
ANNUAL 
BUDGET

Revenue

   Board Income 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.00 1,560.00 -1,560.00 0.00% 0.00 1,560.00 -1,560.00 0.00%
   City Funding 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00% 6,000.00 6,000.00 0.00 100.00% 6,000.00 12,000.00 -6,000.00 50.00%
   Event Income 230.00 500.00 -270.00 46.00% 50,878.40 38,500.00 12,378.40 132.15% 50,878.40 60,280.00 -9,401.60 84.40%
   Friends/Streetscape 3,401.96 3,500.00 -98.04 97.20% 7,596.88 3,500.00 4,096.88 217.05% 7,596.88 7,250.00 346.88 104.78%
   Grant & other Income 1,225.68 0.00 1,225.68 0.00% 1,988.76 0.00 1,988.76 0.00% 1,988.76 0.00 1,988.76 0.00%
   SSMID 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00% 153,993.69 120,000.00 33,993.69 128.33% 153,993.69 240,000.00 -86,006.31 64.16%
Total Revenue 4,857.64 $         4,000.00 $     857.64 $          121.44% 220,457.73 $   169,560.00 $   50,897.73 $       130.02% 220,457.73 $  321,090.00 $    100,632.27 -$   68.66%
Gross Profit 4,857.64 $         4,000.00 $     857.64 $          121.44% 220,457.73 $   169,560.00 $   50,897.73 $       130.02% 220,457.73 $  321,090.00 $    100,632.27 -$   68.66%
Expenditures

   Bank Service Charge 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00% 60.70 0.00 60.70 0.00% 60.70 0.00 60.70 0.00%
   Board Lunch Expense 0.00 130.00 -130.00 0.00% 0.00 1,040.00 -1,040.00 0.00% 0.00 1,560.00 -1,560.00 0.00%
   Committee Expense 888.05 1,500.00 -611.95 59.20% 15,446.90 12,920.00 2,526.90 119.56% 15,446.90 18,420.00 -2,973.10 83.86%
   Depreciation Expense 0.00 1,130.00 -1,130.00 0.00% 0.00 9,040.00 -9,040.00 0.00% 0.00 13,560.00 -13,560.00 0.00%
   Dues and Subscriptions 445.76 600.00 -154.24 74.29% 5,154.18 5,450.00 -295.82 94.57% 5,349.14 7,850.00 -2,500.86 68.14%
   Event Expense 239.60 250.00 -10.40 95.84% 41,069.37 52,750.00 -11,680.63 77.86% 41,069.37 59,750.00 -18,680.63 68.74%
   Grant Expense 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00% 7,367.48 2,500.00 4,867.48 294.70% 7,367.48 5,000.00 2,367.48 147.35%
   Insurance 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.00 5,500.00 -5,500.00 0.00%
   Miscellaneous 0.00 150.00 -150.00 0.00% 427.35 1,400.00 -972.65 30.53% 427.35 2,000.00 -1,572.65 21.37%
   Office Supplies 66.05 450.00 -383.95 14.68% 1,920.85 3,600.00 -1,679.15 53.36% 1,980.85 5,400.00 -3,419.15 36.68%
   Payroll Expenses 8,411.17 8,750.00 -338.83 96.13% 56,583.58 67,000.00 -10,416.42 84.45% 57,582.58 102,000.00 -44,417.42 56.45%
   Postage and Delivery 70.22 100.00 -29.78 70.22% 183.22 3,000.00 -2,816.78 6.11% 183.22 3,500.00 -3,316.78 5.23%
   Professional Fees 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00% 2,765.00 5,000.00 -2,235.00 55.30% 2,765.00 7,000.00 -4,235.00 39.50%
   Repairs 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00% 185.98 750.00 -564.02 24.80% 185.98 1,000.00 -814.02 18.60%
   Snow Removal & Lawn Care 155.00 250.00 -95.00 62.00% 645.87 1,350.00 -704.13 47.84% 715.87 2,000.00 -1,284.13 35.79%
   Streetscape Expense 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00% 1,036.33 250.00 786.33 414.53% 1,036.33 500.00 536.33 207.27%
   Telephone 87.54 150.00 -62.46 58.36% 1,013.09 1,200.00 -186.91 84.42% 1,013.09 1,800.00 -786.91 56.28%
   Travel & Training 0.00 100.00 -100.00 0.00% 1,339.71 2,500.00 -1,160.29 53.59% 1,339.71 5,500.00 -4,160.29 24.36%
   Utilities 323.53 375.00 -51.47 86.27% 2,824.70 3,000.00 -175.30 94.16% 2,824.70 4,500.00 -1,675.30 62.77%
Total Expenditures 10,686.92 $       13,935.00 $   3,248.08 -$      76.69% 138,024.31 $   172,750.00 $   34,725.69 -$      79.90% 139,348.27 $  246,840.00 $    107,491.73 -$   56.45%
Net Operating Revenue 5,829.28 -$       9,935.00 -$    4,105.72 $       58.67% 82,433.42 $     3,190.00 -$     85,623.42 $       -2584.12% 81,109.46 $    74,250.00 $      6,859.46 $         109.24%
Other Expenditures

   Restricted Funds 0.00 3,000.00 -3,000.00 0.00% 0.00 24,000.00 -24,000.00 0.00% 0.00 36,000.00 -36,000.00 0.00%
   Whitewater Contribution 0.00 416.67 -416.67 0.00% 0.00 3,333.36 -3,333.36 0.00% 0.00 5,000.00 -5,000.00 0.00%
Total Other Expenditures 0.00 $                3,416.67 $     3,416.67 -$      0.00% 0.00 $              27,333.36 $     27,333.36 -$      0.00% 0.00 $             41,000.00 $      41,000.00 -$     0.00%
Net Other Revenue 0.00 $                3,416.67 -$    3,416.67 $       0.00% 0.00 $              27,333.36 -$   27,333.36 $       0.00% 0.00 $             41,000.00 -$     41,000.00 $       0.00%
Net Revenue 5,829.28 -$       13,351.67 -$  7,522.39 $       43.66% 82,433.42 $     30,523.36 -$   112,956.78 $     -270.07% 81,109.46 $    33,250.00 $      47,859.46 $       243.94%

MONTHLY BUDGET - FEBRUARY MONTHLY BUDGET - JULY TO FEBRUARY ANNUAL BUDGET

152

Item 19.



COMMUNITY MAIN STREET
Income Statement

MARCH 2022     

MONTH 
ACTUAL

MONTH 
BUDGET

ACTUAL TO 
BUDGET 

VARIANCE

% OF 
BUDGET

YEAR TO 
DATE 

ACTUAL

ANNUAL 
BUDGET

ACTUAL TO 
BUDGET 

VARIANCE

% OF 
ANNUAL 
BUDGET

YEAR TO 
DATE 

ACTUAL

ANNUAL 
BUDGET

ACTUAL TO 
BUDGET 

VARIANCE

% OF 
ANNUAL 
BUDGET

Revenue
   Board Income 0.00  0.00  0.00  0.00% 0.00 1,560.00 -1,560.00 0.00% 0.00 1,560.00 -1,560.00 0.00%
   City Funding 0.00  0.00  0.00  0.00% 6,000.00 6,000.00 0.00 100.00% 6,000.00 12,000.00 -6,000.00 50.00%
   Event Income 1,920.00  0.00  1,920.00  0.00% 52,698.40 38,500.00 14,198.40 136.88% 52,698.40 60,280.00 -7,581.60 87.42%
   Friends/Streetscape 1,125.73  3,500.00  -2,374.27  32.16% 8,722.61 7,000.00 1,722.61 124.61% 8,722.61 7,250.00 1,472.61 120.31%
   Grant & other Income 28.44  0.00  28.44  0.00% 2,017.20 0.00 2,017.20 0.00% 2,017.20 0.00 2,017.20 0.00%
   SSMID 0.00  0.00  0.00  0.00% 153,993.69 120,000.00 33,993.69 128.33% 153,993.69 240,000.00 -86,006.31 64.16%
Total Revenue $         3,074.17  $     3,500.00  -$         425.83  87.83% 223,431.90 $   173,060.00 $   50,371.90 $       129.11% 223,431.90 $  321,090.00 $    97,658.10 -$     69.59%
Gross Profit $         3,074.17  $     3,500.00  -$         425.83  87.83% 223,431.90 $   173,060.00 $   50,371.90 $       129.11% 223,431.90 $  321,090.00 $    97,658.10 -$     69.59%
Expenditures
   Bank Service Charge 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00% 60.70 0.00 60.70 0.00% 60.70 0.00 60.70 0.00%
   Board Lunch Expense 0.00 130.00 -130.00 0.00% 0.00 1,170.00 -1,170.00 0.00% 0.00 1,560.00 -1,560.00 0.00%
   Committee Expense 1,160.35 500.00 660.35 232.07% 16,607.25 13,420.00 3,187.25 123.75% 16,607.25 18,420.00 -1,812.75 90.16%
   Depreciation Expense 0.00 1,130.00 -1,130.00 0.00% 0.00 10,170.00 -10,170.00 0.00% 0.00 13,560.00 -13,560.00 0.00%
   Dues and Subscriptions 1,023.14 600.00 423.14 170.52% 6,177.32 6,050.00 127.32 102.10% 6,177.32 7,850.00 -1,672.68 78.69%
   Event Expense 1,295.84 500.00 795.84 259.17% 42,365.21 53,250.00 -10,884.79 79.56% 42,365.21 59,750.00 -17,384.79 70.90%
   Grant Expense 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00% 7,367.48 2,500.00 4,867.48 294.70% 7,367.48 5,000.00 2,367.48 147.35%
   Insurance 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.00 5,500.00 -5,500.00 0.00%
   Miscellaneous 0.00 150.00 -150.00 0.00% 427.35 1,550.00 -1,122.65 27.57% 427.35 2,000.00 -1,572.65 21.37%
   Office Supplies 455.70 450.00 5.70 101.27% 2,376.55 4,050.00 -1,673.45 58.68% 2,376.55 5,400.00 -3,023.45 44.01%
   Payroll Expenses 6,688.79 8,750.00 -2,061.21 76.44% 63,272.37 75,750.00 -12,477.63 83.53% 64,557.70 102,000.00 -37,442.30 63.29%
   Postage and Delivery 116.00 100.00 16.00 116.00% 299.22 3,100.00 -2,800.78 9.65% 450.02 3,500.00 -3,049.98 12.86%
   Professional Fees 0.00 1,000.00 -1,000.00 0.00% 2,765.00 6,000.00 -3,235.00 46.08% 2,765.00 7,000.00 -4,235.00 39.50%
   Repairs 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00% 185.98 750.00 -564.02 24.80% 185.98 1,000.00 -814.02 18.60%
   Snow Removal & Lawn Care 70.00 250.00 -180.00 28.00% 715.87 1,600.00 -884.13 44.74% 715.87 2,000.00 -1,284.13 35.79%
   Streetscape Expense 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00% 1,036.33 250.00 786.33 414.53% 1,036.33 500.00 536.33 207.27%
   Telephone 167.54 150.00 17.54 111.69% 1,180.63 1,350.00 -169.37 87.45% 1,220.63 1,800.00 -579.37 67.81%
   Travel & Training 285.00 150.00 135.00 190.00% 1,624.71 2,650.00 -1,025.29 61.31% 1,812.35 5,500.00 -3,687.65 32.95%
   Utilities 357.31 375.00 -17.69 95.28% 3,182.01 3,375.00 -192.99 94.28% 3,182.01 4,500.00 -1,317.99 70.71%
Total Expenditures 11,619.67 $       14,235.00 $   2,615.33 -$      81.63% 149,643.98 $   186,985.00 $   37,341.02 -$      80.03% 151,307.75 $  246,840.00 $    95,532.25 -$     61.30%
Net Operating Revenue 8,545.50 -$       10,735.00 -$  2,189.50 $       79.60% 73,787.92 $     13,925.00 -$   87,712.92 $       -529.90% 72,124.15 $    74,250.00 $      2,125.85 -$       97.14%
Other Expenditures
   Restricted Funds 0.00 3,000.00 -3,000.00 0.00% 0.00 27,000.00 -27,000.00 0.00% 0.00 36,000.00 -36,000.00 0.00%
   Whitewater Contribution 0.00 416.67 -416.67 0.00% 0.00 3,750.03 -3,750.03 0.00% 0.00 5,000.00 -5,000.00 0.00%
Total Other Expenditures 0.00 $                3,416.67 $     3,416.67 -$      0.00% 0.00 $              30,750.03 $     30,750.03 -$      0.00% 0.00 $             41,000.00 $      41,000.00 -$     0.00%
Net Other Revenue 0.00 $                3,416.67 -$    3,416.67 $       0.00% 0.00 $              30,750.03 -$   30,750.03 $       0.00% 0.00 $             41,000.00 -$     41,000.00 $       0.00%
Net Revenue 8,545.50 -$       14,151.67 -$  5,606.17 $       60.39% 73,787.92 $     44,675.03 -$   118,462.95 $     -165.17% 72,124.15 $    33,250.00 $      38,874.15 $       216.91%

MONTHLY BUDGET - MARCH MONTHLY BUDGET - JULY TO MARCH ANNUAL BUDGET

153

Item 19.



  

 Page 1 or 2 

 

 
February 4, 2022 
 
Dear Community Main Street, 
 
Thank you for completing the 2021-2022 National Main Street America Accreditation Self-
Evaluation. The self-evaluation tool provides each program an opportunity to become 
reacquainted with Main Street America’s expectations and, through a self-reflective process, 
become aware of opportunities for local program growth.   
 
This year’s review revealed some interesting Main Street Iowa network trends: 
 57% of programs increased their program’s operating budget by at least 5% in 2021.  
 49% of MSI programs have achieved 100% board personal giving, an increase of 8% 

over last year.  
 89% of Main Street Executive Directors had a performance review in 2021. This is a 

25% increase from last year. 
 Some concerning programmatic trends:    

o 42% did not use ESRI data 
o Only 23% have written fundraising plans 
o 55% have not used MSI’s online basic training videos 
o 70% have not submitted success stories to Main Street America 
o A sustained trend of programs not utilizing written action plans 

 
After reviewing information and materials submitted by the local Main Street program, 
Community Main Street is eligible for National Main Street Accreditation by achieving a 
minimum of 7 of 10 indicator points for each National Standard and submitting all required 
materials.     
 
Achieving National Main Street Accreditation is an accomplishment to celebrate. In the coming 
months, Main Street America/Main Street Iowa will be sending accreditation certificates for 
display in the local Main Street office. A press release will also be sent to local programs. We 
encourage you connect with local and regional media outlets to promote this accomplishment. 
Your program will also be recognized with other nationally accredited programs at the 2022 
Main Street Now Conference on May 15-18 in Richmond, Virginia.  
 
In order to help strengthen the local Main Street program’s operational foundation, Main Street 
Iowa provides the following recommendations. 
 

 There is a growing trend of local boards and committees becoming smaller in size and less 
diverse with professional makeup and culturally diverse representation. (Standard #1)*  

 Be deliberate with each committee/task force on the development and use of activity level written 
action plans to assist with accountability, communication, mission-driven work, and 
implementation of activities. (Standard #3)*   

 A key element to a strong asset-based economic development strategy is historic preservation. 
Consider how the local Main Street program will communicate and market the importance of 
historic preservation to the community. Contact Main Street Iowa Design Team to assist in 
development of strategies to enhance local preservation ethic. (Standard #4)*  

154

Item 19.



  Page 2 or 2 

 Invest time in 2022 strengthening core committees and traditional Board responsibilities. 
(Standard #5)*  

 Enhance fundraising efforts by creating a comprehensive written fundraising plan and diversifying 
sources of Main Street operating income including at 25% from stakeholders in the Main Street 
district. (Standard #6)*   

 Encourage board members and staff to take advantage of Main Street Iowa’s online and in-
person trainings and technical assistance opportunities. (Standard #8)*   

 Be proactive by frequently sharing the district’s reinvestment statistics with district stakeholders 
and public (e.g. within public presentations, annual reports, annual meetings, etc.). (Standard #9)  

 Submit at least one local Main Street program success story to Main Street America in 2022. 
Stories can be sent to Main Street America at mainstreetnews@savingplaces.org. (Standard 
#10)* 

 Board/committee members should be visiting all businesses in the district on a regular basis. 
(Standard #1) 

 Executive Director’s name is listed too often on action plans. (Standard #3)   
 “Committee” is listed too often on action plans. (Standard #3)     
 Main Street Iowa highly recommends every board have 100% individual board member financial 

investment to demonstrate personal buy-in for the program’s mission work. (Standard #5)  
 To accommodate for program growth and cost of living increases, ensure that operating income 

sources are increased by at least 5% in future budget years. (Standard #6) 
 Complete, share, and utilize current key statistics of the Main Street district. (Standard #9) 

 
 

*General recommendations provided to all designated Main Street Iowa programs. 
 
Additional resources and document examples can be found in the Online Community 
Resources Examples link found on the Main Street Iowa page under the “External Links” 
heading.  
 
If you have any questions about the National Accreditation process, please don’t hesitate to 
contact Michael Wagler (515.348.6184 or Michael.Wagler@iowaEDA.com). 
 
On behalf of the Main Street Iowa team,  
 
 
 
 
 
Michael Wagler 
Main Street Iowa Coordinator  
PH: 515.348.6184  |  Email: Michael.Wagler@iowaEDA.com  
 

155

Item 19.

mailto:mainstreetnews@savingplaces.org
https://iowaeconomicdevelopment.sharepoint.com/sites/f2a9578c-8906-4b6c-a0a9-2d7064d88ce2/Shared%20Documents/Forms/AllItems.aspx?id=%2Fsites%2Ff2a9578c%2D8906%2D4b6c%2Da0a9%2D2d7064d88ce2%2FShared%20Documents%2FGeneral%2F4%20Points%2FResource%5FExamples%5FOnline&p=true&originalPath=aHR0cHM6Ly9pb3dhZWNvbm9taWNkZXZlbG9wbWVudC5zaGFyZXBvaW50LmNvbS86Zjovcy9mMmE5NTc4Yy04OTA2LTRiNmMtYTBhOS0yZDcwNjRkODhjZTIvRXBKOXU1aXRLbzVCdXozcG9xUTZKVElCb210dDBvU1hTZ2M0RFJkLUk1UEthQT9ydGltZT11Uk0xVklhZjEwZw
https://iowaeconomicdevelopment.sharepoint.com/sites/f2a9578c-8906-4b6c-a0a9-2d7064d88ce2/Shared%20Documents/Forms/AllItems.aspx?id=%2Fsites%2Ff2a9578c%2D8906%2D4b6c%2Da0a9%2D2d7064d88ce2%2FShared%20Documents%2FGeneral%2F4%20Points%2FResource%5FExamples%5FOnline&p=true&originalPath=aHR0cHM6Ly9pb3dhZWNvbm9taWNkZXZlbG9wbWVudC5zaGFyZXBvaW50LmNvbS86Zjovcy9mMmE5NTc4Yy04OTA2LTRiNmMtYTBhOS0yZDcwNjRkODhjZTIvRXBKOXU1aXRLbzVCdXozcG9xUTZKVElCb210dDBvU1hTZ2M0RFJkLUk1UEthQT9ydGltZT11Uk0xVklhZjEwZw
mailto:Michael.Wagler@iowaEDA.com
mailto:Michael.Wagler@iowaEDA.com


156

Item 20.



157

Item 20.



158

Item 20.



159

Item 20.



160

Item 20.



161

Item 20.



162

Item 20.



163

Item 20.



164

Item 20.



165

Item 20.



166

Item 20.



   DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY SERVICES 

  POLICE OPERATIONS 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 

  4600 SOUTH MAIN STREET 
  CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
 

  319-273-8612 
 

MEMORANDUM 

To:  Mayor Green and City Councilmembers 

From:  Craig Berte, Acting Public Safety Services Director 

  Mark Howard, Acting Police Chief 

Date:  April 25, 2022 

Re:  Beer/Liquor License Applications 

Police Operations has received applications for liquor licenses and/ or wine or beer 
permits. We find no records that would prohibit these license and permits and 
recommend approval. 

Name of Applicants:  

a) Holiday Inn Express & Suites, 1614 Technology Parkway, Class C beer - renewal. 

b) Double Tap, 312 Main Street, Class C liquor - renewal. 

c) Voodoo Lounge, 401 Main Street, Class C liquor - renewal. 

d) Casey's General Store, 2425 Center Street, Class E liquor - renewal. 

e)  Walgreens, 2509 Whitetail Drive, Class E liquor - renewal. 

f) Casey's General Store, 2425 Center Street, Class E liquor – change in ownership. 

g) Live to 9, 200 Block of State Street and 100 Block of East 2nd Street including 
adjacent sidewalks, Class B beer & outdoor service – seven  5 day permits (May 
31-June 4, June 7-11, June 14-18, July 5-9, July 12-16, July 19-23, and July 26-
30). 

h) Dior’s Slushee & Bar LLC, 2211 College Street, Class C liquor – new. 

167

Item 21.



1 

 

   DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE AND BUSINESS OPERATIONS 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
PHONE 319-273-8600 
FAX 319-268-5126 

     M E M O R A N D U M 
Legal Services Division 

 TO: Mayor Green, City Council 

 FROM: Kevin Rogers, City Attorney 

 DATE: April 25, 2022 

 SUBJECT:  Administrative Policy No. 7 changes 
 
 

Please find attached proposed changes to Administrative Policy No. 7, City Council 

Meeting Procedures.  These changes reflect consensus reached during the Council 

Work Session on April 4, 2022, regarding standing committees.  No other changes to 

Administrative Rule No. 7 are necessary and no ordinance changes are proposed at 

this time.   

 

Please feel free to contact me with any questions.  

168

Item 22.



               Administrative Policy No. 07  

 

Subject:  City Council Meeting Procedures 

 

Adopted:  01/28/91 Amended: 04/2003; 10/2006; 12/2013, 09/15/2014, 

10/06/2014, 03/07/2016, 03/06/2017, 04/03/2017, 04/16/2018, 2/1/2021  
 
 

Rule 70.  Appointment of committees; standing committees enumerated. All 
standing committees shall be appointed by the mayor and all special committees shall 
be appointed by the mayor unless specifically directed by the council.  All standing com-
mittees of the council shall be appointed by the mayor annually at the first regular 
meeting of the council in January of each year, or as soon thereafter as practicable, and 
the first person named on each committee shall be the chair of such committee.  (Sec. 
2-68) 

 
The following shall be the standing committees: 
 

a) Administration. 
b) Public WorksCommittee of the Whole. 
c) Community Relations and Planning. 
b)d) Committee of the Whole. 

 
Except for matters which the Cedar Falls Code of Ordinances, or the express provisions 
of these rules, specifically direct be submitted to the Administration Committee, or 
except as otherwise directed by the council, it is the desire and intent of the council that 
all matters which are referred, or which are to be referred, to a committee of the council, 
shall be referred to the council’s Committee of the Whole.  Referrals shall be made to 
the Administration, Public Works or Community Relations and Planning Committees, 
except for matters which, in the judgment of the Mayor or Council, are extraordinary or 
are of significant public interest, which shall be referred to the Committee of the Whole.   
 

Rule 71.  Number of committee members. 
The standing committees of the council shall consist of all seven members, with the 
Mayor serving as non-voting chair of the committee of the whole.  All special 
committees shall consist of five members each, unless some other number is specified.   
(Sec. 2-69) 
 

169

Item 22.



   DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE & BUSINESS OPERATIONS 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
319-273-8600 
FAX 319-268-5126 

     I N T E R O F F I C E   M E M O R A N D U M 
 

 TO: Mayor Green & City Council Members 

 FROM: Jennifer Rodenbeck, Director of Finance & Business Operations 

 DATE: April 25, 2022 

 SUBJECT:  State Revolving Fund (SRF) - Interest Reduction 

 
In 2011, the City of Cedar Falls received a loan through the Iowa Finance Authority 
(IFA) under their State Revolving Fund (SRF) for approximately $7 million to help 
finance the large disinfection project at the sewer treatment facility.  The loan was for a 
20 year period and principal payments began in 2014.  At that time, the 3% rate on the 
SRF was the best option for rates at that time.  We were notified that the IFA has 
decreased the interest rate on the loan from 3% to 1.75%.  This will save the City’s 
sewer fund approximately $376,300 in interest costs over the next 12 years.  In order to 
receive this reduction in rate, the City needs to pass the attached resolution amending 
the loan agreement with IFA.   

 

 
If you have any questions, please feel free to contact me.  

170

Item 23.



 

 

ITEMS TO INCLUDE ON AGENDA 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

 

 

$4,720,000 Sewer Revenue Capital Loan Note, Series 2022 (2011 – Rate Reset) 

 

  Resolution approving and authorizing Amendment to Loan and Disbursement Agreement 

by and between the City of Cedar Falls and the Iowa Finance Authority, and authorizing 

and providing for the reissuance of the $4,720,000 Sewer Revenue Capital Loan Note, 

Series 2022 (2011 – Rate Reset). 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

NOTICE MUST BE GIVEN PURSUANT TO IOWA CODE 

CHAPTER 21 AND THE LOCAL RULES OF THE CITY. 

 

 

 

 

  

171

Item 23.



 

- 1 - 

 

May 2, 2022  

 

The City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa, met in __Regular_______ 

session, at the Community Center, 528 Main Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa, at __________P.M., on the 

above date.  There were present Mayor _______________, in the chair, and the following named 

Council Members: 

 

 

__________________________________________________ 

 

 

Absent: ___________________________________________ 

 

 

Vacant: ___________________________________________ 

 

 

* * * * * * *  

  

  

172

Item 23.



 

- 2 - 

 

 Council Member ________________________ introduced the following Resolution 

entitled "A RESOLUTION APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING AN AMENDMENT TO 

LOAN AND DISBURSEMENT AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN THE CITY OF CEDAR 

FALLS AND THE IOWA FINANCE AUTHORITY, AND AUTHORIZING AND PROVIDING 

FOR THE REISSUANCE OF THE $4,720,000 SEWER REVENUE CAPITAL LOAN NOTE, 

SERIES 2022 (2011 – RATE RESET), OF THE CITY", and moved its adoption. Council Member 

__________________________ seconded the motion to adopt.  The roll was called and the vote 

was: 

 

AYES:   ________________________________________ 

 

 

    ________________________________________ 

 

 

NAYS:  _________________________________________ 

 

Whereupon the Mayor _________________________ declared the following Resolution 

duly adopted: 

 

 

  

173

Item 23.



 

- 3 - 

 

RESOLUTION NO: ________ 

 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING AN 

AMENDMENT TO LOAN AND DISBURSEMENT 

AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN THE CITY OF CEDAR 

FALLS AND THE IOWA FINANCE AUTHORITY, AND 

AUTHORIZING AND PROVIDING FOR THE REISSUANCE 

OF THE $4,720,000 SEWER REVENUE CAPITAL LOAN 

NOTE, SERIES 2022 (2011 – RATE RESET), OF THE CITY 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Cedar Falls (hereinafter the "Issuer") previously issued its Sewer 

Revenue Capital Loan Note, Series 2011, dated August 10, 2011, in the amount of $21,064,000 

(hereinafter the "Notes") currently outstanding in the amount of $4,720,000, pursuant to a Loan 

and Disbursement Agreement between Issuer, and the Iowa Finance Authority, dated of like date 

(the "Agreement"), for the purpose of defraying the costs of the Project (as defined in the 

resolution authorizing issuance of the same (hereinafter the "Resolution")); and 

 

WHEREAS, the Iowa Finance Authority, as Original Purchaser and current holder of the 

Notes, has authorized a reduction in the interest rate on the Notes to 1.75%; and 

 

WHEREAS, an Amendment to the Loan and Disbursement Agreement (hereinafter the 

"Amendment") has been prepared to reflect said interest rate reduction, a copy of which is attached 

hereto as Exhibit A; and 

 

WHEREAS, pursuant to IRS regulations adoption of the Amendment constitutes a 

reissuance of the Notes. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

CEDAR FALLS, IN THE COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK, STATE OF IOWA: 

 

Section 1. That the Resolution is hereby amended to reflect the interest rate reduction 

to 1.75% per annum on the outstanding principal amount from and after 

December 1, 2021 for the remainder of the life of the Notes. 

 

Section 2. That the Amendment in substantially in the form attached to this Resolution 

is hereby authorized to be executed and issued on behalf of the Issuer by the 

Mayor and attested by the City Clerk.   

 

Section 3. That the Finance Director is hereby authorized to execute and deliver a 

Supplemental Tax Certificate in connection with the Amendment, 

affirming the tax covenants made by the City with respect to the Note at the 

time of the issuance thereof.  

 

174

Item 23.



 

- 4 - 

 

Section 4.  Except as amended herein, all of the other terms and conditions of the 

Resolution and Agreement are in all respects ratified, confirmed and 

approved and shall remain in full effect. 

 

PASSED AND APPROVED this 2nd day of May, 2022.   

 

 

______________________________________ 

Robert M. Green, Mayor  

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

________________________________ 

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

 

 

175

Item 23.



 

 

 

  

CERTIFICATE 

 

STATE OF IOWA 

 

COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK 

) 

) SS 

) 

 

I, the undersigned City Clerk of the City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa, do hereby certify 

that attached is a true and complete copy of the portion of the records of the City showing 

proceedings of the Council, and the same is a true and complete copy of the action taken by the 

Council with respect to the matter at the meeting held on the date indicated in the attachment, 

which proceedings remain in full force and effect, and have not been amended or rescinded in any 

way; that meeting and all action thereat was duly and publicly held in accordance with a notice of 

meeting and tentative agenda, a copy of which was timely served on each member of the Council 

and posted on a bulletin board or other prominent place easily accessible to the public and clearly 

designated for that purpose at the principal office of the Council pursuant to the local rules of the 

Council and the provisions of Chapter 21, Code of Iowa, upon reasonable advance notice to the 

public and media at least twenty-four hours prior to the commencement of the meeting as required 

by law and with members of the public present in attendance; I further certify that the individuals 

named therein were on the date thereof duly and lawfully possessed of their respective City offices 

as indicated therein, that no Council vacancy existed except as may be stated in the proceedings, 

and that no controversy or litigation is pending, prayed or threatened involving the incorporation, 

organization, existence or boundaries of the City or the right of the individuals named therein as 

officers to their respective positions. 

 

WITNESS my hand and the seal of the Council hereto affixed this ____ day of May, 2022. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

(SEAL) 

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa 

 

  

176

Item 23.



 

 

 

EXHIBIT A 

 AMENDMENT TO LOAN AND DISBURSEMENT AGREEMENT 

 

 

The Loan and Disbursement Agreement (Sewer Revenue) (the "Agreement") entered into 

as of August 10, 2011 by and between the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa (the "City" or "Issuer"), and 

the Iowa Finance Authority, as lender (the "Lender"), relating to a loan from the Lender to the City 

in the original amount of $21,064,000, currently outstanding in the aggregate amount of 

$4,720,000, is hereby amended as follows: 

 

1. The applicable interest rate for the Agreement shall be changed to 1.75%, effective 

as of December 1, 2021, and the Agreement shall thereafter be payable in accordance with the debt 

service schedule attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference. 

 

2. Except as amended herein, all of the other terms and conditions of the Agreement 

are in all respects ratified, confirmed and approved and shall remain in full effect. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, we have hereunto affixed our signatures all as of the _____ day 

of _______________, 2021. 

 

 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

(SEAL) 

 

By: ______________________________   

Robert M. Green, Mayor 

Attest: 

 

 

 

________________________________ 

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

 

  

177

Item 23.



 

 

 

IOWA FINANCE AUTHORITY 

 

 

 

By: ____________________________ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
02038649-1\10283-115 

 

178

Item 23.



 

- 1 - 

SUPPLEMENTAL TAX CERTIFICATE  

OF 

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

 

 

 The undersigned officers of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa (the "City"), hereby certify as 

follows: 

 

 1. The Council of the City of Cedar Falls ("Council"), acting at a meeting duly 

called and held on May 2, 2022, has authorized the execution and delivery of an Amendment to 

the Loan and Disbursement Agreement originally dated as of August 10, 2011 ("Agreement") by 

and between the Council and the Iowa Finance Authority ("Purchaser"), and approved a 

resolution ("Supplemental Resolution") amending the resolution approved by the Council on 

July 25, 2011 ("Original Bond Resolution"), which Original Bond Resolution authorized the 

issuance and delivery of $21,064,000 Sewer Revenue Capital Loan Note, Series 2011, dated 

August 10, 2011, of the City ("Original Note"). 

 

 2. The officers whose name, title and signature appear below were, on the date or 

dates of the execution of the instruments referred to in paragraph 1 hereof, and are on the date 

hereof, the duly elected and qualified incumbents of the offices of the City set opposite their 

names and the signatures appearing below are the genuine signatures of said officers.  

 

 3. We have reviewed the representations, covenants and warranties contained in the 

Tax Exemption Certificate dated August 10, 2011 ("Tax Certificate") executed on behalf of the 

City in connection with the issuance of the Original Note.  A true and accurate copy of the Tax 

Exemption Certificate is attached hereto as Exhibit A. 

 

 4. The description of the Project set forth in Section II of the Tax Certificate 

accurately describes the Project as constructed and as it exists and is used as of the date hereof, 

and there has been no change in the use of the Project since the Original Note was issued.   

 

5. The construction of the Project has been completed, and all of the proceeds of the 

Original Note were expended on the costs of the Project, in the amounts and as described 

Sections II and III of the Tax Certificate. 

 

6. Not more than 10% of the proceeds of the Original Note or the facilities financed 

thereby, are to be used (directly or indirectly) or were used in a trade or business carried on by 

any person (other than a governmental unit), and not more 10% of the payment of the principal 

of or interest on the Original Note are (directly or indirectly): (i) secured by any interest in 

property used or to be used in such trade or business or payments in respect of such property; or 

(ii) derived from payments (whether or not to the City) in respect of property or borrowed money 

used or to be used in such a trade or business, all within the meaning of Section 141(a) of the 

Code. 

 

7. During the term of the Original Note, and at all times prior to the date hereof, no 

private business use will be made or has been made of the Project, and no payments or security 

179

Item 23.



 

- 2 - 

will be made or furnished or has been made or furnished that would cause the Original Note to 

be a "private activity bond" within the meaning of Section 141 of the Code and applicable 

regulations.   

 

8. The covenants of the City contained in the Tax Certificate are hereby ratified, 

confirmed and approved and shall continue to be binding upon the City as if set forth fully 

herein.  This certificate is intended and is being delivered in order to meet the requirements of 

Section 148 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and Treasury Regulation 1-

148(2)(b).  

  

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has hereunto set my hand this _____ day of 

_______________, 2022. 

 

 

     CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

 

 

    By: _______________________________ 

     Jennifer Rodenbeck, Finance Director 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 

02038650-1\10283-115 

180

Item 23.



Form 8038-G
(Rev. October 2021)

Department of the Treasury 
Internal Revenue Service

Information Return for Tax-Exempt Governmental Bonds
▶ Under Internal Revenue Code section 149(e) 

▶ See separate instructions. 
Caution: If the issue price is under $100,000, use Form 8038-GC. 

▶ Go to www.irs.gov/F8038G for instructions and the latest information. 

OMB No. 1545-0047

Part I Reporting Authority Check box if Amended Return ▶
1    Issuer’s name 2    Issuer’s employer identification number (EIN)

3a  Name of person (other than issuer) with whom the IRS may communicate about this return (see instructions) 3b  Telephone number of other person shown on 3a

4    Number and street (or P.O. box if mail is not delivered to street address) Room/suite 5    Report number (For IRS Use Only)

3 
6    City, town, or post office, state, and ZIP code 7    Date of issue

8    Name of issue 9    CUSIP number

10a  Name and title of officer or other employee of the issuer whom the IRS may call for more information 10b  Telephone number of officer or other 
employee shown on 10a

Part II Type of Issue (Enter the issue price.) See the instructions and attach schedule.
11 Education . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 11 
12 Health and hospital . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12 
13 Transportation . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 13 
14 Public safety . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 14 
15 Environment (including sewage bonds) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 15 
16 Housing . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 16 
17 Utilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 17 
18 Other. Describe ▶ 18 
19 a If bonds are TANs or RANs, check only box 19a  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  ▶

b If bonds are BANs, check only box 19b . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  ▶
20 If bonds are in the form of a lease or installment sale, check box . . . . . . . . .  ▶

Part III Description of Bonds. Complete for the entire issue for which this form is being filed.

21 

(a) Final maturity date (b) Issue price
(c) Stated redemption 

price at maturity
(d) Weighted 

average maturity
(e) Yield

$ $ years % 
Part IV Uses of Proceeds of Bond Issue (including underwriters’ discount)
22 Proceeds used for accrued interest . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 22 
23 Issue price of entire issue (enter amount from line 21, column (b)) . . . . . . . . . . . 23 
24 Proceeds used for bond issuance costs (including underwriters’ discount)  24 
25 Proceeds used for credit enhancement . . . . . . . . . . . . 25 
26 Proceeds allocated to reasonably required reserve or replacement fund . 26 
27 Proceeds used to refund prior tax-exempt bonds. Complete Part V . . . 27 
28 Proceeds used to refund prior taxable bonds. Complete Part V . . . . 28 
29 Total (add lines 24 through 28) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 29 
30 Nonrefunding proceeds of the issue (subtract line 29 from line 23 and enter amount here) . . . 30 
Part V Description of Refunded Bonds. Complete this part only for refunding bonds.
31 Enter the remaining weighted average maturity of the tax-exempt bonds to be refunded . . .  ▶ years
32 Enter the remaining weighted average maturity of the taxable bonds to be refunded . . . .  ▶ years
33 Enter the last date on which the refunded tax-exempt bonds will be called (MM/DD/YYYY)  . .  ▶
34 Enter the date(s) the refunded bonds were issued ▶ (MM/DD/YYYY)

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see separate instructions. Cat. No. 63773S Form 8038-G (Rev. 10-2021)

City of Cedar Falls, Iowa 42-6004332

220 Clay Street

Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 05/02/2022

$4,720,000 Sewer Revenue Capital Loan Notes, Series 2022 (2011 Rate Reset) NA

Lisa Roeding, Controller/City Treasurer (319) 273-8600

4,720,000

06/01/2033 4,720,000 4,720,000 5.959 1.750093

-0-

4,720,000

-0-

-0-

-0-

4,720,000

-0-

4,720,000

-0-

5.959

NA

5/2/2022

08/10/2011

181

Item 23.



Form 8038-G (Rev. 10-2021) Page 2 
Part VI Miscellaneous
35 Enter the amount of the state volume cap allocated to the issue under section 141(b)(5) . . . . 35 
 36 a Enter the amount of gross proceeds invested or to be invested in a guaranteed investment contract  

(GIC). See instructions . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 36a
b Enter the final maturity date of the GIC ▶ (MM/DD/YYYY)
c Enter the name of the GIC provider ▶

37 Pooled financings:  Enter the amount of the proceeds of this issue that are to be used to make loans
to other governmental units . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 37 

38 a If this issue is a loan made from the proceeds of another tax-exempt issue, check box ▶ and enter the following information: 
b Enter the date of the master pool bond ▶ (MM/DD/YYYY)
c Enter the EIN of the issuer of the master pool bond ▶

d Enter the name of the issuer of the master pool bond ▶

39 If the issuer has designated the issue under section 265(b)(3)(B)(i)(III) (small issuer exception), check box . . . .  ▶

40 If the issuer has elected to pay a penalty in lieu of arbitrage rebate, check box . . . . . . . . . . . . .  ▶

41 a If the issuer has identified a hedge, check here ▶ and enter the following information:
b Name of hedge provider ▶

c Type of hedge ▶

d Term of hedge ▶

42 If the issuer has superintegrated the hedge, check box . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  ▶

43 If the issuer has established written procedures to ensure that all nonqualified bonds of this issue are remediated 
according to the requirements under the Code and Regulations (see instructions), check box . . . . . . . .  ▶

44 If the issuer has established written procedures to monitor the requirements of section 148, check box . . . . .  ▶

45a If some portion of the proceeds was used to reimburse expenditures, check here ▶ and enter the amount
of reimbursement . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  ▶

b Enter the date the official intent was adopted ▶ (MM/DD/YYYY)

Signature 
and  
Consent

Under penalties of perjury, I declare that I have examined this return and accompanying schedules and statements, and to the best of my knowledge  
and belief, they are true, correct, and complete. I further declare that I consent to the IRS’s disclosure of the issuer’s return information, as necessary to 
process this return, to the person that I have authorized above.

▲

Signature of issuer’s authorized representative Date

▲

Type or print name and title

Paid 
Preparer 
Use Only

Print/Type preparer’s name Preparer’s signature Date Check         if 
self-employed

PTIN

Firm’s name     ▶

Firm’s address ▶

Firm’s EIN ▶

Phone no.

Form 8038-G (Rev. 10-2021)

✔

52-1699886

see attached schedules I

✔

✔

J. Eric Boehlert P01077288

Ahlers & Cooney, P.C.

100 Court Ave., Ste, 600, Des Moines, Iowa 50309

42-1323559

515-243-7611

182

Item 23.



Loan ID C0404R
Dated Date 8/10/2011
Loan Amount $21,064,000.00 (Unused - $14,065,896.04)
Interest Savings $376,300.00

Current Interest Servicing New Interest Servicing New Annual
Date Principal 3.00% Fee Principal 1.75% Fee Debt Service
12/1/2021 70,800.00 70,800.00

6/1/2022 328,000.00 70,800.00 11,800.00 328,000.00 41,300.00 11,800.00 451,900.00
12/1/2022 65,880.00 38,430.00

6/1/2023 339,000.00 65,880.00 10,980.00 339,000.00 38,430.00 10,980.00 426,840.00
12/1/2023 60,795.00 35,463.75

6/1/2024 350,000.00 60,795.00 10,132.50 350,000.00 35,463.75 10,132.50 431,060.00
12/1/2024 55,545.00 32,401.25

6/1/2025 361,000.00 55,545.00 9,257.50 361,000.00 32,401.25 9,257.50 435,060.00
12/1/2025 50,130.00 29,242.50

6/1/2026 373,000.00 50,130.00 8,355.00 373,000.00 29,242.50 8,355.00 439,840.00
12/1/2026 44,535.00 25,978.75

6/1/2027 385,000.00 44,535.00 7,422.50 385,000.00 25,978.75 7,422.50 444,380.00
12/1/2027 38,760.00 22,610.00

6/1/2028 397,000.00 38,760.00 6,460.00 397,000.00 22,610.00 6,460.00 448,680.00
12/1/2028 32,805.00 19,136.25

6/1/2029 410,000.00 32,805.00 5,467.50 410,000.00 19,136.25 5,467.50 453,740.00
12/1/2029 26,655.00 15,548.75

6/1/2030 423,000.00 26,655.00 4,442.50 423,000.00 15,548.75 4,442.50 458,540.00
12/1/2030 20,310.00 11,847.50

6/1/2031 437,000.00 20,310.00 3,385.00 437,000.00 11,847.50 3,385.00 464,080.00
12/1/2031 13,755.00 8,023.75

6/1/2032 451,000.00 13,755.00 2,292.50 451,000.00 8,023.75 2,292.50 469,340.00
12/1/2032 6,990.00 4,077.50

6/1/2033 466,000.00 6,990.00 1,165.00 466,000.00 4,077.50 1,165.00 475,320.00
4,720,000.00 973,920.00 81,160.00 4,720,000.00 597,620.00 81,160.00 5,398,780.00

Current Schedule New Debt Schedule

Cedar Falls
*** Effective 12.1.21 ***

183

Item 23.



COMPLETE AND RETURN TO
R. MARK CORY

CIG22

TAX EXEMPTION CERTIFICATE

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA

THIS TAX EXEMPTION CERTIFICATE made and entered into on August 10,

2011, by the City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa (the "Issuer").

INTRODUCTION

This Certificate is executed and delivered in connection with the issuance by the

Issuer of its $21,064,000 Sewer Revenue Capital Loan Note, Series 2011 (the "Bonds").
The Bonds are issued pursuant to the provisions of the Resolution of the Issuer

authorizing the issuance of the Bonds. Such Resolution provides that the covenants

contained in this Certificate constitute apart of the Issuer's contract with the owners of
the Bonds.

The Issuer recognizes that under the Code (as defined below) the tax-exempt

status of the interest received by the owners of the Bonds is dependent upon, among other

things, the facts, circumstances, and reasonable expectations of the Issuer as to future

facts not in existence at this time, as well as the observance of certain covenants in the

future. The Issuer covenants that it will take such action with respect to the Bonds as

may be required by the Code, and pertinent legal regulations issued thereunder in order to

establish and maintain the tax-exempt status of the Bonds, including the observance of all

specific covenants contained in the Resolution and this Certificate'

ARTICLE I

DEFINITIONS

The following terms as used in this Certificate shall have the meanings set forth

below. The terms defined in the Resolution shall retain the meanings set forth therein

when used in this Certificate. Other terms used in this Certificate shall have the

meanings set forth in the Code or in the Regulations.

-1

184

Item 23.



"Annual Debt Service" means the principal of and interest on the Bonds scheduled

to be paid during a given Bond Year.

"Bonds" means the $21,064,000 aggregate principal amount of a Sewer Revenue

Capital Loan Note of the Issuer issued in registered form pursuant to the Resolution.

"Bond Counsel" means Ahlers & Cooney, P.C., Des Moines, Iowa, or an attorney

atlaw or a firm of attorneys of nationally recognized standing in matters pertaining to the

tax-exempt status of interest on obligations issued by states and their political
subdivisions, duly admitted to the practice of law before the highest court of any State of
the United States of America.

"Bond Fund" means the Sinking Fund described in the Resolution.

"Bond Year", as defined in Regulation 1.148-l(b), means a one-year period

beginning on the day after expiration of the preceding Bond Year. The first Bond Year

shall be the one-year or shorter period beginning on the Closing Date and ending on a

principal or interest payment date, unless Issuer selects another date.

"Bond Yield" means that discount rate which produces an amount equal to the

Issue Price of the Bonds when used in computing the present value of all payments of
principal and interest to be paid on the Bonds, using semiannual compounding on a360-
day year as computed under Regulation 1.148-4.

"Certificate" means this Tax Exemption Certificate.

"Closing" means the delivery of the Bonds in exchange for the agreed upon
purchase price.

"Closing Date" means the date of Closing.

"Code" means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and any statutes

which replace or supplement the Internal Revenue Code of 1986.

"Computation Date" means each five-year period from the Closing Date through
the last day of the fifth and each succeeding fifth Bond Year.

"Excess Earnings" means the amount earned on all Nonpurpose Investments
minus the amount which would have been earned if such Nonpurpose Investments were
invested at a rate equal to the Bond Yield, plus any income attributable to such excess.

-2-

185

Item 23.



"Final Bond Retirement Date" means the date on which the Bonds are actually

paid in tull.

"Governmental Obligations" means direct general obligations of, or obligations

the timely payment of the principal of and interest on which is unconditionally
guaranteed by the United States.

"Gross Proceeds", as defined in Regulation 1.14S-l(b), means any Proceeds of the

Bonds and any replacement proceeds (as defined in Regulation l.la8-1(c)) of the Bonds.

"Gross Proceeds Funds" means the Project Fund and any other fund or account

held for the benefit of the owners of the Bonds or containing Gross Proceeds of the

Bonds except the Bond Fund and the Rebate Fund.

"Issue Price", as defined in Regulation 1.148-l(b), means the initial offering price

of the Bonds to the public (not including bond houses, brokers or similar persons or

organizations acting in the capacity of underwriters or wholesalers) at which price a

substantial amount of the Bonds were sold to the public. The Purchasers have certified
the Issue Price to be not more than $21,064,000.

"Issuer" means the City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa.

"Minor Portion of the Bonds", as defined in Regulation 1.148-2(9), means the

lesser of five (5) percent of Proceeds or $ 100,000. The Minor Portion of the Bonds is

computed to be $100,000.

"Nonpurpose Investments" means any investment property which is acquired with
Gross Proceeds and is not acquired to carry out the governmental purpose of the Bonds,

and may include but is not limited to U.S. Treasury bonds, corporate bonds, or

certificates of deposit.

"Proceeds", as defined in Regulation 1.148-l(b), means Sale Proceeds, investment

proceeds and transferred proceeds of the Bonds.

"Project" means the acquisition, construction, reconstruction, extending,

remodeling, improving, repairing and equipping all or part of the Municipal Sewer

System, as more fully described in the Resolution.

"Project Fund" means the fund established in the Resolution.

3

186

Item 23.



"Purchaser" means the Iowa Finance Authority, Des Moines, Iowa, constituting
the initial purchaser of the Bonds from the Issuer.

"Rebate Amount" means the amount computed as described in this Certificate.

"Rebate Fund" means the fund to be created, if necessary, pursuant to this
Certificate.

"Rebate Payment Date" means a date chosen by the Issuer which is not morg than

60 days following each Computation Date or the Final Bond Retirement Date.

"Regulations" msans the Income Tax Regulations, amendments and successor

provisions promulgated by the Department of the Treasury under Sections 103, 148 and

149 of the Code, or other Sections of the Code relating to "arbitrage bonds", including
without limitation Regulations 1.148-l through 1.148-l l, 1.149(b)-1, 1.149-d(l), 1.150-1

and 1.150-2.

"Replacement Proceeds" include, but are not limited to, sinking funds, amounts

that are pledged as security for an issue, and amounts that are replaced because of a
sufficiently direct nexus to a governmental pu{pose of an issue.

"Resolution" means the resolution of the Issuer adopted on July 25,2011
authorizing the issuance of the Bonds.

"Sale Proceeds", as defined in Regulation 1.148-l(b), means any amounts actually
or constructively received from the sale of the Bonds, including amounts used to pay

underwriter's discount or compensation and accrued interest other than pre-issuance

accrued interest.

"Sinking Fund" means the Bond Fund.

"Tax Exempt Obligations" means bonds or other obligations the interest on which
is excludable from the gross income of the owners thereof under Section 103 of the Code

and include certain regulated investment companies, stock in tax-exempt mutual funds

and demand deposit SLGS.

"Taxable Obligations" means all investment property, obligations or securities

other than Tax Exempt Obligations.

"Verification Certificate" means the certificate attached to this Certificate as

Exhibit A, establishing that the Purchaser will not reoffer or sell the BondS to the public.

-4-

187

Item 23.



ARTICLE II

SPECIFIC CERTIFICATIONS, REPRESENTATIONS
AND AGREEMENTS

The Issuer hereby certifies, represents and agrees as follows:

Section 2.1 Authoritv to Certifu and Exoectations

(a) The undersigned officer of the Issuer along with other officers of the Issuer,

are charged with the responsibility of issuing the Bonds.

(b) This Certificate is being executed and delivered in part for the purposes

specified in Section 1.148-2(b)(2) of the Regulations and is intended (among other

purposes) to establish reasonable expectations of the Issuer at this time.

(c) The Issuer has not been notified of any disqualification or proposed

disqualification of it by the Commissioner of the Internal Revenue Service as a bond

issuer which may certify bond issues under Section 1.148-2(b)(2) of the Regulations.

(d) The certifications, representations and agreements set forth in this Article II
are made on the basis of the facts, estimates and circumstances in existence on the date

hereof, including the following: (1) with respect to amounts expected to be received

from delivery of the Bonds, amounts actually received, (2) with respect to payments of
amounts into various funds or accounts, review of the authorizations or directions for

such payments made by the Issuer pursuant to the Resolution and this Certificate, (3)

with respect to the Issue Price, the certifications of the Purchaser as set forth in the

Verification Certificate, (4) with respect to expenditure of the Proceeds of the Bonds,

actual expenditures and reasonable expectations of the Issuer as to when the Proceeds

will be spent for purposes of the Project, (5) with respect to amounts reasonably required

in a reserve fund, the expectations of the Issuer as to amounts necessary to provide for

unforeseen financial difficulties, (6) with respect to Bond Yield, review of the

Verification Certificate, and (7) with respect to the amount of governmental and Code

Section 501(cX3) bonds to be issued during the calendar year, the budgeting and present

planning of Issuer. The Issuer has no reason to believe such facts, estimates or

circumstances are untrue or incomplete in any material way.

(e) To the best of the knowledge and belief of the undersigned officer of the

Issuer, there are no facts, estimates or circumstances that would materially change the

-5-

188

Item 23.



representations, certifications or agreements set forth in this Certificate, and the

expectations herein set out are reasonable.

(0 No arrangement exists under which the payment of principal or interest on

the Bonds would be directly or indirectly guaranteed by the United States or any agency

or instrumentality thereof.

(g) After the expiration of any applicable temporary periods, and excluding
investments in a bona fide debt service fund or reserve fund, not more than five percent

(5%) of the Proceeds of the Bonds will be (a) used to make loans which are guaranteed

by the United States or any agency or instrumentality thereof, or (b) invested in federally

insured deposits or accounts.

(h) The Issuer will file with the Internal Revenue Service in a timely fashion

Form 8038-G, Information Return for Tax-Exempt Governmental Obligations, with
respect to the Bonds and such other reports required to comply with the Code and

applicable Regulations.

(i) The Issuer will take no action which would cause the Bonds to become

"private activity bonds" as defined in Section lal(a) of the Code, including any use of the

Project by any person other than a governmental unit if such use will be as other than a

member of the general public. None of the Proceeds of the Bonds will be used directly or

indirectly to make or finance loans to any person other than a governmental unit.

0) The Issuer will make no change in the nature or purpose of the Project

except as provided in Section 6.1 hereof.

(k) Except as provided in Section 6.1 hereof, the Issuer will not establish any

sinking fund, bond fund, reserye fund, debt service fund or other fund reasonably

expected to be used to pay debt service on the Bonds (other than the Bond Fund),

exercise its option to redeem Bonds prior to maturity or effect a refunding of the Bonds

(l) No bonds or other obligations of the Issuer (l) were sold in the l5 days

preceding the date of sale of the Bonds, (2) were sold or will be sold within the l5 days

after the date of sale of the Bonds, (3) have been delivered in the past 15 days or (4) will
be delivered in the next l5 days pursuant to a common plan of financing for the issuance

of the Bonds and payable out of substantially the same source of revenues.

(m) None of the Proceeds of the Bonds will be used directly or indirectly to
replace funds of the Issuer used directly or indirectly to acquire obligations having a yield

higher than the Bond Yield.

-6-

189

Item 23.



(n) No portion of the Bonds will be issued for the purpose of investing such

portion at a higher yield than the Bond Yield.

(o) The Issuer does not expect that the Proceeds of the Bonds will be used in a

manner that would cause them to be "arbitrage bonds" as defined in Section 1a8(a) of the

Code. The Issuer does not expect that the Proceeds of the Bonds will be used in a

manner that would cause the interest on the Bonds to be includable in the gross income of
the owners of the Bonds under the Code. The Issuer will not intentionally use any

portion of the Proceeds to acquire higher yielding investments.

(p) The Issuer will not use the Proceeds of the Bonds to exploit the difference

between tax-exempt and taxable interest rates to obtain a material financial advantage.

(q) The Issuer has not issued more Bonds, issued the Bonds earlier, or allowed

the Bonds to remain outstanding longer than is reasonably necessary to accomplish the

governmental purposes of the Bonds.

(r) The Issuer has not employed a device in connection with the issuance of the

Bonds to obtain a material financial advantage (based on arbitrage) apart from savings

attributable to lower interest rates. The Issuer will not realize any material financial

advantage (based on arbitrage or otherwise) in connection with the issuance of the Bonds,

or in connection with any transaction or series of transactions connected with the

issuance of the Bonds, apaft from savings attributable to lower interest rates.

(s) The Bonds will not be Hedge Bonds as described in Section 149(9)(3) of
the Code because the Issuer reasonably expects that it will meet the Expenditure Test set

forth in Section 2.5(b) hereof and that not more than 50o/o of the Proceeds will be

invested in Nonpurpose Investments having a substantially guaranteed yield for four or

more years.

Section 2.2 Receiots and tures of Sale Proceeds

Sale Proceeds received at Closing are expected to be deposited and expended as

follows:

(a) $235,715 representing costs of issuing the Bonds and the Initiation Fee for

the Loan will be used within six months of the Closing Date to pay the

costs of issuance of the Bonds (with any excess remaining on deposit in the

Project Fund); and

-7 -

190

Item 23.



(b) $20,828,285 will be deposited into the Project Fund and will be used

together with earnings thereon to pay the costs of the Project and will not

exieed the amount necessary to accomplish the governmental purposes of
the Bonds.

Section 2.2A Reimbursement Bonds

(a) Not later than 60 days after payment of Original Expenditures, the Issuer

has adopted an Official Intent and has declared its intention to make a Reimbursement

Allocation of Original Expenditures incurred in connection with Project Segment(s) from

proceeds of the Reimbursement Bonds.

(b) The Reimbursement Allocation will occur on or before the later of (i)

eighteen months after the Original Expenditures are paid or (ii) eighteen months after the

first Project Segment is placed in service, but in no event more than three years after the

Original Expenditures are paid.

(c) No other Reimbursement Allocation will be made except for Preliminary

Expenditures.

(d) The Reimbursement Allocation has not been undertaken to avoid, in whole

or in part, arbitrage yield restrictions or arbitrage rebate requirements and will not ernploy

an abusive arbitrage device under Regulation 1.148-10.

(e) Within one year of the Closing Date, the Reimbursement Allocation will
not be used in a manner that results in the creation of replacement proceeds, as defined in

Regulation 1.148-1.

(f) For purposes of Section 2.2A, the following terms shall have the meanings

set forth below:

(i) "Official Intent" means a declaration of intent described under Regulation

1.105-2 to reimburse Original Expenditures with the proceeds of the Bonds'

(ii) "Original Expenditure" means an expenditure for a governmental purpose

that is originally paid from a source other than the Reimbursement Bonds.

(iii) "Preliminary Expenditures", as defined in Regulation 1. 150-2(DQ), means

architectural, engineering, surveying, soil tests, Reimbursement Bond issuance

costs, and similar costs incurred prior to commencement of construction,

rehabilitation or acquisition of a Project Segment which do not exceed 20Yo of the

8-

191

Item 23.



Issue Price of the portion of the Bonds that finances the Project Segment for which
they were incurred.

(iv) "Project Segment" means the costs, described in an Official Intent of the

Issuer, incurred prior to the Closing Date to acquire, construct, or improve land,

buildings or equipment excluding current operating expenses but including costs

of issuing the Reimbursement Bonds.

(v) "Reimbursement Allocation" means written evidence of the use of
Reimbursement Bond proceeds to reimburse a fund of the Issuer for Original
Expenditures paid or advanced prior to the Closing Date and incurred in
connection with a Project Segment.

(vi) "Reimbursement Bonds" means the portion of the Bonds which are

allocated to reimburse the Original Expenditures paid prior to the Closing Date

and incurred in connection with a Project Segment.

Section 2.3 Purpose of Bonds

The Issuer is issuing the Bonds to pay costs of acquisition, construction,
reconstruction, extending, remodeling, improving, repairing and equipping all or part of
the Municipal Sewer System.

The Issuer is issuing the Bonds to refund the Refunded Bonds prior to maturity in
order to implement long-term financing for the Project.

Tax- on Classifi

The Bonds are considered to be governmental bonds, not subject to the provisions
of the alternate minimum tax. Proceeds of the Bonds will be used for the purpose of
paying costs of construction of certain improvements and extensions to the Sewer System

Utility of the City. All of the financed facilities are owned by the City and are expected
to be used by the public generally, including industrial users. There are no contractual
anangements or agreements between the City and any'contributing industry using the

Sewer System Utility, and there are no other lease, management contract or other similar
alrangements with respect to the Sewer System Utility. Contributing industries using the

Sewer System Utility may be or become subject to additional surcharges above the
current user charges, depending on the strength and volume of the waste they generate.

All such surcharges, however, are or will be imposed by virtue of City ordinances
applicable to all entities meeting the standards set forth therein. No other charges or
payments will be imposed or paid to the City by any contributing industry for wastewater

-9 -

192

Item 23.



(c) The Issuer has established and will use the Bond Fund primarily to achieve

a proper matching of revenues and debt service within each Bond Year and the Issuer

will apply moneys deposited into the Bond Fund to pay the principal of and interest on

the Bonds. Such Fund will be depleted at least once each Bond Year except for a

reasonable carryover amount. The carryover amount will not exceed the greater of (l)
one year's earnings on the Bond Fund or (2) one-twelfth of Annual Debt Service. The

Issuer will spend moneys deposited from time to time into such fund within 13 months

after the date of deposit. Revenues, intended to be used to pay debt service on the Bonds,

will be deposited into the Bond Fund as set forth in the Resolution. The Issuer will spend

interest eamed on moneys in such fund not more than 12 months after receipt.

Accordingly, the Issuer will treat the Bond Fund as a bona fide debt service fund as

defined in Regulation 1.148-l(b).

Investment of amounts on deposit in the Bond Fund will not be subject to arbitrage

rebate requirements as the Bonds meet the safe harbor set forth in Regulation 1.148-3(k),

because the average annual debt service on the Bonds will not exceed $2,500,000.

(d) The Minor Portion of the Bonds will be invested without regard to yield.

Section 2.7 nins to Yields

(a) The purchase price of all Taxable Obligations to which restrictions apply

under this Certificate as to investment yield or rebate of Excess Earnings, if any, has been

and shall be calculated using (i) the price taking into account discount, premium and

accrued interest, as applicable, actually paid or (ii) the fair market value if less than the

price actually paid and if such Taxable Obligations were not purchased directly from the

United States Treasury. The Issuer will acquire all such Taxable Obligations directly
from the United States Treasury or in an arm's length transaction without regard to any

amounts paid to reduce the yield on such Taxable Obligations. The Issuer will not pay or

permit the payment of any amounts (other than to the United States) to reduce the yield

on any Taxable Obligations. Obligations pledged to the payment of debt service on the

Bonds, after they have been acquired by the Issuer will be treated as though they were

acquired for their fair market value on the date of such pledge or deposit.

(b) Qualified guarantees have not been used in computing yield.

(c) The Bond Yield has been computed as

percent. This Bond Yield has been computed on the

Bonds equal to the Issue Price.

not less than 3 oo2 4z
basis of a purchase price for the

- ll -

193

Item 23.



(c) The Issuer has established and will use the Bond Fund primarily to achieve

a proper matching of revenues and debt service within each Bond Year and the Issuer

will apply moneys deposited into the Bond Fund to pay the principal of and interest on

the Bonds. Such Fund will be depleted at least once each Bond Year except for a
reasonable caffyover amount. The carryover amount will not exceed the greater of (1)

one year's earnings on the Bond Fund or (2) one-twelfth of Annual Debt Service. The

Issuer will spend moneys deposited from time to tirne into such fund within l3 months

after the date of deposit. Revenues, intended to be used to pay debt service on the Bonds,

will be deposited into the Bond Fund as set forth in the Resolution. The Issuer will spend

interest earned on moneys in such fund not more than 12 months after receipt.

Accordingly, the Issuer will treat the Bond Fund as a bona fide debt service fund as

defined in Regulation 1.148-1(b).

Investment of amounts on deposit in the Bond Fund will not be subject to arbitrage

rebate requirements as the Bonds meet the safe harbor set forth in Regulation 1.148-3(k),

because the average annual debt service on the Bonds will not exceed $2,500,000.

(d) The Minor Portion of the Bonds will be invested without regard to yield.

Section 2.7 s to Yields

(a) The purchase price of all Taxable Obligations to which restrictions apply

under this Certificate as to investment yield or rebate of Excess Earnings, if any, has been

and shall be calculated using (i) the price taking into account discount, premium and

accrued interest, as applicable, actually paid or (ii) the fair market value if less than the

price actually paid and if such Taxable Obligations were not purchased directly from the

United States Treasury. The Issuer will acquire all such Taxable Obligations directly

from the United States Treasury or in an arm's length transaction without regard to any

amounts paid to reduce the yield on such Taxable Obligations. The Issuer will not pay or

permit the payment of any amounts (other than to the United States) to reduce the yield

on any Taxable Obligations. Obligations pledged to the payment of debt service on the

Bonds, after they have been acquired by the Issuer will be treated as though they were

acquired for their fair market value on the date of such pledge or deposit.

(b) Qualified guarantees have not been used in computing yield.

(c) The Bond Yield has been computed as not less than 3.000247 percent. This

Bond Yield has been computed on the basis of a purchase price for the Bonds equal to the

Issue Price.

- ll -

194

Item 23.



ARTICLE III

REBATE

Section 3.1 Records

Sale Proceeds of the Bonds will be held and accounted for in the manner provided

in the Resolution. The Issuer will maintain adequate records for funds created by the

Resolution and this Certificate including all deposits, withdrawals, transfers from,
transfers to, investments, reinvestments, sales, purchases, redemptions, liquidations and

use of money or obligations until six years after the Final Bond Retirement Date.

Section 3.2 Rebate Fund

(a) In the Resolution, the Issuer has covenanted to pay to the United States the

Rebate Amount, an amount equal to the Excess Earnings on the Gross Proceeds Funds, if
any, atthe times and in the manner required or permitted and subject to stated special

rules and allowable exceptions or exemptions.

(b) The Issuer may establish a fund pursuant to the Resolution and this
Certificate which is herein referred to as the Rebate Fund. The Issuer will invest and

expend amounts on deposit in the Rebate Fund in accordance with this Certificate.

(c) Moneys in the Rebate Fund shall be held by the Issuer or its designee and,

subject to Sections 3.4, 3.5 and 6.1 hereof shall be held for future payment to the United
States as contemplated under the provisions of this Certificate and shall not constitute
part of the trust estate held for the benefit of the owners of the Bonds or the Issuer.

(d) The Issuer will pay to the United States from legally available money of the

Issuer (whether or not such available money is on deposit in any fund or account related

to the Bonds) any amount which is required to be paid to the United States.

Section 3.3 Exceptions tqRqbalq

The Issuer reasonably expects that the Bonds are eligible for one or more

exceptions from the arbitrage rebate rules set forth in the Regulations. If the Bonds are

ineligible, or become ineligible, for an exception to the arbitrage rebate rules, the Issuer

will comply with the provisions of this Article III. A description of the applicable rebate

exceptions is as follows:

-12-

195

Item 23.



o $5,000,000 Small Issuer Exception

The reasonably anticipated amount of tax-exempt bonds (other than private
activity bonds) which will be issued by the Issuer and all subordinate entities of the Issuer
during the calendar year will not exceed $5,000,000.

Six Month ExceptionO

The Gross Proceeds of the Bonds are expected to be fully expended for the
governmental purposes for which the Bonds were issued no later than six months after
the date of issue. If contrary to the reasonable expectations of the Issuer, the Gross
Proceeds are not expended within six months and no other exemption applies, the Issuer
will comply with the arbitrage rebate requirements of the Code.

a Eighteen-Month Exception

The Gross Proceeds of the Bonds are expected to be expended for the
governmental purposes for which the Bonds were issued in accordance with the
following schedule:

l5 percent spent within six months of the Closing Date;
60 percent spent within one year of the Closing Date;
100 percent spent within eighteen months of the Closing Date
(subject to 5 percent retainage for not more than one year).

In any event, the Issuer expects that the 50% reasonable retainage will be spent within 30
months of the Closing Date. For purposes of determining compliance with the six-month
and twelve-month spending periods, the amount of investment earnings included shall be
based on the Issuer's reasonable expectations that the average annual interest rate on
investments will be not more than 6Yo. For purposes of determining compliance with the
eighteen-month spending period, the amount of investment earnings included shall be
based on actual earnings. If the Issuer fails to meet the foregoing expenditure schedule
and no other exemption applies, the Issuer shall comply with the arbitrage rebate
requirements of the Code.

o Election to Treat as Construction Bonds

The Bonds qualiff as a "construction issue" as defined in Section la8(fl(aXcXvi)
of the Code. The Issuer reasonably expects that more than75 percent of the "available
construction proceeds" ("ACP") of the Bonds, as defined in Section 148(0(4)(C)(vi) of
the Code, will be used for construction expenditures and that not less than the following

_13_

1)

2)
3)

196

Item 23.



percentages of the available construction proceeds will be spent within the following
periods:

10 percent spent within six months of the Closing Date;
45 percent spent within one year of the Closing Date;
75 percent spent within eighteen months of the Closing Date;
100 percent spent within two years of the Closing Date (subject to 5
percent retainage for not more than one year).

In any event, the Issuer expects that the 5oZ reasonable retainage will be spent within a

three-year period beginning on the Closing Date. A failure to spend an amount that does

not exceed the lesser of (i) 3o/o of the issue price or (ii) $250,000, is disregarded if the
Issuer exercises due diligence to complete the Project.

Election with respect to future earnings

l)
2)
3)
4)

O

Pursuant to Section 1.148-7(h)(i)(3) of the Regulations, the Issuer shall calculate
the amount of future earnings to be used in determining compliance with the first three
spending periods based on its reasonable expectations that the average annual interest rate

on investments of the ACP will be not more than 6Yo. Compliance with the final spending
period shall be calculated using actual earnings.

If the Issuer fails to meet the foregoing expenditure schedule and no other
exemption applies, the Issuer shall comply with the arbitrage rebate requirements of the
Code.

Section 3.4 Calculation of Rebate Amount

(a) As soon after each Computation Date as practicable, the Issuer shall, if
necessary, calculate and determine the Excess Earnings on the Gross Proceeds Funds (the

"Rebate Amount"). All calculations and determinations with respect to the Rebate
Amount will be made on the basis of actual facts as of the Computation Date and
reasonable expectations as to future events.

(b) If the Rebate Amount exceeds the amount currently on deposit in the
Rebate Fund, the Issuer may deposit an amount in the Rebate Fund such that the balance
in the Rebate Fund after such deposit equals the Rebate Amount. If the amount in the
Rebate Fund exceeds the Rebate Amount, the Issuer may withdraw such excess amount
provided that such withdrawal can be made from amounts originally transferred to the
Rebate Fund and not from earnings thereon, which may not be transferred, and only if
such withdrawal may be made without liquidating investments at a loss.

-14-

197

Item 23.



Section 3.5 Rebate Requirements and the Bond Fund

It is expected that the Bond Fund described in the Resolution and Section2.T(b) of
this Certificate will be treated as a bona fide debt service fund as defined in Regulation
1.148-l(b). As such, any amount earned during a Bond Year on the Bond Fund and
amounts earned on such amounts, if allocated to the Bond Fund, will not be taken into
account in calculating the Rebate Amount if the annual gross earnings on the Bond Fund
for such Bond Year are less than $100,000 or if average annual debt service will not
exceed $2,500,000. I{owever, should annual gross earnings exceed $100,000 or should
the Bond Fund cease to be treated as a bona fide debt service fund, the Bond Fund will
become subject to the rebate requirements set forth in Section 3.4 hereof.

Section 3.6 Investment of the Rebate Fund

(a) Immediately upon a transfer to the Rebate Fund, the Issuer may invest all
amounts in the Rebate Fund not already invested and held in the Rebate Fund, to the
extent possible, in (l) SLGS, such investments to be made at a yield of not more than
one-eighth of one percent above the Bond Yield, (2)Tax Exempt Obligations, (3) direct
obligations of the United States or (4) certificates of deposit of any bank or savings and
loan association. All investments in the Rebate Fund shall be made to mature not later
than the next Rebate Payment Date.

(b) If the Issuer invests in SLGS, the Issuer shall file timely subscription forms
for such securities (if required). To the extent possible, amounts received from maturing
SLGS shall be reinvested immediately in zero yield SLGS maturing on or before the next
Rebate Payment Date.

Section 3.7 Payment to the United States

(a) On each Rebate Payment Date, the Issuer will pay to the United States at
least ninety percent (90%) of the Rebate Amount less a computation credit of $1,000 per
Bond Year for which the payment is made.

(b) The Issuer will pay to the United States not later than sixty (60) days after
the Final Bond Retirement Date all the rebatable arbitrage as of such date and any income
attributable to such rebatable arbitrage as described in Regulation 1.148-3(fX2).

(c) If necessary, on each Rebate Payment Date, the Issuer will mail a check to
the Internal Revenue Service Center, Ogden, UT 84201. Each payment shall be
accompanied by a copy of Form 8038-T, Arbitrage Rebate, filed with respect to the

_ 15 _

198

Item 23.



Bonds or other information reporting form as is required to comply with the Code and

applicable Regulations.

Section 3.8 Records

(a) The Issuer will keep and retain adequate records with respect to the Bonds,
the Gross Proceeds Funds, the Bond Fund and the Rebate Fund until six years after the

Final Bond Retirement Date. Such records shall include descriptions of all calculations
of amounts transferred to the Rebate Fund, if any, and descriptions of all calculations of
amounts paid to the United States as required by this Certificate. Such records will also

show all amounts earned on moneys invested in such funds, and the actual dates and

amounts of all principal, interest and redemption premiums (if any) paid on the Bonds.

(b) Records relating to the investments in such Funds shall completely describe

all transfers, deposits, disbursements and earnings including:

(i) a complete list of all investments and reinvestments of amounts in
each such Fund including, if applicable, purchase price, purchase date, type of
security, accrued interest paid, interest rate, dated date, principal amount, date of
maturity, interest payment dates, date of liquidation, receipt upon liquidation,
market value of such investment on the Final Bond Retirement Date if held by the
Issuer on the Final Bond Retirement Date, and market value of the investment on

the date pledged to the payment of the Bonds, or the Closing Date if different from
the purchase date.

(ii) the amount and source of each payment to, and the amount, purpose

and payee of each payment from, each such Fund.

Section 3.9 Additional Payments

The Issuer hereby agrees to pay to the United States from legally available money
of the Issuer (whether or not such available money is on deposit in any fund or account
related to the Bonds) any amount which is required to be paid to the United States, but
which is not available in a fund related to the Bonds for transfer to the Rebate Fund or
payment to the United States.

-16-

199

Item 23.



ARTICLE IV

INVESTMENT RESTRICTIONS

Section 4.1 Avoidance of Prohibited Payments

The Issuer will not enter into any transaction that reduces the amount required to
be deposited into the Rebate Fund or paid to the United States because such transaction
results in a smaller profit or a larger loss than would have resulted if the transaction had
been at arm's length and had the Bond Yield not been relevant to either party. The Issuer
will not invest or direct the investment of any funds in a manner which reduces an

amount required to be paid to the United States because such transaction results in a
small profit or larger loss than would have resulted if the transaction had been at arm's
length and had the Bond Yield not been relevant to the Issuer. In particular,
notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein or in the Resolution, the Issuer
will not invest or direct the investment of any funds in a manner which would violate any
provision of this Article IV.

Section 4.2 Market Price Requirement

(a) The Issuer will not purchase or direct the purchase of Taxable Obligations
for more than the then available market price for such Taxable Obligations. The Issuer
will not sell, liquidate or direct the sale or liquidation of Taxable Obligations for less than
the then available market price.

(b) For purposes of this Certificate, United States Treasury obligations
purchased directly from the United States Treasury will be deemed to be purchased at the
market price.

Section 4.3 Investment in Certificates of Deposit

(a) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein or in the
Resolution, the Issuer will invest or direct the investment of funds on deposit in the Gross
Proceeds Fund, the Bond Fund, and the Rebate Fund, in a certificate of deposit of a bank
or savings bank which is permitted by law and by the Resolution only if (1) the price at
which such certificate of deposit is purchased or sold is the bona fide bid price quoted by
a dealer who maintains an active secondary market in certificates of deposit of the same
type or (2) if there is no active secondary market in such certificates of deposit, the
certificate of deposit must have a yield (A) as high or higher than the yield on comparable
obligations traded on an active secondary market, as certified by a dealer who maintains

-17 -

200

Item 23.



such a market, and (B) as high or higher than the yield available on comparable

obligations of the United States Treasury.

(b) The certificate of deposit described in part2(A) of paragraph a.3(a) above

must be executed by a dealer who maintains an active secondary market in comparable

certificates of deposit and must be based on actual trades adjusted to reflect the size and

term of that certificate of deposit and the stability and reputation of the bank or savings

bank issuing the certificate of deposit.

Section 4.4 In ent Pursuant to Investment Contracts and Asreements

The Issuer will invest or direct the investment of funds on deposit in the Gross

Proceeds Funds, the Bond Fund, and the Rebate Fund pursuant to an investment contract
(including a repurchase agreement) only if all of the following requirements are satisfied:

(a) The Issuer makes a bona fide solicitation for the purchase of the

investment. A bona fide solicitation is a solicitation that satisfies all of the following
requirements:

(1) The bid specifications are in writing and are timely forwarded to
potential providers.

(2) The bid specifications include all material terms of the bid. A term is
material if it may directly or indirectly affect the yield or the cost of the

investment.

(3) The bid specifications include a statement notiffing potential providers

that submission of a bid is a representation that the potential provider did
not consult with any other potential provider about its bid, that the bid was

determined without regard to any other formal or informal agreement that
the potential provider has with the issuer or any other person (whether or
not in connection with the Bonds), and that the bid is not being submitted
solely as a courtesy to the issuer or any other person for purposes of
satis$ing the requirements of paragraph (d)(6XiiiXBXl) or (2) of section
Ll48-5 of the Regulations.

(a) The terms of the bid specifications are commercially reasonable. A
term is commercially reasonable if there is a legitimate business purpose

for the term other than to increase the purchase price or reduce the yield of
the investment.

- 18 -

201

Item 23.



(5) For purchases of guaranteed investment contracts only, the terms of the
solicitation take into account the Issuer's reasonably expected deposit and
drawdown schedule for the amounts to be invested.

(6) All potential providers have an equal opportunity to bid and no
potential provider is given the opportunity to review other bids (i.e., a last
look) before providing a bid.

(7) At least three reasonably competitive providers are solicited for bids. A
reasonably competitive provider is a provider that has an established
industry reputation as a competitive provider of the type of investments
being purchased

(b) The bids received by the Issuer meet all of the following requirements:

(1) The Issuer receives at least three bids from providers that the Issuer
solicited under a bona fide solicitation meeting the requirements of
paragraph (dX6)(iiiXA) of section 1.148-5 of the Regulations and that do
not have amaterial financial interest in the issue. A lead underwriter in a
negotiated underwriting transaction is deemed to have a material financial
interest in the issue until 15 days after the issue date of the issue. In
addition, any entity acting as a financial advisor with respect to the
purchase of the investment at the time the bid specifications are forwarded
to potential providers has a material financial interest in the issue. A
provider that is a related party to a provider that has a material financial
interest in the issue is deemed to have a material financial interest in the
issue.

(2) At least one of the three bids described in paragraph (dX6Xiii)(B)(1) of
section 1.148-5 of the Regulations is from a reasonably competitive
provider, within the meaning of paragraph (dX6XiiiXAXT) of section
1.148-5 of the Regulations.
(3) If the Issuer uses an agent to conduct the bidding process, the agent did
not bid to provide the investment.

(c) The winning bid meets the following requirements:

(l) Guaranteed investment contracts. If the investment is a guaranteed
investment contract, the winning bid is the highest yielding bona fide bid
(determined net of any broker's fees).

-19-

202

Item 23.



(2) Other investments. If the investment is not a guaranteed investment
contract, the winning bid is the lowest cost bona fide bid (including any
broker's fees).

(d) The provider of the investments or the obligor on the guaranteed investment
contract certifies the administrative costs that it pays (or expects to pay, if any) to third
parties in connection with supplying the investment.

(e) The Issuer will retain the following records with the bond documents until
three years after the last outstanding bond is redeemed:

(l) For purchases of guaranteed investment contracts, a copy of the
contract, and for purchases of investments other than guaranteed investment
contracts, the purchase agreement or confirmation.

(2) The receipt or other record of the amount actually paid by the Issuer for
the investments, including a record of any administrative costs paid by the
Issuer, and the certification under paragraph (dX6XiiiXD) of section I .148-5
of the Regulations.

(3) For each bid that is submitted, the name of the person and entity
submitting the bid, the time and date of the bid, and the bid results.

(a) The bid solicitation form and, if the terms of the purchase agreement or
the guaranteed investment contract deviated from the bid solicitation form or
a submitted bid is modified, a brief statement explaining the deviation and
stating the purpose for the deviation.

(5) For purchases of investments other than guaranteed investment
contracts, the cost of the most efficient portfolio of State and Local
Government Series Securities, determined at the time that the bids were
required to be submitted pursuant to the terms of the bid specifications.

Section 4.5 Records

The Issuer will maintain records of all purchases, sales, liquidations, investments,
reinvestments, redemptions, disbursements, deposits, and transfers of amounts on deposit.

-20 -

203

Item 23.



Section 4.6 to be Lesal

All investments required to be made pursuant to this Certificate shall be made to
the extent permitted by law. In the event that any such investment is determined to be
ultra vires, it shall be liquidated and the proceeds thereof shall be invested in a legal
investment, provided that prior to reinvesting such proceeds, the Issuer shall obtain an
opinion of Bond Counsel to the effect that such reinvestment will not cause the Bonds to
become arbitrage bonds under Sections 103, 148, 149, or any other applicable provision of
the Code.

ARTICLE V

GENERAL COVENANTS

The Issuer hereby covenants to perform all acts within its power necessary to
ensure that the reasonable expectations set forth in Article II hereof will be realized. The
Issuer reasonably expects to comply with all covenants contained in this Certificate.

ARTICLE VI

AMENDMENTS AND ADDITIONAL AGREEMENTS

Section 6.1 Opinion of Bond Counsel: Amendments

The various provisions of this Certificate need not be observed and this Certificate
may be amended or supplemented at any time by the Issuer if the Issuer receives an
opinion or opinions of Bond Counsel that the failure to comply with such provisions will
not cause any of the Bonds to become "arbitrage bonds" under the Code and that the terms
of such amendment or supplement will not cause any of the Bonds to become "arbitrage
bonds" under the Code, or otherwise cause interest on any of the Bonds to become
includable in gross income for federal incorpe tax purposes.

Section 6.2 Additional Covenants. Agreements

The Issuer hereby covenants to make, execute and enter into (and to take such
actions, if any, as may be necessary to enable it to do so) such agreements as may be
necessary to comply with any changes in law or regulations in order to preserve the tax-
exempt status of the Bonds to the extent that it may lawfully do so. The Issuer further
covenants (l) to impose such limitations on the investment or use of moneys or

-21 -

204

Item 23.



investments related to the Bonds, (2) to make such payments to the United States

Treasury, (3) to maintain such records, (4) to perform such calculations, and (5) to
perform such other lawful acts as may be necessary to preserve the tax-exempt status of
the Bonds.

Section 6.3 Amendments

Except as otherwise provided in Section 6.1 hereof, all the rights, powers, duties

and obligations of the Issuer shall be irrevocable and binding upon the Issuer and shall not
be subject to amendment or modification by the Issuer.

ARTICLE VII

QUALIFIED TAX EXEMPT OBLIGATIONS

The Issuer, a "qualified small issuer," designates the Bonds as "qualified tax
exempt obligations" as defined in Code Section 265(b)(3) and represents that the

reasonably anticipated amount of tax-exempt governmental and Code Section 501(cX3)
obligations which will be issued during the current calendar year will not exceed ten

million dollars ($10,000,000).

In support of the foregoing, the Issuer states:

(a) In the current calendar year the Issuer has issued governmental or 501(cX3)
bonds as follows:

$21,064,000 Sewer Revenue Capital Loan Notes, Series 2011,
dated August 10 2011. (Issue covered by this Certificate.)

(b) The Issuer expects to issue during the remainder of the calendar year,

501(c)(3) or governmental bonds as follows:

NONE

-22-

205

Item 23.



a

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Issuer has caused this Certificate to be executed by
its duly authorized officer, all as of the day first above written.

CI
alls, State of Iowa

Manager, City of Cedar

(SEAL)

00807369-l\l 0283-t I 5

-23 -

206

Item 23.



coMPfiffiffiffinrvro

EXHIBIT A

VERTFTCATION CERTIFICATE OF THE PURCHASER

The undersigned Executive Director of the Iowa Finance Authority (the
"Purchaser"), hereby certifies as follows:

1. The Purchaser and the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa (the "Issuer"), have
entered into a Loan and Disbursement Agreement (the "Agreement"), providing for the
purchase of a $21,064,000 Sewer Revenue Capital Loan Note of the City dated as of the
date of delivery (the "Notes").

2. The Agreement is in full force and effect and has not been repealed,
rescinded or amended.

3. The Purchaser hereby conf,rrms that the Notes were purchased at par and
will not be reoffered to the public, the terms of purchase being as follows:

Principal
Amount
Issued

Principal
Amount

Sold
Interest

Rate

Price
(% of par)

(do not
include
accrued
interest)

$21,064,000 None 3.0%

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Purchaser has caused
to be executed by its duly authorized officer this 22d

t00v,

this Verification Certifi cate
day of

IOWA FINANCE AUTHORITY

20tt

By
Its:

00807369-l\r0283-t l5

ve Di

207

Item 23.



RESOLUTION NO. 6418 
 

RESOLUTION DECLARING SURPLUS FUNDS AND AUTHORIZING THE PERMANENT TRANSFER 
OF FUNDS FROM THE MUNICIPAL ELECTRIC AND COMMUNICATIONS UTILITIES  

TO THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 
 

Whereas, in accordance with Resolution No. 6027, the Board of Trustees of the Municipal 

Electric and Communications Utilities of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, have determined that there are 

surplus funds available in the Municipal Electric and Communications Utilities; and 

Whereas, the Boards of Trustees have further determined that a transfer of surplus funds 

from the Municipal Electric and Communications Utilities should be made to the City of Cedar Falls, 

Iowa, in accordance with Section 384.89 of the Code of Iowa; and 

Whereas, the Boards of Trustees have chosen to direct the transferred funds to the City 

of Cedar Falls' General Fund and its Economic Development Fund, as outlined below; and 

Whereas, the transfer of surplus funds is to be permanent; and 

Whereas, in accordance with Section 384.89 of the Code of Iowa, the transfer of surplus 

funds is subject to the approval of the Cedar Falls City Council. 

Now, Therefore, Be It Resolved by the Boards of Trustees of the Municipal Electric 

and Communications Utilities of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, as follows: 

1. That the sum of $2,700,000.00 shall be transferred from the surplus funds of the 
Municipal Electric Utility to the General Fund of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, subject, 
however, to the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls approving this transfer by 
resolution, and the approving resolution being certified to the Board of Trustees. 

2. That the sum of $30,000.00 shall be transferred from the surplus funds of the 
Municipal Communications Utility to the Economic Development Fund of the City of 
Cedar Falls, Iowa, subject, however, to the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls 
approving this transfer by resolution, and the approving resolution being certified to 
the Board of Trustees. 

3. The Director of Finance & Organizational Services of the Municipal Electric and 
Communications Utilities is directed to make proper entries in the books of the Utility 
and to notify the City Clerk of this transfer when properly approved as herein required 
and shall accompany the notification with a copy of this Resolution. 

  
Introduced and Adopted this 13th day of April, 2022. 

 

    
   MaraBeth K. Soneson – Chair 
Attest: 

 
Richard L. McAlister – Secretary 
 
 
 The above Resolution was moved by Trustee Engel and seconded by Trustee Iehl.  Upon 
call of the roll the following Trustees voted:   
 
 Aye: Soneson, Iehl, McAlister, Engel, Prideaux 
 Nay: None 
 Absent:  None 
 
 I hereby certify the above to be a true and correct copy of Resolution No.6418 passed by the 
Boards of Trustees of the Municipal Electric and Communications Utilities of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, on the 
13th day of April, 2022. 

       
   MaraBeth K. Soneson – Chair 

208

Item 24.



209

Item 25.



210

Item 25.



211

Item 25.



212

Item 25.



213

Item 25.



214

Item 25.



215

Item 25.



216

Item 25.



217

Item 25.



218

Item 25.



219

Item 25.



220

Item 25.



221

Item 25.



222

Item 25.



223

Item 25.



224

Item 25.



225

Item 25.



226

Item 26.



227

Item 26.



228

Item 26.



229

Item 26.



230

Item 26.



231

Item 26.



232

Item 26.



233

Item 26.



234

Item 26.



235

Item 26.



236

Item 26.



237

Item 26.



238

Item 26.



239

Item 26.



240

Item 26.



241

Item 27.



242

Item 27.



243

Item 27.



244

Item 27.



245

Item 27.



246

Item 27.



247

Item 27.



248

Item 27.



249

Item 27.



250

Item 27.



251

Item 27.



252

Item 27.



253

Item 27.



254

Item 27.



255

Item 27.



256

Item 27.



257

Item 28.



258

Item 28.



259

Item 28.



260

Item 28.



261

Item 28.



262

Item 28.



263

Item 28.



264

Item 28.



265

Item 28.



266

Item 28.



267

Item 28.



268

Item 28.



269

Item 28.



270

Item 28.



271

Item 29.



272

Item 29.



273

Item 29.



274

Item 29.



275

Item 29.



276

Item 29.



277

Item 29.



278

Item 29.



279

Item 29.



280

Item 29.



281

Item 29.



282

Item 29.



283

Item 29.



284

Item 29.



285

Item 29.



286

Item 29.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-268-5126 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 

Administration Division 

  

  

 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 TO: Mayor Green and City Council 

 FROM: Stephanie Houk Sheetz, AICP, Director of Community Development 

 DATE: April 21, 2021 

 SUBJECT: Lease approvals on flood buyout properties 

 
 
The City has leased vacant parcels of land to nearby neighbors for a number of years.  
The leases are for three years and then must be renewed, if interest continues.  There 
may also be new leases in-between that time, as any new interest is expressed.  At 
each three-year term, we update any leases, to streamline administration by keeping 
them on the same timeframe.  Attached to this cover memo is a recent lease request 
that would be effective now through December 31, 2024. 
 
Public Works staff believes the leasing program is very beneficial not only for the 
neighbors, but the City as well.  The parcels are mowed and maintained by the lessees 
during the growing season, which saves maintenance dollars and allows park staff to 
spend time maintaining higher priority properties.   
 
The Departments of Public Works and Community Development recommend that the 
City Council approve these leases.  Let me know if you have any questions or 
comments. 
 
 
xc: Brian Heath, Operation & Maintenance Division Manager 
 Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
  

 
 
 

287

Item 30.



288

Item 30.



289

Item 30.



290

Item 30.



291

Item 30.



292

Item 30.



293

Item 30.



294

Item 30.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-268-5126 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 

 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 

 FROM: Michelle Pezley, Planner III 

 DATE: April 22, 2022 

 SUBJECT:  INRCOG Contract Amendment related to the State Award of CARES Act 
Community Development Block Grant Funds (CDBG-CV2) 

  
In May 2020, funding was allocated to Cedar Falls from the CARES Act CDBG funds the State 
received (referred to as CDBG-CV2, to distinguish it from other CARES Act funding the City has 
received through CDBG). The State proportionally allocated some of the CARES Act CDBG 
funding they received to CDBG Entitlement Communities throughout the state. Cedar Falls was 
allocated $369,432.   
 
As part of all the document requirements with CDBG, the City is in a contract with the Iowa 
Northern Regional Council of Governments (INRCOG) to conduct administrative tasks 
necessary to ensure program compliance such as monitoring subrecipient contracts (service 
agencies, schools, etc.) and completing necessary reporting to the State. The City Council 
approved the original contract at their February 1, 2021 meeting. The contract is for $32,250.   
 
At the April 18, 2022 meeting, City Council approved a seconded amendment to the State’s 
Contract.  The second amendment to the State’s contract included adding a service agency as 
a sub-grantee to continue mortgage/rent assistance and modifying activities for City funding.  
With the changes to the state’s contract, staff proposes changes to the INRCOG’s contract.   
 
Staff proposes to reallocate the funding for contracted work with INRCOG to match the 
amendments to the state contract.  The total cost for the contract will not change.  Some of the 
funds that were designed to monitor City Equipment will now be for the Agency Award program 
as the City added another agency.  The costs are broken down to: 
 

Task: Original Cost Cost Amended 2022 

Environmental Review $3,000 $3,000 
Agency Award Program $7,250 $13,500 
City Equipment $11,000 $4,750 
School Equipment $11,000 $11,000 

Total $32,250 $32,250 

 
Staff also proposes extending the timeline of the INRCOG contract to end of June 2022. 
 
Please contact staff with any questions.  Thank you.  
 
Xc:  Stephanie Houk Sheetz, AICP, Director of Community Development  
       Karen Howard, AICP, Planning & Community Services Manager      

295

Item 31.



1 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

SERVICE/PRODUCT AGREEMENT 

State CDBG Funding Project Delivery for Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security 

(CARES) (CV-2) Services for Agency, School, and Housing Projects in Cedar Falls, Iowa 

City Project Number:  022383 

This Agreement is by and between Iowa Northland Regional Council of Governments (INRCOG), 229 East Park 

Avenue, Waterloo, IA (“Contractor”) and the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa (“City”), and is to be effective on the date last 

signed by the Contractor or the City below. 

1.0.       Contractor’s Services 

1.1.       Contractor’s services shall consist only of the those services and/or products provided or supplied by 

Contractor as defined in this Agreement and as listed on Exhibit “A” attached.  (“Services” or “Scope of Services”) 

1.2.       Contractor shall not commence or perform any work outside the Scope of Services unless and until 

authorized in writing by the City.  No changes to the Scope of Services shall be valid unless agreed to by both the 

Contractor and the City in writing.  Any work performed or expenses incurred by the Contractor shall be conclusively 

presumed to be part of the Scope of Services unless a written change order covering such work, and the cost of such 

work, has been agreed to in advance.  If Exhibit “A” includes provisions for contingent services, such services shall 

not be performed until written authorization is given by the City.  

1.3.       Contractor shall assign qualified and experienced personnel to perform the Services, and Contractor hereby 

warrants to the City that Contractor has sufficient experience and financial resources to complete the Services 

required by this Agreement.  Where the Scope of Services identifies particular personnel who shall perform the 

Services, such personnel shall remain assigned to provide the Services throughout the term of this Agreement, 

unless otherwise approved in writing by the City.  In the event that such particular personnel must be replaced, 

Contractor agrees to replace such particular personnel with persons of equivalent or better qualifications, as 

approved by the City. 

1.4.       Contractor shall perform the Services in a timely manner and in accordance with any schedule set forth in 

Exhibit “A”.  The Contractor and the City agree that time is of the essence with respect to Contractor’s performance 

under this Agreement.         

1.5.       Contractor warrants that its fulfillment of this Agreement will not infringe on or misappropriate the rights of any 

third party, and that the Contractor has the complete right and full authority to convey ownership of the Services to 

the City.  Contractor shall obtain all required governmental and third-party licenses, approvals and permits for the 

provision of Services, at Contractor’s cost. 

1.6.       The person signing this Agreement on behalf of the Contractor represents and warrants that the person has 

full and sufficient authority to execute this Agreement on behalf of the Contractor. 

2.0.       Compensation 

2.1.       All bids and prices shall be shown in U.S. Dollars.  All prices must remain firm for the duration of this 

Agreement. 

2.2.       After inspection (if applicable) and acceptance by the City of Services, City shall pay Contractor in 

accordance with the payment terms set forth in Exhibit “A”.  The maximum amount of all payments for Services shall 

296

Item 31.



2 
 

be the amount set forth in Exhibit “A”, unless additional Services are agreed upon as set forth in Section 1.2, in which 

case the maximum amount of all payments shall be adjusted accordingly.   

2.3.       Following acceptance of Services by the City, payment shall be made to the Contractor within thirty (30) days 

of receipt of a proper invoice.  The invoice shall include, at a minimum, the name and address of the Contractor, the 

invoice number, the date services were performed or goods were shipped, a general description of the services or 

goods, total amount to be paid, any discounts or credits, and the net amount to be paid.  The invoice shall be mailed 

or emailed to the authorized representative of the City listed below, at the address listed below. 

2.4.       Expenses shall not be reimbursed to the Contractor unless specifically described in Exhibit “A”. 

2.5.       If services in addition to the Scope of Services are agreed upon as set forth in Section 1.2, Contractor must 

provide a separate invoice for such additional services before payment will be made. 

2.6.       If the City fails to make any payment when due to the Contractor, the Contractor may charge the City interest 

on the unpaid balance at the rate of 5% per annum until paid.  In addition, Contractor may, after giving at least seven 

(7) days written notice to the City, suspend services under this Agreement until such unpaid balance is paid in full. 

2.7.       Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Agreement, the City may withhold payment to Contractor for 

faulty Services, or if the City is advised of liens or other claims against any Services, including products. 

3.0.       Taxes. 

3.1.       The City is exempt from all federal, State of Iowa, and other states’ taxes on the purchase of products and 

services used by the City within the State of Iowa.  The City shall provide tax exemption certification as requested.   

3.2.       Any charges for taxes from which the City is exempt will be deducted from invoices before payment is made.  

4.0.       Ownership and Use of Documents 

4.1.       All Services to be provided under this Agreement, and any invention, improvement, discovery, or innovation 

(whether or not patentable) made, conceived or actually reduced to practice by Contractor in the performance of the 

Scope of Services in this Agreement will be owned exclusively by the City, including all proprietary and intellectual 

property rights.  To the extent not automatically vested in the City, Contractor hereby assigns to the City all right, title 

and interest in and to the Services, including, without limitation, copyright, patent and trade secret rights.  Upon the 

City’s request, Contractor shall execute any additional documents necessary for the City to perfect such ownership 

rights.   

4.2.       Notwithstanding Section 4.1, Contractor retains ownership of its pre-existing and proprietary materials and 

other intellectual property that may be incorporated into the Services. 

4.3.       Copies of City furnished data that may be relied upon by Contractor are limited to the printed copies (also 

known as hard copies) that are delivered to the Contractor.  Files in electronic media format of text, data, graphics, or 

of other formats that are furnished by the City to the Contractor are only for the convenience of the Contractor.  Any 

conclusion or information obtained or derived from such electronic files will be at the Contractor’s sole risk. 

4.4.       During the term of this Agreement and following completion or termination of the Agreement, the Contractor 

and any authorized Subcontractors shall maintain all accounting records and other documentation generated in 

providing Services under this Agreement.  The City or its designee shall be allowed to have access to such 

information for the purpose of inspection, audit and copying during normal business hours for a period of five (5) 

years after the final payment by the City, termination of this Agreement, or resolution of all matters under this 

Agreement, whichever date is latest.  No additional compensation shall be paid to Contractor for such retention or 

inspection by the City or designee.  

5.0.       Termination. 

297

Item 31.



3 
 

5.1.       The City may terminate this Agreement at any time for its convenience by giving written notice to the 

Contractor of such termination and specifying the effective date of the termination, at least thirty (30) calendar days 

before the effective date of termination.  In that event, all finished or unfinished Services, reports and materials 

prepared or furnished by the Contractor shall, at the option of the City, become the City’s property.  If the Agreement 

is terminated by the City as provided herein, the Contractor shall be paid for all Services which have been authorized, 

approved and provided up to the effective date of termination.  The City will not be subject to any termination fees 

from the Contractor. 

5.2.       Either party may terminate this Agreement upon seven (7) calendar days written notice in the event that the 

other party fails to substantially perform in accordance with the terms of this Agreement through no fault of the party 

initiating the termination. 

6.0.       Warranties. 

6.1.       Contractor represents and warrants that Services shall be performed in a manner consistent with the 

standard of care of other professional service providers in a similar industry and application.   

6.2.       Contractor represents and warrants that products delivered as part of the Scope of Services, including each 

component, shall be free of defects and shall conform to the quality standards of the applicable industry and shall 

meet in all respects the requirements of the Scope of Services.  If any defect or sign of deterioration is identified by 

the City within one year after delivery which is not due to the acts or omissions of the City, Contractor shall, within 15 

days after notification by the City, at Contractor’s expense, repair, adjust or replace such items to the complete 

satisfaction of the City.  

6.3.       Contractor shall be responsible for the quality, technical accuracy, completeness and coordination of all 

Services under this Agreement.  Contractor shall promptly and without charge, provide all corrective work necessary 

as a result of Contractor’s acts, errors or omissions with respect to the quality and accuracy of Contractor’s Services. 

6.4.       Contractor shall be responsible for any and all damages to property or persons as a result of Contractor’s 

acts, errors or omissions in performing the Services under this Agreement, and for any losses or costs to repair or 

remedy any Services undertaken by the City as a result of any such acts, errors or omissions. 

6.5.       Contractor’s obligations shall exist without regard to, and shall not be construed to be waived by, the 

availability or unavailability of any insurance, either by the City or by the Contractor.  None of the provisions of this 

Agreement shall be construed as a limitation on the City’s right to seek recovery of damages it suffers as a result of 

Contractor’s fault or breach. 

7.0.       Warranties – Intellectual Property.   

7.1.       Contractor represents and warrants that the Services produced or provided to the City do not infringe upon 

any copyright, trademark, trade name, trade dress patent, statutory, common law or any other right of any person or 

entity. 

7.2.       Contractor represents and warrants that the Services, and the City’s use of the same, and the exercise by the 

City of the rights granted by this Agreement, shall not infringe upon any other work or violate the rights of publicity or 

privacy of, or constitute a libel or slander against, any person or entity. 

7.3.       Contractor represents and warrants that it is the owner of or otherwise has the right to use and distribute the 

Services contemplated by this Agreement. 

8.0.       Disputes. 

8.1.       Should any dispute arise with respect to this Agreement, the parties agree to act immediately to resolve such 

dispute.  Time is of the essence in the resolution of disputes. 

298

Item 31.



4 
 

8.2.       Contractor agrees that, the existence of a dispute notwithstanding, it will continue without delay to carry out 

all of its responsibilities under this Agreement that are not affected by the dispute and the City shall continue to make 

payment for all Services that are performed in conformance with this Agreement.  Should the Contractor fail to 

continue to perform its responsibilities regarding all non-disputed Services, without delay, any additional costs 

incurred by the City or the Contractor as a result of such failure to proceed shall be borne by the Contractor. 

8.3.       Should any dispute between the parties remain unresolved, the parties mutually agree to engage in 

mediation prior to the filing of suit by either party.  The cost of mediation shall be divided equally between the parties 

except that each party shall be responsible for that party’s own expenses and attorney fees associated with 

mediation.  The City shall not engage in arbitration of any dispute. 

9.0.       Indemnification. 

9.1.       Contractor (including, for purposes of this Section, Contractor’s agents, employees, subcontractors or others 

working on behalf of Contractor) shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless the City and its elected and appointed 

officers, its employees, and agents working on behalf of the City, from any and all liability, loss, cost, damage and 

expense (including reasonable attorney fees and court costs) resulting from, arising out of, or related in any way to 

any claims, demands, actions or suits based upon or alleging personal injury, including bodily injury or death, and 

property damages, arising out of or in any way connected or associated with the Contractor’s performance under this 

Agreement. 

9.2.       Contractor’s duty of indemnification and to hold harmless includes, but is not limited to, Contractor’s breach 

or alleged breach of the warranties found in Sections 6.0 and 7.0 above, and shall survive the termination of this 

Agreement. 

9.3.       It is specifically agreed between the parties that this Agreement is not intended to create in the public or any 

member of the public, any third party beneficiary status or to authorize anyone not a party to this Agreement to 

maintain a suit for personal injuries or property damage.        

10.0.       Insurance. 

Contractor shall at all times during the performance of this Agreement maintain insurance as set forth in Exhibit “B” 

unless this insurance requirement is waived by the City in this Section. 

The City may at any time during the term of this Agreement require proof of such insurance. 

11.0.       Compliance with Laws and Regulations. 

11.1.       Contractor certifies that in performing this Agreement it will comply with all applicable provisions of federal, 

state and local laws, ordinances, rules, licenses and regulations. 

11.2.       Contractor is responsible for determining which products are considered to be hazardous chemicals under 

applicable standards and to provide the most current Safety Data Sheet (“SDS”) with the initial shipment of such 

chemicals.  Failure by Contractor to do so may be considered by the City to be delivery of a defective product and its 

delivery may be refused.  It is also the Contractor’s responsibility to provide to the City any updated or revised SDS 

as it becomes available for any such hazardous chemicals sold and delivered to the City. 

12.0.       Independent Contractor. 

Both parties shall act in their individual capacities in the performance of this Agreement and not as agents, 

employees, partners, joint ventures or associates of one another.  The employees or agents of one party shall not be 

deemed or construed to be the employees or agents of the other for any purpose whatsoever. 

13.0.       Non-Collusion. 

299

Item 31.



5 
 

13.1.       Neither the Contractor, nor anyone acting on behalf of Contractor, has employed any person to solicit or 

procure this Agreement, nor will the Contractor make any payment or agreement for payment of any compensation in 

connection with the solicitation or procurement of this Agreement. 

13.2.       Contractor agrees that there is no agreement, arrangement or understanding expressed or implied, 

contemplating any division of compensation for Services provided under this Agreement, or in the participation in 

such Services, directly or indirectly, by any person or entity, except as provided in this Agreement.  

13.3.       Neither the Contractor, nor anyone acting on behalf of Contractor, has either directly or indirectly entered 

into any agreement, arrangement or understanding to collude or otherwise take any action in restraint of free 

competitive procurement in connection with this Agreement. 

14.0.       Nondiscrimination and Equal Opportunity. 

14.1.       Contractor will not in the performance of this Agreement unlawfully discriminate against any employee or 

applicant for employment because of race, sex, color, creed, national origin, marital or familial status, religion, age, 

disability, sexual orientation, gender identity, genetic information or veteran status, or any other classification 

protected by federal, state, or local law.   

14.2.       Contractor shall inform all subcontractors and agents performing under this Agreement of this 

nondiscrimination and equal opportunity requirement and shall take reasonable steps to ensure their compliance with 

the same. 

15.0.       No Conflict of Interest, 

Contractor represents, warrants and covenants that no relationship exists or will exist during the term of this 

Agreement that is a conflict of interest under Iowa law.  No employee, officer or agent of the Contractor shall 

participate in the procurement or performance of this Agreement if a conflict of interest exists as to such person.  

Should a conflict of interest arise during the term of this Agreement for Contractor or any employee, officer or agent of 

Contractor, Contractor shall immediately notify the City, in which case this Agreement may be terminated and any 

additional costs incurred by the City due to such termination shall be paid by Contractor or deducted from any sums 

yet due to Contractor. 

16.0.       Force Majeure. 

16.1.       Force majeure shall be any of the following events:  acts of God or the public enemy; compliance with any 

order, rule, regulation, decree, or request of any governmental authority or agency or person purporting to act as 

such; acts of war, public disorder, rebellion, terrorism, or sabotage; floods, hurricanes, or other storms; strikes or 

labor disputes; public health emergency; or any other cause, whether or not of the class or kind specifically named or 

referred to in this Agreement which is not within the reasonable control of the party affected.  A delay in or failure of 

performance by either party shall not constitute a default in performance nor be the basis for, or give rise to, any 

claim for damages, if and to the extent such delay or failure is caused by force majeure. 

16.2.       The party who is prevented from performing by force majeure shall be obligated, within a period not to 

exceed fourteen (14) calendar days after the occurrence or detection of any such event, to provide notice to the other 

party setting forth in reasonable detail the nature thereof and the anticipated extent of the delay, and shall remedy 

such cause as soon as reasonably possible, as mutually agreed between the parties. 

16.3.       If a remedy to an event of force majeure cannot be agreed upon within a reasonable amount of time, this 

Agreement may be terminated by either party. 

17.0.       Assignment. 

No rights under this Agreement may be assigned or transferred by Contractor without the prior written consent of the 

City.  The benefits of this Agreement may inure to Contractor’s assigns, transferees, or successors in interest if 

300

Item 31.



6 
 

approved by the City in writing in advance, and if such assignee, transferees or successors agree in writing to be 

bound by the terms of this Agreement. 

18.0.       Governing Law.   

18.1.       This Agreement shall be governed, interpreted and enforced in accordance with the laws of the State of 

Iowa, regardless of choice of law principles. 

18.2.       Venue for any dispute under this Agreement shall be the District Court in and for Black Hawk County, Iowa.        

19.0.       Discrepancy.   

In the event that there are any discrepancies or differences between any terms or conditions of the Contractor’s bid or 

quote and this Agreement, this Agreement shall prevail, even if the Contractor’s bid or quote is incorporated into this 

Agreement. 

20.0       Public Record. 

20.1.      This Agreement as well as Contractor’s bid or quote and all documents submitted with any such bid or quote 

shall become public documents subject to Iowa Code Chapter 22, the Iowa Open Records Law.  By submitting the 

bid or quote or any document to the City in connection with such bid or quote, the submitting party recognizes this 

and waives any claim against the City, its elected and appointed officers, and its employees, and agents working on 

behalf of the City, relating to the release of any bid or document submitted. 

20.2.       Each submitting party shall hold the City and its elected and appointed officers, and its employees, and 

agents working on behalf of the City, harmless from any claims arising from the release of any document or 

information made available to the City related to or arising from the bidding or quoting process. 

20.3.       Notwithstanding Sections 20.1 and 20.2, protection from disclosure may apply to those elements of any 

submittal that may be a trade secret, or confidential or proprietary information.  Should the submitting party wish to 

designate submittals as such, they must be clearly and prominently marked.  The City shall make no determination as 

to whether or not such documents are protected from disclosure under Iowa Code Chapter 22.  Rather, the City shall 

endeavor to notify the submitter of any request for such information and the submitter shall be solely responsible for 

asserting exemption from disclosure by obtaining a court order.  As long as the City makes a good faith effort to notify 

the submitter of a request for such information, the City and the City’s elected and appointed officers, the City’s 

employees, and agents working on behalf of the City, shall not be liable for any damages resulting from such 

disclosure, whether such disclosure is deemed required by law, by an order of court or administrative agency, or 

occurs through inadvertence, mistake, or negligence.  

21.0.       Debarment. 

21.1.       Contractor hereby certifies, pursuant to 48 CFR Part 9, that neither it nor its principals are presently 

debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this 

Agreement by any federal agency. 

21.2.       Contractor further certifies that it is not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared 

ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in any contracts with the City or with the State of Iowa. 

22.0        Confidentiality of Shared Information. 

No information shared between Contractor and the City in the performance of this Agreement shall be deemed 

confidential unless clearly designated as such in writing by the party seeking confidentiality at the time of sharing.  If 

designated as confidential the parties agree to maintain the confidentiality of such information except as necessary 

for performance under this Agreement, unless or until written authorization for disclosure is given by the designating 

party, or as required by law, or by an order of court or administrative agency.  In the event of a dispute over the 

confidentiality of shared information, the parties agree to maintain the confidentiality of the designated information 

301

Item 31.



7 
 

until the issue of confidentiality is resolved.  The duty to maintain the confidentiality of such information shall survive 

the termination of this Agreement. 

23.0.       Entire Agreement. 

23.1.       This Agreement, and Exhibits, which are incorporated into this Agreement by this reference, contains the 

entire agreement and understanding by and between the parties with respect to the subject matter, and no 

representations, promises, agreements, or understandings, written or verbal, not contained in this Agreement, shall 

be of any force or effect. 

23.2.       No change, modification or waiver of this Agreement shall be valid or binding unless the same is in writing 

and signed by the party against whom such change, modification or waiver is sought to be enforced. 

24.0.       Additional Terms. 

____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

25.0.       Notices. 

Any notice required to be given under this Agreement and any authorization required to be provided shall be given or 

provided to: 

City:                                                                                               Contractor: 

Name: __ Stephanie Houk Sheetz, AICP_                                     Name: _Brian Schoon, AICP_________ 

Title: Director of Community Development_                                  Title: Director of Development__________ 

Address: 220 Clay St, Cedar Falls, IA__                                       Address: 229 East Park Avenue, Waterloo, IA 50703 

Telephone: __(319) 268-5151   _______                                       Telephone: (319) 235-0311 Ext. 138  

Email: Stephanie.Sheetz@cedarfalls.com_                                    Email: bschoon@inrcog.org   

 

In Witness Whereof, the City and the Contractor have caused this Agreement to be executed as of the last date listed 

below. 

 

CONTRACTOR 

(Name of Contractor) Kevin Blanshan, Executive Director of INRCOG___________________ 

By: __________________________________________ 

Its: __________________________________________                    Date: ___________________ 

 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

 

302

Item 31.

mailto:bschoon@inrcog.org


8 
 

By: __________________________________ 

        Robert M. Green, Mayor 

 

Attest: ________________________________                                      Date: _____________________ 

             Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk  

                                 

    

303

Item 31.



    

Exhibit A 
 

CDBG Entitlement Funding Federal Fiscal Year 2019 (City FY2020): Grant 
Administration and Technical Services for Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and 
Economic Security (CARES) (CV-2) Services for Agency, School, and 

Housing Projects in Cedar Falls, Iowa 
City Project Number  022353 

 

   
 

SCOPE OF WORK 
CDBG GRANT ADMINISTRATION AND TECHNICAL SERVICES FOR CARES-

FUNDED (CV-2) PROJECTS 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA  

 
Overview 
 
The Iowa Northland Regional Council of Governments (INRCOG) is proposing to 
administer the City of Cedar Falls’ (City) Community Development Block Grant Agency, 
School, and Grant programs, all of which are funded through the City’s Community 
Development Block Grant (CDBG) CARES (CV-2) allocation. 
 
 
Qualifications 

 

Housing Rehabilitation and CDBG Experience 
 
As a public agency created under Chapter 28E of the Iowa Code, INRCOG serves a six-
county area. The City of Cedar Falls is a member in good standing our staff has built a 
solid relationship with the City’s staff. We are located in close proximity to Cedar Falls 
City Hall and we are very familiar with the community, including its infrastructure, 
services and its elected and appointed officials.   
 
Our agency is proud of the working relationships we have built with numerous federal 
and state departments, as we have administered numerous programs on behalf of our 
local government members. Included amongst those agencies are the US Department of 
Commerce, Economic Development Administration; US Department of Agriculture; 
Federal Highway and Federal Transit Administrations; Federal Emergency Management 
Agency; Iowa Economic Development Authority; Iowa Department of Transportation; 
Iowa Department of Natural Resources; Iowa Homeland Security and Emergency 
Management; and the Iowa Finance Authority. INRCOG also provides staff and 
oversight for several regional bodies including the Black Hawk County Metropolitan 
Transportation Organization; Regional Transportation Authority; Regional Transit 
Commission; Regional Economic Development Commission; and Regional Housing 
Council. Further, our agency has acted as the procurement and fiscal agent for multi-
county emergency management regions. Through our work, our agency has developed 
relationships with several non-profit organizations, including administration of housing-
related grants which involves working directly with several entities such as The Salvation 

304

Item 31.



 

  CDBG Entitlement Housing Services 
  Cedar Falls, Iowa 
  City Project No. 022353 
 

Army, Iowa Heartland Habitat for Humanity, Cedar Valley Friends of the Family, 
Operation Threshold, Exceptional Persons, Inc., Northeast Iowa Area Agency on Aging; 
Northeast Iowa Community Action Corporation; Community Based Services; and House 
of Hope. 
 
INRCOG has extensive housing rehabilitation and repair experience under the Iowa 
Economic Development Authority’s (IEDA) Housing Rehabilitation and Iowa Finance 
Authority’s (IFA) Local Housing Trust Fund programs.  IEDA’s program is funded 
through the CDBG program, as administered by the US Department of Housing and 
Urban Development, and the IFA program is funded through the State Housing Trust 
Fund. We also have a familiarity with the HOME Investment Partnership Program as 
administered by the US Department of Housing and Development. INRCOG has 
administered housing trust fund grants for the Iowa Northland Regional Housing Council 
since 2003 and since 2014 for the Waterloo Housing Trust Fund. Through the trust 
funds, our staff has developed and administered annual homeowner repair programs 
that serve approximately ten individual households per year. In addition to administering 
the individual home improvement programs, INRCOG has managed numerous housing 
acquisition programs, as funded by the Hazard Mitigation Grant and CDBG Programs, 
following disasters in 1993, 1999, 2000, 2008, and 2016. 
 
Our staff writes the grants for these programs for our member local governments and we 
performs all administrative tasks relative to construction, finance, and professional 
service functions associated with the programs.  We have completed all IEDA basic and 
updated trainings associated with administering CDBG funds, specifically those 
associated with environmental assessments, Davis-Bacon (prevailing wage) compliance, 
historical preservation review and approval, Section 3 (hiring practices) compliance, fair 
housing standards, lead-based paint testing and certification, radon testing, and 
contractor procurement. INRCOG is accustomed to developing the necessary contracts, 
developing file and program management techniques, assisting with city audits, 
successfully preparing for and completing IEDA monitoring reviews, conflict mediation, 
financial management, and closeout processes associated with CDBG projects. 
 

Primary INRCOG Staff Members 
The primary contacts for this proposal and program are 

o Brian Schoon, Director of Development (bschoon@inrcog.org);  
o Cindy Knox, Housing Planner II (cknox@inrcog.org);  
o Rose Phillips, Housing Planner II (rphillips@inrcog.org).   

 
Brian Schoon has been employed by INRCOG since September 1991 and is currently 
serving as the Director of Development. He is a member of the American Institute of 
Certified Planners. His responsibilities include supervision, project administration, budget 
oversight, and planning functions associated with INRCOG’s housing, planning, and 
economic development efforts, including numerous CDBG projects funded by the Iowa 
Economic Development Authority (IEDA).  Schoon also oversees the Iowa Northland 
Regional Housing Council and its local Housing Trust Funds and staffs the Waterloo 
Housing Trust Fund and its financial programs. He is currently providing planning 
services to the City, including updating the Consolidated and Annual Action Plans 
related to its current HUD CDBG Entitlement Program. Schoon has a Bachelors’ degree 

305

Item 31.

mailto:bschoon@inrcog.org
mailto:cknox@inrcog.org
mailto:rphillips@inrcog.org


 

  CDBG Entitlement Housing Services 
  Cedar Falls, Iowa 
  City Project No. 022353 
 

in Landscape Design from South Dakota State University and a Masters’ degree in 
Community and Regional Planning from Iowa State University. 
 
Cindy Knox has worked as a housing program specialist for INRCOG for 13 years. 
Knox has administered nearly two dozen CDBG housing rehab programs, as well as 
other housing programs awarded to our member communities from the US Department 
of Agriculture, Federal Home Loan Bank, and Iowa Finance Authority. She has managed 
homebuyer and down-payment assistance programs; housing inspection programs; and 
emergency and rural repair programs for our regional Housing Council. Knox is a 
Certified Lead-Based Paint Sampling Technician and has knowledge of Iowa Minimum 
Housing and Housing Quality Standards. Knox has a Bachelor’s degree in Design and 
the Human Environment from the University of Northern Iowa. 
 
Rose Phillips has been with INRCOG since early 2017 and is responsible for managing 
CDBG housing rehabilitation programs for our member communities. She also develops 
housing needs assessments and manages post-disaster housing acquisition programs 
for our member local governments. Phillips has a Bachelors’ degree in Environmental 
Studies from Mount Holyoke College and a Masters’ degree in Urban and Regional 
Planning from the University of Iowa. 
 
Description of Technical Services, Grant Administration, and Organizational 
Capacity 
 
INRCOG, through its existing staff, will administer the City’s Fiscal Year 2019 CARES 
(CV-2) Funds  
 
Agency Programs and the School Grant program, as funded by US Department of 
Housing and Urban Development (HUD) through the Iowa Department of Economic 
Development Authority (IEDA). INRCOG will assist with providing agency and school 
grants, all under the supervision of City staff. Included in each, INRCOG will provide 
general and technical administrative services, as well as expense and monitoring 
services associated with the contracted programs. 
 
INRCOG will present any necessary approvals or reports to the City’s staff.  Further, as 
HUD’s subrecipient, the City will be responsible for obtaining HUD reimbursement for all 
expenses under this proposal with INRCOG assisting with obtaining said 
reimbursements. Likewise, INRCOG will assist the City with any necessary HUD or 
CDBG reports, as requested. 
 
Budget 
 
INRCOG is prepared to offer the administrative services for a not-to-exceed price for 
each unit or task completed during the City fiscal year, as outlined below.  Said 
administrative expenses will be billed on an hourly basis, using rates that will be defined 
in the contract between the City and INRCOG. 
 
 
 
 

306

Item 31.



 

  CDBG Entitlement Housing Services 
  Cedar Falls, Iowa 
  City Project No. 022353 
 

o General Administration-Environmental Review and Release of Funds 
o INRCOG: $3,000 

 

o Agency Awards Program (to City-Determined Agencies) 

 Approximately $5,500/Agency to Six (6) Agencies (Includes all Administration 
Procurement, Monitoring, and Award expenses) 

o INRCOG Expense: $7,250 $13,500 

o City Equipment 

 Procurement and Administration 
o INRCOG Expense: $11,000 $4,750 

o School Equipment 

 Procurement and Administration 
o INRCOG Expense: $11,000 

 
If accepted by the City, INRCOG is willing to negotiate a contract utilizing the City’s 
standard agreement.  INRCOG currently meets the City’s insurance requirements and 
has attached a certificate as evidence.   
 
As with prior contracts, INRCOG will provide monthly invoices to the City for services 
provided by our staff.  Services covered by the agreement will be assigned an individual, 
unique program number through which expenses will be tracked and monitored within 
INRCOG’s monthly financial reports and annual independent audit.  INRCOG shall make 
all financial records available to the City upon request. 

 

Time of Performance 
Work under this proposal would begin upon execution of an agreement and completion 
would be no later than December 31st, 2021 June 30, 2022.  INRCOG may propose an 
extension to the negotiated agreement, in the event it is unable to complete the services 
defined above.  Accordingly, the completion date may be extended for a period of up to 
six (6) months upon written request of INRCOG documenting a good faith effort to 
complete performance in a timely manner. 

 

Project Review 
At least annually, but not later than May 1st, 2021 2022 during the contract timeframe, 
the City and INRCOG will meet to review INRCOG’s performance with regard to the 
services provided to the City.  Extending the existing agreement for future years(s) may 
also be discussed at that time. 
 

307

Item 31.



    

Exhibit B 
 

State CDBG Funding: Project Delivery for Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and 
Economic Security (CARES) (CV-2) Services for Agency, School, and 

Housing Projects in Cedar Falls, Iowa 
City Project Number  022353 

 
  Original12/13/11 

Revision 01/31/2017 
 
    INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS FOR  

CONTRACTORS FOR THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 
 
*** This document outlines the insurance requirements for all Contractors who 
perform work for the City of Cedar Falls. The term “contractor” as used in this 
document shall be defined as the general contractor, artisan contractor, or design 
contractor that will be performing work for the City of Cedar Falls under contract. 
 
 
1.  All policies of insurance required hereunder shall be with an insurer 
authorized by law to do business in Iowa.  All insurance policies shall be 
companies satisfactory to the City and have a rating of A-, VII or better in the 
current A.M. Best Rating Guide.   
 
2. All Certificates of Insurance required hereunder shall include the 
Cancellation & Material Change Endorsement.  A copy of this endorsement is 
attached in Exhibit 1. 
 
3.  Contractor shall furnish a signed Certificate of Insurance to the City of 
Cedar Falls, Iowa for the coverage required in Exhibit 1.  Such Certificates shall 
include copies of the following endorsements: 
 

a) Commercial General Liability policy is primary and non-contributing 
b) Commercial General Liability additional insured endorsement – See 

Exhibit 1 
c) Governmental Immunities Endorsement – See Exhibit 1 

 
Copies of additional insured endorsements, executed by an authorized 
representative from an Insurer duly licensed to transact business at the location 
of the jobsite, must be provided prior to the first payment.    
 
Contractor shall, upon request by the City, provide Certificates of Insurance for 
all subcontractors and sub-sub-contractors who perform work or services 
pursuant to the provisions of this contract. 
 

308

Item 31.



 

  CDBG Entitlement Housing Services 
  Cedar Falls, Iowa 
  City Project No. BL-000-CD 
 

4. Each certificate shall be submitted to the City of Cedar Falls. 
 
5. Failure to provide minimum coverage shall not be deemed a waiver of 
these requirements by the City of Cedar Falls. Failure to obtain or maintain the 
required insurance shall be considered a material breach of this agreement.   
 
6. Failure of the Contractor to maintain the required insurance shall 
constitute a default under this Contract, and at City’s option, shall allow City to 
terminate this Contract for cause and/or purchase said insurance at Contractor’s 
expense. 
 
7. Contractor shall be required to carry the following minimum 
coverage/limits or greater, if required by law or other legal agreement; as per 
Exhibit 1: 
 

 This coverage shall be written on an occurrence, not claims made form. 
All deviations or exclusions from the standard ISO commercial general 
liability form CG 001 shall be clearly identified and shall be subject to the 
review and approval of the City.  

 
 Contractor shall maintain ongoing CGL coverage for at least 2 years 

following substantial completion of the Work to cover liability arising from 
the products-completed operations hazard and liability assumed under an 
insured contract.    

 
 Governmental Immunity endorsement identical or equivalent to form 

attached. 
 

 Additional Insured Requirement – See Exhibit 1. 
The City of Cedar Falls, including all its elected and appointed officials, all 
its employees and volunteers, all its boards, commissions and/or 
authorities and their board members, employees and volunteers shall be 
named as an additional insured on General Liability Policies for all classes 
of contractors. 
 
Contractors shall include coverage for the City of Cedar Falls as an 
additional insured including ongoing and completed operations coverage 
equivalent to: ISO CG 20 10 07 04* and ISO CG 20 37 07 04** 
 

*  ISO CG 20 10 07 04 “Additional Insured – Owners, Lessees or 
Contractors – Scheduled Person or Organization” 

  
 ** ISO CG 20 37 07 04 “Additional Insured – Owners, Lessees or 

Contractors – Completed Operations”  
 

309

Item 31.



 

  CDBG Entitlement Housing Services 
  Cedar Falls, Iowa 
  City Project No. BL-000-CD 
 

 
8. Errors & Omissions:  If the contract’s scope of services includes design 
work or other professional services, then Contractor shall maintain insurance 
coverage for errors, omissions and other wrongful acts or omissions (except for 
intentional acts or omissions), arising out of the professional services performed 
by Contractor. Contractor shall maintain continuous Errors & Omissions 
coverage for a period commencing no later than the date of the contract, and 
continuing for a period of no less than 2 years from the date of completion of all 
work completed or services performed under the contract.  The limit of liability 
shall not be less than $1,000,000. 
 
9. Separation of Insured’s Provision: If Contractor’s liability policies do not 
contain the standard ISO separation of insured’s provision, or a substantially 
similar clause, they shall be endorsed to provide cross-liability coverage. 
 
10. Limits: By requiring the insurance as set out in this Contract, City does not 
represent that coverage and limits will necessarily be adequate to protect 
Contractor and such coverage and limits shall not be deemed as a limitation on 
Contractor’s liability under the indemnities provided to City in this Contract.  The 
City will have the right at any time to require liability insurance greater than that 
otherwise specified in Exhibit 1. If required, the additional premium or premiums 
payable shall be added to the bid price. 
 
11. Indemnification (Hold Harmless) Provision:  To the fullest extent permitted 
by law, the Contractor agrees to defend, pay on behalf of, indemnify, and hold 
harmless the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, its elected and appointed officials, 
directors, employees, agents and volunteers working on behalf of the City of 
Cedar Falls, Iowa against any and all claims, demands, suits or loss, including 
any and all outlay and expense connected therewith, and for damages which 
may be asserted, claimed or recovered against or from the City of Cedar Falls, 
Iowa, its elected and appointed officials, directors, employees, agents and 
volunteers working on behalf of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, including, but not 
limited to, damages arising by reason of personal injury, including bodily injury or 
death, and property damages, which arises out of or is in any way connected or 
associated with the work and/or services provided by the Contractor to the City of 
Cedar Falls, Iowa pursuant to the provisions of this contract to the extent arising 
out of the errors, omissions or negligent acts of the Contractor, its agents, 
employees, subcontractors or others working on behalf of the Contractor.  It is 
the intention of the parties that the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, its elected and 
appointed officials, directors, employees, agents and volunteers working on 
behalf of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa shall not be liable or in any way 
responsible for the injury, damage, liability, loss or expense incurred by the 
Contractor, its officers, employees, subcontractors, and others affiliated with the 
Contractor due to accidents, mishaps, misconduct, negligence or injuries either in 
person or property resulting from the work and/or services performed by the 

310

Item 31.



 

  CDBG Entitlement Housing Services 
  Cedar Falls, Iowa 
  City Project No. BL-000-CD 
 

Contractor pursuant to the provisions of this contract, except for and to the extent 
caused by the negligence of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa.   
 
The Contractor expressly assumes full responsibility for damages or injuries 
which may result to any person or property by reason of or in connection with the 
work and/or services provided by the Contractor to the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa 
pursuant to this contract to the extent arising out of the errors, omissions or 
negligent acts of the Contractor, its agents, employees, subcontractors or others 
working on behalf of the Contractor, and agrees to pay the City of Cedar Falls, 
Iowa for all damages caused to the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa premises resulting 
from the work and/or services of the Contractor, its officers, employees, 
subcontractors, and others affiliated with the Contractor to the extent arising out 
of such errors, omissions or negligent acts. 
 
The Contractor represents that its activities pursuant to the provisions of this 
contract will be performed and supervised by adequately trained and qualified 
personnel, and the Contractor will observe, and cause its officers, employees, 
subcontractors and others affiliated with the Contractor to observe all applicable 
safety rules. 
 
12. Waiver of Subrogation: To the extent permitted by law, Contractor hereby 
releases the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, its elected and appointed officials, its 
directors, employees, agents and volunteers working on behalf of the City of 
Cedar Falls, Iowa, from and against any and all liability or responsibility to the 
Contractor or anyone claiming through or under the Contractor by way of 
subrogation or otherwise, for any loss or damage to property caused by fire or 
any other casualty and for any loss due to bodily injury to Contractor’s 
employees. This provision shall be applicable and in full force and effect only with 
respect to loss or damage occurring during the time of this contract or arising out 
of the work performed under this contract. The Contractor’s policies of insurance 
shall contain a clause or endorsement to the effect that such release shall not 
adversely affect or impair such policies or prejudice the right of the Contractor to 
recover thereunder. 
 
 
Completion Checklist 
 

 Certificate of Liability Insurance (2 pages) 
 Additional Insured CG 20 10 07 04 
 Additional Insured CG 20 37 07 04 
 Governmental Immunities Endorsement 

 
 
 
 

311

Item 31.



 

  CDBG Entitlement Housing Services 
  Cedar Falls, Iowa 
  City Project No. BL-000-CD 
 

EXHIBIT 1 – INSURANCE SCHEDULE 
 
 
General Liability (Occurrence Form Only): 
 Commercial General Liability 
  General Aggregate  $2,000,000 
  Products-Completed Operations Aggregate Limit $2,000,000 
  Personal and Advertising Injury Limit $1,000,000 
  Each Occurrence Limit  $1,000,000 
  Fire Damage Limit (any one occurrence) $     50,000 
  Medical Payments  $       5,000 
  

 

Automobile: (Combined Single Limit)     $1,000,000                            
If the Contractor does not own any vehicles, coverage is required on non-owned 
and hired vehicles. 
 
 
Standard Workers Compensation  
 Statutory for Coverage A 
 Employers Liability:  
 Each Accident $  500,000 
 Each Employee – Disease $  500,000 
 Policy Limit – Disease $  500,000 
 
 
Umbrella:  $3,000,000 
The Umbrella/Excess Insurance shall be written on a per occurrence basis and if 
the Umbrella/Excess is not written on a follow form basis it shall have the same 
endorsements as required of the primary policy(ies). 
 
 
Errors & Omissions: $1,000,000 
 

 
  

312

Item 31.



 

  CDBG Entitlement Housing Services 
  Cedar Falls, Iowa 
  City Project No. BL-000-CD 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
ADDITIONAL INSURED ENDORSEMENT 

 
The City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, including all its elected and appointed officials, all 
its employees and volunteers, all its boards, commissions and/or authorities and 
their board members, employees, and volunteers, are included as Additional 
Insureds, including ongoing operations CG 2010 07 04 or equivalent, and 
completed operations CG 2037 07 04 or equivalent. See Specimens. 
 
This coverage shall be primary to the Additional Insureds, and not contributing 
with any other insurance or similar protection available to the Additional Insureds, 
whether other available coverage be primary, contributing or excess. 

 
 

GOVERNMENTAL IMMUNITIES ENDORSEMENT 
(For use when including the City as an Additional Insured) 

 
1. Nonwaiver of Government Immunity. The insurance carrier expressly 
agrees and states that the purchase of this policy and the including of the City of 
Cedar Falls, Iowa as an Additional Insured does not waive any of the defenses of 
governmental immunity available to the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa under Code of 
Iowa Section 670.4 as it now exists and as it may be amended from time to time. 
 
2. Claims Coverage. The insurance carrier further agrees that this policy of 
insurance shall cover only those claims not subject to the defense of 
governmental immunity under the Code of Iowa Section 670.4 as it now exists 
and as it may be amended from time to time. 
 
3. Assertion of Government Immunity. The City of Cedar Falls, Iowa shall be 
responsible for asserting any defense of governmental immunity, and may do so 
at any time and shall do so upon the timely written request of the insurance 
carrier. Nothing contained in this endorsement shall prevent the carrier from 
asserting the defense of governmental immunity on behalf of the City of Cedar 
Falls, Iowa. 
 
4. Non-Denial of Coverage. The insurance carrier shall not deny coverage 
under this policy and the insurance carrier shall not deny any of the rights and 
benefits accruing to the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa under this policy for reasons of 
governmental immunity unless and until a court of competent jurisdiction has 
ruled in favor of the defense(s) of governmental immunity asserted by the City of 
Cedar Falls, Iowa. 
 
5. No Other Change in Policy. The insurance carrier and the City of Cedar 
Falls, Iowa agree that the above preservation of governmental immunities shall 
not otherwise change or alter the coverage available under the policy. 

313

Item 31.



 

  CDBG Entitlement Housing Services 
  Cedar Falls, Iowa 
  City Project No. BL-000-CD 
 

 
CANCELLATION AND MATERIAL CHANGES ENDORSEMENT 

 
Thirty (30) days Advance Written Notice of Cancellation, Non-Renewal, 
Reduction in coverage and/or limits and ten (10) days written notice of non-
payment of premium shall be sent to: Risk Management Office, City of Cedar 
Falls, City Hall, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613. This endorsement 
supersedes the standard cancellation statement on the Certificate of Insurance to 
which this endorsement is attached.  Contractor agrees to furnish the City with 30 
days advance written notice of cancellation, non-renewal, reduction in coverage 
and/or limits, and 10 days advance written notice of non-payment of premium. 
 
 
  

314

Item 31.



 

  CDBG Entitlement Housing Services 
  Cedar Falls, Iowa 
  City Project No. BL-000-CD 
 

 

$1,000,000 

315

Item 31.



 

  CDBG Entitlement Housing Services 
  Cedar Falls, Iowa 
  City Project No. BL-000-CD 
 

  

316

Item 31.



 

  CDBG Entitlement Housing Services 
  Cedar Falls, Iowa 
  City Project No. BL-000-CD 
 

 

317

Item 31.



 

  CDBG Entitlement Housing Services 
  Cedar Falls, Iowa 
  City Project No. BL-000-CD 
 

 

318

Item 31.



    

Exhibit C 
 

State CDBG Funding: Project Delivery for Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and 
Economic Security (CARES) (CV-2) Services for Agency, School, and 

Housing Projects in Cedar Falls, Iowa 
City Project Number  022353 

 

  2/9/12 
 

STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS FOR CONTRACTS BETWEEN 
CONTRACTORS WHO PERFORM PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AND THE CITY OF 

CEDAR FALLS 
 

 This document outlines the Standard Terms and Conditions for all Contractors 
who perform work or services for the City of Cedar Falls under a contract.  The term, 
“Contractor,” as used in this document, includes an engineer, an architect, and any other 
design professional providing professional services to the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, 
under a contract (but excludes construction contractors). 
 
 1. This Contract may not be modified or amended except by a writing signed 
by an authorized representative of the City of Cedar Falls and of the Contractor. 
 
 2. Time is of the essence of this Contract. 
 
 3. Contractor shall be an independent contractor with respect to the services 
to be performed under this Contract.  Neither Contractor nor its subcontractors, agents, 
or employees, shall be deemed to be employees or agents of the City. 
 
 4. Contractor shall perform all duties in accordance with all applicable 
federal, state and local laws and regulations. 
 
 5. If Contractor breaches this Contract, the City shall have all remedies 
available to it at law or in equity. 
 
 6. Severability.  If any provision of this Contract is declared invalid, illegal, or 
incapable of being enforced by any court of competent jurisdiction, all of the remaining 
provisions of this Contract shall nevertheless continue in full force and effect, and no 
provision shall be deemed dependent upon any other provision unless so expressed 
herein. 
 
 7. Assignment.  Contractor may not assign this Contract or any of its rights 
or obligations hereunder, without the prior written consent of the City, which consent 
may be withheld in the sole and absolute discretion of the City. 
 
 8. Survival of Obligations.  All obligations and duties which by their nature 
extend beyond the term of this Contract shall survive the expiration or termination of this 
Contract. 
 

319

Item 31.



 
  CDBG Entitlement Housing Services 
  Cedar Falls, Iowa 

  City Project No. 022353 
 

 

 9. Governing Law; Jurisdiction; Venue and Trial.  This Contract shall be 
construed in accordance with, and all disputes hereunder shall be governed by, the laws 
of the State of Iowa, excluding its conflicts of law rules.  The parties hereto agree that 
the exclusive jurisdiction and venue shall be in the Iowa District Court for Black Hawk 
County, and in no other jurisdiction or location, and shall not be removed to federal 
court.  The parties hereby agree to waive the right to trial by jury and agree to submit all 
disputes to a trial by judge alone.  The parties agree that no disputes under this Contract 
shall be submitted to binding arbitration, but may be submitted to mediation by mutual 
consent of both parties. 
 
 10. Any failure of Contractor to comply with the Insurance Requirements for 
Contractors for the City of Cedar Falls set forth on Attachment B, shall constitute a 
default under this Contract. 
 
 11. Attorneys’ Fees.  In the event of litigation, the City shall under no 
circumstances be obligated for payment of any attorneys’ fees of Contractor or any other 
party, arising out of such litigation. 
 
 12. Payment.  Payment of Contractor’s invoices shall be due no sooner than 
thirty (30) days from the date of invoice.  In the event any invoices are not paid within 
thirty (30) days, the City shall pay interest thereon at the rate provided for by 
Section 668.13(3), Code of Iowa, computed monthly. 
 
 13. The City shall not be obligated to maintain confidentiality of Contractor 
documents or records that are furnished to the City if such documents are public records 
under the Iowa Open Records Law, Chapter 22, Code of Iowa, and the City shall have 
no responsibility to Contractor for disclosure of such records. 
 
 14. Under no circumstances shall the City waive any damages against the 
Contractor or any other party arising out of any breach of this Contract, whether 
consequential, indirect, special, or punitive damages. 
 
 15. Under no circumstances shall the Contractor’s liability to the City be 
limited to any specific amount or sum, whether that amount is the compensation paid by 
the City to the Contractor under this Contract, or the dollar amount of coverage provided 
for in the Insurance Requirements for Contractors for the City of Cedar Falls, Attachment 
A. 
 
 16. No waiver of the City’s subrogation rights against the Contractor or any 
other party shall conflict with the provisions of the City Insurance Requirements, 
Attachment A. 
 
 17. Limitations Period.  There shall be no limitation, except as provided for by 
Iowa law, on the period of time within which the City may make any claim against the 
Contractor or other party under the provisions of this Contract. 
 
 18. This Contract shall not be binding on the City unless and until approved 
by the City Council of the City at a duly constituted meeting, and signed by the Mayor 
and City Clerk of the City. 

320

Item 31.



 
  CDBG Entitlement Housing Services 
  Cedar Falls, Iowa 

  City Project No. 022353 
 

 

 
 19. Warranties.  Contractor represents and warrants that all services 
furnished to the City under this Contract shall be furnished in a skilled and workmanlike 
manner, in accordance with the degree of skill and care that is required by current, good 
and sound practices applicable to the Contractor’s industry or profession, and as 
otherwise required by applicable law. 
 
 20. Force Majeure.  Neither party to this Contract shall be liable to the other 
party for delays in performing the services, or for the direct or indirect cost resulting from 
such delays, that may result from acts of God, acts of governmental authorities, 
extraordinary weather conditions or other natural catastrophes, or any other cause 
beyond the reasonable control or contemplation of either party.  Each party will take 
reasonable steps to mitigate the impact of any force majeure. 
 

321

Item 31.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com  

 

MEMORANDUM 

Planning & Community Services Division 

  

  

 

 

  

 
  

 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 

 FROM: Thomas Weintraut, Planner III 
 

 DATE: March 10, 2022 

SUBJECT: Craig Industries, Inc. Amended Developmental Procedures Agreement 
 

In August 2006, the City of Cedar Falls and Craig Industries, Inc. entered into a 

Developmental Procedures Agreement that allowed Craig Industries (Craig Ceilley) 

to excavate sand from his 11 acre parcel of land near the intersection of Lincoln 

Street and Independence Street in Northern Cedar Falls.  The intent of the 

Agreement is that when the sand extraction operation is complete, Craig Industries 

will transfer ownership of this property as a lake and park to the City of Cedar Falls. 

In February 2017, Mr. Ceilley requested an amendment to the original Developmental 

Procedures Agreement to continue the sand extraction operation for an additional five 

(5) years. Craig Industries has made significant process with the sand extraction but 

approximately 30% of the excavation works remains to be completed. The 2017 

Developmental Procedures Agreement has expired and staff and Craig Industries have 

been working over the past few months to amend this Agreement to allow for the 

completion of sand excavation activities and the eventual ownership transfer to the City 

of the lake and surrounding park area. 

 
The attached Amended and Restated Developmental Procedures Agreement will allow 
for the continuation of the sand extraction activities through the anticipated project 
completion. The Amended and Restated Developmental Procedures Agreement would 
extend the deadline for an additional five (5) years (March 2027) with the ability for a 
second 5 year period if necessary in accordance with Section 8 of the Amended and 
Restated Developmental Procedures Agreement. 
 
The Developmental Procedures Agreement includes one revision: 
 
Section 4: The access point from Lincoln Street has been removed at the request of 
Craig Industries, Inc. The access point has not been used for the past 10 years and the 
access is overgrown and therefore not needed. This access point has been removed 
from the Craig Industries Vicinity Map, attached to the Developmental Procedures 

322

Item 32.



Agreement as Exhibit “A”. 
 
City staff and Craig Industries are both satisfied with the terms and conditions of the 
Amended and Restated Developmental Procedure Agreement. This project is mutually 
beneficial providing Craig Industries the opportunity for ongoing sand extraction and the 
City of Cedar Falls will ultimately receive the lake and property to be incorporated into 
the City’s park system for the North Cedar area. 
 
The Community Development Department recommends that City Council Adopt and 
approve the following: 
 
Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Amended and Restated 
Developmental Procedures Agreement between the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, and 
Craig Industries, Inc., an Iowa Corporation, which original Developmental Procedures 
Agreement was entered into as a condition of rezoning of certain property under Cedar 
Falls Ordinance No. 2587.  
 
If you have any questions regarding this project, please contact the Community 
Development Department. 
 
xc:  Stephanie Sheetz, Community Development Director 
 Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 Kevin Rogers, City Attorney 
 Craig Ceilley, Craig Industries 

323

Item 32.



Craig Industries, Inc. Amended Development ProcedureAgreement  

Location Map 

Craig Industries 

324

Item 32.



 

 

 

 
 

 

 

RESOLUTION NO. __________ 

 

RESOLUTION APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF AN AMENDED 
AND RESTATED DEVELOPMENTAL PROCEDURES AGREEMENT BETWEEN 

THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, AND CRAIG INDUSTRIES, INC., AN 
IOWA CORPORATION, WHICH ORIGINAL DEVELOPMENTAL PROCEDURES 

AGREEMENT WAS ENTERED INTO AS A CONDITION OF REZONING OF 
CERTAIN PROPERTY UNDER CEDAR FALLS CITY ORDINANCE NO. 2587. 

 

WHEREAS, Craig Industries, Inc., (hereinafter "Craig Industries"), and the City of Cedar 

Falls, Iowa (hereinafter the “City”), entered into that certain Developmental Procedures Agreement 

dated the 14th day of August, 2006, relating to, and constituting, one of the conditions to rezoning of 

certain real estate from the M-1 Light Industrial Zoning District to the M-2 Heavy Industrial Zoning 

District, pursuant to City Ordinance No.2587 adopted August 14, 2006, and filed in the office of the Black 

Hawk County Recorder on August 25, 2006, as Doc. #2007-004760; and 

 

WHEREAS, Craig Industries and the City agreed to amend the August 14, 2006, 

Development Procedures Agreement on February 20, 2017, to continue the sand extraction on the 

said real estate rezoned to M-2 Heavy Industrial Zoning District: and 

 

WHEREAS, the real estate which was rezoned pursuant to Ordinance No. 2587 is legally 
described as follows, to-wit: 

 

A part of the Southeast Quarter of the Southwest Quarter of Section No. Six (6), and a 

part of the Northeast Quarter of the Northwest Quarter of Section No. Seven (7) all in 

Township No. Eighty-nine (89) North, Range No. Thirteen (13) West of the Fifth 

Principal Meridian, Black Hawk County, Iowa, described as follows: Commencing at the 

point of intersection of the Southeasterly line of the right of way of the Illinois Central 

Railroad with the Southwesterly line of Independence Avenue in Cedar City, Black 

Hawk County, Iowa, running thence Southeasterly along the Southwesterly line of 

Independence Avenue to the point of intersection of the Southwesterly line of 

Independence Avenue and the center line of U.S. Highway No. 20; thence Westerly along 

the center line of said U.S. Highway No. 20 to a point that is Twenty-eight and one-half 

(28Y2) Rods East of the West line of the Northeast Quarter of the Northwest Quarter of 

Section No. Seven (7) measured along the center line of said U.S. Highway No. 20; 

thence Northwesterly on a straight line to a point on the Southeasterly line of the right of 

way of the Illinois Central Railroad, which point is seven (7) Rods East of the West line of 

the Southeast Quarter of the Southwest Quarter of Section No. Six (6) measured along the 

Southeasterly line of the right of way of the Illinois Central Railroad; thence 

Northeasterly along the Southeasterly line of said right of way to the place of beginning. 

Except that part conveyed to Black Hawk County, Iowa, and State of Iowa for 
road purposes by deeds recorded in the office of the Recorder of Black Hawk County, 

Iowa, in Book 79 of Land Deeds, at Pages 47 and 63, and Book 83 of Land Deeds, at 
page 263 respectively (hereinafter the "Real Estate"); and 

325

Item 32.



 

WHEREAS, the Developmental Procedures Agreement a s  a m e n d e d  expired on  

February 20, 2022, five (5) years after the effective date of said amendment, and Craig 

Industries has requested that the City agree to another extension of said Development 

Procedures Agreement, and the City is willing to extend said Developmental Procedures 

Agreement, on condition that said Agreement be amended to include additional terms and 

provisions that are in the best interests of the City; and 

 

WHEREAS, Craig Industries is in Agreement with the terms and conditions proposed 

by the  City; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City has been presented with a proposed 

Amended and Restated Developmental Procedures Agreement pursuant to which Craig 

Industries will be granted an extension of the original Development Procedures Agreement, on 

the terms and conditions set forth therein; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City deems it to be in the best interests of the City 

to approve the proposed Amended and Restated Developmental Procedures Agreement with 

Craig Industries, on the terms and conditions stated therein. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 

 

1. That the proposed Amended and Restated Developmental Procedures 

Agreement to be entered into by and between Craig Industries, Inc., and the City of Cedar 

Falls, Iowa, be and the same is  in all respects authorized, approved and confirmed, 

conditioned, however, upon execution of all documents which in the opinion of the Cedar Falls 

City Attorney are necessary to assure that Craig Industries, Inc., has title to the Real Estate, 

free and clear of liens and encumbrances, which determination by the City Attorney shall be 

made prior to the execution of the Amended and Restated Developmental Procedures 

Agreement by the Mayor and City Clerk. 

 

2. That the form and content of the Amended and Restated Developmental 

Procedures Agreement, the provisions of which are incorporated herein by reference, be and 

the same are hereby in  all respects authorized, approved and confirmed, and the Mayor and 

the City Clerk be and they are hereby authorized, empowered and directed to execute, attest, 

seal and deliver the Amended and Restated Developmental Procedures Agreement for and on 

behalf of the City in substantially the form and content now before this meeting, but with such 

changes, modifications, additions or deletions therein as shall be approved by such officers, 

and that the Mayor and the City Clerk are hereby authorized, empowered and directed to do all 

such acts and things and to execute all such documents as may be necessary to carry out and 

comply with the provisions of the Amended and Restated Development Procedures Agreement 

as executed. The City Clerk is directed to cause a copy of the Amended and Restated 

Development Procedures Agreement to be filed with the Black Hawk County Recorder. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

326

Item 32.



3 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED this _____ day of _______________, 2022 

 

 

 

            

      ___________________________________ 

       Robert M. Green, Mayor 

(SEAL) 

 

Attest: 

 

 

__________________________________ 

Jacqueline Danielson, MMC, City Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

327

Item 32.



328

Item 32.



329

Item 32.



330

Item 32.



331

Item 32.



332

Item 32.



333

Item 32.



Exhibit A 

WETLANDS 

WETLANDS 

334

Item 32.



335

Item 33.



336

Item 33.



337

Item 33.



338

Item 34.



339

Item 34.



340

Item 34.



341

Item 34.



342

Item 34.



343

Item 34.



344

Item 34.



345

Item 34.



346

Item 34.



347

Item 34.



348

Item 34.



349

Item 34.



350

Item 34.



351

Item 34.



352

Item 34.



353

Item 34.



354

Item 34.



355

Item 34.



356

Item 34.



357

Item 34.



358

Item 34.



359

Item 34.



360

Item 34.



361

Item 34.



362

Item 34.



363

Item 34.



364

Item 34.



365

Item 34.



366

Item 34.



367

Item 34.



368

Item 34.



369

Item 34.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
  
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 
 
 FROM: Matthew Tolan, EI, Civil Engineer II 
 
 DATE: April 25, 2022 
 
 SUBJECT: W. 27th Street Reconstruction Project 
  City Project Number: RC-000-3240 
  Bid Opening 
   

On Friday, April 22, 2022 at 2:00 p.m. bids were received and opened for the W. 27th 
Street Reconstruction Project. A total of two (2) bids were received, with Peterson 
Contractors, Inc. the low bidder: 
 

 Base Bid 

Engineering Estimate $7,291,651.50 

Peterson Contractors, Inc. $7,584,450.61 

Owen Contracting, Inc. $7,611,902.01 

 
The updated Engineer's Estimate for this project was $7,291,651.50. Peterson 
Contractors, Inc. of Reinbeck, Iowa submitted the low bid in the amount of 
$7,584,450.61. Attached is a bid tabulation for your reference. 
 
The Engineering Division of the Public Works Department recommends acceptance of 
the lowest bid from Peterson Contractors, Inc. in the amount of $7,584,450.61. On May 
16, 2022, the Contract, Bonds, and Insurance Certificate will be submitted for City 
Council approval. 
 
Xc: Chase Schrage, Public Works Director 
 David Wicke, PE, City Engineer   
 
 

370

Item 35.



Line Item Item Description UofM Quantity Unit Price Extension Unit Price Extension Unit Price Extension
1 CLEARING AND GRUBBING UNIT 85.90 65.00$           5,583.50$          60.00$           5,154.00$          60.00$           5,154.00$          
2 ON-SITE TOPSOIL CY 11490.00 20.00$           229,800.00$      14.00$           160,860.00$      14.00$           160,860.00$      
3 TOPSOIL, WASTE CY 217.00 30.00$           6,510.00$          26.50$           5,750.50$          26.50$           5,750.50$          
4 EXCAVATION, CLASS 10, ROADWAY AND BORROW CY 9929.00 8.00$             79,432.00$        8.00$             79,432.00$        8.00$             79,432.00$        
5 EXCAVATION, CLASS 10, BORROW CY 8164.00 10.00$           81,640.00$        18.50$           151,034.00$      18.50$           151,034.00$      
6 EXCAVATION, CLASS 13 CY 15.00 30.00$           450.00$             30.00$           450.00$             30.00$           450.00$             
7 SUBGRADE PREPARATION, 12 IN. SY 30444.00 2.00$             60,888.00$        2.50$             76,110.00$        2.50$             76,110.00$        
8 SUBGRADE TREATMENT, GEOGRID SY 600.00 9.00$             5,400.00$          8.00$             4,800.00$          8.00$             4,800.00$          
9 SUBBASE, MODIFIED 4 IN. SY 7014.00 25.00$           175,350.00$      7.00$             49,098.00$        7.00$             49,098.00$        

10 SUBBASE, MODIFIED 6 IN. SY 68.50 25.00$           1,712.50$          23.00$           1,575.50$          23.00$           1,575.50$          
11 SUBBASE, MODIFIED 12 IN. SY 30444.00 20.00$           608,880.00$      16.00$           487,104.00$      16.00$           487,104.00$      
12 REMOVALS, STRUCTURES EACH 1.00 700.00$         700.00$             1,500.00$      1,500.00$          1,500.00$      1,500.00$          
13 REPLACEMENT OF UNSUITABLE BACKFILL MATERIAL CY 200.00 31.00$           6,200.00$          57.00$           11,400.00$        57.00$           11,400.00$        
14 STORM SEWER, TRENCHED, RCP, CLASS III, 15 IN. LF 3105.00 88.00$           273,240.00$      75.00$           232,875.00$      75.00$           232,875.00$      
15 STORM SEWER, TRENCHED, RCP, CLASS III, 18 IN. LF 1263.00 94.00$           118,722.00$      80.00$           101,040.00$      80.00$           101,040.00$      
16 STORM SEWER, TRENCHED, RCP, CLASS III, 24 IN. LF 36.00 110.00$         3,960.00$          135.00$         4,860.00$          135.00$         4,860.00$          
17 STORM SEWER, TRENCHED, RCP, CLASS III, 30 IN. LF 355.00 125.00$         44,375.00$        140.00$         49,700.00$        140.00$         49,700.00$        
18 STORM SEWER, TRENCHED, RCP, CLASS III, 36 IN. LF 137.00 150.00$         20,550.00$        170.00$         23,290.00$        170.00$         23,290.00$        
19 STORM SEWER, TRENCHED, RCP, CLASS III,37x23 IN, ARCH PIPE LF 18.00 160.00$         2,880.00$          315.00$         5,670.00$          315.00$         5,670.00$          
20 REMOVAL OF STORM SEWER, RCP, LESS THAN 36 IN. LF 1722.00 10.00$           17,220.00$        20.00$           34,440.00$        20.00$           34,440.00$        
21 RCP APRON FOOTINGS 4030.221 EACH 3.00 1,000.00$      3,000.00$          2,000.00$      6,000.00$          2,000.00$      6,000.00$          
22 18" RCP APRON 4030.222 EACH 1.00 1,300.00$      1,300.00$          1,600.00$      1,600.00$          1,600.00$      1,600.00$          
23 24" RCP APRON 4030.222 EACH 1.00 1,300.00$      1,300.00$          1,750.00$      1,750.00$          1,750.00$      1,750.00$          
24 36" RCP APRON 4030.222 EACH 1.00 2,350.00$      2,350.00$          2,500.00$      2,500.00$          2,500.00$      2,500.00$          
25 PIPE APRON GUARD, 18" RCP, IN PLACE 4030.224 EACH 1.00 1,775.00$      1,775.00$          1,200.00$      1,200.00$          1,200.00$      1,200.00$          
26 PIPE APRON GUARD, 24" RCP, IN PLACE 4030.224 EACH 1.00 2,000.00$      2,000.00$          1,400.00$      1,400.00$          1,400.00$      1,400.00$          
27 PIPE APRON GUARD, 36" RCP, IN PLACE 4030.224 EACH 1.00 1,775.00$      1,775.00$          1,800.00$      1,800.00$          1,800.00$      1,800.00$          
28 SUBDRAIN, TYPE S, 6 IN. LF 9608.00 15.00$           144,120.00$      16.00$           153,728.00$      16.00$           153,728.00$      
29 SUBDRAIN CONNECTIONS, CONNECT TO EXISTING, SUBDRAIN, 6 IN. EACH 18.00 200.00$         3,600.00$          350.00$         6,300.00$          350.00$         6,300.00$          
30 SUBDRAIN OUTLETS, 4040.233 EACH 90.00 300.00$         27,000.00$        375.00$         33,750.00$        375.00$         33,750.00$        
31 WATER MAIN, TRENCHED, DUCTILE IRON PIPE (DIP), 16 IN, POLY WRAPPED LF 1636.50 155.00$         253,657.50$      140.00$         229,110.00$      140.00$         229,110.00$      
32 WATER MAIN, TRENCHED, DUCTILE IRON PIPE (DIP), 12 IN, POLY WRAPPED LF 68.50 130.00$         8,905.00$          130.00$         8,905.00$          130.00$         8,905.00$          
33 WATER MAIN, TRENCHED, DUCTILE IRON PIPE (DIP), 8 IN, POLY WRAPPED LF 40.10 85.00$           3,408.50$          120.00$         4,812.00$          120.00$         4,812.00$          
34 IN, POLY WRAPPED, (HYD EXT) LF 130.80 80.00$           10,464.00$        80.00$           10,464.00$        80.00$           10,464.00$        
35 GASKETS, NITRILE EACH 5.00 350.00$         1,750.00$          365.00$         1,825.00$          365.00$         1,825.00$          
36 FITTINGS BY COUNT, DUCTILE IRON, 12 IN, MJ CAP EACH 1.00 370.00$         370.00$             550.00$         550.00$             550.00$         550.00$             
37 FITTINGS BY COUNT, DUCTILE IRON, 16 IN, 45? ELBOW EACH 12.00 750.00$         9,000.00$          1,625.00$      19,500.00$        1,625.00$      19,500.00$        
38 FITTINGS BY COUNT, DUCTILE IRON, 16 IN, 11.25, ELBOW EACH 2.00 700.00$         1,400.00$          1,650.00$      3,300.00$          1,650.00$      3,300.00$          
39 FITTINGS BY COUNT, DUCTILE IRON, 6 IN, 22.5, ELBOW EACH 1.00 375.00$         375.00$             750.00$         750.00$             750.00$         750.00$             
40 FITTINGS BY COUNT, DUCTILE IRON, 6 IN, 45? ELBOW EACH 1.00 450.00$         450.00$             750.00$         750.00$             750.00$         750.00$             
41 FITTINGS BY COUNT, DUCTILE IRON, 16 IN X 16IN X 12 IN, TEE EACH 1.00 1,000.00$      1,000.00$          2,100.00$      2,100.00$          2,100.00$      2,100.00$          
42 FITTINGS BY COUNT, DUCTILE IRON, 16 IN X 16IN X 8 IN, TEE EACH 1.00 1,000.00$      1,000.00$          1,900.00$      1,900.00$          1,900.00$      1,900.00$          
43 VALVE, BUTTERFLY, DIP, 16 IN EACH 4.00 6,000.00$      24,000.00$        6,000.00$      24,000.00$        6,000.00$      24,000.00$        
44 VALVE, GATE, DIP, 12 IN EACH 1.00 3,000.00$      3,000.00$          4,750.00$      4,750.00$          4,750.00$      4,750.00$          
45 VALVE, GATE, DIP, 8 IN EACH 2.00 2,500.00$      5,000.00$          3,500.00$      7,000.00$          3,500.00$      7,000.00$          
46 VALVE, GATE, DIP, 6 IN EACH 1.00 1,750.00$      1,750.00$          3,000.00$      3,000.00$          3,000.00$      3,000.00$          
47 VALVE, ADJUSTMENT EACH 3.00 500.00$         1,500.00$          600.00$         1,800.00$          600.00$         1,800.00$          
48 FIRE HYDRANT ASSEMBLY EACH 2.00 7,000.00$      14,000.00$        9,000.00$      18,000.00$        9,000.00$      18,000.00$        
49 ALTERNATE FIRE HYDRANT ASSEMBLY EACH 4.00 7,250.00$      29,000.00$        9,200.00$      36,800.00$        9,200.00$      36,800.00$        
50 FIRE HYDRANT, END OF MAIN EACH 1.00 6,800.00$      6,800.00$          8,800.00$      8,800.00$          8,800.00$      8,800.00$          
51 FIRE HYDRANT ASSEMBLY, REMOVE & RELOCATE EACH 5.00 1,400.00$      7,000.00$          3,800.00$      19,000.00$        3,800.00$      19,000.00$        
52 MANHOLE, SW-401, 48 IN. EACH 5.00 4,700.00$      23,500.00$        5,200.00$      26,000.00$        5,200.00$      26,000.00$        
53 INTAKE, SW-507 EACH 18.00 6,300.00$      113,400.00$      7,400.00$      133,200.00$      7,400.00$      133,200.00$      
54 INTAKE, SW-508 EACH 9.00 7,450.00$      67,050.00$        8,500.00$      76,500.00$        8,500.00$      76,500.00$        
55 INTAKE, SW-509 EACH 11.00 7,700.00$      84,700.00$        8,900.00$      97,900.00$        8,900.00$      97,900.00$        
56 INTAKE, SW-510 EACH 5.00 9,300.00$      46,500.00$        11,100.00$    55,500.00$        11,100.00$    55,500.00$        
57 INTAKE, SW-513 EACH 8.00 7,200.00$      57,600.00$        8,400.00$      67,200.00$        8,400.00$      67,200.00$        
58 INTAKE, SW-545 EACH 2.00 9,300.00$      18,600.00$        13,250.00$    26,500.00$        13,250.00$    26,500.00$        
59 CONNECTION TO EXISTING MANHOLE OR INTAKE EACH 6.00 1,000.00$      6,000.00$          1,750.00$      10,500.00$        1,750.00$      10,500.00$        
60 REMOVALS, MANHOLE OR INTAKE EACH 15.00 600.00$         9,000.00$          550.00$         8,250.00$          550.00$         8,250.00$          
61 STANDARD OR SLIP FORM PORTLAND CEMENT CONCRETE PAVEMENT, CLASS C-SUD, CLASS 3, DURABILITY, 9 IN. SY 24587.40 52.00$           1,278,544.80$  62.70$           1,541,629.98$  62.70$           1,541,629.98$  
62 CONCRETE MEDIAN, STANDARD PAVEMENT, CLASS C- 4, CLASS 3 DURABILITY, 6 IN. SY 68.50 70.00$           4,795.00$          106.50$         7,295.25$          106.50$         7,295.25$          
63 TEMPORARY PAVEMENT, 6" PCC SY 45.00 65.00$           2,925.00$          68.35$           3,075.75$          68.35$           3,075.75$          
64 CURB AND GUTTER, ROLLED, 6 IN. LF 75.00 48.00$           3,600.00$          58.00$           4,350.00$          58.00$           4,350.00$          
65 REMOVAL OF SIDEWALK, SHARED USE PATH, OR DRIVEWAY SY 1251.70 9.00$             11,265.30$        9.00$             11,265.30$        9.00$             11,265.30$        
66 SHARED USE PATHS, PCC, 6 IN. SY 5652.30 48.00$           271,310.40$      36.00$           203,482.80$      42.90$           242,483.67$      
67 PCC SIDEWALK, PCC, 4 IN. SY 1087.80 66.00$           71,794.80$        37.50$           40,792.50$        53.95$           58,686.81$        
68 PCC SIDEWALK, PCC, 6 IN. SY 114.50 130.00$         14,885.00$        44.00$           5,038.00$          99.75$           11,421.38$        
69 BRICK PAVERS, TYPE 1 SY 1319.50 70.00$           92,365.00$        260.00$         343,070.00$      260.00$         343,070.00$      
70 BRICK PAVERS, TYPE 2 SY 1522.00 15.00$           22,830.00$        159.50$         242,759.00$      159.50$         242,759.00$      
71 DETECTABLE WARNINGS, CAST IRON SF 813.00 52.00$           42,276.00$        52.00$           42,276.00$        51.00$           41,463.00$        
72 DRIVEWAYS, PCC, 6 IN. SY 1194.90 58.00$           69,304.20$        39.75$           47,497.28$        41.25$           49,289.63$        
73 GRANULAR DRIVEWAY SURFACING, CLASS A TON 104.60 38.00$           3,974.80$          40.00$           4,184.00$          40.00$           4,184.00$          
74 REMOVAL OF PAVEMENT SY 21566.10 8.00$             172,528.80$      7.50$             161,745.75$      7.50$             161,745.75$      
75 CURB AND GUTTER REMOVAL LF 1040.00 10.00$           10,400.00$        8.00$             8,320.00$          8.00$             8,320.00$          
76 SAWCUT FOR REMOVALS LF 1565.00 7.00$             10,955.00$        8.00$             12,520.00$        7.50$             11,737.50$        
77 TRAFFIC SIGNALILIZATION, RRFB LS 1.00 20,000.00$    20,000.00$        250,000.00$  250,000.00$      223,000.00$  223,000.00$      
78 TEMPORARY TRAFFIC SIGNAL LS 1.00 20,000.00$    20,000.00$        25,000.00$    25,000.00$        25,000.00$    25,000.00$        
79 TRAFFIC SIGNAL REMOVAL LS 1.00 15,000.00$    15,000.00$        4,500.00$      4,500.00$          3,000.00$      3,000.00$          
80 PAINTED PAVEMENT MARKINGS, SOLVENT WATERBORNE STA 297.16 80.00$           23,772.80$        65.00$           19,315.40$        65.00$           19,315.40$        
81 WET, RETROREFLECTIVE REMOVABLE TAPE MARKINGS STA 1.88 120.00$         225.60$             425.00$         799.00$             425.00$         799.00$             
82 PAINTED SYMBOLS AND LEGENDS, SOLVENT WATERBORNE EACH 29.00 75.00$           2,175.00$          100.00$         2,900.00$          100.00$         2,900.00$          
83 TRAFFIC CONTROL LS 1.00 35,000.00$    35,000.00$        19,750.00$    19,750.00$        30,000.00$    30,000.00$        
84 PORTABLE DYNAMIC MESSAGE SIGN CDAY 15.00 150.00$         2,250.00$          125.00$         1,875.00$          125.00$         1,875.00$          
85 FLAGGER EACH 30.00 600.00$         18,000.00$        500.00$         15,000.00$        540.00$         16,200.00$        
86 SAFETY CLOSURE EACH 13.00 155.00$         2,015.00$          200.00$         2,600.00$          200.00$         2,600.00$          
87 TEMPORARY BUSINESS ACCESS SIGNS EACH 17.00 120.00$         2,040.00$          100.00$         1,700.00$          100.00$         1,700.00$          
88 REMOVAL OF CONCRETE FOOTINGS EACH 17.00 650.00$         11,050.00$        150.00$         2,550.00$          150.00$         2,550.00$          
89 LIGHT POLES, REMOVE & REINSTALL EACH 2.00 2,750.00$      5,500.00$          2,500.00$      5,000.00$          2,500.00$      5,000.00$          
90 LIGHT POLES, 33'-6" METAL POLE W/ BREAKAWAY BASE AND 12' MAST ARM EACH 51.00 5,500.00$      280,500.00$      5,500.00$      280,500.00$      5,300.00$      270,300.00$      
91 LIGHTING, LANDSCAPE LUMINAIRE EACH 2.00 3,750.00$      7,500.00$          1,300.00$      2,600.00$          1,300.00$      2,600.00$          
92 ELECTRICAL CIRCUITS LF 9281.00 18.00$           167,058.00$      15.00$           139,215.00$      15.00$           139,215.00$      
93 ELECTRICAL CIRCUITS, PULL ROPE ONLY LF 4750.00 16.00$           76,000.00$        6.00$             28,500.00$        6.00$             28,500.00$        
94 HANDHOLES AND JUNCTION BOXES EACH 18.00 1,000.00$      18,000.00$        900.00$         16,200.00$        900.00$         16,200.00$        
95 Metered Pedestal EACH 2.00 10,000.00$    20,000.00$        1,250.00$      2,500.00$          1,250.00$      2,500.00$          
96 TYPE A SIGNS, SHEET ALUMINUM SF 775.80 25.00$           19,395.00$        25.00$           19,395.00$        25.00$           19,395.00$        
97 PERFORATED SQUARE STEEL TUBE POSTS LF 1082.80 10.00$           10,828.00$        25.00$           27,070.00$        25.00$           27,070.00$        
98 PERFORATED SQUARE STEEL TUBE POST ANCHOR, BREAK-AWAY SOIL INSTALLATION EACH 97.00 275.00$         26,675.00$        35.00$           3,395.00$          35.00$           3,395.00$          
99 REMOVAL OF TYPE A SIGN ASSEMBLY EACH 24.00 50.00$           1,200.00$          50.00$           1,200.00$          50.00$           1,200.00$          

100 REMOVE & REINSTALL OF TYPE B SIGN ASSEMBLY EACH 2.00 1,200.00$      2,400.00$          1,800.00$      3,600.00$          1,800.00$      3,600.00$          
101 WATERING MGAL 100.00 110.00$         11,000.00$        160.00$         16,000.00$        160.00$         16,000.00$        
102 LANDSCAPING LS 1.00 780,000.00$  780,000.00$      700,000.00$  700,000.00$      701,500.00$  701,500.00$      
103 SWPPP MANAGEMENT LS 1.00 15,000.00$    15,000.00$        3,500.00$      3,500.00$          15,000.00$    15,000.00$        
104 STABILIZED CONSTRUCTION ENTRANCE TON 96.00 35.00$           3,360.00$          32.00$           3,072.00$          32.00$           3,072.00$          
105 TEMPORARY HYDRO-SEEDING, TYPE 1 ACRE 3.00 3,000.00$      9,000.00$          2,500.00$      7,500.00$          2,500.00$      7,500.00$          
106 SEEDING, FERTILIZING, AND MULCHING FOR HYDRAULIC SEEDING, TYPE 1 ACRE 3.00 4,000.00$      12,000.00$        5,750.00$      17,250.00$        5,750.00$      17,250.00$        

Engineer Estimate Peterson Contractors Inc Owen Contracting, Inc.

W. 27th Street Reconstruction (#8110217)
Owner: Cedar Falls IA, City of

Solicitor: AECOM
04/22/2022 02:00 PM CDT

371

Item 35.



107 SEEDING, FERTILIZING, AND MULCHING FOR HYDRAULIC SEEDING, TYPE 2 ACRE 3.00 4,000.00$      12,000.00$        4,500.00$      13,500.00$        4,500.00$      13,500.00$        
108 PERIMETER AND SLOPE SEDIMENT CONTROL DEVICE, 12 IN. LF 16352.00 2.50$             40,880.00$        1.95$             31,886.40$        1.95$             31,886.40$        
109 REMOVAL OF PERIMETER AND SLOPE SEDIMENT CONTROL DEVICE LF 16352.00 0.50$             8,176.00$          0.60$             9,811.20$          0.60$             9,811.20$          
110 SILT FENCE INSTALLATION LF 7085.00 1.70$             12,044.50$        1.55$             10,981.75$        1.55$             10,981.75$        
111 MAINTENANCE OF SILT FENCE LF 5000.00 1.70$             8,500.00$          0.25$             1,250.00$          0.25$             1,250.00$          
112 REMOVAL OF SILT FENCE LF 7085.00 0.10$             708.50$             0.15$             1,062.75$          0.15$             1,062.75$          
113 ROLLED EROSION CONTROL PRODUCT, TYPE II SY 9175.00 10.00$           91,750.00$        0.90$             8,257.50$          0.90$             8,257.50$          
114 REVETMENT, CLASS E RIP RAP APRON (& ENG. FABRIC) FOR PIPE OUTLET, 9040.111 TON 39.40 60.00$           2,364.00$          60.00$           2,364.00$          60.00$           2,364.00$          
115 OPEN-THROAT CURB INTAKE SEDIMENT FILTER LF 480.70 110.00$         52,877.00$        10.00$           4,807.00$          10.00$           4,807.00$          
116 MAINTENANCE OF OPEN-THROAT CURB INTAKE SEDIMENT FILTER EACH 45.00 25.00$           1,125.00$          20.00$           900.00$             20.00$           900.00$             
117 REMOVAL OF OPEN-THROAT CURB INTAKE SEDIMENT FILTER EACH 45.00 25.00$           1,125.00$          20.00$           900.00$             20.00$           900.00$             
118 INTAKE PROTECTION, SEDIMENT CONTROL DEVICE, 12 IN EACH 8.00 150.00$         1,200.00$          85.00$           680.00$             85.00$           680.00$             
119 MAINTENANCE OF INTAKE PROTECTION, SEDIMENT CONTROL DEVICE EACH 8.00 50.00$           400.00$             20.00$           160.00$             20.00$           160.00$             
120 REMOVAL OF INTAKE PROTECTION, SEDIMENT CONTROL DEVICE EACH 8.00 25.00$           200.00$             20.00$           160.00$             20.00$           160.00$             
121 MOWING ACRE 6.00 400.00$         2,400.00$          375.00$         2,250.00$          375.00$         2,250.00$          
122 FIELD FENCE, BRACE PANELS EACH 2.00 300.00$         600.00$             1,500.00$      3,000.00$          1,850.00$      3,700.00$          
123 FIELD FENCE, REMOVAL LF 171.00 10.00$           1,710.00$          5.00$             855.00$             11.00$           1,881.00$          
124 CAST IRON MONUMENT BOX EACH 2.00 500.00$         1,000.00$          10,000.00$    20,000.00$        750.00$         1,500.00$          
125 MOBILIZATION LS 1.00 600,000.00$  600,000.00$      550,000.00$  550,000.00$      550,000.00$  550,000.00$      
126 CONCRETE WASHOUT LS 1.00 10,000.00$    10,000.00$        15,000.00$    15,000.00$        10,000.00$    10,000.00$        

7,291,651.50$  7,584,450.61$  7,611,902.01$  

372

Item 35.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 
 
 FROM: Brett Armstrong, Civil Engineer I 
  
 DATE: April 25, 2022 
 
 SUBJECT: 2022 Alley Reconstruction Project  
  City Project Number: RC-000-3268 
  Permanent Public Utility Easement 
 
The 2022 Alley Reconstruction Project consists of the reconstruction of six (6) alleys, 
three (3) of which are concrete and three (3) are permeable alleys. Work shall include a 
combination of excavation and backfill of the alley areas; removal and replacement of 
driveway and sidewalk and of PCC curb & gutter; subdrain; placement of storage and 
filter aggregate; permeable interlocking clay brick paver installation, seeding, and 
concrete, asphalt or gravel driveway replacement. The owners of the single property 
have accepted our offer and received approval from City Council for the easement and 
acquisition upon their property, with said property now submitting documentation for the 
easement required on their property. 
 
Parcel # Owner Address/Parcel ID Acquisition Type 

1 Michael & Jeanette Geisler 8914-13-355-023 Permanent Public Utility Easement 

 
Attached is the plat that identifies the location of this property. Also attached is the 
signed Permanent Public Utility Easement for Council approval. 
 
The City will use Street Construction Funds for the purchase of this easement. Funds 
for this project are identified in the Cedar Falls Capital Improvements Program under 
item number 108. If approved, staff will complete the acquisition process for this parcel. 
 
The Engineering Division of the Public Works Department recommends that the City 
Council state their support in the form of a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute 
the agreement for the 2022 Alley Reconstruction Project. 
 
If you have any questions or need additional information, please feel free to contact me. 
 
xc: Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 David Wicke, City Engineer 
 Lisa Roeding, City Controller/City Treasurer 

373

Item 36.



2-17-2022

374

Item 36.

claypoolb
Text Box
Public Utility Easement Plat



Exhibit B – Legal Description

The South 30.0 feet of the North 49.5 feet of Lot 5, Block 19, “Normal Addition” to the City of 
Cedar Falls, Black Hawk County, Iowa.

375

Item 36.



376

Item 36.



377

Item 36.



378

Item 36.



379

Item 36.



380

Item 36.



381

Item 36.



382

Item 36.



383

Item 36.



384

Item 36.



385

Item 36.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 

 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 
 
 FROM: David Wicke, PE – City Engineer 
 
 DATE: April 22, 2022 
 
 SUBJECT: Union Road Reconstruction Project 
  City Project Number: RC-000-3238 
  Application for Surface Transportation Block Grant (STBG) Program Funding 
 
The Black Hawk County Metropolitan Planning Organization Area Transportation Policy Board 
(MPO) is accepting applications for roadway and traffic improvements through the Surface 
Transportation Block Grant (STBG) Program Funding. These are competitive grants and each 
year there are projects that are not considered for funding. 
 
The Union Road Reconstruction Project from 27th Street to University Avenue is programmed in 
our Capital Improvement Program to be reconstructed to convert the existing rural 2 lane 
roadway to an urban 2 lane roadway section with curb and gutter, improved storm water 
conveyances, and box culvert replacement.    
 
The Engineering Division, upon approval by Council will submit the application to the Black 
Hawk County MPO for the funding request. The Union Road Reconstruction Improvements 
application for Surface Transportation Block Grant Program Funding is attached. The project is 
requesting $1,000,000.00 in STBG Funds upon approval. Eligible project costs for construction 
would be reimbursed by the Iowa DOT.   
 
The Engineering Division of the Public Works Department recommends acceptance of the 
Application for the Surface Transportation Block Grant Program Funding for the Union Road 
Reconstruction Project. The Engineering Division is asking City Council to state their support of 
the application in the form of a resolution. 
 
If you have any questions, please feel free to contact me. 
 
xc: Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
  

386

Item 37.



Black Hawk County MPO STBG Application FY 2023-2026 SurveyMonkey

1 / 6

Q1

Project Sponsor Agency

Cedar Falls

Q2

Contact Information

Name David Wicke

Title City Engineer

Email Address david.wicke@cedarfalls.com

Phone Number 3192685162

Q3

Project Title

Union Road Reconstruction

Q4

Project Description

Full Reconstruction of Union Road

Q5

Project Termini (i.e. Main St to 5th St)

W. 27th St to University Ave.

#6#6
COMPLETECOMPLETE

Collector:Collector:   Web Link 1 Web Link 1 (Web Link)(Web Link)
Started:Started:   Wednesday, April 13, 2022 7:42:00 AMWednesday, April 13, 2022 7:42:00 AM
Last Modified:Last Modified:   Wednesday, April 13, 2022 9:35:23 AMWednesday, April 13, 2022 9:35:23 AM
Time Spent:Time Spent:   01:53:2301:53:23
IP Address:IP Address:   24.149.10.2924.149.10.29

Page 1

Page 2: Project Description

387

Item 37.



Black Hawk County MPO STBG Application FY 2023-2026 SurveyMonkey

2 / 6

Q6

Project Length (miles)

1.3

Q7

Federal Functional Classification

Minor Arterial

Q8

Project Elements (FY 2023)

Final design,

Right-of-way

Q9

Project Elements (FY 2024)

Construction related services,

Construction

Q10

Project Elements (FY 2025)

Construction related services,

Construction

Q11

Project Elements (FY 2026)

Respondent skipped this question

Q12

Project Cost Estimate (FY 2023)

$500,000

Q13

Project Cost Estimate (FY 2024)

$3,025,000

Q14

Project Cost Estimate (FY 2025)

$3,025,000

388

Item 37.



Black Hawk County MPO STBG Application FY 2023-2026 SurveyMonkey

3 / 6

Q15

Project Cost Estimate (FY 2026)

0

Q16

STBG Requested (FY 2023)

0

Q17

STBG Requested (FY 2024)

$1,300,000

Q18

STBG Requested (FY 2025)

0

Q19

STBG Requested (FY 2026)

0

Q20

Other funding ($ amount) secured

$5,250,000

Q21

Source(s) of other funding

Street Construction Funds, Local Option Sales Tax, Storm Water Fund

Q22

What is the project's 2045 Long-Range Transportation Plan number (if applicable)?

N/A

389

Item 37.



Black Hawk County MPO STBG Application FY 2023-2026 SurveyMonkey

4 / 6

Q23

Has your agency previously applied for STBG funds for
this project?

No

Q24

Has any part of this project been started or completed?

Yes

Q25

If yes, what work has been started or completed?

Preliminary Design

Q26

Project Type (check all that apply)

Final design engineering, and construction related
services
,

Road and/or bridge reconstruction

Q27

Traffic calming measures included in preliminary design

Respondent skipped this question

Q28

Intelligent Transportation System (ITS) elements included
in preliminary design

Respondent skipped this question

Q29

Access management elements included in preliminary
design

Respondent skipped this question

Q30

Transit elements included in preliminary design

Respondent skipped this question

Q31

Bike accommodations included in preliminary design

Respondent skipped this question

Page 3: Project Information and Design Elements

390

Item 37.



Black Hawk County MPO STBG Application FY 2023-2026 SurveyMonkey

5 / 6

Q32

Pedestrian accommodations included in preliminary
design

Respondent skipped this question

Q33

Have public input meetings been held specific to this
project?

No

Q34

If public input meetings have been held, please provide
specifics (dates, meeting locations, topics, etc.)

Respondent skipped this question

Q35

The Black Hawk County MPO receives federal funding
and may not discriminate against anyone on the basis of
race, color, or national origin, according to Title VI of the
Civil Rights Act of 1964. By applying to receive these
funds, the applicant is acknowledging that they understand
and adhere to the principles of Title VI when performing
activities related to the funding programmed through the
MPO.

Agree

Q36

All information included in this application is true and
accurate, including the commitment of all design features,
physical, and financial resources. I understand the
FORMAL RESOLUTION binds the participating local
government to provide the required matching funds, design
features according to those listed in the application, and to
assume responsibility for adequate maintenance of any
new or improved facilities. I understand that an executed
contract between the applicant and the Iowa Department of
Transportation is required prior to the authorization of
funds.

Yes

Q37

An executed resolution has been emailed to the MPO?

No

Q38

A preliminary design plan has been emailed to the MPO?

No

Page 4: Applicant Assurances

391

Item 37.



Black Hawk County MPO STBG Application FY 2023-2026 SurveyMonkey

6 / 6

Q39

A detailed cost estimate has been emailed to the MPO?

No

Q40

For Iowa DOT projects, a letter of support from the Iowa
DOT District 2 Office has been emailed to the MPO?

No

Q41

For MET Transit projects, a letter of support from the
respective Board has been emailed to the MPO?

No

392

Item 37.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 

 

 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 
 
 FROM: David Wicke, PE, City Engineer 
 
 DATE: April 26, 2022 
 
 SUBJECT: Main Street Reconstruction Project (6th Street to University Avenue) 
  City Project Number: RC-000-3283 
  City-State Agreement, TSIP 
 
Please find attached the Main Street Reconstruction Project Agreement with the Iowa 
Department of Transportation for City Council review and approval. This agreement will provide 
funding for the Main Street Reconstruction Project. This project will include converting a 4 lane 
roadway to a 3 lane roadway. Included in the project will be the intersections at Seerley 
Boulevard, 18th Street, and 12th Street which will be replaced with single-lane roundabouts to 
improve the overall traffic safety and flow in all directions of travel. The project will also include 
improvements to the water main, sanitary sewer, storm sewer, sidewalks, and other 
miscellaneous roadway items.   
 
The Traffic Safety Improvement Program (TSIP) and the agreement for Traffic Safety 
Improvement Program Funding administered through the Iowa Department of Transportation 
will provide $500,000 in approved funding that was awarded by the Iowa Transportation 
Commission Order No. SO-2022-45 on December 14, 2021.  

 

The Engineering Division of the Public Works Department recommends approval of the Main 
Street Reconstruction Project Agreement with the Iowa Department of Transportation. Please 
sign and return originals to the Engineering Division for further processing.  
 
If you have any questions or comments, please feel free to contact me. 
 
xc: Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 Luke Andreasen, Principal Engineer 

393

Item 38.



March 2022 

2023-TS-009_CedarFalls.docx 1 

IOWA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
AGREEMENT FOR TRAFFIC SAFETY IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM FUNDING 

(Site-Specific Improvement) 
 

County  Black Hawk 
Recipient Cedar Falls 
Project No.  CS-TSF-1185(658)--85-07 
Iowa DOT  
Agreement No.  2023-TS-009 

 
This agreement is entered into by and between the Iowa Department of Transportation, hereinafter 
designated the “DOT”, and the city of Cedar Falls, Iowa, hereinafter designated the “Recipient”. The 
Recipient submitted an application to the DOT for funding through the Traffic Safety Improvement 
Program (TSIP) under Iowa Code Section 312.2(11), and the application was approved by Transportation 
Commission Order No. SO-2022-45 on December 14, 2021. 
 
Pursuant to the terms of this agreement, and applicable statutes and administrative rules, the DOT 
agrees to provide funding to the Recipient to aid in the development of a certain traffic safety 
improvement project. 
 
In consideration of the foregoing and the mutual promises contained in this agreement, the parties agree 
as follows: 
 
1. Project Information 

 
a. The Recipient shall be the lead local governmental agency for carrying out the provisions of this 

agreement. 
 

b. All notices required under this agreement shall be made in writing to the DOT’s and/or the Recipient's 
contact person. The DOT's contact person shall be the Local Systems Project Development Engineer 
and Eastern Region Local Systems Field Engineer.  The Recipient's contact person shall be David 
Wicke, City Engineer. 
 

c. The Recipient shall be responsible for the development and completion of the following described 
project located in the city of Cedar Falls: 

 
A 4 to 3 lane conversion on Main Street. See Exhibit A-1 for the location of the project and Exhibit 
A-2 for the estimated project cost. 

 
2. Project Costs 

 
a. Eligible project costs for the project described in Section 1 of this agreement which are incurred after 

the effective date of commission approval shall be paid from TSIP funds and other funds as listed 
below, subject to the execution of a signed agreement: 
 
 TSIP funds: $ 500,000  
 
 

b. The portion of the total project costs paid by TSIP shall not exceed the amount stated above or the 
actual cost of the TSIP eligible items, whichever is the lesser amount. 

 
c. If a letting is required, the project shall be let to contract before July 1, 2024, but no earlier than 

July 1, 2022. If a letting is not required, project activities shall be initiated prior to July 1, 2024. If any 
of these conditions are not met, the Recipient may be in default, for which the Department may 
revoke funding commitments. This agreement may be extended for a period of 12 months upon 
receipt of a written request from the Recipient at least 30 days prior to the deadline.  

394

Item 38.



March 2022 

2023-TS-009_CedarFalls.docx 2 

 
d. Project activities or costs considered eligible for TSIP funds are those required by, or integral to, the 

safety aspects of the project. Eligible activities include the following: (a) road modernization, 
upgrading or reconstruction; (b) intersection improvements; (c) right-of-way purchases; (d) drainage 
and erosion control measures; (e) traffic control devices; (f) traffic barriers and other roadside safety 
devices; and (g) removal of trees and other fixed objects.  
 

e. Project activities or costs considered ineligible for TSIP funds include, but are not limited to, the 
following: (a) any and all costs incurred prior to commission approval of funding; (b) routine 
maintenance of a road, street, bridge, culvert or traffic control device; (c) contract administration 
costs; (d) design and construction engineering and inspection, including construction survey; (e) utility 
construction, reconstruction, or adjustment, except as an integral part of a project; (f) sidewalks, 
shared-use paths or railroad-highway crossings, except as an integral part of a project; (g) 
maintenance or energy costs for traffic control devices or lighting; (h) aesthetic items such as brick 
pavers or decorative lighting/signal poles; and (i) expenditures for items not related to the roadway. 
For the purposes of this agreement, pavement patching is considered maintenance. 

 
f. If Federal highway funds, Farm-to-Market funds, or other Federal funds are used in combination with 

TSIP Funds, the Recipient shall also follow all administrative and contracting procedures which would 
normally be used when such funds are used on a non-TSIP project. The Recipient shall comply with 
all requirements for the use of said funds.  
 

3. Right of Way and Permits  
 

a. In the event that right-of-way is required for the project, said right-of-way shall be acquired in 
accordance with 761 Iowa Administrative Code Chapter 111, Real Property Acquisition and 
Relocation Assistance. If the project impacts the Primary Road System, the Recipient shall submit 
preliminary right-of-way plans to the DOT's Right of Way Bureau for review and approval prior to the 
commencement of any acquisition. Additionally, if said right-of-way is for an improvement to the 
Primary Road System, it shall be acquired in the name of the State of Iowa.  
 

b. The Recipient shall be responsible for obtaining any permits, such as the Work Within the Right-of-
Way Permit, Access Connection/Entrance Permit, Utility Accommodation Permit, Application for 
Approval of a Traffic Control Device, and/or other construction permits required for the project prior to 
the start of construction. Neither the approval of the TSIP application for funding nor the signing of 
this agreement shall be construed as approval of any required permit from the DOT. 
 

c. The Recipient shall be responsible for obtaining any environmental permits and approvals, when 
necessary, to comply with all environmental regulations. 
 

4. Project Design  
 

a. The Recipient shall develop all project improvements using good engineering judgment. The 
Recipient shall use the DOT “Design Manual” on projects involving the Primary Road System and/or 
routes located on the National Highway System. Projects not on the Primary Road system shall use 
“A Policy on Geometric Design of Highways and Streets", (latest edition), by the American 
Association of State Highway and Transportation Officials. In all cases the "The Manual on Uniform 
Traffic Control Devices for Streets and Highways" (MUTCD), as adopted pursuant to 761 Iowa 
Administrative Code, Chapter 130 shall apply.  

  

395

Item 38.



March 2022 

2023-TS-009_CedarFalls.docx 3 

5. Bid Letting  
 

a. If the project must be let for bids, then project plans, specifications and engineer's cost estimate for 
site specific improvements and/or traffic control devices shall be prepared and certified by a 
professional engineer licensed to practice in the State of Iowa. The Recipient shall submit the plans, 
specifications and other contract documents to the DOT for review. This submittal may be in divisions 
and in the order of preference as determined by the Recipient. 
i. If the Recipient lets the project, the plans, specifications and other contract documents for each 

division must be submitted at least ten weeks (traffic control devices) or fourteen weeks (site 
specific project) prior to the project letting of each division. 
 

ii. If the project will be let through the Iowa DOT, project development submittals shall follow Local 
Systems I.M. 3.010. The DOT shall review said submittal(s) recognizing the Recipient's 
development schedule and shall, after satisfactory review, authorize in writing the Recipient to 
proceed with implementation of the project. The work on this project shall be in accordance with 
the survey, plans, and specifications on file. Any substantial modification of these plans and 
specifications must be approved by the DOT prior to the modification being put into effect. 

 
b. If the Recipient lets the project, as described herein, the Recipient shall include in their Notice to 

Bidders that Sales Tax Exemption Certificates will be issued, as provided for by Iowa Code section 
423.3, subsection 80. The Recipient shall be responsible for obtaining the sales tax exemption 
certificates through the Iowa Department of Revenue and Finance. The Recipient shall issue these 
certificates to the successful bidder and any subcontractors to enable them to purchase qualifying 
materials for the project free of sales tax. 
 

c. If the Recipient lets the project, then the Recipient shall use positive efforts to solicit bids from and to 
utilize Targeted Small Business (TSB) enterprises as contractors and ensure that the contractors 
make positive efforts to utilize these enterprises as subcontractors, suppliers or participants in the 
work covered by this agreement. Efforts shall be made and documented in accordance with Exhibit B 
which is attached hereto and by this reference incorporated into this agreement. 
 

d. If the Recipient lets the project, then for portions of the project let to bid, the Recipient shall advertise 
for bidders, make a good faith effort to get at least three (3) bidders, hold a public letting and award 
contracts for the project work. DOT concurrence in the award must be obtained prior to the award. 
The Recipient shall provide the DOT file copies of project letting documents within five (5) days after 
letting. 
 

e. The Recipient shall be the contracting authority for the project.  
 
 

6. Construction and Maintenance  
 

a. The Recipient shall conduct the project development and implementation in compliance with 
applicable laws, ordinances and administrative rules. 
 

b. The Recipient shall be responsible for the daily inspection of the project, and the compilation of a 
daily log of materials, equipment and labor on the project.  
 

c. The Recipient shall maintain records, documents, and other evidence in support of work performed 
under the terms of this contract. All accounting practices applied and all records maintained will be in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and procedures. Documentation shall be 
made available for inspection and audit by authorized representatives of the DOT or its designee at 
all reasonable times during the period of the contract and for three (3) years after the date of final 
payment. Reimbursement shall be based on eligible actual and indirect costs associated with 
performance of contract service work. The Recipient shall provide copies of said records and 
documents to the DOT upon request. 

396

Item 38.



March 2022 

2023-TS-009_CedarFalls.docx 4 

 
d. The Recipient shall notify the DOT’s contact person of the date that construction begins and the date 

that the project is substantially complete (i.e., when the road is re-opened to traffic).  
 

e. The Recipient shall require its contractors to permit the DOT authorized representative to inspect all 
work materials, records, and any other data with regard to agreement related costs, revenues and 
operating sources. 
 

f. Upon project completion and prior to final reimbursement for the project, the Recipient shall furnish 
three sets of "as-built" plans for any portion of the project which is on or intersects any primary road 
or primary road extension to the DOT's contact person for future maintenance and road design 
purposes. 
 

g. If this project requires the installation of or modification to a traffic control signal system, the Recipient 
shall be responsible for all future ownership, maintenance, operation and energy costs of said 
installation or modification. 
 

h. The Recipient hereby certifies that, for a period of five (5) years following completion of the project 
and receipt of final payment from the DOT, there shall be no modifications in the geometric features, 
the construction features, or the access management features (including driveway design and 
location) of the project, nor shall there be any fixed objects or obstructions placed in any clear zone 
established in conjunction with this project without the prior written approval of the Traffic and Safety 
Bureau. Failure to comply shall be considered a default under the terms of this agreement. 
 

7. Payments and Reimbursements 
 

a. The Recipient may submit to the DOT periodic itemized claims for reimbursement for eligible project 
activities. Eligible and ineligible costs are outlined in Iowa Administrative Code (IAC) 761 Chapter 
164, Traffic Safety Improvement Program (see IAC 761-164.6(312) and IAC 761-164.7(312)). 
Reimbursement claims shall include certification by a professional engineer licensed to practice in the 
State of Iowa that all eligible project activities for which reimbursement is requested have been 
completed in substantial compliance with the terms of this agreement. Reimbursement claims shall 
not be submitted until after July 1, 2022. 
 

b. The Department will reimburse the Recipient for properly documented and certified claims for eligible 
project costs.  The Department may withhold up to 5% of the construction costs or 5% of the TSIP 
funds available for the project, whichever is less. Reimbursement will be made either by State warrant 
or by crediting other accounts from which payment was initially made. If, upon final audit or review, 
the Department determines the Recipient has been overpaid, the Recipient shall reimburse the 
overpaid amount to the Department. After the final audit or review is complete and after the Recipient 
has provided all required paperwork, the Department will release the funds withheld, if any. 
 

c. Upon completion of the project described in this agreement, a professional engineer licensed to 
practice in the State of Iowa shall certify in writing to the DOT that the project activities were 
completed in substantial compliance with the terms of this agreement. Final reimbursement of TSIP 
Funds shall be made only after the DOT accepts the project as complete. 
 

d. The Recipient shall request reimbursement and final payment from the DOT within one year of field 
completion of the work. If this condition is not met, the Recipient may be in default, for which the 
Department may revoke funding commitments. 
 

e. If the Recipient fails to perform any obligation under this agreement, the DOT shall have the right, 
after first giving thirty (30) days written notice to Recipient by certified mail return receipt requested, to 
declare this agreement in default. The Recipient shall have thirty (30) days from date of mailing of 
notice to cure the default. If the Recipient cures the default, the Recipient shall notify DOT no later 
than five (5) days after cure or before the end of said thirty (30) day period to cure default. Within ten 

397

Item 38.



March 2022 

2023-TS-009_CedarFalls.docx 5 

(10) working days of receipt of Recipient's notice of cure, the DOT shall issue either a notice of 
acceptance of cure or notice of continued default. 
 

f. In the event a default is not cured the DOT may revoke funding commitments and/or seek repayment 
of TSIP Funds granted by this agreement through charges against the Recipient's road use tax funds. 
 

8. General Provisions 
 

a. This agreement shall be considered to be in default if the DOT determines that the Recipient's 
application for funding contained inaccuracies, omissions, errors or misrepresentations. 
 

b. To the extent allowed by law, the Recipient agrees to indemnify, defend and hold the DOT harmless 
from any action or liability arising out of the design, construction, maintenance, placement of traffic 
control devices, or inspection of this project. To the extent allowed by law, this agreement to 
indemnify, defend and hold harmless applies to all aspects of the DOT's application review and 
approval process, plan and construction reviews, and funding participation. 
 

c. In accordance with Iowa Code Chapter 216, the Recipient shall not discriminate against any person 
on the basis of race, color, creed, age, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, national origin, 
religion, pregnancy, or disability. 
 

d. The Recipient shall comply with the requirements of Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 
1990 (ADA), Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (Section 504), and the associated Federal 
regulations that implement these laws. 
 

e. If any part of this agreement is found to be void and unenforceable then the remaining provisions of 
this agreement shall remain in effect. 
 

f. This agreement is not assignable without the prior written consent of the DOT. 
 

g. It is the intent of both parties that no third-party beneficiaries be created by this agreement. 
 

h. In case of dispute concerning the terms of this agreement, the parties shall submit the matter to 
arbitration pursuant to Iowa Code Chapter 679A. Either party has the right to submit the matter to 
arbitration after ten (10) days’ notice to the other party of their intent to seek arbitration. The written 
notice must include a precise statement of the disputed question. DOT and the Recipient agree to be 
bound by the decision of the appointed arbitrator. Neither party may seek any remedy with the state 
or federal courts absent exhaustion of the provisions of this paragraph for arbitration. 
 

i. This agreement shall be executed and delivered in two or more copies, each of which so executed 
and delivered shall be deemed to be an original and shall constitute but one and the same 
instrument. 
 

j. This agreement, including referenced exhibits, constitutes the entire agreement between the DOT 
and the Recipient concerning this project. Representations made before the signing of this agreement 
are not binding, and neither party has relied upon conflicting representations in entering into this 
agreement. Any change or alteration to the terms of this agreement must be made in the form of an 
addendum to this agreement. Said addendum shall become effective only upon written approval of 
the DOT and Recipient. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

398

Item 38.



March 2022 

2023-TS-009_CedarFalls.docx 6 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each of the parties hereto has executed Agreement No. 2023-TS-009 as of the 
date shown opposite its signature below. 
 
City of Cedar Falls, Iowa: 
 

By: _______________________________ Date _________________________, 20_____. 

Title: ____________________________ 

 
 
I, _________________________, certify that I am the Clerk of the City, and that 

__________________________, who signed said Agreement for and on behalf of the City was duly 

authorized to execute the same by virtue of a formal Resolution duly passed and adopted by the City, on 

the _____________ day of ________________________, 20_____. 

 
Signed _____________________________ Date _________________________, 20_____.  
City Clerk of Cedar Falls, Iowa 
 
 
 
Iowa Department of Transportation: 
 
 
By:_________________________________ Date ________________________, 20______. 
 Steve J. Gent 
 Director,  
 Traffic and Safety Bureau 
  

399

Item 38.



Map 

Project 

Location 

EXHIBIT A-1

2023-TS-009_CedarFalls 400

Item 38.

APM
Blue Text Box
E



TSIP Eligible 

Quantity

Non-TSIP Eligible 

Quantity
TOTAL TSIP Eligible Cost

Non-TSIP Eligible 

Cost
TOTAL

1 CLEARING AND GRUBBING  LS 35,000.00$    1 1 -$    35,000.00$    35,000.00$    

2 UNCLASSIFIED EXCAVATION AND EMBANKMENT CY 12.00$    10000 13000 23000 120,000.00$    156,000.00$    276,000.00$    

3 SUBGRADE PREPARATION, 12 IN.  SY 1.50$    55000 55000 82,500.00$    -$    82,500.00$    

4 SUBBASE, 6 IN.  CY 40.00$    9175 9175 367,000.00$    -$    367,000.00$    

5 SUBGRADE AND SUBBASE COMPACTION TESTING  LS 5,000.00$    1 1 -$    5,000.00$    5,000.00$    

6 TRENCH STABILIZATION  TON 21.00$    1500 1500 -$    31,500.00$    31,500.00$    

7 TRENCH COMPACTION TESTING  LS 10,000.00$    1 1 -$    10,000.00$    10,000.00$    

8 STORM SEWER, TRENCHED, RCP CLASS III, SIZES TBD  LF 90.00$    4650 4650 -$    418,500.00$    418,500.00$    

9 REMOVAL OF STORM SEWER AND CULVERT PIPE, LESS  THAN OR EQUAL TO 36 IN.  LF 20.00$    4500 4500 -$    90,000.00$    90,000.00$    

10 SUBDRAIN, PVC OR HDPE, PERFORATED, 6 IN.  LF 13.50$    13500 13500 -$    182,250.00$    182,250.00$    

11 SUBDRAIN CLEANOUTS, TYPE B  EA 1,100.00$    15 15 -$    16,500.00$    16,500.00$    

12 MANHOLE, TYPE AND SIZE VARY  EA 3,500.00$    10 10 -$    35,000.00$    35,000.00$    

13 INTAKE, TYPE AND SIZE VARY  EA 5,500.00$    70 70 -$    385,000.00$    385,000.00$    

14 MANHOLE ADJUSTMENT, MINOR  EA 1,600.00$    40 40 -$    64,000.00$    64,000.00$    

15 REMOVE INTAKE  EA 1,000.00$    50 50 -$    50,000.00$    50,000.00$    

16 PAVEMENT, PCC, NON-REINFORCED, CLASS C-3, 9 IN.  SY 55.00$    46000 46000 2,530,000.00$    -$    2,530,000.00$    

17 PAVEMENT, PCC, NON-REINFORCED, CLASS C-3, 9 IN., COLORED  SY 70.00$    3200 3200 -$    224,000.00$    224,000.00$    

18 REMOVAL OF SIDEWALK AND DRIVEWAYS  SY 14.00$    8600 8600 -$    120,400.00$    120,400.00$    

19 SIDEWALK, PCC, 4 IN.  SY 60.00$    6870 6870 -$    412,200.00$    412,200.00$    

20 DRIVEWAY, PAVED, PCC, 6 IN.  SY 65.00$    3200 3200 -$    208,000.00$    208,000.00$    

21 PORTLAND CEMENT CONCRETE CURB RAMP, 6 IN.  SY 110.00$    730 730 -$    80,300.00$    80,300.00$    

22 PAVEMENT REMOVAL  SY 16.00$    49750 49750 -$    796,000.00$    796,000.00$    

23 GROOVES CUT FOR PAVEMENT MARKINGS, 4 IN.  LF 1.00$    13500 13500 -$    13,500.00$    13,500.00$    

24 GROOVES CUT FOR PAVEMENT MARKINGS, 6 IN.  LF 1.50$    13500 13500 -$    20,250.00$    20,250.00$    

25 GROOVES CUT FOR PAVEMENT MARKINGS, 30 IN. CROSSWALK BAR  SY 7.00$    300 300 -$    2,100.00$    2,100.00$    

26 PAVEMENT MARKINGS, EPOXY, 4 IN. WHITE & YELLOW  LF 1.00$    13500 13500 -$    13,500.00$    13,500.00$    

27 PAVEMENT MARKINGS, EPOXY, 6 IN. WHITE & YELLOW  LF 1.50$    13500 13500 -$    20,250.00$    20,250.00$    

28 PAVEMENT MARKINGS, EPOXY, 30 IN. CROSSWALK BAR, WHITE  SY 7.00$    300 300 -$    2,100.00$    2,100.00$    

29 TEMPORARY TRAFFIC CONTROL  LS 150,000.00$    1 1 -$    150,000.00$    150,000.00$    

30 SIGNS, SHEET ALUMINUM  SF 25.00$    700 700 -$    17,500.00$    17,500.00$    

31 PERFORATED 2" X 2" SQUARE STEEL TUBE POST  LF 15.00$    120 120 -$    1,800.00$    1,800.00$    

32 SIGN REMOVAL  EA 75.00$    125 125 -$    9,375.00$    9,375.00$    

33 HYDRAULIC SEEDING, SEEDING, FERTILIZING, AND MULCHING (SUDAS TYPE 1)  AC 4,500.00$    3.0 3 -$    13,500.00$    13,500.00$    

34 SOD  SQ 62.00$    1250 1250 -$    77,500.00$    77,500.00$    

35 SWPPP MANAGEMENT  LS 7,500.00$    1 1 -$    7,500.00$    7,500.00$    

36 FILTER SOCKS, 9 IN  LF 2.00$    16000 16000 -$    32,000.00$    32,000.00$    

37 FILTER SOCKS, REMOVAL  LF 0.50$    16000 16000 -$    8,000.00$    8,000.00$    

38 TEMPORARY RECP, TYPE 2  SY 2.00$    3700 3700 -$    7,400.00$    7,400.00$    

39 INLET PROTECTION DEVICE, SURFACE-APPLIED  EA 150.00$    70 70 -$    10,500.00$    10,500.00$    

40 SOIL RESTORATION, 8 IN.  SY 6.00$    27000 27000 -$    162,000.00$    162,000.00$    

41 SEGMENTAL CONCRETE BLOCK RETAINING WALL  SF 26.00$    6000 6000 -$    156,000.00$    156,000.00$    

42 CONCRETE STEPS, CAST-IN-PLACE  CY 900.00$    40 40 -$    36,000.00$    36,000.00$    

43 HANDRAIL, GALVANIZED STEEL  EA 1,600.00$    38 38 -$    60,800.00$    60,800.00$    

44 CONSTRUCTION SURVEY  LS 75,000.00$    1 1 -$    75,000.00$    75,000.00$    

45 MOBILIZATION  LS 400,000.00$    1 1 -$    400,000.00$    400,000.00$    

46 MAINTENANCE OF POSTAL SERVICE  LS 1,500.00$    1 1 -$    1,500.00$    1,500.00$    

47 MAINTENANCE OF SOLID WASTE COLLECTION  LS 2,000.00$    1 1 -$    2,000.00$    2,000.00$    

48 REMOVALS, MISCELLANEOUS, PER PLANS  LS 15,000.00$    1 1 -$    15,000.00$    15,000.00$    

49 TEMPORARY ROADWAY SURFACE, HMA AND/OR PCC, 6 IN.  SY 47.00$    4000 4000 -$    188,000.00$    188,000.00$    

50 TEMPORARY AGGREGATE SURFACING  TON 28.00$    1000 1000 -$    28,000.00$    28,000.00$    

51 REMOVAL OF TRAFFIC SIGNALIZATION  LS 50,000.00$    1 1 -$    50,000.00$    50,000.00$    

52 LIGHTING  LS 415,000.00$    0.4 0.6 1 166,000.00$    249,000.00$    415,000.00$    

53 LANDSCAPING  LS 165,000.00$    1 1 -$    165,000.00$    165,000.00$    

54 BOX CULVERT REMOVE  LS 30,000.00$    1 1 -$    30,000.00$    30,000.00$    

55 BOX CULVERT (STRUCTURAL CONCRETE, BEDDING, BACKFILL, STEEL, RAILING)  LS 2,869,450.00$   1 1 -$    2,869,450.00$    2,869,450.00$    

56 WATERMAIN  LS 250,000.00$    1 1 -$    250,000.00$    250,000.00$    

57 SANITARY SEWER  LS 100,000.00$    1 1 -$    100,000.00$    100,000.00$    

3,265,500.00$    8,564,175.00$    

11,829,675.00$    TOTAL PROJECT COST

SUBTOTAL COST

Letting Date: TBD

ITEM NO. ITEM DESCRIPTION UNIT  UNIT PRICE 

ESTIMATED OPINION OF PROBABLE CONSTRUCTION COSTS

Main Street Reconstruction

From 6th Street to Seerley Boulevard

City of Cedar Falls

April 11, 2022

(Rough Order of Magnitude Cost Estimate)

QUANTITIES

SUBTOTAL CONSTRUCTION

EXHIBIT A-2

2023-TS-009_CedarFalls 401

Item 38.



 

2023-TS-009_CedarFalls.docx 9 

EXHIBIT B  
UTILIZATION OF TARGETED SMALL BUSINESS (TSB) ENTERPRISES  

ON NON-FEDERAL AID PROJECTS 
(THIRD-PARTY STATE-ASSISTED PROJECTS) 

 
In accordance with Iowa Code Section 19B.7, it is the policy of the Iowa Department of Transportation 
(Iowa DOT) that Targeted Small Business (TSB) enterprises shall have the maximum practicable 
opportunity to participate in the performance of contracts financed in whole or part with State funds. 
 
Under this policy the Recipient shall be responsible to make a positive effort to solicit bids or proposals 
from TSB firms and to utilize TSB firms as contractors or consultants.  The Recipient shall also ensure 
that the contractors or consultants make positive efforts to utilize TSB firms as subcontractors, 
subconsultants, suppliers, or participants in the work covered by this agreement. 
 
The Recipient’s “positive efforts” shall include, but not be limited to: 
 

1. Obtaining the names of qualified TSB firms from the Iowa Economic Development Authority (515-
348-6159) or from its website at: https://www.iowaeda.com/small-business/targeted-small-
business/.  

 
2. Notifying qualified TSB firms of proposed projects involving State funding.  Notification should be 

made in sufficient time to allow the TSB firms to participate effectively in the bidding or request for 
proposal (RFP) process. 

 
3. Soliciting bids or proposals from qualified TSB firms on each project, and identifying for TSB firms 

the availability of subcontract work. 
 

4. Considering establishment of a percentage goal for TSB participation in each contract that is a 
part of this project and for which State funds will be used.  Contract goals may vary depending on 
the type of project, the subcontracting opportunities available, the type of service or supplies 
needed for the project, and the availability of qualified TSB firms in the area. 

 
5. For construction contracts: 

 
a) Including in the bid proposals a contract provision titled “TSB Affirmative Action 

Responsibilities on Non-Federal Aid Projects (Third-Party State-Assisted Projects)” or a 
similar document developed by the Recipient.  This contract provision is available on-line at:  
 

 https://www.iowadot.gov/local_systems/publications/tsb_contract_provision.pdf 
 
b) Ensuring that the awarded contractor has and shall follow the contract provisions.   
 

6. For consultant contracts:   
 

a) Identifying the TSB goal in the Request for Proposal (RFP), if one has been set.    
 
b) Ensuring that the selected consultant made a positive effort to meet the established TSB 

goal, if any.  This should include obtaining documentation from the consultant that includes a 
list of TSB firms contacted; a list of TSB firms that responded with a subcontract proposal; 
and, if the consultant does not propose to use a TSB firm that submitted a subcontract 
proposal, an explanation why such a TSB firm will not be used.     

 

402

Item 38.



 

2023-TS-009_CedarFalls.docx 10 

The Recipient shall provide the Iowa DOT the following documentation: 
 

1. Copies of correspondence and replies, and written notes of personal and/or telephone contacts 
with any TSB firms.  Such documentation can be used to demonstrate the Recipient’s positive 
efforts and it should be placed in the general project file. 

 
2. Bidding proposals or RFPs noting established TSB goals, if any. 

 
3. The attached “Checklist and Certification.”  This form shall be filled out upon completion of each 

project and forwarded to: Iowa Department of Transportation, Civil Rights Bureau, 800 Lincoln 
Way, Ames, IA 50010. 

403

Item 38.



 

2023-TS-009_CedarFalls.docx 11 

CHECKLIST AND CERTIFICATION 
For the Utilization of Targeted Small Businesses (TSB) 

On Non-Federal-aid Projects (Third-Party State-Assisted Projects) 
 
Recipient: ______________________   Project Number:  ________________________ 
 
County: ______________________   Agreement Number:  ____________________ 
  
1. Were the names of qualified TSB firms obtained from the Iowa Economic Development Authority?  � YES   � NO 

  
If no, explain ____________________________________________________________ 

 
2. Were qualified TSB firms notified of project?   � YES   � NO 
 

If yes, by  � letter,  � telephone,  � personal contact, or  � other (specify) ____________________ 
 

If no, explain ___________________________________________________________________ 
 
3. Were bids or proposals solicited from qualified TSB firms?   � YES   � NO 
 

If no, explain_________________________________________________________________ 
 
4. Was a goal or percentage established for TSB participation?   � YES   � NO 
 

If yes, what was the goal or percentage? ______________________________________ 
 

If no, explain why not: __________________________________________________________ 
  
5. Did the prime contractor or consultant use positive efforts to utilize TSB firms on subcontracts?   � YES   � NO 

 
 If no, what action was taken by Recipient? ________________________________________________ 

 
Is documentation in files?   � YES   � NO 

 
6. What was the dollar amount reimbursed to the Recipient 

from the Iowa Department of Transportation? $______________ 
What was the final project cost? $______________ 
What was the dollar amount performed by TSB firms? $______________ 

 
 Name(s) and address(es) of the TSB firm(s)_____________________________________________________ 

                                       (Use additional sheets if necessary) 
Was the goal or percentage achieved?   � YES   � NO 

 
If no, explain ___________________________________________________________________ 

 
As the duly authorized representative of the Recipient, I hereby certify that the Recipient used positive efforts to utilize TSB 
firms as participants in the State-assisted contracts associated with this project. 
 
_____________________________________     
Title                    

 
_____________________________________    ____________________________ 
Signature                   Date 

 

404

Item 38.



 

 

Prepared by Kevin Rogers, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA  50613                              (319) 243-2713 
 

ORDINANCE NO. _____ 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 16-24, FIREWORKS, OF 
ARTICLE I, IN GENERAL, OF CHAPTER  16, OFFENSES AND 
MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS, BY REPEALING SAID SECTION 
IN ITS ENTIRETY AND ENACTING IN LIEU THEREOF A NEW 
SECTION 16-24, FIREWORKS, OF ARTICLE I, IN GENERAL, OF 
CHAPTER 16, OFFENSES AND MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS, 
OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, 
IOWA. 

 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 
 
                  Section 1.  Section 16-24, Fireworks, of Article I, Generally, of Chapter 16, 
Offenses and Miscellaneous Provisions, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar 
Falls, Iowa, is hereby repealed in its entirety and the following new Section 16-24, 
Fireworks, is enacted in lieu thereof, as follows: 
 
Sec. 16-24. – Fireworks. 
 
(a) Definitions. The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this section, shall have the meanings 

ascribed to them in this subsection, except where the context clearly indicates a different meaning:  

Consumer fireworks means first-class consumer fireworks and second-class consumer fireworks as those 
terms are defined in this subsection.  

Display fireworks means any explosive composition, or combination of explosive substances, or article 
prepared for the purpose of producing a visible or audible effect by combustion, explosion, deflagration or 
detonation, and includes fireworks containing any explosive or flammable compound, or other device containing 
any explosive substance. The term "display fireworks" does not include novelties or consumer fireworks 
enumerated in chapter 3 of the American Pyrotechnics Association (APA) standard 87-1.  

First-class consumer fireworks means the following consumer fireworks, as described in APA standard 87-1, 
chapter 3:  

(1) Aerial shell kits and reloadable tubes.  

(2) Chasers.  

(3) Helicopter and aerial spinners.  

(4) Firecrackers.  

(5) Mine and shell devices.  

(6) Missile-type rockets.  

(7) Roman candles.  

405

Item 39.



(8) Sky rockets and bottle rockets.  

(9) Multiple tube devices set forth under this definition that are manufactured in accordance with APA 
standard 87-1, section 3.5.  

Novelties means all novelties, enumerated in chapter 3 of the APA standard 87-1, and that comply with the 
labeling regulations promulgated by the United States consumer product safety commission. The term "novelties" 
includes party poppers, snappers, toy smoke devices, snakes and glow worms, and wire sparklers as defined in APA 
standard 87-1, section 3.2.  

Second-class consumer fireworks means the following consumer fireworks, as described in APA standard 87-
1, chapter 3:  

(1) Cone fountains.  

(2) Cylindrical fountains.  

(3) Flitter sparklers.  

(4) Ground and handheld sparkling devices, including multiple tube ground and handheld sparkling devices 
that are manufactured in accordance with APA standard 87-1, section 3.5.  

(5) Ground spinners.  

(6) Illuminating torches.  

(7) Toy smoke devices that are not classified as novelties pursuant to APA standard 87-1, section 3.2.  

(8) Wheels.  

(9) Wire or dipped sparklers that are not classified as novelties pursuant to APA standard 87-1, section 3.2.  

(b) Prohibitions and use. It shall be unlawful for any person to use or explode consumer fireworks within the city 
limits. It shall be unlawful for any person to use or explode display fireworks within the city limits, unless a 
permit is properly obtained as set forth in subsection (d) of this section.  

          (1)   It shall be unlawful for any person to use or explode any consumer fireworks within the corporate limits 
of the City of Cedar Falls except on July 3, 4, and 5 of each year between the hours of twelve o'clock (12:00) noon 
and eleven o'clock (11:00) P.M. on July 4 and between the hours of twelve o'clock (12:00) noon and ten o'clock 
(10:00) P.M. on July 3 and July 5. This section shall not apply to novelties. 
         ( 2)   The use of consumer fireworks that mimic display fireworks or rise to one hundred fifty (150) decibels or 
to two hundred ten feet (210') elevation is banned from use at all times within the corporate limits of the City of 
Cedar Falls unless the user has obtained a permit as provided in subsection 16-24(e). 
          (3)   Consistent with the Code of Iowa, use of fireworks within the corporate limits of the City of Cedar Falls, 
when such occurs on July 3, 4, and 5, shall only occur on the user's owned real property. Use of fireworks, unless a 
permit has been obtained, is not allowed on city owned property, public sidewalks, rights of way, streets, parks, or 
parking lots. Use is not allowed on real property if that real property is not owned by the user of fireworks unless 
the owner has given consent prior to use. 
          (4)   It is prohibited to direct the use of consumer fireworks in any direction other than onto the user's owned 
real property or the real property where the owner has given prior consent. 
          (5)   All consumer firework debris shall be removed from the user's real property or wherever such use has 
resulted in its debris being located. 
 
(c) Exceptions. This section shall not apply to the use of blank cartridges for a show or the theater, or for signal 

purposes in athletic sports or by railroads or trucks, for signal purposes, or by a recognized military 
organization. Nor shall Tthis section shall not apply to any substance or composition prepared and sold for 
medicinal or fumigation purposes.  This section shall not apply to a person using or exploding fireworks 
under a valid permit as provided in subsection 16-24(e).  

406

Item 39.



(d)     Enforcement. 
 
           (1)   Citations for violation of this section 16-24 shall be directed to the person observed/found to have 
violated this section or the owner of real property on which the evidence exists of violation of this section. 
Furthermore, where evidence of violation of Noise or Nuisance ordinances exists, such citations may also be 
written. 
           (2)   The vendors of fireworks shall be monitored during sales periods as to type of consumer fireworks sold 
and for compliance with subsection 16-24(f). 
 
(ed) Display fireworks. The council may, upon application in writing, grant a permit for the use and explosion of 

display fireworks within the city limits by municipalities, fair associations, amusement parks, and other 
organizations or groups of individuals when the use and explosion of such display fireworks will be handled 
by a competent operator, and proof of liability insurance is shown. (See also section 9-20.)  

(f)      Sales. A seller of consumer fireworks must possess a license from the State Fire Marshal. Any retailer or 
community group selling consumer fireworks must prominently display, at the entrance and exit sites, signs 
informing customers that the use of consumer fireworks is prohibited within the corporate limits of the City of 
Cedar Falls except on the dates and times authorized by this section.   
 

(ge) Violation; Appeal. Violation of this section or interference with enforcement of any of the provisions of this 
section shall be guilty of a municipal infraction punishable by a civil penalty in the minimum amount of 
$375.00 for the first offense.  Second and subsequent offenses shall be punishable as provided in subsection 
1(9)(a)is a simple misdemeanor punishable by a fine of not less than $250.00.  

(Code 2017, § 19-24; Ord. No. 2555, § 12, 10-24-2005) 

 
 

INTRODUCED:     May 2, 2022    

PASSED 1ST CONSIDERATION:                  

PASSED 2ND CONSIDERATION:                             

PASSED 3RD CONSIDERATION:       

ADOPTED:          

 
 

__________________________________   
       Robert M. Green, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
________________________________ 
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

  

407

Item 39.



408

Item 40.



409

Item 40.



410

Item 40.



411

Item 40.



412

Item 40.



413

Item 40.



414

Item 40.



415

Item 40.



416

Item 40.



417

Item 40.



418

Item 40.



419

Item 40.



420

Item 40.



421

Item 40.



422

Item 40.



423

Item 40.



424

Item 40.



425

Item 40.



426

Item 40.



427

Item 40.



428

Item 40.



429

Item 40.



430

Item 40.



431

Item 40.



432

Item 40.



433

Item 40.



434

Item 40.



435

Item 40.



436

Item 40.



437

Item 40.



438

Item 40.



439

Item 40.



440

Item 40.



441

Item 40.



442

Item 40.



443

Item 40.


	Top
	Item 1.	Regular Meeting of April 18, 2022
	220418MINUTES

	Item 2.	Proclamation-Tourism Week - May 1-7
	2022-05-W1-TravelAndTourismWeek

	Item 3.	Proclamation - Clerks Week - May 1-7
	2022-05-W2_MunicipalClerksWeek

	Item 4.	Proclamation - National Astronaut Day - May 5, 2022
	2022-05-05_AstronautDay

	Item 5.	Proclamation-World Migratory Bird Day - May 14
	2022-05-14_WorldMigratoryBirdDay

	Item 6.	Proclamation - Peace Officers Memorial - May 15
	2022-05-W2_Police_Week_R1

	Item 7.	Proclamation-Neurofibromatosis Awareness - May 17
	2022-05_NeurofibromatosisMonth

	Item 8.	Proclamation-Bike Month - May 16-22
	2022-05_BikeMonthBiketoWorkWeek

	Item 9.	Proclamation - Historic Preservation - May 2022
	2022-05_HistoricPreservationMonth

	Item 10.	PH-Public Records Policy
	1-memocc-admin policy no 5
	ADM05-Public Record Requests-V1 04.01.22

	Item 11.	PH-FY2022 Budget Amendments
	Budget Amend #1 Memo
	PH Notice - CF FY2022 Budget Amendment
	FY2022 Budget Amendment No.1

	Item 12.	PH-2022 Alley Reconstruction Project
	1. PH Memo - 2022 Alley Reconstruction
	2. 2022 Alley Reconstruction Project Cost Estimate

	Item 13.	PH-North Cedar Heights Area Reconstruction Phase 1
	1. Memo PH- North Cedar Heights Area Reconstruction Phase 1
	2. ROW Exhibit

	Item 14.	3010-Parking-CH Farmers Market
	1-memocc-CH Farmers Market
	2-CHFM Letter to City
	3-3010-CH FM

	Item 15.	COW Minutes - April 18, 2022
	04-18-22 Committee of the Whole Minutes-Final

	Item 16.	Engineering Technician II & Land Surveyor-Civil Service Certified List
	Eng Tech II-CertList 4-2022
	Land Surveyor-CertList 4-2022

	Item 17.	Departmental Monthly Report
	03 - March 2022 Departmental Monthly Report

	Item 18.	College Hill Partnership Bi-Annual Report
	1_Memo to Council for CHP 2nd Half Payment 05-02-22
	2_CHP Biannual Report April 2022

	Item 19.	Community Main Street Bi-Annual Report
	1_Memo to Council for CMS 2nd Half Payment 05-02-22
	2_October 2021-March 2022 Bi-Annual Report

	Item 20.	Tobacco Permits 05/02/2022
	05022022 Tobacco Applications

	Item 21.	Liquor Beer 05-02-22
	Liquor Beer 5-2-22

	Item 22.	Admin Policy No 7
	1-Memo to Mayor, Council Admin Policy 7 changes
	2-Proposed changes to Administration Policy No  7 Rules 70  71

	Item 23.	SRF Loan Amendment
	1-Refinancing SRF council.mem
	2-Res-Reissuance and Amendment Rate Reset 2011 Sewer Rev CLN (02038649x7F7E1)
	3-Supplemental Tax Certificate Rate Reset 2011 Sewer Rev CLN (02038650x7F7E1)
	4-8038-G Rate Reset 2011 Sewer Rev CLN (02038728x7F7E1)
	5-Final Debt Schedule with 1.75% Interest 9-1-21 (02038654x7F7E1)
	6-2011 - Executed Tax Exemption Certificate (2011) (02042126x7F7E1)

	Item 24.	CFU Transfer
	6418 2022 Transfer to City

	Item 25.	Assessment-1404 Clay St.
	1404 Clay St.-Assessment

	Item 26.	Assessment-603 Fireside Dr.
	603 Fireside Dr.-Assessment

	Item 27.	Assessment-2012 State St.
	2012 State St.-Assessment

	Item 28.	Assessment-1022 West 22nd St.
	1022 W 22nd St.-Assessment

	Item 29.	Assessment-1612 W 1st St.
	1612 W 1st St.-Assessment

	Item 30.	Lease - flood buyout properties
	1. Council Memo 5-2-22
	2. Whiting signed lease 4-21-22

	Item 31.	INRCOG Contract Amendment related to the State Award of CARES Act Community Development Block Grant Funds (CDBG-CV2)
	1. memo to amend INRCOG for CV2f (1)
	2  City-INRCOG StandardProfesionalService new format (CV-2 Amended).docx (new contract format)
	3. CIty-INRCOG.Attachment A-Scope of Services V4.(CV-2 Amended)
	4  City-INRCOG Attachment B-FINAL-Insurance Requirements (CV-2)
	5  City-INRCOG Attachment C-Standard Terms  Conditions (CV-2)

	Item 32.	Craig Industries Amended Developmental Agreement
	1. Council Memo 3-8-22 (1)
	2. Location Map
	3. Resolution_3-16-2020
	4. Signed Amended Development Procedures_4-22-22
	5. Exhibit A

	Item 33.	Park Equipment Purchase
	Bess Streeter CC memo

	Item 34.	Pavement Marking Contract
	Pavement Marking Contract CC 2022

	Item 35.	Low Bid-W. 27th Street Reconstruction Project
	1. Memo Low Bid - W 27th Street Recon
	2. Bid Tab - W 27th Street Recon

	Item 36.	2022 Alley Reconst-Permanent Utility Easement
	1.Memo - 2022 Alley Reconstruction Permanent Public Utility Easement
	2. Public Utility Easement Plat
	3. Permanent Public Utility Easement Purchase Agreement - Geisler

	Item 37.	STBG Application-Union Road Reconstruction Project
	1. Memo - Union Road Recon STBG Application
	2. Application_Cedar Falls_Union Rd

	Item 38.	TSIP-Main Street Reconstruction Project
	1.  Memo - Main Street City-State Agreement TSIP
	2. 2023-TS-009_CedarFallsRevisedFinal (002)

	Item 39.	Ord-Fireworks
	Ord-Fireworks

	Item 40.	Bills - May 2, 2022
	1 Daily Invoices 050222
	2 Council Invoices 050222

	Bottom

